**Bob Jones University** 

# The Scholarship File

**Chuck Kittrell** 

Disclaimer: All of the information in this scholarship file is public domain unless otherwise noted. Most of the information has come from articles and websites. I credited those who have made the information available an highlighted websites in blue so that you can go directly to the scholarship sites. The inclusion of the scholarship file does not mean they are endorsed by Chuck Kittrell or Bob Jones University (unless it is a scholarship assoc with Bob Jones University). If you have information about scholarships which you feel should be included in this file, please email it to me (ckittrel@bju.edu), and I will take a look at it.

## Contents

Tips On How To Use The Scholarship File	2
Financial Aid Resources For College And Grad School	
Internet Sources	
Faith-Based Scholarships	16
Scholarships For Women	18
Scholarships For Minorities	
Minority Scholarships For Medical, Nursing And Public Health	38
Scholarships For Hispanics And Latinos	45
Scholarships For African-Americans	50
Scholarships For Native Americans	
Engineering, Computer Engineering And Science Scholarships	55
Scholarships For High School Students	
Biology, Environmental Sciences And Agriculture Scholarships	69
Math And Physical Science Scholarships	76
Social Science Scholarships	82
Education Scholarships	87
Medical School And Heath Profession Scholarships	91
Public Health Scholarships	98
Cancer Research And Education Scholarships	104
Liberal Arts, Arts And Humanities Scholarships	111
International Study Abroad Scholarships	115
College And Graduate School Scholarships	126
Library Studies, Museums And History Scholarships	131
Media Communication Scholarships	137
Miscellaneous Scholarships	
Summer Jobs, Research Internships And Training Programs For Students	149
Biomedical Summer Internships	
Athletic Scholarships	169
Websites For Scholarships And Grants For International Students	
Websites For Student Loans	169
Miscellaneous Scholarships	170
College Funding By State	
Federal Grants, Student Loans, And Other Sources Of Student Aid	174
Bob Jones University Grants And Scholarships	176
Surviving Those Financial Aid Forms	
Scholarship Scams	
The Six Most Common Blunders of College Applicants	192
010 College Interview Mistakes	194
Application Essays	195
What Is a Good SAT Score? A Bad SAT Score? An Excellent SAT Score?	
What's a Good SAT Score, Compared to the Entire Country?	197
What's a Good SAT Score for YOU Specifically?	
What's Next?	
Ways to Score Scholarship Money	
What To Do If You Can't Get Enough Financial Aid	
Measuring a College Grad's Salary Prospects	207

#### Tips On How To Use The Scholarship File

When you first look at this scholarship file you will probably be overwhelmed at the sheer magnitude of the file. I have spent several years putting this file together. As I have traveled the country recruiting, I have looked everywhere for scholarships...high school bulletin boards, college websites, internet college scholarship search engines, etc. And there are still hundreds of scholarships out there that are not included in this file.

I have also been asked on numerous occasions if I had access to any graduate scholarships. Until this year I have not included any graduate scholarships in my file because most of my work has been done with high school students. However, because I have been asked so many times about graduate scholarships, I have decided to include them in this file. They are mixed in with the undergraduate scholarships by category throughout the pages of this file. I have also included grants, research grants, fellowships, doctoral, and post-doctoral information on scholarships as well. Some of the scholarships appear multiple times in different categories because they fit each category and it is easier to search for the scholarships that meet your needs. In addition, I have included several lists of paid and unpaid internships for high school and college students (mostly summer internships). This makes for a great resource while students are not only getting ready for college but also while they are in college and doing graduate work!

Here are some tips for searching for scholarships.

- 1. Start your search in your own backyard.

  Don't go for the big scholarships that most of the time turn out to be a waste of time (Example: CocaCola Scholarship, \$100,000 receives more than 100,000 applicants every year). Look for scholarships from your parents' employers, local civic groups, clubs, businesses, churches, and organizations in your community first. Don't worry if they are small! The small ones add up!
- 2. Use your high school guidance counselor as a resource. If you are already in college, make an appointment with your college financial aid office. They will be more than happy to give you ideas about where to find scholarships and grants.
- 3. Those extracurricular activities you're involved in during your high school years can turn out to be a great resource for scholarships. There may be scholarships sponsored by the organizations with which you are involved.
- 4. There is no magic number of scholarships for which to apply. Don't spend time crafting the perfect application and apply for only two scholarships. And don't apply for hundreds of scholarships sending in the same application for each one. Strike a balance between quantity and quality.
- 5. Keep a file on each scholarship you apply for and make sure you don't miss the deadlines! On the outside of each folder write the deadline for applying in bold.
- 6. Beware of scholarship scams!

## Financial Aid Resources For College And Grad School

#### **Books**

Note: I would recommend you not purchase these books except for the ones I have highlighted. The ones I have highlighted are ones that I have read and think would be a good purchase. All of these books can be checked out at your local library and many of them may be in your school library or available from your college guidance counselor.

Peterson's College Money Handbook (Peterson's)

The Scholarship Book (Prentice Hall)

You Can Afford College (Doubleday)

USA Today's Financial Aid for College (Peterson's)

How to Go To College Almost for Free (Ben Kaplan)

One of the best resources I've seen on how to apply for scholarships and grants.

Directory of Financial Aid for Women (Reference Service Press)

Financial Aid for African Americans, Financial Aid for Asian Americans, Financial Aid for Hispanic Americans, Financial Aid for Native Americans (Reference Service Press)

The College Blue Book, Scholarships, Fellowships, Grants and Loans (McMillan Publishing Co.)

Financial Aid Officers: What They Do To You and For You Octameron Associates, PO Box 2748, Alexandria, VA 22301

The College Costs and Financial Aid Handbook

College Board Publications, PO Box 886, New York, NY 10101

Paying For College: A Guide for Parents

College Board Publications, PO Box 886, New York, NY 10101

Winning Scholarships for College: An Insider's Guide

Author: Marianne Ragins (Winner of more than \$400,000 in scholarship money)

Sports Scholarships: Insider's Guide

Author: Dion Wheeler

Scholarship Handbook

CollegeBoard (2,170 programs offering private, federal, and state money)

Getting Financial Aid

CollegeBoard

The Ultimate Scholarship Book

Authors: Gen and Kelly Tanabe (A thick book full of scholarships if you have time to go through it)

## **Internet Sources**

## Scholarship Scam Alert

Every year, several hundred thousand students and parents are defrauded by scholarship scams. The victims of these scams lose more than \$100 million annually.

www.FinAid.org (Loans, scholarships, financial aid applications, calculators, etc.)

www.Fastweb.com (Search over 600,000 scholarships worth over \$1 billion, tips on financial aid, etc.)

www.collegenet.com (Apply online to the college of your choice and be in a drawing for a \$10,000 scholarship)

www.collegeboard.org

www.collegeboard.org/paying (Excellent site for financial aid calculations, how much your family will have to pay, scholarship search, all the financial aid info you need)

www.fafsa.ed.gov (Free Application For Federal Student Aid)

www.scholarships4college.com

www.ed.gov/finaid.html

www.college-scholarships.com (Lists colleges by state with phone numbers and email addresses to contact for financial aid, etc.)

www.suntrusteducation.com

www.christianconnector.com

www.coca-colascholars.org – (\$3 million per year/250 scholarships)

www.legion.org/needalift

www.gacollege411.org (State of Georgia)

www.nassp.org

www.review.com

www.kaplan.com

https://studentaid.ed.gov/sa/

www.salliemae.com

www.campustours.com

www.universities.com

www.collegeview.com

www.embark.com

www.allaboutcollege.com

www.petersons.com

www.christianconnector.com

www.scholarshipamerica.org

oedb.org/scholarship (Search for scholarships by categories such as religious affiliation)

www.supercollege.com (Scholarship and college search engine. List of articles to help pay for college)

http://www.careersandcolleges.com (Focuses on careers as well as college)

http://www.scholarships.com (Site claims over \$19 billion of scholarships)

http://dir.yahoo.com/Education/Financial\_Aid/Scholarship\_Programs (Not the best but excellent scholarship opportunities)

http://www.collegeanswer.com/index.jsp (Loaded with information including a scholarship search engine)

http://www.multiculturaladvantage.com/scholarship.asp (Grants, fellowships, scholarships for students of diverse backgrounds and all academic levels)

http://www.drpeppertuition.com/ (over \$1 million in tuition grants/scholarships)

http://studentaid.ed.gov (Programs administered by the US Dept. of Education. Information on Academic Competitiveness Grants, National Science and Mathematics Access to Retain Talent Grant <SMART> TEACH Grant)

http://federalstudentaid.ed.gov (Information, guidance, and tools to help students find federal funding)

http://ifap.ed.gov/ifap/index.jsp (Resources for Title IV federal aid)

http://www.ed.gov/programs/fpg (Site for Federal Pell Grant program)

http://www.ed.gov/about/offices/list/fsa (Learn about different kinds of federal aid available)

http://www.ed.gov/programs/iduesbyrd/index.html (Helps students apply for federally funded scholarships administered by states. Recognizes exceptional high school seniors)

http://www.ed.gov/programs/fws (Federal work-study program)

http://www.ed.gov/programs/fseog (Federal Supplemental Educational Opportunity Grant-FSEOG. Need-based grants to low income undergrad students)

http://www.ed.gov/fund/grant/apply/grantapps/index.html (Listing of grants provided via discretionary funds from the federal government)

http://bhpr.hrsa.gov/grants/index.html (Scholarships for disadvantaged students. Students must be enrolled in health professions or nursing programs)

https://scholarshipprograms.org (for SC students)

www.cfnc.org (for NC students)

http://www.easyaid.com/financial-aid-checklist (Checklist on applying for financial aid)

http://www.finaid.org/students/checklist.phtml (Calendar checklist of steps in applying for financial aid)

http://www.finaid.org/fafsa/awardletters.phtml (Detailed look at financial award letters and packages)

www.finaidfacts.org (Analysis of college costs and financial aid)

http://www.offtocollege.com (Worksheets for college admissions and financial aid calculations)

https://bigfuture.collegeboard.org/html/calculators/efcCalculatorHelp.html (How to calculate the Expected Family Contribution (EFC) used to determine federal aid.

www.DunkinDonuts.com/scholarship (150/\$1,000 scholarships. Apply by March 15)

www.ScholarshipPoints.com (\$500-\$10,000 scholarships awarded every month. Available even to those students in college right now)

www.artandwriting.org (\$10,000 scholarships to high school seniors who earn National Portfolio Gold Medals. Other scholarships vary from \$500 to full tuition)

www.truman.gov (Harry S. Truman Scholarship Foundation awards scholarship funds up to \$30,000 for college juniors who want to pursue graduate degrees in public service fields. The foundation also assists with career counseling and internship placement)

www.tylenol.com/page.jhtml?id=tylenol/news/subptyschol.inc# (The makers of Tylenol awards scholarships to students going into the medical field. Awards range from \$5,000-\$10,000 and are based on leadership qualities and academic performance)

www.siemens-foundation.org/en/competition.htm (Siemens Corporation has an annual competition called the Siemens Competition in Math, Science, and Technology. This competition is based upon submission of science projects. The grand prize winner is awarded \$100,000.)

www.kfcscholars.org

www.cappex.com (Search \$11 billion in merit scholarships from colleges; find scholarship matches from companies such as Coca-Cola, Kraft Foods, Burger King, Intel, and thousands of other national and local organizations; check out more than \$70,000 in unique Cappex scholarships.)

"High school innovator of the year" (\$5,000 scholarship) www.cappex.com/scholarships

"Lead With Your Heart" scholarship (\$5,000 scholarship) www.cappex.com/scholarships

www.schoolsoup.com

www.scholarshipexperts.com

http://www.schering-ploughwilltowin.com (10-\$5,000 scholarships awarded to seniors with asthma)

www.mycollegedollars.com

http://www.collegeweeklive.com/en\_CA/guest/app-scholarships

www.buickachievers.com 1,100 scholarships of up to \$25,000 each. Deadline for applying is Feb. 29

http://scholarshipzone.com/scholarship-application (No GPA, No Essay, No Hassle! Takes Only 3 Short Min)

Coca Cola Scholars (Award: \$10,000-\$20,000) Applicants must be high school seniors or home school seniors attending school in the United States Deadline: Oct. 31 Administered by the Coca Cola Company) Click link below http://www.coca-colascholarsfoundation.org/applicants/#.UmgD\_RDr5yU.

https://bigfuture.collegeboard.org/scholarship-search

http://nrb.org/news\_room/articles/essay-scholarship-contest-for-communications-broadcasting-and-jo/ (Essay Scholarship Contest for Communications, Broadcasting, and Journalism Majors)

<u>www.FFA.org/scholarships</u> - Monsanto giving away 12 scholarships (\$1500) for students from Georgia going into agriculture. Deadline Feb. 1

www.asianpacificfund.org/scholarships - Asian Pacific Fund administers 12 scholarship programs each with unique eligibility. Scholarship amounts range from \$1,000 to \$20,000 and many are renewable. Who can apply? Incoming or current college students of various ethnic backgrounds. Must plan to be enrolled full time in the Fall. Minimum of 3.0 GPA and be a US citizen or Permanent Resident unless otherwise stated. Deadline: February 1.

http://www.jumpstart-scholarship.net/ - Applicants must be 10<sup>th</sup>-12<sup>th</sup> grade high school students, college students, or adult students. They must be legal residents of the U.S. Amount of award: Up to \$1,500. Number of awards: 3 Deadline: April 15, October 15

<a href="http://www.acjalae.org/">http://www.acjalae.org/</a> ACJA/Lamda Alpha Epsilon Scholarship for Criminal Justice students. Applicant must be undergraduate or graduate student studying Criminal Justice. Must be ACJA/LAE member but may submit a membership form at time of application for scholarship. Must have completed at least 2 semesters or three-fourths of their education while earning a 3.0 GPA. Amount: \$100-\$400 Number of awards: 9
 <a href="Deadline: Dec. 31">Deadline: Dec. 31</a>

Annual Dunkin' Donuts Philadelphia Regional Scholarship Program – Visit dunkindonuts.com/scholarship to learn more about how you can earn a \$2,000 scholarship. Applicants must be high school seniors who plan to enroll in a full-time undergraduate course of study at an accredited two-year or four-year college, university, or vocational-technical school in the fall. Applications accepted online from March 1-April 15.

Websites with articles on how to reduce college debt

http://www.irs.gov/newsroom/article/0,,id=211309,00.html

http://www.collegecosts.com/

https://bigfuture.collegeboard.org/pay-for-college/college-costs/college-costs-calculator

http://www.howtogetin.com/pay-for-college/

http://www.forbes.com/sites/investor/2011/09/16/how-to-pay-for-college-right-now/

http://www.bankrate.com/brm/news/cheap/20030528a1.asp

http://parenting.blogs.nytimes.com/2010/02/05/how-do-parents-pay-for-college/

http://www.wikihow.com/Pay-for-College-Without-Loans

http://moneyfor20s.about.com/od/studentloanalternatives/tp/studentloanalternatives.htm

The undergrad and graduate scholarships, grants, and fellowships contained in pages 9-182 are compiled by Francisco A Tomei Torres (Paco Tomei). For a complete list of specific scholarships visit his website at https://www.fatomei.com/.

## **QuestBridge** — College Prep for High School Juniors & Seniors

#### National College Match

Sep The QuestBridge National College Match helps outstanding low-income high school seniors gain admission and full four-year scholarships to some of the nation's most selective colleges. If you are a student who has achieved academic excellence in the face of economic challenges, we encourage you to apply to the National College Match. QuestBridge's partner colleges offer generous financial aid packages that cover 100% of demonstrated financial need, making them very affordable for low-income students.

## Quest for Excellence Awards

Mar The Quest for Excellence program is an innovative initiative for talented, low-income high school juniors and seniors, and serves as a powerful complement to the College Prep Scholarship and National College Match programs. Quest for Excellence Awards are designed to enhance educational exploration for qualified juniors and seniors with a range of backgrounds and interests.

#### **Siemens Foundation**—**Programs**

<u>Siemens Math, Science and Technology Competition for High School Students</u> — *Up to \$100,000 College Scholarships* 

Sep The Siemens Competition in Math, Science & Technology recognizes remarkable talent early on, fostering individual growth for high school students who are willing to challenge themselves through science research. Through this competition, students have an opportunity to achieve national recognition for science research projects that they complete in high school.

## <u>Coca-Cola Scholars Foundation</u> — Scholarships

Four-Year College Scholarships for High School Seniors — \$20,000

Oct Seniors in high schools throughout the United States who meet the eligibility requirements may apply each year for achievement-based scholarships.

#### **Harvard University** — Financial Aid

<u>Harvard Financial Aid Initiative</u> — *Potentially worth over* \$60,000/year.

Nov Admission to Harvard is based on achievement and promise without regard to financial need; the financial paperwork is handled separately, and applying for financial aid does not jeopardize a student's chances for

Jan 1 admission. The application fee normally associated with admissions can also be waived. Harvard College does not award merit nor athletic scholarships. All scholarships are based on demonstrated financial need. Ninety percent of American families would pay the same or less to send their children to Harvard as they would a state school.

#### Ron Brown Scholar Program — Prospective Applicants

<u>College Scholarships for African-American High School Seniors Who Intend to Pursue Undergraduate Degrees Full-Time</u> \$10,000 annually for four years, for a total of \$40,000

Nov The Ron Brown Scholar Program seeks to identify African-American high school seniors who will make significant contributions to society. Applicants must excel academically, exhibit exceptional leadership potential, participate in Jan 9 community service activities and demonstrate financial need.

## **Boettcher Foundation**

College Scholarships for Colorado High School Seniors — Over \$2,800/year

Nov Selection criteria include superior scholastic ability, evidence of leadership & involvement, service to community, and school outstanding character.

## <u>Jack Kent Cooke Foundation</u> — Scholarships

College Scholarships for High-Achieving High School Seniors with Financial Need — Up to \$40,000

Nov This scholarship rewards excellence by supporting high-achieving high school seniors with financial need who seek to attend the nation's best four-year colleges and universities. Each award is intended to cover a significant share of the student's educational expenses — including tuition, living expenses, books and required fees. Awards vary by individual, based on the cost of tuition as well as other grants or scholarships he or she may receive.

#### Intel — Education Initiative Competitions

Intel Science Talent Search for High School Seniors — Up to \$100,000 College Scholarships

Nov America's oldest and most prestigious pre-college science competition.

## U.S. Air Force AFROTC — Scholarships

Four-Year College Scholarships for High School Seniors

Dec The Air Force ROTC High School Scholarship Program provides three- and four-year scholarships in three different types to high school seniors.

#### Four-Year Nursing College Scholarships for High School Seniors

The Nursing Scholarship program is operated on a noncompetitive basis - those who meet the qualifications are awarded the scholarship and do not meet a scholarship selection board.

#### Phi Theta Kappa Honor Society — Scholarships

## All-USA Community College Academic Team

Dec The Coca-Cola Scholars Foundation sponsors the All-USA Community College Academic Team. In addition, The Coca-Cola Foundation, along with The Coca-Cola Scholars Foundation recognizes the New Century Scholars. Fifty students will be named Gold Scholars, each receiving \$1,500 scholarships, fifty students will be named Silver Scholars, each receiving \$1,250 scholarships, and fifty students will be named Bronze Scholars, each receiving \$1,000 scholarships. A state may have multiple Gold, Silver, or Bronze Scholars. All scholars will also receive special medallions.

#### Coca-Cola New Century Scholars

Dec Scholarships for students in community colleges. The student receiving the highest All-USA Community College
2 Academic Team application score in each state is named a Coca-Cola New Century Scholar and represents his/her state at the New Century Scholars Presidents Breakfast at the American Association of Community Colleges Convention.

## **Elks National Foundation** — **Scholarships**

## Most Valuable Student Scholarships for High School Seniors

Dec The Elks National Foundation will award four-year scholarships to the highest-rated high school senior applicants.

5 Two first-place awards of \$50,000; two second-place awards of \$40,000; and two third-place awards of \$30,000.

The remaining 14 finalists will receive awards of \$20,000. 480 runners-up will receive fifth-place scholarships of \$4,000.

#### **AXA Foundation**

AXA Achievement<sup>™</sup> Scholarships for High School Seniors — \$10,000 to \$25,000

Dec The AXA Achievement Scholarship offers college scholarships to high school seniors who have demonstrated outstanding achievement in their activities in school, the community or the workplace.

## Burger King McLamore Foundation — Scholars Program

Burger King Scholarships for Graduating, College Bound High School Seniors — Up to \$50,000

Dec Scholarships for current high school senior who will be enrolling full-time in the fall of the scholarship year.

#### **Milken Family Foundation**

College Scholarships for High School Students in the Los Angeles, California Area

Dec Scholarships for exceptional young men and women based on their academic performance, community service, leadership activities and triumphs over obstacles.

#### **Imagine America Foundation** — Education Scholarships

Scholarships for College Bound High School Seniors

Dec Each year, every high school in the United States and Puerto Rico may nominate up to five graduating seniors to receive an Imagine America scholarship.

#### **National Eagle Scout Association (NESA)**

College Scholarships for Eagle Scouts Graduating High School and Entering College — Up to \$50,000

Dec NESA academic scholarship applicants must be Eagle Scouts graduating high school and entering college in the year for which they apply for a scholarship.

## Ronald Reagan Presidential Foundation and Library — Scholarship Programs

<u>GE-Reagan Foundation Scholarships</u> \$10,000 scholarship renewable for up to an additional three years - up to \$40,000 total per recipient

Jan 8 The GE-Reagan Foundation Scholarship Program rewards college-bound students who demonstrate exemplary leadership, drive, integrity, and citizenship with financial assistance to pursue higher education. Awards are for undergraduate study only, and may be used for education-related expenses, including tuition, fees, books, supplies, room, and board. In addition, Scholars are invited to participate in a special awards program.

## **U.S. Army ROTC** — Scholarships

#### Four-year college scholarships for high school seniors

The high school Four-Year Scholarship is for high school students planning on attending a four-year college program. Students agree to accept a commission and serve in the Army on Active Duty or in a Reserve Component (Army Reserve or Army National Guard).

## Nursing College Scholarships for High School Seniors

The Army ROTC program offers two-, three- or four-year scholarships for undergraduate nursing students.

#### **Bill and Melinda Gates Foundation**

<u>Gates Millennium Scholarships</u> — Over \$10,000

Jan The Gates Millennium Scholars (GMS) Program provides outstanding African American, American Indian/Alaska

Native, Asian Pacific Islander American, and Hispanic American students with an opportunity to complete an undergraduate college education in any discipline area of interest. Continuing Gates Millennium Scholars may request funding for a graduate degree program in one of the following discipline areas: computer science, education, engineering, library science, mathematics, public health or science.

## **SAE International Foundation** — Scholarships Program

Scholarships for High School Seniors — Up to \$6,000

Jan These scholarships encourage academic excellence and help students around the world to pursue their passion for engineering.

#### McDonald's, Ronald McDonald House Charities — U.S. Scholarships

Scholarships for Graduating, College-Bound High School Seniors — A minimum \$1,000

Jan All students are eligible to apply regardless of race, color, creed, religion, sexual orientation, gender, disability or national origin, must be a high school senior, be younger than 21 years old, be eligible to attend a two- or four-year college, university or technical school with a full course of study, and be a legal U.S. resident.

#### Michael & Susan Dell Foundation — Urban Education

<u>Dell Scholarships for College-Bound High School Seniors</u> \$20,000 to complete your higher education over the course of six years.

Unlike many other college scholarships, the Dell Scholars Program recognizes academic potential and determination in students that have a definite need for financial assistance. The Dell Scholars Program is available to students participating in approved college readiness/college access programs. If your school/area has a program that you believe meet the criteria below, please submit the informational request for your program to be reviewed for inclusion in the Dell Scholars Program.

#### Civil Air Patrol — Scholarships

Academic Scholarships for CAP High School Seniors — Up to \$5,000

Jan Academic scholarships to support cadets pursuing their undergraduate education.

#### **Edison International**

College Scholarships for Students in Science, Technology, Engineering & Math (STEM).

Feb Edison Scholars is designed to help minority, low-income and under-represented students in Southern California pay for college studies in STEM fields, helping them develop skills and knowledge they need to thrive in the workforce of the future. As Edison Scholars, the students may also be eligible for summer internships at Edison and can get paired with professionals at our companies for mentoring and guidance throughout the students' years on campus.

#### **George Snow Scholarship Fund**

College Scholarships for High School Seniors in Palm Beach and Northern Broward Counties, Florida, USA.

Feb The primary mission of The George Snow Scholarship Fund is to provide educational grants to the deserving young people of Palm Beach and Northern Broward Counties, Florida, USA. The Fund offers a variety of scholarships.

## <u>American Meteorological Society</u> — Scholarships and Fellowships

AMS Freshman Undergraduate Scholarships — Up to \$5,000

Feb The scholarship program is open to all high school students and designed to encourage study in the atmospheric and related sciences.

AMS Minority Scholarships — Up to \$3,000

Feb The scholarships help support the college educations of minority students traditionally underrepresented in the sciences, especially Hispanic, Native American, and Black/African American students, who intend to pursue careers

in the atmospheric or related oceanic and hydrologic sciences. Minority students who will be entering their freshman year of college in the fall are eligible to apply.

#### **Davidson Institute for Talent Development**

<u>Davidson Fellows Scholarships</u> — \$50,000, \$25,000 and \$10,000 Scholarships to Extraordinary Young People, 18 and under

Feb For young people under the age of 18 who have completed a significant piece of work. Application categories are Science, Technology, Engineering, Mathematics, Literature, Music, Philosophy and Outside the Box. Davidson Fellows are honored every year in Washington, D.C. with Congressional meetings and a special reception. The Davidson Institute is looking for students whose projects are at, or close to, the college graduate level with a depth of knowledge in their particular area of study. This scholarship is not geared toward students at the novice level.

#### <u>Magic Johnson Foundation</u> — <u>Programs</u>

<u>Taylor Michaels Scholarship for Graduating High School Seniors</u> \$2,000-5,000 annual tuition assistance renewable up to 5 years.

- Feb An annual life skills leadership conference; comprehensive career development rubric curriculum; laptop computers,
- 12 freshman year; 1:1 career, academic, and life skills counseling year-round; access to internships and mentors

#### **Massachusetts Institute of Technology (MIT)**

#### MITES Program for High School Juniors

Feb The MITES Program is a rigorous six-week residential, academic enrichment summer program for talented high school students who are interested in studying and exploring careers in science and engineering.

### Japanese American Citizens League — Internships and Fellowships

#### National Scholarship Program

Mar The National Scholarship and Awards Program offer scholarships to students at the entering freshman, undergraduate, graduate, law, financial need and creative & performing arts. All scholarships are one-time awards. Every applicant must be an active National JACL member. JACL Membership is open to everyone of any ethnic background. All who meet eligibility criteria are welcomed and encouraged to apply.

#### Google — Explore Scholarship Opportunities

<u>The Generation Google Scholarship</u> — \$10,000 U.S. or C\$5,000 Canadian dollars

Mar Applicants must be high school seniors who intend to be enrolled in or accepted as a full-time student at a university in the US or Canada OR be enrolled in or accepted for enrollment in a baccalaureate in Computer Science, Computer Engineering, Software Engineering, or related program. To be eligible to apply, applicants must be a student from an underrepresented group in computer science (African American, Hispanic, American Indian, or Female).

#### Federal Employee Education & Assistance Fund (FEEA)

Scholarships for Current Civilian Federal or Postal Employees and Their Dependent Family Members

Mar FEEA sponsors the only merit-based scholarship competition program open exclusively to federal employees, their spouses, and their children--rewarding hard workers through our merit-based program.

#### Latino Scholarship Dollars - Scholarships for Latino Students

Scholarships can play an important role in helping you pay for college. They are free money that you can apply for - and they don't have to be paid back.

## <u>American Federation of Teachers</u>—Scholarships

Robert G. Porter Scholars Program — \$1,000 to \$8,000

Mar Open to graduating high school seniors who have at least one parent or legal guardian who is an American

Federation of Teachers member. For accomplished high school students who show outstanding service to their community and an understanding of the role unions can play to create a more just society.

## National Federation of the Blind (NFB)

College Scholarships for Legally Blind Students — \$3,000 to \$12,000

Mar Scholarships to recognize achievement by blind scholars.

31

#### Senator George J. Mitchell Scholarship Research Institute

College Scholarships — \$7,000 over four years

Apr The Mitchell Institute awards a scholarship to a graduating senior from every public high school in Maine. Students must be maine residents enrolled in a four-year degree program at a college or university in Maine

## National Restaurant Association Educational Foundation — Scholarship Program

Academic Scholarships for High School Seniors — \$2,500

Apr This scholarship is for students who will be first-time freshmen including graduating high school seniors, GED graduates and high school graduates enrolling in college for the first time.

## **Community Foundation for Greater New Haven**

Milton Fisher Scholarship for Innovation and Creativity — Up to \$20,000

Apr This scholarship is not a traditional scholarship focused on rewarding academic achievement and financial need. Its specific goal is to reward and encourage innovative and creative problem solving. The Scholarship aims to honor these students and to help make their higher education goals more accessible. Open to residents of all US states who will be attending college in NY or CT and also to residents of NY or CT who will be attending college anywhere in the United States. Applicant must be (a) a high school junior, or (b) a high school senior, or (c) any person entering an undergraduate degree program\* in the fall after the application deadline or the following spring, or (d) a student in the first year of an undergraduate degree program.

## **Shawn Carter Foundation** — Scholarship Fund

College Scholarships — \$1,500 to \$2,500

Apr All high school seniors, undergraduate (2yr or 4yr) college students, and students at vocational or trade schools are eligible to apply. All applicants must be US citizens, 25 years old or younger, and have a minimum GPA of 2.0.

<u>American Society of Heating, Refrigerating and Air-Conditioning Engineers</u> — *Scholarships and Grants* High School Senior Scholarships — \$3,000

May Available to college freshmen enrolled full-time in an undergraduate pre-engineering or engineering technology program leading to a bachelor's degree in a course of study that traditionally has been a preparatory curriculum for the HVAC&R profession.

#### **Army Scholarship Foundation**

College Scholarships for High School Seniors — \$500 to \$2000

May The Army Scholarship Foundation awards one-year financial scholarships (not grants or loans) on an annual basis to qualified and deserving students.

## Omega Phi Beta Sorority

Reach for the Gold College Scholarship

May Targets a woman of color who is a college-bound senior.

26

#### **U.S. Department of Education** — Student Aid on the Web

## Pell Grants — Up to \$5,902

A Federal Pell Grant, unlike a loan, does not have to be repaid. Undergraduate and vocational students enrolled or accepted for enrollment in participating schools may apply. Pell Grants are awarded usually only to students who have not earned a bachelor's or a professional degree. To be eligible for a Pell Grant, you must also meet the general federal student aid eligibility requirements. To apply for a Pell Grant, you must complete the Free Application for Federal Student Aid (FAFSA).

### College Scorecard

You can use the College Scorecard to find out more about a college's affordability and value so you can make more informed decisions about which college to attend.

#### FAFSA - Free Application for Federal Student Aid

Submit electronically the Free Application for Federal Student Aid (FAFSA). All students interested in financial aid for college will need to complete this form.

#### **Direct Student Loans**

Students and parents can explore the site for information about the Direct Loan Program, including helpful publications and tools to help manage their Direct Loans.

#### Presidential Scholars - the Most Distinguished High School Seniors

The U.S. Presidential Scholars Program recognizes and honors some of our nation's most distinguished graduating high school seniors, including students who demonstrate exceptional talent in the visual, creative and performing arts.

## <u>U.S. Navy/Marine Corps NROTC</u> — Full-Scholarship Opportunities - Offering up to \$180,000 for tuition plus a host of other advantages

## Four-Year College Scholarships for High School Seniors

If you are interested in a collegiate scholarship program that not only pays for school but also generates some of the country's most capable leaders, start by looking into the NROTC Scholarship program.

## **Ventures Scholars Program**

#### High School Students Interested in Pursuing Math- and Science-Based Careers

As a high school Ventures Scholar, you are provided with a variety of services. Your name will be shared with the Ventures Scholars Program Consortium, a membership of over 200 member colleges and universities interested in helping you achieve your career goals. You can learn about math and science careers simply by contacting the member professional associations. All Ventures Scholars can download their personalized certificate of recognition. Some of the member institutions request the certificate when granting fee waivers to Ventures Scholars. Most Ventures Scholars include their certificate along with the college application. You will receive a biweekly e-mail newsletter for high school Ventures Scholars that provides continuously updated information on a broad array of topics and resources about the college planning process and VSP consortium members.

## **Posse Foundation**

<u>College Scholarships for Public High School Seniors who live in Atlanta, Boston, Chicago, Houston, Los Angeles, Miami, New Orleans, New York and Washington, D.C.</u>

Posse identifies public high school students with extraordinary academic and leadership potential who may be overlooked by traditional college selection processes. Posse extends to these students the opportunity to pursue personal and academic excellence by placing them in supportive, multicultural teams—Posses—of 10 students. Posse partner colleges and universities award Posse Scholars four-year, full-tuition leadership scholarships.

<u>Florida Department of Education</u> <u>— Student Scholarships Grant Program</u>

Florida Bright Futures Scholarships for College

The Florida Bright Futures Scholarship Program rewards students for their academic achievements during high school by providing funding to attend postsecondary education in Florida.

### College Board — Pay for College

<u>Search for scholarships, internships, grants, and loans that match your education level, talents, and background.</u>
Locate scholarships, internships, grants, and loans that match your education level, talents, and background.

## <u>Horatio Alger Association</u> — Scholarship Programs

Scholarships for College Bound High School Seniors — Receive up to \$21,000 for college

For students in financial need who are currently in their senior year of high school and graduating in the spring.

#### **Key Club**

#### Scholarships for High School Seniors

While Key Club International is no longer distributing scholarships on an international level, Kiwanis International will participate in matching district scholarships administered by local Key Club districts.

#### National Association of Multicultural Engineering Program Advocates (NAMEPA)

Scholarships for First-Year and Transfer African American, Latino, and American Indian Engineering Students

NAMEPA offers both national and regional scholarships for African American, Latino, and American Indian students who have demonstrated potential and interest in pursuing an undergraduate degree in engineering.

#### Scholarship America

#### Scholarships from Scholarship America

Scholarship America is a national education service organization that mobilizes support for students getting into and graduating from college.

#### **Tiger Woods Foundation**

## Earl Woods College Scholarships for High School Seniors

The Earl Woods Scholarships are awarded to academically-successful, graduating high school seniors who have demonstrated financial need and a proven commitment to community service.

## <u>University of Arkansas, Fort Smith</u> — Financial Aid

#### **Scholarships**

Scholarships and grants are types of funding you receive for your education that you don't have to pay back. The difference between the two is that scholarships are usually based on academic merit, while grants are usually based on financial need.

#### **McKelvey Foundation**

#### **Entrepreneurial Scholarships**

Scholarships for young entrepreneurs nationwide who have started their own businesses.

## McKelvey Scholarships for a First Generation to Attend College

Scholarships for qualifying high school seniors to attend any four-year college in their home state.

## **Faith-Based Scholarships**

### I. Baptist Life Scholarship (www.baptistlife.org)

The Baptist Life Insurance Agency awards several annual \$1,000 scholarships to full-time undergraduate and graduate students. All interested students must request an application between January 1st and May 1st each year and the application must be returned prior to May 31st. Applicants must have been insured through the company for at least two years prior to the application deadline. Academic achievement, financial need, and the student's educational and career goals are considered.

Baptist Life Scholarships Scholarship Committee Baptist Life Association 8555 Main St. Buffalo, NY 14221-7494 (800) 227-8543 http://www.baptistlife.org/benefits.php

## II. Foundation for College Christian Leaders Scholarships

The Foundation for College Christian Leaders offers scholarships to residents of California, Oregon or Washington. Applicants must be practicing Christians with verified leadership in their church. Applicants must be undergraduate students with a 3.0 or better GPA. There must also be financial need with the combined income of the parents and student not exceeding \$75,000 a year. Applicants must be planning on pursuing theology or religious vocations.

Contact: Foundation for College Christian Leaders Scholarships Foundation for College Christian Leaders 2658 Del Mar Heights Road, PMB #266 Del Mar, CA 92014 (858) 481-0848 LMHays@aol.com

#### III. YCL Young Christian Leaders Scholarship

The YCL Young Christian Leaders Scholarship Program offers \$1000 scholarships to qualified Christian students pursuing a college degree. Applicants must be high school seniors or college students who are permanent residents of New York, New Jersey or Connecticut. The students may attend college outside of this tri-state area. Applicants must be active members of their local church. Students must also earn an average cumulative GPA of at least 3.0.

YCL Young Christian Leaders ScholarshipButtafuoco & Associates Attn: Young Christian Leaders Scholarship 9 Broadman Parkway Jersey City, NJ 07305 http://www.yclscholarship.org/

## IV. WMU Foundation Scholarships

The WMU Foundation offers over 20 different scholarship programs for Baptist students around the world. Candidates must have parents affiliated with a Southern Baptist entity. The students must also be active in their faith community. There are scholarships available for both undergraduate and graduate

studies. Most of the awards focus on missionary work and some are location specific. The WMU Foundation website lists the requirements and deadlines for each of the 20 scholarships.

Contact WMU Foundation Scholarships Scholarship/Grant Application WMU Foundation 100 Missionary Ridge Birmingham, AL 35242 (877) 482-4483

 $\underline{https://www.wmufoundation.com/scholarships-and-grants/}$ 

#### **Scholarships For Women**

#### U.S. National Aeronautics and Space Administration (NASA) — Student Programs

<u>Harriett G. Jenkins Predoctoral Graduate Fellowships for Women, Minorities, or Persons with Disabilities</u> — \$24.500

Sep The Harriett G. Jenkins Pre-doctoral Fellowship provides full-time graduate students (master's and doctoral level)

who are underrepresented in the science, technology, engineering and mathematics (STEM) disciplines up to three years of funding and support.

## U.S. National Science Foundation (NSF) — Find Funding

<u>Increasing the Participation and Advancement of Women in Academic Science and Engineering Careers (ADVANCE)</u>

- Sep The goals of the ADVANCE program are (1) to develop systemic approaches to increase the representation and
- 22 advancement of women in academic STEM careers; (2) to develop innovative and sustainable ways to promote
- Oct gender equity in the STEM academic workforce; and (3) to contribute to the development of a more diverse science
- 3 and engineering workforce

## <u>American Medical Women's Association</u>—Awards, Scholarships, and Fellowships

Medical Education Scholarships for Women — \$1,000

Sep Scholarships for women currently enrolled in medical school. Awardees will be chosen based on need as well as embodiment of the goals of AMWA.

Jan 31

## University at Albany, Center for Women in Government

<u>Graduate Fellowships on Women and Public Policy — \$10,000</u>

Oct The Fellowship is an intensive leadership development program designed to promote equity and excellence in public

3 service, and encourage government to be more responsive to the needs of women, children, families, and communities in New York State.

#### Woodrow Wilson National Fellowship Foundation — Fellowships

Woodrow Wilson Doctoral Dissertation Fellowships in Women's Studies — \$5,000

Oct The Woodrow Wilson Dissertation Fellowship in Women's Studies encourages original and significant research

about women that crosses disciplinary, regional, or cultural boundaries.

#### Microsoft — Scholarships

Microsoft Graduate Scholarships — \$15,000

Oct The Microsoft Research Graduate Women's Scholarships is a one-year scholarship program for outstanding women graduate students in Computer Science, Electrical Engineering, or Mathematics, and is designed to help increase the number of women pursuing a PhD.

#### Microsoft Technical Scholarships for Women

Jan A Microsoft scholarship provides an advantage so you can pursue studies in computer science and related technical
 disciplines.

## <u>Schlumberger Foundation</u> — Graduate and Postdoctoral Fellowships

Faculty for the Future Fellowships for Women from Developing and Emerging Economies — \$40,000 to \$50,000

Nov

Faculty for the Future fellowships are awarded to women from developing and emerging economies who are preparing for PhD or post-doctoral study in the physical sciences, engineering, or related disciplines to pursue advanced graduate study at top universities in their disciplines abroad. Related disciplines may also be awarded. For

example, awards in biological sciences are limited to interdisciplinary research between physical and biological sciences.

## <u>Georgetown University Law Center</u> — Women's Law and Public Policy Fellowship Program Women's Law and Public Policy Fellowships — \$41,000

The Women's Law and Public Policy Fellowship Program (WLPPFP) offers Fellowships for public interest lawyers from the United States who are committed to advancing women's rights throughout their careers. Throughout the Fellowship year, participants gain invaluable experience by working on women's issues in Washington, D.C. with a public interest organization or governmental agency and by participating in educational and professional development opportunities organized by WLPPFP.

#### **Zonta International** — International Programs

## Amelia Earhart Graduate Fellowships for Women — \$10,000

Nov The Amelia Earhart Fellowship is awarded annually to women pursuing Ph.D./doctoral degrees in aerospace-related sciences and aerospace-related engineering.

#### Young Women in Public Affairs Awards — \$1,000 to \$4,000

The Young Women in Public Affairs Award honors young women in secondary level or pre-university schools, ages 16 to 20, who demonstrate a commitment to leadership in public policy, government and volunteer organizations.

#### Jane M. Klausman Women in Business Scholarships — \$1,000 to \$7,000

The Jane M. Klausman Women in Business Scholarship is awarded annually to women pursuing undergraduate or Master's degrees in business management.

#### Soroptimist International of The Americas — Programs

## Live Your Dream Awards — Up to \$10,000

Nov The Soroptimist Live Your Dream Awards (formerly the Women's Opportunity Awards) assists women who
provide the primary source of financial support for their families by giving them the resources they need to improve their education, skills and employment prospects. Recipients may use the cash award to offset any costs associated with their efforts to attain higher education, such as books, childcare, tuition and transportation.

## <u>American Association of University Women (AAUW) Educational Foundation</u>—<u>Educational Funding and Awards</u> American Dissertation and Postdoctoral Research Leave Fellowships for Women — \$20,000 to \$30,000

Nov American Fellowships support women scholars who are completing dissertations, planning research leave from accredited institutions, or preparing research for publication. Applicants must be U.S. citizens or permanent residents. Candidates are evaluated on the basis of scholarly excellence; quality and originality of project design; and active commitment to helping women and girls through service in their communities, professions, or fields of research.

#### Career Development Grants for Women — \$2,200 to \$12,000

Dec Career Development Grants provide funding to women who hold a bachelor's degree and are preparing to advance or change careers or re-enter the workforce. Primary consideration is given to women of color and women pursuing their first advanced degree or credentials in nontraditional fields. Applicants must be U.S. citizens or permanent residents. Funds are available for tuition, fees, books, supplies, local transportation, and dependent care.

#### Selected Professions Graduate, Dissertation and Professional Fellowships for Women — \$5,000 to \$18,000

Jan Selected Professions Fellowships are awarded for the following master's programs architecture,

computer/information sciences, engineering mathematics/statistics. Fellowships in the following degree programs are restricted to women of color, who have been underrepresented in these fields: Master's in business administration, law, doctorate in medicine. Applicants must be U.S. citizens or permanent residents.

#### Community Action Grants for Women — \$2,000 to \$10,000

Jan Community Action Grants provide funds to individuals, AAUW branches, and AAUW state organizations as well as
 local community-based nonprofit organizations for innovative programs or non-degree research projects that promote education and equality for women and girls.

#### Local Chapter Graduate and Undergraduate Scholarships for Women

The purpose of this program is to create a centralized, standardized, online undergraduate scholarship application posting and processing initiative that supports AAUW's local scholarship programs across the U.S.

#### **Women in Aviation, International**

#### Aviation Scholarships for Women

Nov Scholarships to help women get ahead and advance into the aviation and aerospace careers. 17

## American Society of Safety Engineers (ASSE) Foundation — Scholarship Awards

College and Graduate Scholarships for Women in Safety — \$1,000 to \$5,000

Dec Most undergraduate awards are for full-time students (enrolled in 12 hours or more per semester) pursuing an undergraduate degree in occupational safety, health, and the environment.

#### The Google Anita Borg Memorial Scholarship — \$10,000

Jan A group of female undergraduate and graduate students all over the world will be chosen from the applicant pool, and scholarships will be awarded based on the strength of each candidate's academic background and demonstrated leadership. Applicants must be a female student entering her senior year of undergraduate study or be enrolled in a graduate program and enrolled in Computer Science or Computer Engineering program, or a closely related technical field.

#### The Generation Google Scholarship for Current University Students — \$10,000 U.S. or C\$5,000 Canadian dollars

Jan Applicants must be currently enrolled as an undergraduate or graduate student at a university for the academic year;
15 pursuing a computer science or computer engineering degree, or a degree in a closely related technical field; and be
a student from an underrepresented group in computer science (African American, Hispanic, American Indian, or
female.

<u>U.S. National Oceanic and Atmospheric Administration (NOAA)</u> — <u>Student Internships and Scholarships</u>
<u>Dr. Nancy Foster Graduate Scholarships in Oceanography, Marine Biology and Maritime Archaeology</u> — <u>Up to</u> \$42,000

Dec The scholarship program recognizes outstanding scholarship and encourages independent graduate level research -particularly by female and minority students -- in oceanography, marine biology and maritime archaeology
(including all science, engineering, social science and resource management of ocean and coastal areas).

## P.E.O. Sisterhood — Educational Projects

### International Peace Graduate Scholarships for International Women Students - Up to \$10,000

Dec P.E.O. International Peace Scholarship (IPS) Fund was established in 1949 to provide scholarships for international women students to pursue graduate study in the United States and Canada.

#### Scholar Awards for Doctoral and Postdoctoral Students

Nov P.E.O. Scholar Awards are one-time competitive, merit-based awards for women of the United States and Canada who are either pursuing a doctoral level degree or are engaged in postdoctoral research at an accredited college,

university or institution. In addition to recognizing and encouraging excellence in higher education, these awards provide partial support for study and research for women who will make significant contributions in their varied fields of endeavor. Priority is given to women who are well established in their programs, study or research.

### STAR Scholarships for Women High School Seniors — \$2,500

Nov Scholarships for exceptional high school senior women to attend an accredited postsecondary educational institution in the United States or Canada in the next academic year.

## U.S. Department of Energy, Office of Fossil Energy

Fossil Energy Mickey Leland Energy Summer Fellowships in Math, Science and Engineering — \$6,000 to \$8,500

Jan 2 The Mickey Leland Energy Fellowship (MLEF) is an Internship program sponsored by the U.S. Department of Energy's Office of Fossil Energy to provide opportunities to women and under-represented minority students who are pursuing academic majors related to the Fossil Energy mission.

#### American Geological Institute — Scholarships

Harriet Evelyn Wallace Scholarship for Female Graduate Geoscience Students

Jan 5 The Harriet Evelyn Wallace Scholarship is available for female students pursuing a Master's or Doctoral degree at an accredited institution of higher education in a recognized geoscience program. The scholarship is a merit-based award, which is \$5,000 per year, up to two years.

## American Water Works Association (AWWA) — Awards & Scholarships

Holly Cornell Scholarships for Women in Water Supply and Treatment — \$7,500

Jan 6 The Holly A. Cornell Scholarship encourages and supports outstanding female and/or minority masters students in pursuit of advanced training in the field of water supply and treatment.

#### Sigma Delta Epsilon/Graduate Women in Science

Research Fellowships for Women — Up to \$10,000

Jan To be eligible, the applicant must be enrolled as a graduate student, or engaged in post-doctoral or early-stage junior faculty academic research, and demonstrate financial need for continuation or completion of their research.

#### New York Women in Communications — Scholarships

College and Graduate Scholarships for Women -\$2,500, \$5,000, and \$10,000

Jan Each year, the Foundation, in conjunction with New York Women in Communications, awards scholarships to graduating high school seniors, undergraduate and graduate students who intend to pursue or further a career in communications.

#### American Nuclear Society (ANS) — Honors and Awards

<u>Delayed Education Scholarships for Women in Nuclear Science, Nuclear Engineering, or a Nuclear-Related Field</u>
\_\_\$1,000 to \$2,500

Feb One scholarship is awarded to a mature woman whose undergraduate studies in nuclear science, nuclear engineering, or a nuclear-related field have been delayed.

## **Association for Women in Mathematics**

Travel Grants for Women Researchers

Feb The Mathematics Travel Grants provide full or partial support for travel and subsistence for a meeting or conference in the applicant's field of specialization.

#### Greater Philadelphia Chamber of Commerce — Events

Paradigm Scholarship for Working Women — Up to \$5,000

Feb This merit scholarship is awarded annually to women who wish to complete their undergraduate degrees while working full-time for Chamber member companies.

#### **Institute for Women's Policy Research (IWPR)**

Fellowships in Women's Public Policy Issues — \$27,000

Feb IWPR offers a fellowship in public policy to a promising scholar each year. The Mariam K. Chamberlain Fellow contributes to a variety of research projects to inform policies affecting women. Research activities may include reviewing literature; collecting, checking and analyzing data; gathering information; and preparing reports and report graphics. Attending relevant Congressional briefings, policy seminars and meetings is also a component of the fellowship program. Applicants should have at least a bachelor's degree in a social science discipline (such as sociology, psychology, education, or public policy), statistics, economics, mathematics or women's studies. Graduate work is not required.

#### **Summer Internships**

Mar IWPR's internship program is designed to provide participants with challenging work experiences under the guidance and supervision of researchers with extensive knowledge of women's policy issues and social science research.

## Society of Women Engineers — SWE Scholarships

Freshman, Sophomore, Junior, Senior, Reentry, and Graduate Scholarships for Women in Engineering and Computer Sciences — \$1,000 to \$20,000

Feb The SWE Scholarship Program provides financial assistance to women admitted to accredited baccalaureate or graduate programs, in preparation for careers in engineering, engineering technology and computer science.

Mar

1

#### Local Scholarships

A number of SWE Sections offer scholarship assistance to female students on a local level. If you reside or attend school within the geographical areas covered by these Sections, you may be eligible for additional scholarship assistance. Contact these Sections directly for detailed information and application forms. Scholarships are listed by state.

#### Jeannette Rankin Women's Scholarship Fund

Scholarships for Low-Income Women, Ages 35 and Older — \$2,000

Mar Scholarships for women pursuing undergraduate degrees at accredited colleges and universities: a technical or vocational education, an associate's degree, or a first bachelor's degree.

#### **National Hispana Leadership Institute**

#### Latinas Learning to Lead Summer Youth Institute

Mar The program promotes and fosters the development of young college-age Latina leaders through training, mentoring opportunities, access to national networks and tools to create a community impact through their leadership projects.

## Association for Women in Computing (AWC)

Ann Arbor AWC Scholarship for Women in Computing — \$1,000

Mar The scholarship recognizes outstanding women participating in an institution accredited for higher education in the state of Michigan pursuing a career in a computer or technology-related field.

Student Loans for Women — Up to \$2,000

The Delta Gamma Foundation offers undergraduate and graduate loans.

#### **Educational Foundation for Women in Accounting**

College and Graduate Scholarships for Women in Accounting — \$1,000 to \$16,000

Apr The Educational Foundation awards scholarships to women who are pursuing accounting degrees at both the undergraduate and postgraduate levels. One scholarship is designated for a woman who is the primary source of May support for her family and is enrolling as an incoming freshman to earn a Bachelors degree in Accounting.

#### American Planning Association — Scholarships and Fellowships

College Scholarships and Graduate Fellowships for Minorities and Women — \$2,000 to \$4,000

Apr The American Planning Association awards are made to students currently enrolled in degree programs in Planning or a closely related field.

#### **Brookhaven National Laboratory** — Women in Science

Renate W. Chasman Science Scholarships — \$2,000

Apr Applicants must be women returning to school after a break in their education, and pursuing formal education in the natural sciences, engineering or mathematics, at the junior or senior undergraduate level or first-year graduate level at any accredited institution.

## **Omega Phi Beta Sorority**

Reach for the Gold Book College Scholarship — \$1,000

May The Reach for the Gold Book Scholarship recognizes academic and benevolent achievement among young women of color, and supports continued success through the first year of college.

## organization for women in science for the developing world — Awards

Postgraduate Training Fellowships

Jul Postgraduate Training Fellowships for Women Scientists from Sub-Saharan Africa and Least Developed Countries
 (LDC) at Centres of Excellence in the South. The Fellowship is offered to women scientists to pursue postgraduate research in a field of the natural sciences.

#### American Physical Society (APS) — Scholarships and Awards

M. Hildred Blewett Scholarships — Up to \$45,000

Jun 1 Enables early-career women to return to physics research careers after having had to interrupt those careers for family reasons. The applicant must currently be a U.S. citizen, legal resident, or resident alien of the United States or Canada. She must be currently in Canada or the United States and must have an affiliation with a research-active educational institution or national lab. She must have completed work toward a PhD.

## APS/IBM Research Internships for Undergraduate Women

Feb Must be female with sophomore or junior standing at a U.S. college or university at the time of application. Must be majoring in chemistry, physics, materials science or engineering, computer science or engineering, chemical, electrical, mechanical engineering, or biology, if it has an emphasis on one of the other areas listed.

## <u>National Federation of Republican Women</u> — Scholarships

National Pathfinder Scholarship

Jun 1 The three annual scholarships of \$2,500 provide financial assistance and support to women seeking undergraduate or graduate degrees. Undergraduate sophomores, juniors and seniors, as well as students enrolled in a master's degree program, are eligible to apply for the scholarship.

#### **Women's Research and Education Institute**

Congressional Fellowships on Women and Public Policy — Up to \$13,600

Jun WREI awards annual fellowships to a select number of graduate students with a proven commitment to equity for
 women. WREI Fellows gain practical policymaking experience and graduate credit as they work from January to
 August as Congressional legislative aides in Washington, D.C.

#### **Women in Defense**

HORIZONS Foundation Scholarships — \$4,000 to \$20,000

- Jul The HORIZONS Scholarship encourages women to pursue careers related to the national security and defense
- interests of the United States and to provide development opportunities to women already working in national security and defense fields.

## African Women in Agricultural Research and Development (AWARD)

Fellowships for African Women in Agricultural Research

Aug African women working in agricultural research and development from Ethiopia, Ghana, Kenya, Liberia, Malawi,
Mozambique, Nigeria, Rwanda, Tanzania, Uganda, and Zambia who have completed a bachelor's, master's or
doctoral degree in selected disciplines are invited to apply. Applicants must be nationals of the above listed
countries and be available in Africa throughout the fellowship period.

### **Women's Sports Foundation** — *Grants*

The Linda Riddle/SGMA Endowed Scholarship — \$3,000

The goal is to provide young female athletes of limited financial means the opportunity to continue to pursue their sport in addition to their college studies.

#### American Association for the Advancement of Science (AAAS) — Fellowships

International Funding Opportunities for Women in Science, Technology & Engineering

AAAS works to increase the participation of women, minorities, and the disabled in the science and technology workforce.

#### **Association for Computing Machinery**

<u>Travel Scholarships for Women Students in Computer Science and Related Programs Who Wish to Attend Research Conferences.</u>

ACM-W provides support for women undergraduate and graduate students in Computer Science and related programs who wish to attend research conferences.

## Jane M. Klausman Women in Business Scholarship

Established in 1998 from a generous bequest by Jane M. Klausman, a member of the Zonta Club of Syracuse, New York USA, and the 1990-1995 Zonta International Parliamentarian, the Jane M. Klausman Women in Business Scholarship is awarded annually to women **pursuing undergraduate or master's degrees in business management.** 

 $\underline{http://www.zonta.org/WhatWeDo/InternationalPrograms/JaneMKlausmanWomenInBusinessScholarship.aspx}$ 

## APS/IBM Research Internship for Undergraduate Women

Must be female with **sophomore or junior standing at a U.S. college or university** at the time of application. Must be majoring in chemistry, physics, materials science or engineering, computer science or engineering, chemical, electrical, mechanical engineering, or biology, if it has an emphasis on one of the

other areas listed. Must have a minimum 3.0 GPA.

-No citizenship restriction.

http://www.aps.org/programs/women/scholarships/ibm/index.cfm

## VIP Women In Technology Scholarship

Applications are now being accepted for the Visionary Integration Professionals (VIP) Women In Technology Scholarship WITS) program. As in past years, WITS will support promising women who are enrolled at, or are accepted into, a two or four year college or university in the United States for the current school year.

WITS will offer multiple scholarship awards with values up to \$2,500 per recipient to qualified candidates who will seek a career in information technology or a related field and meet the program requirements as defined in the application.

Submissions are evaluated based on candidate essays, which define and offer meaningful solutions to local or statewide IT problems. Consideration will also be given to academic performance, community involvement, leadership qualities and extracurricular activities.

Submissions due by April 30th.

For contact **WITS@vipconsulting.com** for more information about WITS. Awards will be announced by June 5th.

## Jeanette Rankin Fund Scholarship

Each fall, Jeannette Rankin Women's Scholarship Fund awards scholarships to low-income women, **ages 35 and older**, who have a vision of how a college education will benefit themselves, their families and their communities. The scholarships are open to students pursuing a technical or vocational education, an associate's degree or a first bachelor's degree. Applicants must be U.S. citizens or permanent residents. Applications must be completed online and are available starting November 1 each year. The application deadline is March 1. We will not accept application materials by mail. <a href="http://www.rankinfoundation.org/">http://www.rankinfoundation.org/</a>

## **Diamonds in the Rough Ministry International Scholarship**

The hope of Diamonds in the Rough Ministry Intl. is to empower women down the road of self-discovery and self-worth in Jesus Christ. The Diamonds in the Rough Ministry Intl. Scholarship is for high school senior females who excel in all things, including academics, community service, and extracurricular activities.

#### Applicant Eligibility:

- Female
- High School Seniors
- Minimum GPA of 2.5 (on a 4.0 scale)
- Must be a resident of Texas
- Must be enrolled in a college or university

(Proof of enrollment is not necessary to apply. Only recipients will need to verify enrollment.)

## **Application Requirements:**

To be considered for the Diamonds In The Rough scholarship, applicants must submit the following along with a completed application and essay by April 20th.

- Official high school transcript
- Letter of Recommendation

- Letters may be written by a current teacher, minister, or mentor (no family members or relatives).
- Letters must be mailed directly from teacher or minister to Diamonds in the Rough Ministry www.diamondsntherough.org/scholarship

#### **Scholarships For Minorities**

#### **Harvard Business School**

#### Summer Venture in Management Program

May Summer Venture in Management Program Introduces College Students to Harvard MBA Experience. A one week management training program for rising college seniors designed to increase diversity and opportunity in business education. SVMP participants must be employed in a summer internship and be nominated by and have sponsorship from their company or organization to attend.

## American Planning Association — Scholarships and Fellowships

College Scholarships and Graduate Fellowships for Minorities and Women — \$2,000 to \$4,000

Apr Judith McManus Price Scholarship for students enrolled in an approved Planning Accreditation Board (PAB)
30 planning program who are citizens of the United States, intend to pursue careers as practicing planners in the public sector, and are able to demonstrate a genuine financial need.

### American Society for Microbiology (ASM) — Student Fellowships

ASM Robert D. Watkins Graduate Research Fellowships for Minorities — \$63,000

May Aimed at highly competitive graduate students who are enrolled in a Ph.D. program and who have completed their graduate course work in the microbiological sciences. The fellowship encourages students to continue and complete their research project in the microbiological sciences.

ASM Undergraduate Research Capstone Program (ASM-MURF) for Minorities — Up to \$1,500 travel support

Dec Students from non-research intensive institutions will have the opportunity to conduct full time summer research with an ASM member at a research intensive host institution, and present research results at the Annual Biomedical Research Conference for Minority Students and the ASM General Meeting.

## <u>American Architectural Foundation</u> — AIA Diversity and Inclusion Resource Center of Excellence AIA/F Diversity Advancement Scholarship — \$3,000 to \$4,000

May Provides assistance to high school graduates, college freshmen, and community college students from a minority and/or financially disadvantaged background who intend to pursue a NAAB-accredited professional degree in Architecture. A professional degree is either a 5-year Bachelor of Architecture degree or a 4+2 pre-professional Bachelor degree followed by a Master of Architecture degree.

#### **Omega Phi Beta Sorority**

#### Reach for the Gold College Scholarship

May Targets a woman of color who is a college-bound senior. 26

## <u>American Institute of Chemical Engineers</u> — Student Awards & Competitions

Minority Scholarships for College Students — \$1,000

- Jul Applicants must be AIChE national student members at the time of application, undergraduates in chemical
- engineering during the academic year, and members of a minority group (i.e., African-American, Hispanic, Native American, or Alaskan Native) that is underrepresented in chemical engineering.

## Minority Scholarships for Incoming College Freshmen — \$1,000

- Jul Applicants must be members of a minority group (i.e., African-American, Hispanic, Native American, or Alaskan
- Native) that is underrepresented in chemical engineering and high school graduates that plan to enroll during the academic year in a four-year university offering a science/engineering degree.

## <u>Semiconductor Research Corporation</u> — Fellowships and Scholarships

Master's Graduate Scholarships in Microelectronics — Full Tuition and fees + a competitive stipend

Sep Attracts qualified students who are also in underrepresented minority categories to graduate study in areas of interest to the semiconductor industry.

## U.S. National Science Foundation (NSF) — Find Funding

Minority Postdoctoral Research Fellowships in the Social, Behavioral and Economic Sciences - \$45,000

Oct The Directorate for Social, Behavioral and Economic Sciences (SBE) offers Minority Postdoctoral Research
26 Fellowships and Research Starter Grants in an effort to increase the diversity of researchers who participate in NSF programs in the social, behavioral and economic sciences and thereby increase the participation of scientists from underrepresented groups in selected areas of science in the United States.

#### Postdoctoral Research Fellowships in Biology (PRFB) — \$69,000+

Nov The Directorate for Biological Sciences (BIO) awards Postdoctoral Research Fellowships in Biology to recent recipients of the doctoral degree for research and training in selected areas supported by BIO and with special goals for human resource development in biology. The fellowships encourage independence at an early stage of the research career to permit Fellows to pursue their research and training goals in the most appropriate research locations regardless of the availability of funding for the Fellows at that site. For FY 2015 and beyond, these BIO programs are (1) Broadening Participation of Groups Under-represented in Biology, (2) Research Using Biological Collections, and (3) National Plant Genome Initiative (NPGI) Postdoctoral Research Fellowships.

## Ocean Sciences Postdoctoral Research Fellowships (OCE-PRF): Broadening Participation — \$87,000+

Dec The Division of Ocean Sciences (OCE) offers postdoctoral research fellowships to provide opportunities for scientists early in their careers to work within and across traditional disciplinary lines, develop partnerships, and avail themselves of unique resources, sites and facilities. The fellowship program is intended to recognize beginning investigators of significant potential, and provide them with experience that will establish them in positions of leadership in the scientific community. During tenure, fellows will affiliate with an appropriate research institution(s) and conduct research on topics supported by OCE. The OCE fellowship program has two tracks: 1) Track 1 (Broadening Participation) and 2) Track 2 (International).

#### ASEE/NSF Small Business Postdoctoral Research Diversity Fellowships — \$75,000+

This fellowship program offers active Phase II Small Business Innovation Research (SBIR) participating companies the opportunity to attract top scientific and technological talent at a fraction of the usual cost. At the same time, the program recruits postdoctoral fellows from underrepresented groups to work for at least a year outside an academic setting, contributing to cutting-edge research aimed at promoting scientific excellence and strengthening our nation's technological prowess.

#### **Harvard University**

<u>Harvard Financial Aid Initiative</u> — *Potentially worth over* \$60,000/year.

Nov Admission to Harvard is based on achievement and promise without regard to financial need; the financial paperwork is handled separately, and applying for financial aid does not jeopardize a student's chances for Jan 1 admission. The application fee normally associated with admissions can also be waived. Harvard College does not award merit nor athletic scholarships. All scholarships are based on demonstrated financial need. Ninety percent of American families would pay the same or less to send their children to Harvard as they would a state school.

#### Administrative Fellowships

Mar The program seeks to attract talented professionals, especially more ethnic minorities, to administrative careers in higher education.

<u>Princeton University, Woodrow Wilson School of Public and International Affairs</u>
Public Policy and International Affairs (PPIA) Junior Summer Institute (JSI)

Nov The PPIA Junior Summer Institute is a seven-week program structured to introduce or strengthen skills in economics, statistics, policy analysis, writing, public speaking and organization/time management.

#### **Public Policy and International Affairs Program (PPIA)**

PPIA Fellowship — \$5,000

Nov The PPIA Fellowship is a series of educational and developmental programs that span from the end of a student's junior year in college to the completion of a Master's degree in public policy, public administration and/or international affairs. The PPIA Fellowship Program helps students achieve a Master's or joint degree, typically in public policy, public administration, international affairs or a related field. The organization does this through the intensive study provided by participation in a Junior Summer Institute (JSI), through partnerships with universities across the country, and through an alumni network that provides opportunities to connect with individuals who share the same interest in public service.

#### Junior Summer Institute (JSI) for Rising Senior College Students — Up to \$1,500

Nov JSI is an intensive seven-week summer program that focuses on preparing students for graduate programs in public and international affairs and careers as policy professionals, public administrators and other leadership roles in public service. All JSIs share a basic core curriculum designed to prepare students for graduate studies in public and international affairs.

#### University of California, Office of the President

President's Postdoctoral Fellowship Program for Diversity — \$42,000+

Nov The program offers postdoctoral research fellowships, faculty mentoring, and eligibility for a hiring incentive to outstanding scholars in all fields whose research, teaching, and service will contribute to diversity and equal opportunity at the University of California.

## American Educational Research Association (AERA) — Fellowships and Grants

Minority Dissertation Fellowships in Education Research — \$12,000 + travel support

Nov This program offers doctoral fellowships to enhance the competitiveness of outstanding minority scholars for academic appointments at major research universities. It supports fellows conducting education research and provides mentoring and guidance toward the completion of their doctoral studies. This program is targeted for members of racial and ethnic groups historically underrepresented in higher education (e.g., African Americans, Alaskan Natives, American Indians, Asian Americans, Hispanics or Latinos, and Native Hawaiian or Pacific Islanders).

## National Academies — Fellowships Office

Ford Foundation Dissertation Graduate Fellowships for Minorities — \$21,000

Nov The dissertation fellowships provide one year of support for individuals working to complete a dissertation leading to a Doctor of Philosophy (Ph.D.) or Doctor of Science (Sc.D.) degree.

## Ford Foundation Postdoctoral Fellowships for Minorities — \$40,000

Nov The postdoctoral fellowships provide one year of support for individuals engaged in postdoctoral study after the attainment of the Ph.D. or Sc.D. degree.

#### Ford Foundation Predoctoral Graduate Fellowships for Minorities — \$20,000

Nov The predoctoral fellowships provide three years of support for individuals engaged in graduate study leading to a 20 Doctor of Philosophy (Ph.D.) or Doctor of Science (Sc.D.) degree.

#### **Committee on Institutional Cooperation** — Student Opportunities

## Free Application to Graduate School

Nov FreeApp is designed to increase access to graduate education for students who possess qualities and experiences that enhance the diversity of the intellectual, cultural, and social environments at CIC universities. Through this

program, prospective students can request a graduate application fee waiver for Ph.D. or Master of Fine Arts programs at participating universities.

## National Consortium for Graduate Degrees for Minorities in Engineering and Science (GEM) — Graduate Fellowships

MS Engineering, Ph.D. Engineering, and Ph.D. Science Graduate Fellowships for Minorities — \$16,000

Nov GEM offers MS and Ph.D. level students an outstanding opportunity and access to dozens of the top Engineering and Science firms and Universities in the nation. The GEM Fellowship was designed to focus on promoting opportunities for individuals to enter industry at the graduate level in areas such as research and development, product development, and other high level technical careers. GEM also offers exposure opportunities to a number of opportunities in academe.

## National Physical Science Consortium (NPSC) — Graduate Fellowships

<u>Graduate Fellowships (Including College Seniors) in the Physical Sciences and Related Engineering Fields</u> — \$20,000

Nov The National Physical Science Consortium is a partnership between government agencies and laboratories, industry, and higher education. NPSC's goal is to increase the number of American citizens with graduate degrees in the physical sciences and related engineering fields, emphasizing recruitment of a diverse applicant pool. Though the fields supported can vary annually depending on employer needs, in general NPSC covers the following:

Astronomy, Chemistry, Computer Science, Geology, Materials Science, Mathematical Sciences, Physics, and their subdisciplines, and related engineering fields: Chemical, Computer, Electrical, Environmental, Mechanical. NPSC welcomes applications from any qualified U.S. citizen who has the ability to pursue graduate work at an NPSC member institution.

## U.S. Department of Energy, Office of Fossil Energy

Fossil Energy Mickey Leland Energy Summer Fellowships in Math, Science and Engineering for Women and Minorities — \$6,000 to \$8,500

Jan 2 A ten-week summer internship program opportunities for women and minority students.

#### American Water Works Association — Awards & Scholarships

Holly Cornell Graduate Scholarships — \$7,500

Jan 6 Encourages and supports outstanding female and/or minority masters students in pursuit of advanced training in the field of water supply and treatment.

#### **Consortium for Graduate Study in Management**

<u>Full-Tuition Fellowships for MBA Candidates</u> — Full Tuition and Mandatory Fees

Jan 5 Oct 15 Becoming a member of The Consortium will allow you to achieve your career goals and position you among elite business minds. An alliance between the nation's best business schools, sponsoring companies, current MBA students and a network of nearly 6,000 alumni worldwide, The Consortium is dedicated to enhancing diversity in business education and leadership.

#### Asian & Pacific Islander American Scholarship Fund (APIASF)

College Scholarships for Asian or Pacific Islander Americans — \$2,500 to \$5,000

Jan 9 The nation's largest non-profit organization that provides scholarships to exceptional Asian and Pacific Islander Americans (Persons having origins in any of the original peoples of Hawaii, Guam, Samoa, or other Pacific Islands) with financial need. Citizens of the Republic of the Marshall Islands, Federated States of Micronesia and the Republic of Palau are also eligible to apply.

#### **National Urban Fellows**

<u>Graduate Fellowships Leading to a Master of Public Administration (MPA)</u> \$25,000

Jan The National Urban Fellows' leadership development program is a rigorous, 14-month, full-time graduate degree

10 program comprising two semesters of academic course work and a nine-month mentorship assignment.

#### New York University (NYU), Stern School of Business

Pre-Doctoral Program for Underrepresented Minority Students — Full Tuition Scholarship

Jan The program seeks to prepare students for admission to PhD programs in the mathematically based majors of

finance, economics, operations management, quantitative marketing and statistics. The intent is that program participants will later go on to seek faculty positions in these fields.

#### **Bill and Melinda Gates Foundation**

Gates Millennium Scholarships — Over \$10,000

Ian The Gates Millennium Scholars (GMS) Program provides outstanding African American, American Indian/Alaska

Native, Asian Pacific Islander American, and Hispanic American students with an opportunity to complete an undergraduate college education in any discipline area of interest. Continuing Gates Millennium Scholars may request funding for a graduate degree program in one of the following discipline areas: computer science, education, engineering, library science, mathematics, public health or science.

## <u>Charles B. Rangel International Affairs Program</u> — Graduate Fellowships and Summer Internships Google — Explore Scholarship Opportunities

<u>The Generation Google Scholarship for Current University Students</u> \$10,000 U.S. or C\$5,000 Canadian dollars

Jan Applicants must be currently enrolled as an undergraduate or graduate student at a university for the academic year; pursuing a computer science or computer engineering degree, or a degree in a closely related technical field; and be a student from an underrepresented group in computer science (African American, Hispanic, American Indian, or female.

#### McDonald's, Ronald McDonald House Charities — U.S. Scholarships

Scholarships for Graduating, College-Bound High School Seniors — A minimum \$1,000

All students are eligible to apply regardless of race, color, creed, religion, sexual orientation, gender, disability or national origin, must be a high school senior, be younger than 21 years old, be eligible to attend a two- or four-year college, university or technical school with a full course of study, and be a legal U.S. resident.

#### Dr. Nancy Foster Graduate Scholarships - Up to \$42,000

Dec Provides support for outstanding scholarship and encourages independent graduate-level research in oceanography, marine biology, or maritime archaeology (including all science, engineering, social science and resource management of ocean and coastal areas), particularly by women and members of minority groups.

#### Woodrow Wilson National Fellowship Foundation — Fellowships

MMUF Doctoral Dissertation Grants - Up to \$20,000

Dec The MMUF Dissertation Grants are available to graduate students who participated in the Mellon Mays

Undergraduate Fellowship Program. The grants provide graduate students at the critical juncture of completing their graduate degrees with support to spend a year finishing the writing of the dissertation.

## <u>Thomas R. Pickering Graduate Foreign Affairs Fellowship</u> — *Up to* \$37,500

Jan The Fellowship is designed to attract outstanding individuals from all ethnic, racial and social backgrounds who
have an interest in pursuing a Foreign Service career with the U.S. Department of State. The Pickering Fellowship
has both an Undergraduate and Graduate Program. Pickering Undergraduate applicants must apply as rising seniors;
Graduate applicants must be seeking admission to a two-year master's degree program

### Thomas R. Pickering Undergraduate Foreign Affairs Fellowship — Up to \$37,500

Jan The Fellowship is designed to attract outstanding individuals from all ethnic, racial and social backgrounds who

23 have an interest in pursuing a Foreign Service career with the U.S. Department of State. The Pickering Fellowship

has both an Undergraduate and Graduate Program. Pickering Undergraduate applicants must apply as rising seniors; Graduate applicants must be seeking admission to a two-year master's degree program

#### MMUF Travel and Research Grants — Up to \$5,000

Mar The MMUF Travel & Research Grants are available to graduate students who participated in the Mellon Mays

14 Undergraduate Fellowship Program. The grants provide eligible graduate students with the financial means to complete their research prior to the start of dissertation writing.

#### **Microsoft** — Scholarships

#### Minority Scholarships — Full Tuition

Jan College scholarships in computer science, computer engineering, or related technical disciplines, with a

30 demonstrated interest in computer science.

#### American Sociological Association — Grants and Fellowships

Minority Doctoral Graduate Fellowships in Mental Health and Mental Illness — \$18,000

Jan Supports the development and training of sociologists of color in any sub-area or specialty in the discipline.

#### <u>Smithsonian Institution</u> — Fellowship and Internship Opportunities

Minority Internships and Visiting Student Awards — \$5,500

Feb This program is designed to provide undergraduate and beginning graduate students the opportunity to learn more

1 about the Smithsonian and their academic fields through direct experience in research or museum-related internship

Oct projects under the supervision of research and professional staff members at the Institution's many museums,

1 research institutes and offices.

## Massachusetts Institute of Technology (MIT)

#### MITES Program for High School Juniors

Feb The MITES Program is a rigorous six-week residential, academic enrichment summer program for talented high

20 school students who are interested in studying and exploring careers in science and engineering.

#### **DOW-MIT ACCESS**

Jul ACCESS is a weekend of educational and informative events that will introduce talented sophomores, juniors and

seniors to the benefits of a graduate education in chemistry, chemical engineering, and materials science. The goal of ACCESS is not to prepare students for graduate school at MIT specifically, but rather to introduce them to the advantages of choosing a graduate career path at an institution that best meets each participant's individual needs. All costs including lodging, travel, meals and excursions during ACCESS are paid for by the program.

#### **CONVERGE**

Sep A weekend for prospective graduate students (juniors, seniors, and recent alumni within one to two years of

6 applying to graduate school) who have serious interest in MIT. The program covers all expenses for the preview weekend.

## **University Corporation for Atmospheric Research**

Significant Opportunities in Atmospheric Research and Science (SOARS)

Feb Dedicated to broadening participation in the atmospheric and related sciences. It is an undergraduate to graduate

program built around a summer research internship, mentoring by top scientists, and a supportive learning community.

#### **Greenlining Institute** — *Programs*

<u>Multi-Ethnic Graduate Fellowships for Careers in the Non-Profit Sector, Community Development, and Public Affairs</u> — \$34,300 per year/health benefits included

Feb The Fellowship Program is a year-long training program for young leaders that have completed, at minimum, their undergraduate degrees by the start of the program. Bridges to health; environmental equity; economic equity; strengthening our democracy

## <u>American Physical Society</u> — Scholarships and Awards

APS College Scholarships for Minority Undergraduate Physics Majors — \$2,000 to \$3,000

Feb Any African-American, Hispanic American, or Native American U.S. citizen or permanent resident who is majoring or planning to major in physics, and who is a high school senior, college freshman, or sophomore is eligible to apply for the scholarship. Engineering physics and applied physics majors also welcome to apply.

## <u>American Meteorological Society</u> — Scholarships and Fellowships

Industry Minority Scholarships in the Atmospheric or Related Oceanic and Hydrologic Sciences — \$3,000

Feb Applicant must be entering his or her freshman undergraduate year in the fall to be eligible to apply.

\_\_

#### University of Wisconsin, Madison

Integrated Biological Sciences Summer Research Program

Feb
15
As part of the program, students do full-time research for 10 weeks with a faculty member in one of eight disciplinary areas: Biochemistry/Biophysics, Cellular and Molecular Biology, Biostatistics and Medical Informatics, Ecology, Plants, and Environmental Systems, Molecular & Environmental Toxicology, Neurobiology, and Virology

#### **Woods Hole Diversity**

Woods Hole Partnership Educational Program (PEP)

Feb The Woods Hole Partnership Educational Program (PEP) is designed primarily for college juniors and seniors who want to spend a summer gaining practical experience in marine and environmental science. The program consists of a four-week course and a six-to-ten week research project - all in the sea-side village of Woods Hole.

## American Political Science Association — Diversity & Inclusion

Ralph Bunche Summer Institute for Minorities

Feb The program goal is to encourage students to pursue academic careers in political science.

20

Minority Graduate Fellowships in Political Science — \$4,000

The Minority Fellows Program is designed for minority or under-represented students applying to doctoral programs Oct in political science. Applicants must be college/university seniors, college/university graduates, or students currently enrolled in a Master's Program applying for doctoral study at another political science program/institution.

## <u>The Aspen Institute Program on Philanthropy and Social Innovation</u> — Program on Philanthropy and Social Innovation (PSI)

William Randolph Hearst Endowed Scholarship for Minority Students — \$2,000 to \$4,000

Feb Through this fellowship, PSI seeks to introduce a diverse group of students to issues and challenges affecting philanthropy, social enterprise, nonprofit organizations, and other actors in the social sector.

Jul 18 Dec

5

## <u>Lagrant Foundation</u> — Scholarship Programs

<u>College Scholarships for African American/Black, Asian/Pacific Islander American, Hispanic/Latino or Native American/Alaska Native Students — \$2,500</u>

Feb For undergraduates (current freshmen, sophomores, juniors and non-graduating seniors) who MUST major in a field of study that has an emphasis on public relations, marketing or advertising. Additional majors that also qualify are

art, anthropology, communications, English, graphic design and sociology - while demonstrating a career path in advertising, marketing or public relations.

#### Graduate Scholarships in Public Relations, Marketing or Advertising — \$5,000

Feb For African American/Black, Asian/Pacific Islander American, Hispanic/Latino or Native American/Alaska Native Students graduate students. MUST major in a field of study that has an emphasis in public relations, marketing or advertising. Additional majors that also qualify are art, anthropology, communications, English, graphic design and sociology - while demonstrating a career path in advertising, marketing or public relations.

<u>Internships in Journalism and Business Administration (Public Relations, Marketing or Advertising) for Minorities</u>
The LAGRANT Foundation helps place interns throughout the country in various corporations and agencies.

## Minority Doctoral Dissertation Graduate Fellowships — \$10,000

Mar The annual AAA Minority Dissertation Fellowship is intended to encourage members of ethnic minorities to complete doctoral degrees in anthropology, thereby increasing diversity in the discipline and/or promoting research on issues of concern among minority populations. Dissertation topics in all areas of the discipline are welcome.

## American Chemical Society — Funding & Awards

Chemistry College and Graduate Scholarships — Up to \$5,000

Mar African American, Hispanic, or American Indian high school seniors or college freshman, sophomores, or juniors pursuing a college degree in the chemical sciences or chemical technology are eligible to apply.

## <u>University of Washington, Friday Harbor Laboratories</u>—Fellowships and Scholarships Blinks Summer Internships in Marine Research

Mar This program welcomes students who bring diversity to the FHL student body in any phase of their undergraduate career.

## Research Apprenticeships in Marine Research for Undergraduates and Post-Baccalaureates

Applications are welcome from undergraduates or post-baccalaureates from any academic institution. Applicants do not need to be currently enrolled at the University of Washington or at any other university or college.

## <u>American Library Association</u> — Spectrum Scholarship Program

Spectrum Scholarships — \$5,000

Mar The Spectrum Scholarship Program is ALA's national diversity and recruitment effort designed to address the specific issue of under-representation of critically needed ethnic librarians within the profession while serving as a model for ways to bring attention to larger diversity issues in the future.

## <u>American Library Association</u>, <u>Library & Information Technology Association</u> — <u>Scholarships and Awards</u> LITA/LSSI Minority Scholarship in Library and Information Technology — \$2,500

Mar The scholarship is designed to encourage the entry of qualified persons into the library and automation field who plan to follow a career in that field; who demonstrate potential in, and a strong commitment to the use of automated systems in libraries; and who are qualified members of a principal minority group (American Indian or Alaskan native, Asian or Pacific Islander, African-American, or Hispanic).

#### LITA/OCLC Minority Scholarship in Library and Information Technology — \$3,000

Mar The scholarship is designed to encourage the entry of qualified persons into the library and automation field who plan to follow a career in that field; who demonstrate potential in and have a strong commitment to the use of automated systems in libraries; and who are qualified members of a principal minority group (American Indian or Alaskan native, Asian or Pacific Islander, African-American, or Hispanic).

#### Nuclear Age Peace Foundation — Internships

#### Paid Internships — \$3,200

Mar These positions are for qualified university students at either the graduate or undergraduate level seeking experience in the peace and disarmament field. Candidates from anywhere in the world are encouraged to apply, provided that they are students currently enrolled in an accredited college or university in the United States.

## <u>Texas Historical Commission (THC)</u> — Diversity Internship Program

#### Diversity Internships — \$5,000

Mar The THC recognizes that many such groups are currently underrepresented in the professional fields related to
21 historic preservation. This initiative targets undergraduate students to encourage their interest in pursuing fields of study in history, preservation, architecture, landscape architecture, Archaeology, downtown revitalization and heritage tourism.

## American Institute of Certified Public Accountants — Diversity Initiatives

College and Graduate Scholarships for Minority Accounting Students — Up to \$5,000/yr.

Apr The AICPA Minority Scholarship awards outstanding minority students to encourage their selection of accounting as a major and their ultimate entry into the profession.

#### Minority Doctoral Graduate Fellowships in Accounting — \$12,000

Apr The program's goal is to increase the number of minority CPAs who serve as role models and mentors to young people in the academic environment.

#### **Brown and Caldwell** — Scholarships

#### Minority Scholarships — \$5,000

Apr Awards for students in civil, chemical or environmental engineering or one of the environmental sciences (e.g., geology, hydrogeology, biology, ecology, public health, industrial hygiene or toxicology).

## National Action Council for Minorities in Engineering (NACME),

#### Alfred P. Sloan Foundation Minority Ph.D. Program — \$38,500+

The Ph.D. component offers substantial scholarship support to underrepresented minority students who are beginning their doctoral work in engineering, natural science and mathematics. The smaller Feeder component offers underrepresented minority B.S. or M.S. students access to select faculty and departments that have demonstrated success in sending their students on to doctoral programs.

## New York Market Radio (NYMRAD)

<u>Communications Minority College Scholarships for Students with a Commitment to a Radio Career —</u> \$3,000 Junior and senior students from colleges around the NY metro area are encouraged to apply for the award.

## <u>U.S. National Aeronautics and Space Administration (NASA)</u> — Student Programs

Harriett G. Jenkins Predoctoral Graduate Fellowships for Women, Minorities, or Persons with Disabilities

For underrepresented persons with master's and doctoral degrees in the NASA pipeline, and ultimately in the science, technology, engineering and mathematics (STEM) workforce.

#### **Ventures Scholars Program**

## High School Students Interested in Pursuing Math- and Science-Based Careers

As a high school Ventures Scholar, you are provided with a variety of services. Your name will be shared with the Ventures Scholars Program Consortium, a membership of over 200 member colleges and universities interested in helping you achieve your career goals. You can learn about math and science careers simply by contacting the member professional associations. All Ventures Scholars can download their personalized certificate of recognition. Some of the member institutions request the certificate when granting fee waivers to Ventures Scholars. Most

Ventures Scholars include their certificate along with the college application. You will receive a biweekly e-mail newsletter for high school Ventures Scholars that provides continuously updated information on a broad array of topics and resources about the college planning process and VSP consortium members.

# Undergraduate Students Interested in Pursuing Math- and Science-Based Careers

The Ventures Scholars Program is a national membership program designed to help underrepresented and first-generation college-bound students interested in pursuing math- and science-based careers link to information, resources, and opportunities that will help them successfully pursue their career goals.

# **Children's Scholarship Fund**

## Transfer from Public to Private School Scholarships

The Children's Scholarship Fund aims to maximize educational opportunity for all children: for those in need by offering tuition assistance in grades K-8 for alternatives to faltering conventional schools, and for all children by supporting and cultivating education reform and parental choice efforts.

# **Inroads**

# Internships in Industry and Business

A paid multi-year internship with a top company.

# Andrew W. Mellon Foundation — Diversity Initiatives

# Mellon Minority Undergraduate Fellowships (MMUF) in Core Humanities, Social Sciences and Physical Sciences

The Program aims to reduce over time the serious under-representation on the faculties of individuals from certain minority groups, as well as to address the attendant educational consequences of these disparities. to be eligible for MMUF, students must first be enrolled at one of the MMUF member institutions. The fellowship is not awarded directly to individual students; instead, the Mellon Foundation awards grants to the program's member institutions, which then select fellows and administer the program on each campus.

# **University of Notre Dame**

# Librarian-in-Residence Program

Intended to recruit a recent library school graduate who can contribute effectively to the diversity of the profession and the university while developing career interests in various aspects of academic librarianship.

# National Association of Multicultural Engineering Program Advocates (NAMEPA)

<u>Scholarships for First-Year and Transfer African American, Latino, and American Indian Engineering Students</u>

NAMEPA offers both national and regional scholarships for African American, Latino, and American Indian students who have demonstrated potential and interest in pursuing an undergraduate degree in engineering

# **AICPA Minority Accounting Students Scholarships**

American Institute of Certified Public Accountants established the AICPA Scholarship for Minority Accounting Students to provide funds for deserving students. The Center for Scholarship Administration, Inc. (CSA), a non-profit, independent organization is the administrator of the program. Applicants must be students who are underrepresented minorities in the accounting profession (e.g., **African American**, **Hispanic/Latino**, **Native American or Asian American**).

All materials should be sent to:

American Institute of Certified Public Accountants

Minority Scholarships Program
Academic and Career Development Team – MIC
Durham Office
220 Leigh Farm Road
Durham, NC 27707-8110

http://www.aicpa.org/BECOMEACPA/SCHOLARSHIPS/Pages/default.aspx

Additional opportunities: <a href="https://www.scholarships.com/financial-aid/college-scholarships/scholarships-by-type/minority-scholarships/african-american-scholarships/">https://www.scholarships.com/financial-aid/college-scholarships/scholarships-by-type/minority-scholarships/african-american-scholarships/</a>

# **LAGRANT Foundation Undergraduate Scholarships**

LAGRANT Foundation annually provides 15 scholarships to undergraduate and graduate students who are attending accredited institutions and are pursuing careers in the fields of advertising, marketing or public relations.

(LAGRANT cont') Undergraduate (current freshmen, sophomores, juniors and non-graduating seniors ONLY!) applicants meeting the following criteria and completing the online application will be considered for The LAGRANT Foundation Scholarship:

- Applicant must be a U.S. citizen or permanent resident and a member of one of the following ethnic groups: **African American, Asian/Pacific Islander, Hispanic or Native American**
- Applicant must be a full-time student at a four-year, accredited institution, carrying a total of 12 units or more per semester/quarter.
- Applicant must have a minimum of 2.75 GPA and MUST major in a field of study that has an emphasis on advertising, marketing, public relations or in anthropology, art, communications, English, graphic design, sociology while maintaining a career focus in advertising, marketing or public relations
- Must have AT LEAST ONE YEAR to complete his or her degree from the time the scholarship is awarded in May.
- Applications must be submitted online only no later than 11:59 p.m. PST on February 28th. Applications submitted after February 28th WILL NOT be accepted!

## Presbyterian Church – U.S.A. Student Opportunity Scholarships

The Presbyterian Church-U.S.A. Student Opportunity Scholarships serves Presbyterian Church (U.S.A.) college students in select majors (Education, Health Service/Science, Religious Studies, Sacred Music, Social Service/Science) by providing aid for the expenses of their third and fourth years of an undergraduate program. Preference in this program is extended to racial ethnic students in order to promote diversity.

#### Criteria:

- Member of the Presbyterian Church (U.S.A.)
- Completed second year of college
- Enrolled full-time
- Good academic standing (2.5 GPA or greater)
- Seeking a bachelor degree with emphasis on the missions of PC(USA) in the following disciplines:
- Education
- Health Service/Science
- Religious studies
- Sacred Music

- Social Service/Sciences
- Demonstrate financial need

http://www.presbyterianmission.org/ministries/financialaid/student-opportunity-scholarship/

# **Jackie Robinson Foundation Scholarship**

Minority high school students are encouraged to submit their applications to the Jackie Robinson Foundation. In addition to a financial grant, the foundation also provides its scholars with mentoring, internships and leadership development.

To be eligible for a Jackie Robinson Foundation Scholarship, an applicant must be a graduating, minority high school senior; Plan to attend an accredited and approved four-year institution within the United States; Show leadership potential; Demonstrate a dedication to community service; Present evidence of financial need; Be a United States citizen.

Applicants must also have a minimum SAT score of 1,000 combined on the math and critical reading sections or a composite ACT score of 22; and not possess a degree from a 2 or 4-year College when applying for the scholarship.

#### **Deadline:**

Usually in March Award Amount: \$7,500

http://www.jackierobinson.org/

# Minority Scholarships For Medical, Nursing And Public Health

## **National Hispanic Medical Foundation** — Scholarships

National Hispanic Health Professional Scholarship — \$2,000 to \$5,000 per year

Sep Open to any student enrolled full time in an accredited graduate dental, medical, public health, policy, physician assistant, pharmacy, or podiatry, and BSN or graduate students in nursing school. Nursing BSN students will only be considered for the \$2,000 one-year scholarships. Any other health professions not listed above will not be considered.

# <u>National Medical Fellowships</u> — Scholarships in Medicine and the Health Professions

Scholarships, Awards and Fellowship Programs for Medical Students

Sep The core program of NMF is the need-based scholarships. Offered primarily to first- and second-year medical students, these scholarships are granted on the basis of financial need.

## American Physical Therapy Association — Scholarships, Awards and Grants

Physical Therapy Minority Scholarships

Dec These scholarships are awarded annually to physical therapy students in their final year of physical therapy education and faculty members pursuing their post-professional doctoral degree.

# **HIV Medicine Association** — Careers and Training

HIVMA Clinical Fellowships — \$60,000

Dec The Clinical Fellowship program supports physicians with gaining HIV clinical experience working with medically underserved patient populations.

## <u>American Psychological Association — Minority Fellowship Program</u>

Mental Health and Substance Abuse Services Predoctoral Fellowship

Jan A federally funded program to support doctoral training in psychology that seeks to promote culturally competent

behavioral health services and policy for ethnic minority populations and increase the number of ethnic minority psychologists providing behavioral health services and developing policy for ethnic minority populations.

# Mental Health and Substance Abuse Services (MHSAS) Postdoctoral Fellowship

Jan The goal of the Postdoctoral MHSAS Fellowship Program is to encourage and facilitate the specialized training of

15 postdoctoral psychologists who maintain a professional focus on behavioral health services or policy for ethnic minorities.

# American Physiological Society — Student Awards/Fellowships

## Porter Physiology Development Fellowship

Jan The Porter Physiology Development Program provides 1-2 year full-time graduate fellowships in programs leading to the Ph.D. (or D.Sc.) in the physiological sciences at U.S. institutions. The program is open to underrepresented ethnic minority applicants who are citizens or permanent residents of the United States or its territories and student members of the Society.

# **Minority Travel Fellowships**

This program is designed to encourage highly qualified women, racial/ethnic minorities, persons with disabilities, and other individuals who traditionally have been underrepresented in science to pursue professional careers in physiological/biomedical sciences.

# American Psychiatric Foundation — Minority Fellowships

# American Psychiatric Diversity Leadership Fellowships

Jan The two-year American Psychiatric Leadership Fellowship offers psychiatric residents, with exceptional leadership potential, many different experiences that prepare them for leadership roles.

#### **Harvard School of Public Health**

# Summer Program in Quantitative Sciences (Biostatistics, Epidemiology, and Health and Social Behavior)

Feb The Summer Program is a relatively intensive 4-week program, during which qualified participants receive an interesting and enjoyable introduction to biostatistics, epidemiology and public health research. This program is designed to expose undergraduates to the use of quantitative methods for biological, environmental and medical research.

# Mongan Commonwealth Fund Fellowship Program — \$60,000

Dec The year-long fellowship offers intensive study in health policy, public health, and management for physicians committed to transforming delivery systems for vulnerable populations. Fellows also participate in leadership forums and seminars with nationally recognized leaders in health care delivery systems, minority health, and public policy. Under the program, fellows complete academic work leading to a master of public health degree at the Harvard School of Public Health, or a master of public administration degree at the Harvard Kennedy School of Government.

## <u>Visiting Clerkship Program (VCP) for Medical Students — Up to \$400</u>

The Visiting Clerkship Program (VCP) provides support for fourth-year and qualified third-year minority (African American, Native American, and Hispanic American) medical students to participate in the HMS Exchange Clerkship Program.

# <u>Columbia University College of Physicians & Surgeons</u>—*Programs for Future Physicians and Scientists*Summer Public Health Scholars

The program is designed for undergraduates in their Sophomore or Junior year and recent baccalaureate degree students who are undecided about their career goals and who have a minimum GPA of 2.7. This is a rigorous program which includes Public Health course work at Columbia University; hands-on field experience and immersion in a diverse, economically disadvantaged urban environment; seminars and lectures with public health

leaders; and mentoring by faculty members, ensuring students' exposure to the breadth and importance of public health as a career option.

# University of Michigan, School of Public Health — Tuition and Financial Aid

# Future Public Health Leaders Program

The Future Public Health Leaders Program (FPHLP) is a 10-week residential program at the University of Michigan Jan School of Public Health (UM-SPH) designed to encourage underrepresented college students to consider careers in public health. The program is intended for college students in their Sophomore, Junior or Senior year who are undecided about their career goals and are in good academic standing in their area of study. The program includes public health and career mentorship, hands-on and practical field experience, seminars, lectures and workshops with public health leaders.

# **Kennedy Krieger Institute** — *RISE Programs*

# Maternal and Child Health Careers/Research Initiatives for Student Enhancement

Jan The Maternal and Child Health Careers/Research Initiatives for Student Enhancement (MCHC/RISE-UP) Program provides opportunities for enhanced public health and related training to eliminate health disparities and promote health equity. This program's ultimate goal is to promote a more diversified and equal health system by introducing highly qualified undergraduate students (juniors and, seniors with a GPA 2.5 or better on a 4.0 scale; and students who received their baccalaureate degree within 12 months of MCHC/RISE-UP program orientation) from underrepresented groups to the field of public health. All students interested in addressing health disparities are encouraged to apply.

#### Public Health Leadership and Learning Undergraduate Student Success (PLLUSS) Program

The PLLUSS Program is a public health leadership and research program for undergraduate sophomore and junior scholars minoring or majoring in public health with at least a 3.0 GPA on a 4-point scale. The PLLUSS Program provides scholars with mentored public health research and community health activities, mentorship, and professional development, especially in the area of promotion of health equity and the elimination of health disparities research.

#### James A. Ferguson Emerging Infectious Diseases Fellowship Program

A nine week summer program providing educational and professional development opportunities for students from underrepresented populations and those interested in addressing health disparities related to infectious diseases. Students must be currently enrolled as a full-time student in a medical, dental, pharmacy, veterinary, or public health graduate program.

# <u>Hispanic-Serving Health Professions Schools (HSHPS) — Training Programs</u>

# Graduate Fellowship Training Program

15

The HSHPS Graduate Fellowship Training Program provides paid and unpaid training opportunities for graduate Feb and doctoral students and recent graduates interested in working on Hispanic health research. Fellows are placed throughout the United States and Latin America within government agencies and academic institutions. All HSHPS Dec fellows work along side a mentor, an experienced researcher or senior staff member; assist with a research project as it relates to minority health issues; and participate in a series of professional development seminars.

#### **Kaiser Permanente, Southern California**

Oliver Goldsmith, M.D. Scholarships for Students in Good Standing Entering the Third or Fourth Year of Medical School — \$5,000

Feb 3 Scholarships for people who care about their diverse communities. Applicants must be enrolled in an accredited U.S. medical/osteopathic school and demonstrate a commitment to the advancement of culturally and/or linguistically responsive care or diversity through community service work, clinical volunteering, or applicable research.

# <u>American Gastroenterological Association (AGA) Research Foundation</u>—<u>Research Funding</u> Investing in the Future Student Research Fellowship — \$5,000

Feb The American Gastroenterological Association (AGA) Research Foundation is offering 10 summer fellowship awards to stimulate interest in digestive disease and nutrition-related research among underrepresented minority students. Highly qualified students will have the opportunity to work with top investigators in the fields of gastroenterology and hepatology.

# **Harvard Medical School**

Summer Honors Undergraduate Research Program — Up to \$4,800

Feb The Program is offered for currently-enrolled undergraduates who are considering careers in biological or biomedical research sciences, who have already had at least one summer (or equivalent term-time) of experience in a research laboratory, and who have taken at least one upper-level biology course that includes molecular biology.

# Rutgers University, Institute for Health, Health Care Policy and Aging Research

Summer Internships in Mental Health, Health and Health Policy Research for Sophomores and Juniors from Ethnic and Cultural Groups Traditionally Under-Represented in Graduate Education — \$4,150

Feb The summer program is an intensive ten-week internship opportunity for qualified students who would like to obtain research skills and "hands-on" experience in health services research under the guidance of a distinguished faculty mentor.

# <u>Institute for Diversity in Health Management — Education Programs</u>

Summer Internships in Health Management — \$5,000

Feb The Summer Enrichment Program (SEP) is an enhanced internship program which gives real-world work experience to graduate students in health administration with a 10-12 week, paid internship in a hospital or health care facility.

# Graduate Scholarships in Health Care Administration - \$1,000 to \$5,000

Feb The Institute's Scholarship Program provides financial support to help fund graduate education for students preparing for a career as a health administrator.

# **Directors of Health Promotion and Education (DHPE)**

<u>Directors of Health Promotion and Education (DHPE) Internship Program for Students of Minority-Serving</u> Institutions

Mar The program has been designed to provide students with practical experiences in public health related to the core competencies of health education and to introduce the students to the essentials of public health.

Jun

15

Oct 15

Summer Medical and Dental Education Program (SMDEP) — Dental and Medical School Career Preparation

Free (full tuition, housing, and meals) six-week medical and dental school summer academic enrichment program for freshman and sophomore college students — \$3,600

Mar 1 Factors considered in the admissions process include whether an applicant identifies with a group that is racially/ethnically underrepresented in medicine and/or dentistry (as defined independently by each program site); comes from an economically or educationally disadvantaged background; has demonstrated interest in issues

affecting underserved populations; and submits a compelling personal statement and strong letters of recommendation.

# American Nurses Association — Minority Fellowships

## Minority Fellowship Program Youth

Feb The primary goal of the NITT-MFP-Y is to reduce health disparities, and improve behavioral health care outcomes for racially and ethnically diverse populations by increasing the number of culturally competent master's level behavioral health professionals. The fellowship focuses on the behavioral health care of children, adolescents, and youth transitioning into adulthood (aged 16-25). Applicants must be currently matriculated in a master's level programs that has behavioral health (psychiatric mental health and/or substance use) disorders prevention and treatment specialty programs.

# Minority Fellowships

Mar Supported by the Substance Abuse and Mental Health Services Administration (SAMHSA), this program provides 3-5 year fellowships to masters prepared nurses committed to pursuing doctoral study on minority psychiatric-mental health and substance abuse issues.

# <u>U.S. National Institutes of Health (NIH)</u> — *Training Programs in the Biomedical Sciences* Undergraduate Scholarship Program (UGSP)

Mar UGSP offers competitive scholarships to students from disadvantaged backgrounds who are committed to careers in biomedical, behavioral, and social science health-related research. The program offers scholarship support, paid research training at the NIH during the summer and paid employment and training at the NIH after graduation.

# Individual Predoctoral Fellowships to Promote Diversity in Health-Related Research

Apr 13 Aug 13 Individuals from disadvantaged backgrounds to seek graduate degrees in the biomedical and behavioral sciences to help increase the number of well-trained scientists from underrepresented groups. The fellowship provides up to 5 years of support for research training leading to the Ph.D. or equivalent research degree, the combined M.D./Ph.D. degree, or other combined degrees in the biomedical or behavioral sciences.

#### Minority Health and Health Disparities International Research Training (MHIRT)

MHIRT awards support the ability of U.S. academic institutions to offer short-term international training opportunities in health disparities research for undergraduate and graduate students in the health professions who are from health disparity populations and/or are underrepresented in basic science, biomedical, clinical, or behavioral health research career fields.

# Latin American School of Medicine, Havana, Cuba

# Full Scholarship to Study Medicine at the Latin American School of Medicine, Havana, Cuba

Mar A six-year program of study, which includes two years of basic sciences, three years of classwork and clinical rotations at accredited teaching hospitals, and a rotatory clinical internship in the sixth year.

# <u>American Dental Association Foundation — Education</u>

# Scholarships for Dental and Allied Dental Health Students

Mar Predoctoral Dental Student and Allied Dental Student Scholarships. The ADA Foundation funds scholarships for dental student, underrepresented minority dental students and allied dental students including dental hygiene, dental assisting and dental laboratory technology.

# Robert Wood Johnson Foundation - Basic/Biomedical, Clinical, Dental, and Health Services/Epidemiology Research

# Harold Amos Medical Faculty Development Program

Mar The Harold Amos Medical Faculty Development Program supports basic/biomedical, clinical, and health services/epidemiology research. The purpose of the AMFDP award is to facilitate the transition of the newly-trained clinician who wishes to develop into an independent investigator.

# American College of Healthcare Executives — Scholarships, Internships, and Fellowships

Albert W. Dent Graduate Student Scholarship — \$5,000

Mar Designated for minority students enrolled in their final year of a healthcare management graduate program.

# Minority Internships in Healthcare and Professional Society Management

Dec The three-month internship program will provide an opportunity for the intern to rotate through all major ACHE divisions, including Communications and Marketing, Education, Executive Office, Finance and Administration, Health Administration Press, Management Information Systems, Membership, Regional Services, and Research.

## **American Art Therapy Association**

# Awards & Scholarships

Apr Specifically designed for the purchase of books, this fund is available to members of an ethnic minority group who can demonstrate financial need and acceptance and or enrollment in an AATA approved art therapy program.

# Association of American Medical Colleges (AAMC) — Grants and Awards

Herbert W. Nickens, M.D., Medical Scholarships — \$5,000

May These awards consist of five scholarships given to outstanding students entering their third year of medical school who have shown leadership in efforts to eliminate inequities in medical education and health care and have demonstrated leadership efforts in addressing educational, societal, and health care needs of racial and ethnic minorities in the United States.

# Herbert W. Nickens, M.D., Faculty Fellowships — \$15,000

May The award recognizes an outstanding junior faculty member who has demonstrated leadership in the United States in addressing inequities in medical education and health care; demonstrated efforts in addressing educational, societal, and health care needs of minorities; and is committed to a career in academic medicine.

# Henry J. Kaiser Family Foundation — Media Internships and Fellowships

# The Kaiser Media Internships in Health Reporting

An internship program for young minority journalists interested in specializing in urban public health reporting.

## **United Health Foundation** — Diverse Scholars Initiative

# Scholarships for Spanish-Speaking, Bicultural Students Pursuing Careers in the Health Care Industry

United Health Foundation partners with leading nonprofit and civic organizations to select and award scholarships to deserving students pursuing careers in health. To qualify, scholars must demonstrate a financial need and a strong commitment to working in underserved communities, including community health centers.

# **Society of Toxicology** — Awards and Fellowships

#### Minority Student Travel Awards

The award will provide travel funds to the next National SOT meeting and will be presented to a minority or woman Ph.D. student judged to give the best platform or poster presentation.

## U.S. Agency for Healthcare Research and Quality — Research Training Programs

Opportunities for Minority Students

The Agency for Healthcare Research and Quality (AHRQ) supports training opportunities to help individuals prepare for a career in health services research. AHRQ is particularly interested in fostering the professional development of minority health services researchers.

# <u>U.S. Health Resources and Services Administration (HRSA) — Loans & Scholarships</u>

#### Health Professions Student Loans

The program provides long-term, low interest rate loans to full-time, financially needy students to pursue a degree in dentistry, optometry, pharmacy, podiatric medicine, or veterinary medicine.

# Loans for Disadvantaged Students (LDS)

The program provides long-term, low-interest rate loans to full-time, financially needy students from disadvantaged backgrounds, to pursue a degree in allopathic medicine, osteopathic medicine, dentistry, optometry, podiatric medicine, pharmacy or veterinary medicine.

## Scholarships for Disadvantaged Students (SDS)

The program provides funds to schools. In turn, the schools make scholarships to full-time, financially needy students from disadvantaged backgrounds, enrolled in health professions and nursing programs: medicine, osteopathic medicine, dentistry, optometry, pharmacy, podiatric medicine, veterinary medicine, nursing, public health, chiropractic, dental hygiene, medical laboratory technology, occupational therapy, physical therapy, radiologic technology, speech pathology, audiology, registered dietitians, behavioral and mental health practice, clinical psychology, clinical social work, professional counseling, marriage and family therapy, physician assistants.

# <u>U.S. National Institute of General Medical Sciences (NIGMS)</u> — Research Grant Mechanisms Bridges to the Baccalaureate Degree

The program provides support to institutions to help students make transitions at a critical stage in their development as scientists. The program is aimed at helping students make the transition from 2-year junior or community colleges to full 4-year baccalaureate programs. The program targets students from groups underrepresented in the biomedical and behavioral research enterprise of the nation and/or populations disproportionately affected by health disparities.

## Bridges to the Doctoral Degree

The program provides support to institutions to help students make a critical transition in their development as scientists. The program is aimed at helping students make the transition from master's degree programs to Ph.D. programs. The program targets students from groups underrepresented in the biomedical and behavioral research enterprise of the nation and/or populations disproportionately affected by health disparities.

# Minority Access to Research Careers (MARC)

MARC seeks to increase the number of highly-trained underrepresented biomedical and behavioral scientists in leadership positions to significantly impact the health-related research needs of the nation.

# **Scholarships For Hispanics And Latinos**

# **Fundación Kinesis**

# Bright Stars College Access Program for Puerto Rico Students

Sep The Bright Stars College Access Program enables middle and high school students of low-income and have high academic achievements to overcome the socio-economic constraints preventing them to pursue a college experience. The Bright Stars program offers courses, workshops, counseling and mentoring to prepare students in the application process and transition to college. Students must be enrolled in 8th, 9th or 10th grade in a public or private high school in Puerto Rico.

# Kinesis Scholarships

Kinesis directs its efforts to Puerto Rican students and low-income families. Aspiring high school seniors must have a GPA of 3.5 or higher. Students who are currently enrolled in a bachelors degree and those aspiring or attending a graduate program must have a 3.0 GPA or higher on a 4.0 scale. Applicants must obtain admission to an accredited educational institution outside of Puerto Rico (letter of admission of the university is required).

## TheDream.US

<u>Scholarships for First Time College Students and Community College Graduates</u> — *Up to \$12,500 for an associate's degree and \$25,000 for a bachelor's degree* 

TheDream.US Scholarship provides college scholarships to highly motivated DREAMers who have DACA or TPS approval and who, without financial aid, cannot afford a college education that will enable them to participate in the American workforce. The Scholarships for First Time College Students is available to high school seniors or high school graduates with demonstrated financial need who are first time college students and seek to earn a career-ready associate's or bachelor's degree at one of the Partner Colleges. The Community College Graduate Scholarship is available to community college students with demonstrated financial need who have earned their associate's degrees and seek to complete their bachelor's degrees at one of our four-year Partner Colleges.

#### **Hispanic Theological Initiative**

# Graduate Fellowships for Hispanics in Theological Studies

Dec Applicants must be Latina/o students who have successfully completed their comprehensive exams and/or are
15 already writing their dissertation, and are full-time students at an HTIC member school. See link for list of HTIC
member institutions. Potential applicants must be enrolled as HTIC Scholars by the institution before beginning the
application process.

# McDonald's, Ronald McDonald House Charities — U.S. Scholarships

RMHC®/HACER® Scholarships for Graduating, College-Bound Hispanic High School Seniors

Jan Applicant must have at least one parent of Hispanic/Latino heritage, be a high school senior, be younger than 21 years old, be eligible to attend a two- or four-year college, university or technical school with a full course of study, and be a legal U.S. resident.

# <u>Mexican American Legal Defense and Educational Fund (MALDEF)</u> — <u>Scholarship Resources</u> MALDEF Law School Scholarships for Hispanics — \$5,000

Jan MALDEF's Law School Scholarship Program provides several scholarships in varying amounts to deserving law students with a commitment to advancing the civil rights of Latinos.

# <u>Hispanic Association of Colleges and Universities (HACU)</u> — <u>Student Programs</u>

HACU National Internships — \$470 to \$570 per week

Feb The HACU National Internship Program is open to all students, regardless of their ethnicity, gender, age, faith, etc.
To be eligible for HNIP, applicants must (1) have a minimum 3.0 GPA (on a 4.0 scale); (2) be enrolled in a degreeseeking program at an accredited institution. (Students pursuing only a credential or certificate will be considered
ineligible.) The only session for which you may apply if you have already graduated is the summer session

Nov immediately following your final spring semester; (3) have completed the freshman year of college before the internship begins; and (4) be authorized or eligible to work in the United States by law.

HACU Scholarships — \$1,000 to \$2,200

Apr To be eligible to apply for one of HACU's scholarships, students must be attending a HACU Member or Partner college or university.

May 22

May 29

# **La Unidad Latina Foundation**

<u>Scholarships for all Hispanic Undergraduates and Graduates</u> \$250 to \$1000

- Feb Awards scholarships and grants to worthy and needy Hispanic/Latino students for the pursuit of higher education.
- 15 Arts, Science, Public Administration/Policy, Social Work, Education, and Divinity.

Oct 15

#### Association of Latino Professionals in Finance and Accounting (ALPFA) — Students

Graduate and College Scholarships for Hispanics in Accounting or Finance Related Fields — \$1,500 to \$10,000

- Feb ALPFA offers scholarships to students, in the US or Puerto Rico, who are pursuing undergraduate/graduate studies.
- 28 The purpose of these scholarships is to encourage those students who have demonstrated academic excellence to continue pursuing their professional careers.

# <u>U.S. National Highway Institute</u> — *Technology Partnership Programs*

<u>Eisenhower Hispanic Serving Institutions (HSI) Fellowships</u> — \$1,700/mo. to \$2,000/mo.

Mar The Dwight David Eisenhower Transportation Fellowship Program (DDETFP) awards fellowships to students pursuing degrees in transportation-related disciplines.

# <u>Latin American Educational Foundation</u>—*Programs and Services*

College Scholarships for Hispanics with Residence in Colorado

Mar The goal of the Latin American Educational Foundation Scholarship is to award funds to qualified students who have demonstrated a commitment to the Hispanic community.

# <u>National Association to Promote Library and Information Services to Latinos and the Spanish-Speaking — Awards and Scholarships</u>

REFORMA Scholarships for Graduate Study by Spanish Speakers in Library and Information Science — Up to \$1,500

- Mar Any current or newly entering graduate library school student (M.L.S. or Ph.D.) may apply for its scholarships.
- 15 Must provide proof of enrollment to an accredited library school. Full-time status is not a requirement.

#### Chicana/Latina Foundation — Programs

Scholarships for Community College, Undergraduate and Graduate Chicana/Latina Students in Northern California \_\_\_\$1,500

Mar Each year the Chicana Latina Foundation awards merit-based scholarships to Latina college students in Northern California.

Gates Millennium Scholarships — Over \$10,000

- Jan The Gates Millennium Scholars (GMS) Program provides outstanding African American, American Indian/Alaska
- Native, Asian Pacific Islander American, and Hispanic American students with an opportunity to complete an undergraduate college education in any discipline area of interest. Continuing Gates Millennium Scholars may

request funding for a graduate degree program in one of the following discipline areas: computer science, education, engineering, library science, mathematics, public health or science.

# Latino Scholarship Dollars: Scholarships for Latino Students

Scholarships can play an important role in helping you pay for college. They are free money that you can apply for and they don't have to be paid back.

## LULAC National Educational Service Centers (LNESC) — Scholarships

LULAC National Scholarships — \$250 to \$2,000

Mar Applicants are eligible for National Scholastic Achievement Awards, Honors Awards and General Awards. Grades and academic performance will serve as indicators of potential; however, an emphasis may be placed on the individuals motivation, sincerity, and community involvement.

## **National Hispana Leadership Institute**

Latinas Learning to Lead Summer Youth Institute

Mar The program promotes and fosters the development of young college-age Latina leaders through training, mentoring opportunities, access to national networks and tools to create a community impact through their leadership projects.

# Florida Student Scholarship Grant Programs — State Scholarship and Grant Programs

## <u>Smithsonian Institution Latino Center — Programs</u>

Young Ambassadors Program for Graduating High School Seniors with an Interest and Commitment to Disciplines in the Arts, Sciences, or Humanities as it Pertains to Latino Communities and Cultures — \$2,000

Apr The Smithsonian Latino Center's Young Ambassadors Program is a national, interdisciplinary leadership program for high school students gifted in the arts, sciences, or humanities.

# <u>Hispanic Heritage Foundation</u> — Youth Programs

Youth Awards in Leadership, Sports, Arts, Literature/Journalism, Academic Excellence, Science and Technology, and Mathematics for Hispanic High School Seniors

Sep The Hispanic Heritage Youth Awards honor young Latino leaders with grants for their college education or to fund a community service effort the student will plan, oversee and sustain.

## ExxonMobil/LOFT Fellowship — \$1,000

Apr Career development opportunity for motivated undergraduate and graduate Hispanic student with a passion for Engineering and Science. Selected students will be exposed to ExxonMobil by participating in their world class mentoring program, have the possibility to interview for positions and receive a \$1,000 educational grant. See application below.

# **Connecticut Association of Latinos in Higher Education**

CALAHE Competitive Scholarship — \$1,000

Apr College scholarships for Latino high school seniors and college students from Connecticut. High School Seniors or GED equivalent and undergraduate college students.

# Great Minds in STEM™ — Scholarships and Career Fair

Scholarships in Science, Technology, Engineering, and Math (STEM) — \$500 to \$10,000

Apr For Hispanic High School Seniors, College and Graduate School Students. Great Minds in STEM™ encourages all engineering, applied science, computer science and math students to apply this year.

## **National Hispanic Coalition of Federal Aviation Employees**

Rene Matos Scholarships for Hispanics

May Applicants must be accepted or attending an accredited college, university, or vocational/trade school at the time the scholarship is awarded.

# National Organization of Professional Hispanic Natural Resources Conservation Service Employees (NOPHNRCSE)

College Scholarships — \$1,000

May Provides scholarships to deserving Hispanic students that wish to pursue or are pursuing a bachelor degrees in a natural resources or a natural resources conservation-related field of study at an accredited four-year institution.

# <u>Adelante! U.S. Education Leadership Fund</u> — Connecting Hispanic College Students to Corporate America, Federal Agencies, and Top Graduate Schools

#### College Scholarships for Hispanics

May Scholarships for college juniors and seniors in international business, general business, economics, finance,
 accounting, marketing, public relations, or sales; electrical engineering, mechanical engineering, computer science or biochemistry.

#### **Internships for Hispanics**

The ¡Adelante! Internship program provides students with the opportunity to intern in corporate environments throughout the United States.

# **National Hispanic Foundation for the Arts**

# **Entertainment Industry Graduate Scholarships for Hispanics**

- Jul Graduate scholarships in drama/theater, set design/costume design, lighting design, film
- (writing/directing/production), broadcast communications, entertainment law, or business administration with an emphasis on entertainment management. You must be a graduate student enrolled full-time during the previous/current academic year at one of the following selected universities: Yale, Harvard, Columbia, NYU, Northwestern, UCLA, USC, and UT Austin.

## College Board — Pay for College

# The National Hispanic Recognition Program (NHRP)

The National Hispanic Recognition Program identifies nearly 5,000 outstanding Hispanic/Latino students each year.

#### **Hispanic Dental Association Foundation**

<u>Scholarships for Hispanics in Dental, Undergraduate Dental Hygiene, Dental Assisting, or Dental Technician Programs</u> Scholarships under this program will help the student complete their training for Undergraduate, Master's Degree or above in a Dentistry Related Program.

# College Assistance Migrant Program Alumni Association — Scholarships

## College Scholarships for Migrant or Seasonal Farmworkers and their Families

The College Assistance Migrant Program (CAMP) is a unique federally-funded educational support and scholarship program that helps from migrant and seasonal farmworking backgrounds to reach and succeed in college.

# <u>Center for the Advancement of Hispanics in Science and Engineering Education (CAHSEE)</u> — <u>Programs</u> <u>Central American Young Scholar Awards (CAYSA)</u>

The CAYSA ceremonies honor more than 60 Washington, D.C. area high school seniors of Central American descent who have demonstrated remarkable success throughout all four years of high school.

# Young Educators Program (YEP) — \$2,750 to \$3,000

The Young Educators Program Fellowship is geared towards further developing the fellow's academic, leadership, civic, and presentation skills. Our goal is to prepare the fellows to excel in their college education and professional careers.

# Science, Technology, Engineering, and Mathematics Institute (STEM Institute)

This four-summer program is designed to prepare pre-college students fifth through eleventh grades to enter and succeed in science and engineering at the colleges of their choice.

# Young Engineer and Scientist Program (YESP)

This program places talented Hispanic college students in the research labs of government agencies.

# SAT/SOAR Program

# **National Alliance for Hispanic Health**

Scholarships for Hispanics: High School Seniors and College Students

# **Scholarships For African-Americans**

# **National Association for Equal Opportunity in Higher Education (NAFEO)**

Internships — \$440 to \$520 per week

Mar The NAFEO Internship Program offers full-time paid internships in the summer. Preference will be given to students enrolled in undergraduate or graduate programs at historically or predominantly black colleges and universities.

# <u>U.S. National Highway Institute</u> — *Technology Partnership Programs*

Eisenhower Undergraduate and Graduate Fellowships at Historically Black Colleges and Universities (HBCUs) — \$1,700/mo. to \$2,000/mo.

Mar Fellowships for students pursuing degrees in transportation-related disciplines.

# American Intellectual Property Law Education Foundation — Scholars

Sidney B. Williams, Jr. Intellectual Property Law Graduate Scholarships — Up to \$30,000

The scholarship will be awarded to minority students developing a career in intellectual property law or holding a past or present, full or part-time position in an area related to intellectual property law. Applicants must also have a demonstrated financial need and outstanding academic performance in the undergraduate level and law school level (if applicable).

# **Sachs Foundation** — Scholarship Applications

<u>Undergraduate Scholarships</u> — Over \$6,000

Mar These scholarships are for African American high school seniors only who will be attending college in the fall term.
 Applicants must be a full-time Colorado resident for a minimum of five years. Residence due to military orders to Colorado may be accepted on a case by case basis.

<u>Graduate Scholarships</u> — \$7,000

Mar The Sachs Foundation has a very limited graduate grant program. Selection for a graduate grant is on a case by case basis determined by the Board of Directors. Only current Sachs Foundation recipients who will, or have, received their undergraduate degree within the last three years are eligible.

#### UCCS Health Sciences Scholarship — \$6,000

Mar You must be currently attending, or have been admitted to, the University of Colorado, Colorado Springs Health
Sciences Program. Applicants must be a full-time Colorado resident for a minimum of five years. Residence due to
military orders to Colorado may be accepted on a case-by-case basis.

## **Jacki Tuckfiled Memorial Fund**

<u>Jacki Tuckfiled Memorial Scholarships</u> — \$2,000

May The applicant must be an African American United States citizen, resident of South Florida, enrolled (part or full time) in a graduate business degree program (master's or doctoral) at a Florida university.

# <u>Development Fund for Black Students in Science and Technology — Program Summary</u>

College Scholarships — Up to \$2,000

Jun The Development Fund for Black Students in Science and Technology (DFBSST) is an endowment fund which
 provides scholarships to African-American undergraduate students who enroll in scientific or technical fields of study at Historically Black Colleges and Universities (HBCUs).

<u>National Society of Black Engineers</u> — *Programs, Competitions & Scholarships* Programs and Scholarships — \$500 to \$10,500

Jun NSBE and Corporate-sponsored scholarship and award opportunities for pre-college, collegiate undergraduate and graduate student, and technical professional members.

# <u>University of Virginia, Woodson Institute for Afro-American and African Studies — Fellowships</u> <u>Predoctoral Residential Research Fellowships — \$20,000</u>

Dec Open to qualified candidates without restriction as to citizenship or current residence. However, current University employees are not eligible to apply.

#### Postdoctoral Residential Research Fellowships - - \$45,000

Dec The fellowship is open to qualified candidates without restriction as to citizenship or current residence. Applicants for the post-doctoral fellowship must have been awarded their Ph.D. by the time of application or furnish proof from the relevant registrar that all documentation required for the Ph.D. has been submitted.

# <u>UNCF/Merck Science Initiative</u> — Scholarships and Fellowships

# UNCF/Merck Undergraduate Science Research Scholarship Awards

Intended to help African American undergraduate students who are interested in science to further their science education and potentially pursue science and engineering careers. The UNCF/Merck awards provide tuition support and opportunities for research experience in a state-of-the-art research facility.

# <u>UNCF/Merck Graduate Science Research Dissertation Fellowships</u> — *Up to \$53,500*

Dec Will help African American graduate students complete coursework, conduct research, and prepare the dissertation required for a doctoral degree in the biomedically relevant life or physical sciences and engineering.

# <u>UNCF/Merck Postdoctoral Science Research Fellowships - Up to \$92,000</u>

Dec Intended to provide support to African American post-graduate students to obtain postdoctoral training and to prepare for a career in biomedical research.

# Ron Brown Scholar Program — Prospective Applicants

<u>College Scholarships for African-American High School Seniors Who Intend to Pursue Undergraduate Degrees</u>
<u>Full-Time — Up to \$40,000</u>

Jan 9 The Ron Brown Scholar Program seeks to identify African-American high school seniors who will make significant Nov contributions to society. Applicants must excel academically, exhibit exceptional leadership potential, participate in community service activities and demonstrate financial need.

# United Negro College Fund — Scholarships, Programs, Internships, and Fellowships

<u>Gates Millennium Scholarships</u> — Over \$10,000

Jan The Gates Millennium Scholars (GMS) Program provides outstanding African American, American Indian/Alaska

Native, Asian Pacific Islander American, and Hispanic American students with an opportunity to complete an undergraduate college education in any discipline area of interest. Continuing Gates Millennium Scholars may request funding for a graduate degree program in one of the following discipline areas: computer science, education, engineering, library science, mathematics, public health or science.

# College Scholarships

The UNCF Program Services Department manages various scholarship programs. Each program has its own eligibility criteria, open/close dates and required documentation.

# McDonald's, Ronald McDonald House Charities — U.S. Scholarships

RMHC®/African-American Future Achievers Scholarships for Graduating, College-Bound High School Seniors — A minimum of \$1,000

Jan Applicant must have at least one parent of African American or Black Caribbean heritage, be a high school senior, be younger than 21 years old, be eligible to attend a two- or four-year college, university or technical school with a full course of study, and be a legal U.S. resident.

# <u>National Merit Scholarship Corporation (NMSC)</u> — <u>National Merit College Scholarships</u> National Achievement Scholarships for Outstanding African American Students — \$2,500

An academic competition established to provide recognition for outstanding Black American high school students. Black students may enter both the National Achievement Program and the National Merit® Program by taking the Preliminary SAT/National Merit Scholarship Qualifying Test (PSAT/NMSQT®) and meeting other published requirements for participation.

# **Scholarships For Native Americans**

# **American Indian College Fund**

Gates Millennium Scholarships — Over \$10,000

Jan The Gates Millennium Scholars (GMS) Program provides outstanding African American, American Indian/Alaska

13 Native, Asian Pacific Islander American, and Hispanic American students with an opportunity to complete an undergraduate college education in any discipline area of interest. Continuing Gates Millennium Scholars may request funding for a graduate degree program in one of the following discipline areas: computer science, education, engineering, library science, mathematics, public health or science.

#### **American Indian Graduate Center**

Graduate Fellowships and College Scholarships

American Indian Science and Engineering Society (AISES) — Scholarships

# **Internships**

The AISES Internship Program provides students with applied work experience and an opportunity to explore career options. Placing students in 10-week summer positions with partner agencies, the program also promotes advanced study to the graduate level and assists students in developing professional networks.

# American Philosophical Society — Fellowships and Grants

Phillips Fund Grants for Native American Research

Scholarships for Native Americans and Alaska Natives in Fields Related to Health Care or Tribal Policy

#### **Native Visions**

College Scholarships for Native Americans

#### **Royal Bank Financial Group**

College Scholarships for Aboriginal Canadian Students in Disciplines Relevant to the Banking Industry (e.g., Business, Economics, Computer Science)

# Smithsonian Institution — Fellowship and Internship Opportunities

# Native American Visiting Student Awards

Appointments are available for currently enrolled advanced Native American graduate students who are formally or informally related to a Native American community. Visiting Students pursue independent research in association with Smithsonian staff.

#### National Museum of the American Indian Internships

The Internship Program provides educational opportunities for students interested in the museum profession and related fields. Interns complete projects using the resources of the National Museum of the American Indian (NMAI) and other Smithsonian offices.

## Society for American Archaeology

Scholarships for Archaeological Training for Native Americans and Native Hawaiians

# **U.S. Centers for Disease Control and Prevention**

American Indian Science and Engineering Society (AISES) Internship Program

# **U.S. Indian Health Service**

<u>Health Professions Preparatory Scholarships, Including Pre-Engineering, Pre-Medicine, Pre-Dentistry, Civil and Environmental Engineering</u>

# <u>U.S. National Highway Institute</u> — Technology Partnership Programs

#### Eisenhower Transportation Graduate Fellowships

The Dwight David Eisenhower Transportation Fellowship Program (DDETFP) awards fellowships to students pursuing degrees in transportation-related disciplines. This program advances the transportation workforce by attracting the

brightest minds to the field through education, research, and workforce development. The DDETFP encompasses all modes of transportation.

# **Wildlife Conservation Society**

Graduate Fellowships for Exceptional Conservationists from North American Indigenous Groups

# **Engineering, Computer Engineering And Science Scholarships**

# International Society of Explosives Engineers — Education Scholarship Funds

College and Graduate Scholarships in Explosives Related Fields

May Monies are awarded to qualified students who are pursuing technical undergraduate, graduate or doctorate degrees in fields of education related to the commercial explosives industry.

# <u>Linux Foundation</u> — Free Linux Training Online

#### **Linux Training Scholarships**

Sep 2 The Linux Foundation's Linux Training Scholarship Program will award scholarships to individuals who demonstrate the greatest need and who have already demonstrated an interest in Linux and open source software. The program seeks to find individuals who want to contribute to the advancement of the Linux operating system and help influence its future.

## **Semiconductor Research Corporation** — *Student Center*

## Graduate Fellowships in Microelectronics

The GRC Program supports over 1,000 advanced degree students each year on contracts guided by the membership.
 These students are outstanding academically and have demonstrated research capability in disciplines critical to the semiconductor industry.

#### **IBM**

# IBM Ph.D. Fellowships

Oct The IBM Ph.D. Fellowship Awards Program honors exceptional Ph.D. students who have an interest in solving problems that are important to IBM and fundamental to innovation in many academic disciplines and areas of study. These include: computer science and engineering, electrical and mechanical engineering, physical sciences (including chemistry, material sciences, and physics), mathematical sciences (including optimization), business sciences (including financial services, communication, and learning/knowledge), and service science, management, and engineering (SSME).

# Herman Goldstine Postdoctoral Fellowship in Mathematical Sciences and Computer Sciences

The Business Analytics and Mathematical Sciences Department of the IBM Thomas J. Watson Research Center invites applications for its Herman Goldstine Memorial Postdoctoral Fellowship for research in the mathematical and computer sciences. The fellowship provides scientists of outstanding ability an opportunity to advance their scholarship as resident department members at the Research Center. The Research Center is located in Westchester County, less than an hour north of New York City.

#### Graduate Fellowships in Applied Physical, Biological and Engineering Sciences — Up to \$37,000

Oct Eligible applicants for Hertz Fellowships must be students of the applied physical, biological and engineering sciences who are citizens or permanent residents of the United States of America, and who are willing to morally commit to make their skills available to the United States in time of national emergency. College seniors wishing to pursue the Ph.D. degree in any of the fields of particular interest to the Foundation, as well as graduate students already in the process of doing so, may apply.

# <u>Associated General Contractors of America Education and Research Foundation</u> — <u>Scholarships Program</u> <u>Undergraduate Scholarships in Construction or Civil Engineering</u>

Nov The AGC Foundation offers undergraduate scholarships to students enrolled in ABET or ACCE-accredited construction management or construction related engineering programs.

## Graduate Scholarships in Construction or Civil Engineering

Nov The AGC Foundation offers graduate level scholarships to students enrolled in ABET or ACCE-accredited construction management or construction related engineering programs.

#### Computing Research Association — Awards

# Outstanding Undergraduate Researchers Award

Nov This award program recognizes undergraduate students in North American colleges and universities who show outstanding research potential in an area of computing research. Eligible nominees are enrolled as undergraduates in a North American college or university throughout the academic year. They must be nominated by two faculty members and recommended by the chair of their home department.

# **Institute of Industrial Engineers (IIE)** — *Student Center*

# College Scholarships and Graduate Fellowships in Industrial Engineering

Nov IIE's scholarship and fellowship program is in place to recognize undergraduate industrial engineering students for academic excellence and campus leadership. IIE also offers honors and recognition specifically for graduate students, including the Graduate Research Award and the prestigious Pritsker Doctoral Dissertation Award.

# American Society of Safety Engineers (ASSE) Foundation — Scholarship Award Program

Undergraduate and Graduate Scholarships in Occupational Safety, Health, and the Environment.

Dec 1 Graduate awards are for full-time students (enrolled in 9 hours or more per semester) pursuing a graduate degree in occupational safety & health or a closely related field. Those that apply to part-time students (3-8 hours per semester) are noted. U.S. citizenship is not required unless specified.

#### U.S. Navy — Education and Outreach

## U.S. Navy Summer Faculty Research Program and Sabbatical Leave Program

Dec 6 The Office of Naval Research (ONR) sponsors the Summer Faculty Research Program and the Sabbatical Leave Program for U.S. citizens and legal permanent residents who hold teaching or research appointments at U.S. colleges and universities. These programs provide an opportunity for faculty members to participate in research of mutual interest to the faculty member and professional peers at U.S. Navy Laboratories.

## **Washington Internships for Students of Engineering (WISE)**

Summer Internships for Engineering and Computer Science Students

Dec Applicants must be juniors, seniors, or entering their final year of undergraduate studies in engineering (or computer science). WISE will also accept applications from engineering grads who are beginning Masters level study in a technology policy-related degree.

#### Woods Hole Oceanographic Institution (WHOI) — Education

Postdoctoral Fellowships in Ocean Science and Engineering

Jan 5 The Woods Hole Oceanographic Institution offers several types of postdoctoral awards. A term appointment to the position of Postdoctoral Scholar, Fellow, or Investigator may be offered to an individual who has completed the requirements for a Ph.D. degree.

# <u>Facebook</u> — Fellowships

Graduate Fellowships — 37,500+

Jan 5 The Fellowship Program is open to full-time PhD students (domestic and international) enrolled during the current academic year and studying computer science, computer engineering, electrical engineering, system architecture, or a related area. Architecture, compilers, data mining, databases, distributed systems, computer vision & graphics, human-computer interaction, internet economics, machine learning, natural language processing, networking operating systems, programming languages, security & privacy.

## American Water Works Association — Awards & Scholarships

Abel Wolman Fellowships in Water Supply and Treatment

Jan 6 The Abel Wolman Fellowship is designed to support promising doctoral students in the U.S., Canada and Mexico pursuing advanced training and research in the field of water supply and treatment.

#### Camp Memorial Scholarships in Drinking Water Research

Jan 6 The Thomas R. Camp Scholarship provides support to outstanding graduate students doing applied research in the drinking water field.

Larson Aquatic Research Support in Corrosion Control, Treatment and Distribution of Domestic and Industrial Water Supplies, Aquatic Chemistry, and/or Environmental Chemistry

Jan 6 The Larson Aquatic Research Support scholarship provides support for doctoral and masters students interested in careers in the fields of corrosion control, treatment and distribution of domestic and industrial water supplies, aquatic chemistry, and/or environmental chemistry.

# Academic Achievement Dissertation Awards in Public Water Supply

Oct 1 The Academic Achievement Award encourages academic excellence by recognizing contributions to the field of public water supply. All Masters theses and doctoral dissertations that are relevant to the water supply industry are eligible.

# American Society for Engineering Education — Fellowship Programs

# U.S. Office of Naval Research Postdoctoral Fellowships — Up to \$76,000+

The program is designed to significantly increase the involvement of creative and highly trained scientists and engineers from academia and industry to scientific and technical areas of interest and relevance to the Navy. Fellows are competitively selected on the basis of their overall qualifications and technical proposals addressing specific areas defined by the host Navy laboratories.

## U.S. Navy Science and Engineering Apprenticeship Program (SEAP) — 3,300 to \$3,800

Jan 7 This program is intended for high school students who have completed at least Grade 9. SEAP is an eight week summer research opportunity at participating ONR laboratories. Applicants must be 16 years of age for most Laboratories and U.S. citizens. A competitive stipend is available. The application cycle is from October to January.

# U.S. Army Science and Engineering Apprenticeship Program (SEAP) --- \$2,000

Apr SEAP is designed so that students can apprentice in fields of their choice with experienced scientists and engineers.

This opportunity provides students with valuable experience needed to make informed career decisions. Students apprentice with their mentors on mutually agreed upon projects. At Army Research facilities, the students apprentice in a professional research laboratory setting and learn how their research can benefit the Army as well as the civilian community.

# National Defense Science and Engineering (NDSEG) Graduate Fellowships — 30,000+

Dec The NDSEG Fellowship is a highly competitive, portable award for U.S. citizens and nationals in the beginning stages of their overall graduate study who intend to pursue a doctoral degree a science, technology, engineering, and mathematics disciplines. NDSEG confers high honors upon its recipients and allows them to attend any accredited U.S. institution. NDSEG Fellowships last for up to three years (36 consecutive months) and provides full tuition and mandatory fee coverage, a monthly stipend, and a \$1,000 per year medical health insurance allowance.

# Science, Mathematics & Research for Transformation (SMART) Undergraduate and Graduate Scholarships — \$25,000 — \$38,000 per year

Dec An opportunity for students pursuing an undergraduate or graduate degree in Science, Technology, Engineering, and Mathematics (STEM) disciplines to receive a full scholarship and be gainfully employed upon degree completion. Students pursuing degrees related to the following are encouraged to apply: Aeronautical and Astronautical Engineering, Biosciences, Chemical Engineering, Chemistry, Civil Engineering, Cognitive, Neural, and Behavioral Sciences, Computer and Computational Sciences, Electrical Engineering, Geosciences, Industrial and Systems Engineering (technical tracks only), Information Sciences, Materials Science and Engineering,

Mathematics, Mechanical Engineering, Naval Architecture and Ocean Engineering, Nuclear Engineering, Oceanography, Operations Research (technical tracks only), Physics.

# Naval Research Enterprise Internship Program (NREIP) — \$5,400 to \$10,800

Dec NREIP provides competitive research internships to undergraduate sophomores, juniors & seniors, and graduate students. Participating students typically spend ten weeks during the summer doing research at DoN laboratories. To participate, a student must be enrolled at an accredited 4 year US college or university and have completed their freshman year before beginning the internship.

# Gains in the Education of Mathematics and Science (GEMS) — U.S. Army

The program is an extracurricular science education program, which enables students to experience science in a real laboratory setting. Students receive a stipend to participate in one week-, two week- and four-week long programs, depending on student grade and program site. Programs offered at different sites are unique.

# **Krell Institute** — Fellowships

# U.S. Department of Energy Computational Science Graduate Fellowships (CSGF)

Jan The Department of Energy Computational Science Graduate Fellowship (DOE CSGF) program provides
 outstanding benefits and opportunities to students pursuing a PhD in scientific or engineering disciplines with an emphasis in high-performance computing.

# <u>U.S.</u> Department of Energy National Nuclear Security Administration Stewardship Science Graduate Fellowships (SSGF)

Jan The Department of Energy National Nuclear Security Administration Stewardship Science Graduate Fellowship
 (SSGF) Program provides opportunities to students pursuing a Ph.D. in areas such as high-energy density physics, low-energy nuclear science, or properties of materials under extreme conditions.

## National Air and Space Museum — Research

# National Air and Space Museum Research Fellowships

Jan Interns have a firsthand opportunity to learn about the historic artifacts and archival materials housed in the
 Museum and to study the scientific and technological advances they represent. To be considered for a summer internship, you must be a high school graduate and be enrolled in a degree-granting undergraduate or graduate program at an accredited college or university.

#### National Air and Space Museum Summer Internship Program

Feb Interns have a firsthand opportunity to learn about the historic artifacts and archival materials housed in the
Museum and to study the scientific and technological advances they represent. To be considered for a summer internship, you must be a high school graduate and be enrolled in a degree-granting undergraduate or graduate program at an accredited college or university.

# **Google** — Explore Scholarship Opportunities

# <u>The Google Anita Borg Memorial Scholarship</u> — \$10,000

Jan A group of female undergraduate and graduate students all over the world will be chosen from the applicant pool,
and scholarships will be awarded based on the strength of each candidate's academic background and demonstrated
leadership. Applicants must be a female student entering her senior year of undergraduate study or be enrolled in a
graduate program and enrolled in Computer Science or Computer Engineering program, or a closely related
technical field.

# The Generation Google Scholarship for Current University Students — \$10,000 U.S. or C\$5,000 Canadian dollars

Jan Applicants must be currently enrolled as an undergraduate or graduate student at a university for the academic year;
15 pursuing a computer science or computer engineering degree, or a degree in a closely related technical field; and be
a student from an underrepresented group in computer science (African American, Hispanic, American Indian, or
female.

# Google Student Veterans of America Scholarship — 10,000

Jan Eligible students must be pursuing a bachelor's or graduate degree in Computer Science, or a closely related field.

# University of Minnesota, Charles Babbage Institute

# Adelle and Erwin Tomash Graduate Fellowship

Jan The fellowship will be awarded to a graduate student for doctoral dissertation research in the history of computing.

# Whitaker International Fellows and Scholars Program — Fellowships and Scholarships

Predoctoral Fellowships and Postdoctoral Scholarships in Bioengineering & Biomedical Engineering

Jan The Whitaker International Fellows and Scholars Program sends emerging leaders in U.S. biomedical engineering (or bioengineering) to undertake a self-designed project that will enhance their own careers within the field in over 25 countries worldwide.

# Summer Grants for Current Master's or Ph.D. Students at a U.S. Institution in Bioengineering or Biomedical Engineering

Feb 3 The Summer Grants Program will provide U.S. bioengineers and biomedical engineers funding to pursue a summer (8 weeks) of high-quality research, internship in an industry setting or coursework relevant to their field of focus in biomedical engineering (BME), in an international setting.

# **SAE International** — International Scholarships Program

Engineering Scholarships for High School Seniors — for the Freshman Year in College

Jan SAE International awards scholarships to both undergraduate and graduate engineering students.

Engineering Scholarships Freshmen — for the Sophomore Year in College

Feb SAE International awards scholarships to both undergraduate and graduate engineering students.

15

<u>Engineering Scholarships Sophomores</u> — for the Junior Year in College

Feb SAE International awards scholarships to both undergraduate and graduate engineering students.

15

15

Engineering Scholarships Juniors — for the Senior Year in College

Feb SAE International awards scholarships to both undergraduate and graduate engineering students.

15

Engineering Scholarships for Graduate and Ph.D. Students

Feb SAE International awards scholarships to both undergraduate and graduate engineering students.

15

#### <u>Microsoft</u> — Scholarships

<u>Scholarships in Computer Science, Computer Engineering, or Related Technical Disciplines, with a Demonstrated Interest in Computer Science</u>

Jan Microsoft is offering four different types of technical scholarships to current undergraduate students: General Scholarships, Women's Scholarships, Minority Scholarships, and Scholarships for Students with Disabilities.

#### **Internships**

The majority of the interns are PhD students in the field of Computer Science, related technical majors, or social sciences with a technical focus, and a small group of students with a proven research focus who are masters or bachelor's candidates.

## Graduate Research Fellowships for Ph.D. Students in North America, Latin America, India, Europe, and China

The fellowship program provides financial support for students and early-career faculty, allowing them to focus on their research.

# Microsoft Research Faculty Fellowships

The selected professors explore breakthrough, high-impact research that has the potential to help solve some of today's most challenging societal problems.

# National Research Council (NRC) — Research Associateship Programs

# Postdoctoral Research Associateship Programs for Scientists and Engineers

Nov Tenable at U.S. Laboratories and NASA Research Centers. The mission of the NRC Research Associateship Programs (RAP) is to promote excellence in scientific and technological research conducted by the U.S. government through the administration of programs offering graduate, postdoctoral, and senior level research opportunities at sponsoring federal laboratories and affiliated institutions.

# <u>Tau Beta Pi — The Engineering Honor Society — Awards and Programs</u>

#### **Graduate Fellowships**

Feb 1 The purpose is to finance, for a select group of members chosen for merit and need, a year of graduate study at the colleges of their choice. Tau Beta Pi fellows are free to do graduate work in any field which will enable them to contribute to the engineering profession. The only specific duty of awardees is to write a report at the completion of the fellowship year summarizing their work.

## College Scholarships

Apr 1 Awards for the senior year of engineering study.

# College and Graduate School Student Assistance Loans

The resources of Tau Beta Pi's Student Loan Fund are available to members who otherwise would be without sufficient money to remain in college and complete their courses.

# <u>International Society for Optical Engineering — SPIE Scholarship Program</u>

## Educational Scholarships and Grants in Optical Science and Engineering

Feb All students studying worldwide in an optics, photonics, imaging, or optoelectronics program or related discipline are eligible to apply.

## American Society of Mechanical Engineering — Scholarships and Awards

# Graduate Teaching Fellowships in Mechanical Engineering

Feb The Graduate Teaching Fellowship Program is a collaboration between ASME and mechanical engineering departments to encourage outstanding doctoral candidates in Mechanical (and related) Engineering, particularly women and minorities, to pursue careers in engineering education.

#### College Scholarships in Mechanical Engineering

Mar You must be a current undergraduate or graduate ASME Student Member to login to the online application system.

# ASME Auxiliary Loans in Mechanical Engineering

These loans are interest free until graduation. Granted throughout the year to junior, senior or graduate students. No deadline for applications.

# Auxiliary Scholarships in Mechanical Engineering

The ASME Auxiliary Incorporated provides scholarships and loans to students of mechanical engineering at both the graduate and undergraduate levels and supports the objectives of ASME to promote the advancement of the art, science and practice of mechanical engineering.

#### Instrumentation, Systems, and Automation Society (ISA) — Students

College and Graduate Scholarships in Instrumentation, Systems, and Automation

Feb ISA Educational Foundation Scholarships are awarded to college or university students who demonstrate outstanding potential for long-range contribution to the fields of automation and control.

# Society of Women Engineers — SWE Scholarships

Freshman, Sophomore, Junior, Senior, Reentry, and Graduate Scholarships for Women in Engineering and Computer Sciences — 1,000 to \$20,000

Feb The SWE Scholarship Program provides financial assistance to women admitted to accredited baccalaureate or graduate programs, in preparation for careers in engineering, engineering technology and computer science.

Mar

# Local Scholarships

1

A number of SWE Sections offer scholarship assistance to female students on a local level. If you reside or attend school within the geographical areas covered by these Sections, you may be eligible for additional scholarship assistance. Contact these Sections directly for detailed information and application forms. Scholarships are listed by state.

# <u>U.S. National Aeronautics and Space Administration (NASA) — Student Programs</u>

# NASA Aeronautics Scholarships

Mar This program awards 20 undergraduate and five graduate scholarships to students in aeronautics or related fields. It is administered through NASA's One-Stop Shopping Initiative (OSSI) for interns, fellows and scholars. At OSSI, students interested in NASA learning experiences can create an account from which to generate applications for multiple opportunities.

## **NASA Pathways Programs**

Open NASA Pathways Programs provide opportunities for students and recent graduates to be considered for Federal employment through NASA Pathways Intern Employment Program (IEP), NASA Pathways Recent Graduates Program (RGP), NASA Pathways Presidential Management Fellows (PMF) Program.

# U.S. NASA Summer Faculty Fellowships in Aeronautics and Space Research

Apr 1 The fellowships are awarded to full-time engineering and science educators from U.S. colleges and universities.

# National Society of Professional Engineers — Scholarships

## **High School**

Mar Engineering college scholarships for high school seniors who belong to an ethnic minority or for those who participated as a competitor in the MATHCOUNTS program.

#### Undergraduate

Mar Engineering scholarships for women and college undergraduates.

#### Graduate

Mar Engineering graduate school scholarships for outstanding students pursuing an MBA, a master's degree in engineering management, a master's degree in public administration, architecture, engineering and law. Mar

# 15

# American Nuclear Society (ANS) — Honors and Awards

# Glenn T. Seaborg Congressional Science and Engineering Fellowship

Mar This Fellowship provides a stipend for the successful candidate to work in a Congressional office (either House or Senate) for a year, providing advice on science and engineering matters to a member of Congress and his or her staff.

# **Engineering Internships**

ANS is a full participant in the Washington Internships for Students of Engineering (WISE) Program, with guaranteed support for two students. ANS-sponsored students must be student members of the Society.

# College and Graduate Scholarships in Nuclear Science, Nuclear Engineering and Related Fields

Apr 1 More than 20 scholarships named after pioneers and leaders in NS&T and other general scholarships are awarded each year to students with outstanding academic credentials. Special scholarships are available to students who have significant economical needs in order to pursue degrees in NS&T. In addition to the scholarships for students entering their sophomore year and higher in college, ANS also provides scholarships to incoming freshmen.

## **AIST Steel Foundation** — *Internships and Scholarships*

#### Scholarships and Grants for Students in the Iron and Steel Industry

Mar AIST Foundation scholarships are awarded on an annual basis to talented and dedicated students to encourage them to pursue careers within iron- and steel-related industries.

## David and Lucile Packard Foundation — Conservation and Science

# Faculty Fellowships for Science and Engineering

Mar The Packard Fellowships for Science and Engineering allow the nation's most promising young professors to pursue their science and engineering research with few funding restrictions and limited paperwork requirements.

# Society of Plastics Engineers Foundation — Scholarships and Grants

# Engineering Scholarships for Undergraduate and Graduate Students Studying for a Career in the Plastics Industry

Mar The SPE Foundation offers numerous scholarships to students who have demonstrated or expressed an interest in the plastics industry. They must be majoring in or taking courses that would be beneficial to a career in the plastics industry. This would include, but is not limited to, plastics engineering, polymer science, chemistry, physics, chemical engineering, mechanical engineering, and industrial engineering. All applicants must be in good standing with their colleges. Financial need is considered for most scholarships.

## American Historical Association — Grants and Fellowships

# Fellowships in Aerospace History

Apr 1 The Fellowship in Aerospace History is offered annually by the the National Aeronautics Space Administration (NASA) and the American Historical Association to support a significant scholarly research project in aerospace history. It will provide a fellow with an opportunity to engage in significant and sustained advanced research in all aspects of the history of aerospace from the earliest human interest in flight to the present, including cultural and intellectual history, economic history, history of law and public policy, and the history of science, engineering, and management. Applicants must possess a PhD in history or in a closely related field, or be enrolled as a student (having completed all coursework) in a doctoral degree-granting program.

# **Brown and Caldwell** — Scholarships

## Eckenfelder Scholarship

Apr Full-time students enrolled in their Junior, Senior year or graduate program at an accredited college/university.

Must have a declared major in civil, chemical or environmental engineering or one of the environmental sciences (e.g. biology, geology, hydrogeology, ecology).

# Minority Scholarship

Apr
15 Full-time students enrolled in their Junior, Senior year or graduate program at an accredited college/university.

Must have a declared major in civil, chemical or environmental engineering or one of the environmental sciences

(e.g. biology, geology, hydrogeology, ecology). Be a minority (e.g. African American, Hispanic, Asian or Pacific American or Alaska Native).

# Society of Petroleum Engineers — Scholarships and Fellowships

## Star Scholarships for Undergraduate Study

Apr Each year, the Society of Petroleum Engineers (SPE) awards STAR scholarships and fellowships representing a 1 million dollar commitment to education.

## Gus Archie Memorial Scholarship for the Most Outstanding Student

May Each year the SPE Foundation, working through the SPE Section Scholarship Support Program, awards the Archie Scholarship to the most outstanding student attending university for the first time. The curriculum must lead to an undergraduate degree in petroleum engineering.

## Henry DeWitt Smith Fellowship

Jun 1 Applicants must be students studying or planning to study petroleum engineering on the Master's or PhD level.

## Nico van Wingen Memorial Graduate Fellowships

Nov Eligible students must be members of an official SPE Student Chapter and must be at the Ph.D. level intending to pursue careers in academia.

# National Society of Black Engineers — Programs, Competitions & Scholarships

#### **Programs and Scholarships**

NSBE and Corporate-sponsored scholarship and award opportunities for pre-college, collegiate undergraduate and graduate student, and technical professional members.

## **American Society of Civil Engineers**

College Scholarships in Civil Engineering

Graduate Fellowships in Civil Engineering

# American Society of Naval Engineers (ASNE) — Student Programs

College and Graduate Scholarships in Naval Engineering

Scholarships to undergraduate and graduate students interested in pursuing an education and career in naval engineering.

# <u>Armed Forces Communications & Electronics Association (AFCEA) Educational Foundation</u>—<u>Scholarships</u> College & Graduate Scholarships in Environmental & Geological Engineering

The AEG Foundation is dedicated to advancing research, student and professional education, and public awareness in the field of engineering geology and the related fields of environmental geology and hydrogeology.

# **Association for Computing Machinery**

#### Awards

ACM recognizes excellence through its eminent series of awards for outstanding technical and professional achievements and contributions in computer science and information technology.

#### Special Interest Group Awards

ACM's Special Interest Groups (SIGs) regularly cite outstanding individuals for their contributions in more than 30 distinct technological fields.

# <u>Astronaut Scholarship Foundation</u> — Scholars

College Scholarships in Science and Engineering

Scholarship nominees must be engineering or natural or applied science (e.g., astronomy, biology, chemistry, physics, earth science, computer science) or mathematics students with intentions to pursue research or advance their field upon completion of their final degrees.

# Rubber Division, American Chemical Society — Funding & Awards

Scholarships and Awards in Chemistry, Physics, Chemical Engineering, Mechanical Engineering, Polymer Science or Any Other Technical Discipline of Relevance to the Rubber Industry

There are many scholarships available for those students who wish to pursue a degree in rubber technology, polymer science or the chemical profession.

# Society of Manufacturing Engineers Education Foundation — Scholarships

Scholarships for Graduating High School Seniors, College Undergraduates, and Graduate Students

The Foundation awards scholarships to graduating high school seniors, current undergraduates and masters or doctoral degree students pursuing degrees in manufacturing and related fields at two-year and four-year colleges.

# Texas Tech University, College of Engineering

## College Scholarships

The Whitacre College of Engineering offers a number of externally funded scholarships. Each department offers scholarships to students within the department.

U.S. Federal Aviation Administration (FAA) — Scholarships and Grants

# <u>U.S. National Highway Institute</u> — *Technology Partnership Programs*

# Eisenhower Transportation Graduate Fellowships

The Dwight David Eisenhower Transportation Fellowship Program (DDETFP) awards fellowships to students pursuing degrees in transportation-related disciplines. This program advances the transportation workforce by attracting the brightest minds to the field through education, research, and workforce development. The DDETFP encompasses all modes of transportation.

# **Scholarships For High School Students**

# QuestBridge — College Prep for High School Juniors & Seniors

#### National College Match

Sep The QuestBridge National College Match helps outstanding low-income high school seniors gain admission and full four-year scholarships to some of the nation's most selective colleges. If you are a student who has achieved academic excellence in the face of economic challenges, we encourage you to apply to the National College Match. QuestBridge's partner colleges offer generous financial aid packages that cover 100% of demonstrated financial need, making them very affordable for low-income students.

# **Quest for Excellence Awards**

Mar The Quest for Excellence program is an innovative initiative for talented, low-income high school juniors and seniors, and serves as a powerful complement to the College Prep Scholarship and National College Match programs. Quest for Excellence Awards are designed to enhance educational exploration for qualified juniors and seniors with a range of backgrounds and interests.

## **Ventures Scholars Program**

# High School Students Interested in Pursuing Math- and Science-Based Careers

As a high school Ventures Scholar, you are provided with a variety of services. Your name will be shared with the Ventures Scholars Program Consortium, a membership of over 200 member colleges and universities interested in helping you achieve your career goals. You can learn about math and science careers simply by contacting the member professional associations. All Ventures Scholars can download their personalized certificate of recognition. Some of the member institutions request the certificate when granting fee waivers to Ventures Scholars. Most Ventures Scholars include their certificate along with the college application. You will receive a biweekly e-mail newsletter for high school Ventures Scholars that provides continuously updated information on a broad array of topics and resources about the college planning process and VSP consortium members.

#### **Posse Foundation**

College Scholarships for Public High School Seniors who live in Atlanta, Boston, Chicago, Houston, Los Angeles, Miami, New Orleans, New York and Washington, D.C.

Posse identifies public high school students with extraordinary academic and leadership potential who may be overlooked by traditional college selection processes. Posse extends to these students the opportunity to pursue personal and academic excellence by placing them in supportive, multicultural teams—Posses—of 10 students. Posse partner colleges and universities award Posse Scholars four-year, full-tuition leadership scholarships.

## American Society for Engineering Education — Fellowship Programs

# Science and Engineering Apprenticeship Program (SEAP) - U.S. Army

Apr SEAP is designed so that students can apprentice in fields of their choice with experienced scientists and engineers.

This opportunity provides students with valuable experience needed to make informed career decisions. Students apprentice with their mentors on mutually agreed upon projects. At Army Research facilities, the students apprentice in a professional research laboratory setting and learn how their research can benefit the Army as well as the civilian community.

# Science and Engineering Apprenticeship Program (SEAP) - U.S. Navy

Dec The program is an extracurricular science education program, which enables students to experience science in a real laboratory setting. Students receive a stipend to participate in one week-, two week- and four-week long programs, depending on student grade and program site. Programs offered at different sites are unique.

# Gains in the Education of Mathematics and Science (GEMS) - U.S. Army

Mar This program is intended for high school students who have completed at least Grade 9. SEAP is an eight week summer research opportunity at participating ONR laboratories. Applicants must be 16 years of age for most Laboratories and U.S. citizens. A competitive stipend is available. The application cycle is from October to January.

# <u>U.S. Centers for Disease Control and Prevention (CDC)</u> — Opportunities for Students and College Graduates CDC Disease Detective Camp for Upcoming High School Juniors and Seniors

Apr 3 CDC Disease Detective Camp is a week-long day camp for rising high school juniors and seniors that exposes students to epidemiology, the field of public health and the diverse career opportunities within the field of public health. Two separate, but identical iterations of the camp are held each summer.

## Pathways Program

Summer student employment for high school, college and graduate students. The Pathways Programs offer clear paths to Federal internships for students from high school through post-graduate school and to careers for recent graduates, and provide meaningful training and career development opportunities for individuals who are at the beginning of their Federal service.

# **Jack Kent Cooke Foundation**

# Young Scholars (High-Achieving Youth with Financial Need)

Mar The Young Scholars Program provides the most personalized, generous scholarship experience in the nation. The Foundation works closely with Scholars and their families to construct a tailored educational program that includes, but is not limited to, support for summer programs, distance learning courses, and music and art instruction. Some Young Scholars attend a private school if none of their public school options adequately serve their academic potential; however, many stay in their public schools.

#### **Smithsonian Institution Latino Center**

# Young Ambassadors Program

Apr 7 For Graduating High School Seniors with an Interest and Commitment to Disciplines in the Arts, Sciences, or Humanities as it Pertains to Latino Communities and Cultures.

#### **Community Foundation for Greater New Haven**

# Milton Fisher Scholarship for Innovation and Creativity

Apr This scholarship is not a traditional scholarship focused on rewarding academic achievement and financial need. Its specific goal is to reward and encourage innovative and creative problem solving. The Scholarship aims to honor these students and to help make their higher education goals more accessible. Open to residents of all US states who will be attending college in NY or CT and also to residents of NY or CT who will be attending college anywhere in the United States.

## **Nordstrom**

# College Scholarships for High School Juniors in Selected Areas

May Nordstrom awards \$10,000 scholarships to 80 outstanding high school students to help them achieve their dreams of going to college. The Nordstrom Scholarship recognizes students across the country for their exceptional scholastic achievement and community involvement.

# **Institute for Educational Advancement**

# Caroline D. Bradley Scholarships for High School Students

May This prestigious award offers scholarship support, academic guidance and the opportunity to develop lifelong connections with a unique peer network. Caroline D. Bradley Scholars receive a four-year high school scholarship that covers day student tuition or an approved alternative educational program. The award does not cover boarding expense. Textbooks may be covered based on need.

## **Siemens Foundation** — *Programs*

<u>Siemens Math, Science and Technology Competition for High School Students</u> — *Up to \$100,000 College Scholarships* 

Sep The Siemens Competition in Math, Science & Technology recognizes remarkable talent early on, fostering individual growth for high school students who are willing to challenge themselves through science research.

Through this competition, students have an opportunity to achieve national recognition for science research projects that they complete in high school.

#### **Carson Scholars Fund**

# College Scholarships

Dec The Carson Scholars Fund awards college scholarships to students in grades 4-11 who excel academically and are dedicated to serving their communities. Scholarship winners receive the honor of being named "Carson Scholars" and are awarded an Olympic-sized medal and a trophy for their school to celebrate their accomplishments.

## U.S. Environmental Protection Agency — Environmental Education

#### President's Environmental Youth Awards (PEYA)

Dec The PEYA program promotes awareness of our nation's natural resources and encourages positive community involvement. It recognizes young people across the U.S. for protecting our nation's air, water, land, and ecology.

## **Massachusetts Institute of Technology (MIT)**

# MITES Program for High School Juniors

Feb The MITES Program is a rigorous six-week residential, academic enrichment summer program for talented high school students who are interested in studying and exploring careers in science and engineering.

# U.S. National Institutes of Health (NIH) — Training Programs in the Biomedical Sciences

Summer Internship Program in Biomedical Research (SIP) — \$1,700 to \$2,200/mo.

Mar The Summer Internship Program is for students who will be sixteen years of age or older at the time they begin the program and who are currently enrolled at least half-time in high school or an accredited U.S. college or university as undergraduate, graduate, or professional students. Students who have been accepted into a college or university program may also apply.

#### **American Museum of Natural History**

# Young Naturalist Awards

Mar The Young Naturalist Awards is an inquiry-based science competition for students in grades 7-12 to promote participation and communication in science.

# **Children's Scholarship Fund**

## Transfer from Public to Private School Scholarships

The Children's Scholarship Fund aims to maximize educational opportunity for all children: for those in need by offering tuition assistance in grades K-8 for alternatives to faltering conventional schools, and for all children by supporting and cultivating education reform and parental choice efforts.

#### Davidson Institute for Talent Development — Programs and Scholarships

Free support services for profoundly gifted students ages 5 to 18 in educational advocacy, talent and interest development, and peer connections

1st of The Davidson Young Scholars Program provides FREE services designed to nurture and support profoundly gifted mo. young people. Students and their parents receive assistance - free consulting services, an online community, annual get-togethers, ambassador program, free guidebooks.

#### **Intel Education Initiative** — *Competitions*

# Intel International Science and Engineering Fair

Each year, approximately 7 million high school students around the globe develop original research projects and present their work at local science competitions with the hope of making it to the Intel International Science and Engineering Fair, a program of Society for Science & the Public. Only the best and brightest-1,600 winners of local, regional, state, and national competitions-are invited to participate in this week-long celebration of science,

technology, engineering, and math. At the event, these young innovators share ideas, showcase cutting-edge research, and compete for more than USD 4 million in awards and scholarships.

## **Intel Science Talent Search for High School Seniors**

Each year, more than 1,700 seniors attending American high schools conduct original research projects and present their work in the country's oldest, most prestigious pre-college science competition: the Intel Science Talent Search, a program of Society of Science & the Public. Forty of these young innovators are chosen as finalists and invited to participate in a nearly week-long event in Washington, D.C., where they compete for over USD 1.25 million in awards and scholarships.

#### **William Randolph Hearst Foundations**

# <u>United States Senate Youth Program and College Scholarships for High School Juniors or Seniors</u>

Student leaders will spend a week in Washington experiencing their national government in action. Student delegates will hear major policy addresses by Senators, cabinet members, officials from the Departments of State and Defense and directors of other federal agencies, as well as participate in a meeting with a Justice of the U.S. Supreme Court.

# Biology, Environmental Sciences And Agriculture Scholarships

# U.S. Environmental Protection Agency (EPA) — Fellowships and Scholarships

<u>Greater Research Opportunities (GRO) Fellowships for Undergraduate Environmental Study — Up to \$20,700/yr plus \$8,600 internship</u>

May Eligible students will receive support for their junior and senior years of undergraduate study and for an internship at an EPA facility during the summer between their junior and senior years.

# Science to Achieve Results (STAR) Fellowships for Graduate Environmental Study

May Graduate fellowships for master's and doctoral level students in environmental fields of study.

# A National Student Design Competition for Sustainability Focusing on People, Prosperity and the Planet

Dec EPA's P3: People, Prosperity, and the Planet-Program is a unique college competition for designing solutions for a sustainable future. P3 offers students quality hands-on experience that brings their classroom learning to life. The competition has two phases. For the first phase of the competition, teams are awarded a \$15,000 grant to develop their idea. They bring the design in April to the National Sustainable Design Expo in Washington DC to compete for the P3 Award and a grant of \$90,000 to take their design to real world application.

#### Grants and Fellowships

Grants and fellowship information.

# Internships, Fellowships, and Student Programs

Numerous opportunities are available within EPA for students to gain vital career experience while contributing to the mission of protecting human health and safeguarding the environment. Internships, fellowships and other opportunities are available in Washington, D.C., laboratories, and at regional EPA locations nationwide.

# <u>Smithsonian Institution</u> — Fellowship and Internship Opportunities

<u>Smithsonian Tropical Research Institute Postdoctoral Fellowships</u> — \$45,000 per year

Jan Disciplines include ecology, anthropology, paleontology, paleoecology, evolutionary biology, molecular
 phylogenetics, biogeography, animal behavior, neurobiology, soils sciences, and physiology of tropical plants and animals.

## Smithsonian Garden Internship Opportunities

Feb 1 Fellowships support full-time independent, thesis and dissertation research based at Smithsonian Gardens office in Washington, D.C.

Nov 1

# <u>Link Foundation Graduate Fellowships in the Marine Sciences</u> \$6,500

Feb Interns will learn skills in a broad range of horticultural endeavors from SI's expert professional staff and can provide a strong practical background to emerging professionals hoping to enter the public gardening world.

# <u>Smithsonian Biodiversity Genomics Postdoctoral Fellowship Program</u> \$48,000 per year

Dec

1 The program promotes collaborative research in these fields involving comparative genomic approaches such as phylogenomics, population genomics, metagenomics or transcriptomics, and have a component that involves significant bioinformatics analysis. Applicants must propose to conduct research in-residence for a period of 12 to

24 months. Applicants must have completed or be near completion of the Ph.D. Recipients who have not completed the Ph.D. at the time of application must provide proof of completion of the degree before the fellowship begins.

# American Society for Microbiology (ASM) — Student Fellowships

## ASM Undergraduate Research Fellowships

Feb A 10-12 week summer program for students to conduct microbiology-related research with an ASM member at the student's undergraduate institution. Requires joint application from student and faculty sponsor.

## ASM/CDC Postdoctoral Research Fellowship Program

Feb The goal of ASM/CDC Fellowship is to support the development of new approaches, methodologies and knowledge in infectious disease prevention and control in areas within the public health mission of the CDC. The fellowship allows one to perform research in residence headquartered at a Centers for Disease Control and Prevention (CDC) location. Eligible fields of study include: bacterial and mycotic diseases, viral and rickettsial infections. nosocomial infections, hiv/aids, vector-borne infectious diseases, and parasitic diseases.

# ASM Robert D. Watkins Graduate Research Fellowships

May Three-year tenure for senior-level graduate students from historically excluded and underrepresented groups to conduct research in microbiology.

# International Fellowships for Africa, Asia, Latin America and the Caribbean

These grants offer fellowships to promising young investigators in resource limited nations who are within five years of obtaining, or are in the process of obtaining, their Masters, PhD, or other equivalent academic degree, and who are working in any of the microbiology disciplines.

#### **Graduate and Postdoctoral Opportunities**

Senior level Ph.D. students and early career postdoctoral scientists.

# ASM Undergraduate Research Capstone Program

Dec An 10-12 week summer program for students from underrepresented and historically excluded groups to conduct microbiology-related research with an ASM member at a sponsoring institution.

## University of Washington, Friday Harbor Laboratories — Fellowships and Scholarships

# Research Apprenticeships in Marine Research for Undergraduates and Post-Baccalaureates

Jan Applications are welcome from undergraduates, post-baccalaureates or graduate students from any institution,
25 worldwide. Applicants do not need to be currently enrolled at the University of Washington or any other university
Feb or college.
1

Jul 1

## Blinks Summer Fellowships in Marine Research

Mar The awards link undergraduate students with scientist-mentors as collaborators in marine science research projects.

<u>U.S. National Oceanic and Atmospheric Administration (NOAA)</u> — <u>Student Internships and Scholarships</u>

<u>Ernest F. Hollings College Scholarships in Oceanic and Atmospheric Science, Research, Technology, and Education</u>
— <u>Up to a maximum of \$8,000 per year plus a 10-week, full-time summer internship</u>

Provide successful undergraduate applicants with awards that include academic assistance for full-time study during the 9-month academic year; a 10-week, full-time internship position during the summer at a NOAA facility; and, if reappointed, academic assistance for full-time study during a second 9-month academic year.

# <u>Sea Grant Office and NOAA Fisheries Graduate Fellowships in Population Dynamics and Marine Resource Economics - — \$38,500 per year</u>

Jan Ph.D. candidates interested in the population dynamics of living marine resources and the development and implementation of quantitative methods for assessing their status can receive up to three years of funding. Ph.D. students in marine resource economics, concentrating on the conservation and management of living marine resources, can receive two years of funding.

# Coastal Services Center Coastal Management Fellowships — \$34,000 per year

Jan Provide on-the-job education and training opportunities in coastal resource management and policy for postgraduate students.

# Dean John A. Knauss Marine Policy Fellowships — \$45,000

Mar Provide a unique educational experience to students who have an interest in ocean, coastal and Great Lakes resources and in the national policy decisions affecting those resources.

# NOAA Coral Reef Management Fellowships

Jul Applicants typically have a master's degree and two years of experience or a bachelor's degree and four years of experience. Jurisdictions may require additional or alternate skills, such as outreach and education experience. Although most applicants hold either Bachelor's or Master's degrees, applicants holding a PhD or JD are welcome to submit an application for consideration.

# Dr. Nancy Foster Graduate Scholarships in Oceanography, Marine Biology and Maritime Archaeology — Up to \$42,000

Dec The scholarship program recognizes outstanding scholarship and encourages independent graduate level research -- particularly by female and minority students -- in oceanography, marine biology and maritime archaeology (including all science, engineering, social science and resource management of ocean and coastal areas).

# National Research Council (NRC) — Research Associateship Programs

#### Postdoctoral Research Associateship Programs for Scientists and Engineers

Nov Tenable at U.S. Laboratories and NASA Research Centers. The mission of the NRC Research Associateship Programs (RAP) is to promote excellence in scientific and technological research conducted by the U.S. May government through the administration of programs offering graduate, postdoctoral, and senior level research opportunities at sponsoring federal laboratories and affiliated institutions.

Aug 1 Nov

# **Rocky Mountain Conservancy**

# Graduate Fellowships at the Rocky Mountain National Park — \$8,000 plus up to \$3,000 for expenses

Feb The award is designed to encourage highly qualified graduate students to apply their talents to conducting research in the national parks. It is also intended to convey the importance of communicating park research to the public.

# <u>American Museum of Natural History — Fellowship and Grant Opportunities</u>

## **International Graduate Student Fellowships**

The Center for Biodiversity and Conservation (CBC) created the International Graduate Student Fellowship Program in 1994 to train scientists from regions of the world where biodiversity is richest and most threatened. The program focuses on training in ecology, evolutionary biology, and conservation biology in tandem with the CBC's Network of Conservation Educators and Practitioners (NCEP), and aims to equip students with the practical and theoretical training they will need to address environmental problems in their home countries.

#### Graduate Student and Postdoctoral Fellowships

Dedicated to the training of Ph.D. candidates in those scientific disciplines practiced at the Museum.

#### **Undergraduate Fellowships**

Every summer AMNH hosts two National Science Foundation Research Experience for Undergraduate Site grants: Research in Evolution and Systematics, and Earth Sciences and Astrophysics. In these programs, undergraduate students who have completed their freshman through junior years may work with AMNH scientists on one of an array of potential research projects that are available each year.

#### **National Hydropower Association**

#### Past Presidents' Legacy Scholarships —\$2,500

Feb Awards for college juniors & seniors and graduate students in engineering, sciences (biology, fisheries, and hydrology), communications, or environmental studies.

#### **Mote Marine Laboratory**

#### Research Experiences for Undergraduates (REU)

Feb The awards offer paid research training experiences in estuarine science to undergraduate students during a 10-week summer period.

#### **Internships**

Mote Internships allow college students and recent college graduates to gain valuable hands-on experience in ocean science research, conservation, education and support services.

# **Hudson River Foundation**

#### Tibor T. Polgar Summer Fellowships for Undergraduate and Graduate Students

Feb This program provides a summertime grant and limited research funds for college students (both undergraduate and graduate students are eligible) to conduct research on the Hudson River.

#### Mark B. Bain Graduate Fellowships

Mar The Foundation will award research fellowships to advanced graduate students conducting research on the Hudson River system.

# University of New Hampshire Marine Program — Fellowships

#### Summer Undergraduate Research Fellowships

Mar Designed to create research experiences for undergraduate students who are interested in pursuing graduate work.

SURF is aimed primarily at students who are working toward a degree in science, engineering, or math and are completing their junior year.

#### The Brian E. Doyle Undergraduate Marine Extension Fellowship — \$3,000

Apr Applications will be accepted from students beginning their junior or senior year at any four-year undergraduate institution in New Hampshire. Fisheries and aquaculture, marine literacy, coastal communities and climate adaptation, healthy coastal ecosystems, communications

# **Wildlife Conservation Society**

Research Fellowships — *Up to* \$20,000

- Jul Designed to build capacity for the next generation of conservationists by supporting individual field research
- 16 projects that have a clear application to the conservation of threatened wildlife and wild places.

# National Wildlife Federation — Campus Ecology

# EcoLeader Graduate Student Research Fellowships

- Feb NWF is seeking graduate students in the U.S. to conduct and test market research and business planning and assist
- with content development for the new NWF EcoLeaders online community. There will be two track options for the Fellowship, Market Research and Content Development.

#### Stanford University, Aldo Leopold Leadership Program

# Aldo Leopold Fellowships for Environmental Scientists — Unpaid

Apr Media and policy specialists, leading researchers, and business leaders participate as trainers in hands on sessions in which the Fellows are taught methods to engage and communicate with a variety of audiences.

### Bermuda Institute of Ocean Sciences (BIOS) — Education

#### Research Experiences for Undergraduates

May This program provides recipients with the opportunity to design and conduct intensive, hands-on research projects under faculty supervision and mentorship in several active and ongoing research areas.

# American Academy of Underwater Sciences (AAUS) — Scholarships and Internships

Graduate Scholarships — \$1,500 to \$3,000

Jun Awards for students engaged in, or planning to begin, a research project in which diving is or will be used as a principal research tool or studying diving science.

### **Internships**

#### **Brown and Caldwell**

#### **Scholarships for Students**

Apr Awards in civil, chemical or environmental engineering or one of the environmental sciences (e.g., geology,

15 hydrogeology, biology, ecology, public health, industrial hygiene or toxicology).

#### **Earth Island Institute**

#### Brower Youth Awards in Environmental Conservation, Preservation and Restoration

The Brower Youth Awards recognize young people in North America for their outstanding activism and achievements in the fields of environmental and environmental justice advocacy.

# Earthwatch Institute — Education

#### Student Fellowships for High School Rising Sophomores and Juniors

Earthwatch student fellows get to join one of Earthwatch's expeditions around the world to work with top scientists and other students in the field.

#### Fellowships for Elementary, Middle, and High School Educators and Administrators

Get out of the classroom and head into the field to learn about cutting edge research and conservation efforts, to develop professional skills, and to make a difference for our shared environment.

#### Entomological Society of America — Awards, Honors, and Scholarships

Awards and Scholarships

Each year the Entomological Society of America, Certification Corporation, and the Entomological Foundation provide annual honors and awards to recognize scientists, educators, and students, who have distinguished themselves through their contributions to entomology.

### **Environmental Leadership Program**

#### National Fellowships

Jul The National Fellowship Program offers intensive leadership and skills training, national networking opportunities, and time for personal and professional reflection. Through immersive retreats, the curriculum helps emerging leaders hone their leadership styles, improve their strategy and organizational development, and strengthen their outreach to diverse constituencies. With the assistance of professional coaching and peer learning, each Fellow develops a Personal Leadership Plan. The National Fellowship consists of two multi-day retreats and access to 4 hours of professional coaching.

#### Regional Fellowships

The Regional Fellowship Programs offers intensive leadership and skill training, regional and national networking opportunities, and time for personal and professional reflection. Through retreats and optional additional trainings, the curriculum helps emerging leaders hone their leadership styles, improve their strategy and organizational development, and strengthen their outreach to diverse constituencies.

#### **U.S. Department of Agriculture**

# Food and Agricultural Sciences National Needs Graduate Fellowships

Aug Proposals may be submitted by all U.S. colleges and universities that confer a master's or doctoral degree in at least one area of the food and agricultural sciences targeted for national needs fellowships.

#### **Internships and Special Programs**

Student employees gain valuable professional experience as an assistant in scientific, professional, technical, and/or administrative areas.

#### U.S. Department of Energy — Internships, Fellowships and Scholarships

# DOE Office of Science Graduate Student Research (SCGSR) Program

Apr The goal of the Office of Science Graduate Student Research (SCGSR) program is to prepare graduate students for science, technology, engineering, or mathematics (STEM) careers critically important to the DOE Office of Science mission, by providing graduate thesis research opportunities at DOE laboratories. The SCGSR program provides supplemental awards to outstanding U.S. graduate students to pursue part of their graduate thesis research at a DOE laboratory in areas that address scientific challenges central to the Office of Science mission. The research opportunity is expected to advance the graduate students' overall doctoral thesis while providing access to the expertise, resources, and capabilities available at the DOE laboratories.

#### **Welder Wildlife Foundation**

<u>Fellowships for Graduate Students in Wildlife Ecology and Related Areas</u> \$1400.00/mo. for M.S. candidates and \$1600.00/mo. for Ph.D. candidates

Oct The program is designed to promote the education of exceptionally qualified students and provide research information to manage wildlife populations.

# <u>The Hertz Foundation</u> — Graduate Fellowship Awards

Graduate Fellowships in Applied Physical, Biological and Engineering Sciences — Up to \$37,000

Oct

Eligible applicants for Hertz Fellowships must be students of the applied physical, biological and engineering sciences who are citizens or permanent residents of the United States of America, and who are willing to morally commit to make their skills available to the United States in time of national emergency. College seniors wishing to

pursue the Ph.D. degree in any of the fields of particular interest to the Foundation, as well as graduate students already in the process of doing so, may apply.

# **Environmental Research and Education Foundation Future Farmers of America** — *Grants and Scholarships*

# Scholarships for College and Graduate School

Feb Each year the National FFA Organization awards approximately \$2 million in scholarships designed to fit the diversity of its applicants. Scholarships are sponsored by businesses and individuals through the National FFA Foundation and are given for a wide variety of experiences, career goals and higher education plans.

# <u>Feeding Tomorrow - the Foundation of the Institute of Food Technologists — Programs</u>

College Scholarships and Graduate Fellowships in Food Science and Technology

Freshman, sophomore, junior, senior, and graduate scholarships.

#### University of Puerto Rico, Río Piedras

Natural-Human Systems in the Urbanizing Tropics: Graduate Traineeships

Apr Integrative Graduate Education and Research Traineeship (IGERT). Research may cover climate, water, food security, renewable energy, waste management, biodiversity, or urban system services, among other topics. Award includes \$30,000/year for two years; \$2,000 for travel and education materials; office, computer and software usage; reserved space in all special courses and workshops.

#### **International Crane Foundation** — Get Involved

#### **Crane Conservation Internships**

Internships are usually six months in length and are open on a competitive basis.

#### United States-Israel Binational Agricultural Research and Development Fund (BARD)

Graduate and Postdoctoral Fellowships in Agricultural Research

Projects cover all phases of agricultural research and development, including integrated projects and strategic or applied research.

# **University of California, Davis**

#### **Postdoctoral Training**

Each postdoctoral scholar is encouraged to choose one or two faculty mentors in addition to his/her primary mentor, to offer broader professional guidance.

#### Math And Physical Science Scholarships

#### Alfred P. Sloan Foundation

# Sloan Research Fellowships in Chemistry, Physics, Mathematics, Computer Science, Economics, or Neuroscience

Sep The Sloan Research Fellowships seek to stimulate fundamental research by early-career scientists and scholars of outstanding promise. These two-year fellowships are awarded yearly to researchers in recognition of distinguished performance and a unique potential to make substantial contributions to their field.

#### Woods Hole Oceanographic Institution (WHOI) — Fellowships

#### Postdoctoral Scholar Program

Jan Eighteen-month Postdoctoral Scholar awards are offered annually to recipients of new or recent doctorates in the fields of chemistry, engineering, geology, geophysics, mathematics, meteorology, physics, and biology as well as oceanography.

#### Summer Student Fellowship Program

Feb A research project is at the heart of the Summer Student and Minority Fellowship programs. All fellows are expected to work on a project selected in collaboration with their sponsor(s) that will provide meaningful results in one summer's work. Research topics span a broad spectrum of topics throughout WHOI's science departments, and the Woods Hole Field Station of the United States Geological Survey (USGS).

#### Geophysical Fluid Dynamics Fellowships

Feb Graduate students and researchers from a variety of fields who share a common interest in the nonlinear dynamics of rotating, stratified fluids share an intense ten-week research experience, and vigorous discussions of concepts that span different disciplines.

#### **Guest Student Program**

The Woods Hole Oceanographic Institution offers a limited number of guest student appointments in our laboratories on a year-round basis for full-time graduate and undergraduate students in conjunction with their studies. Advanced high school students enrolled in Upper Cape and Island schools may also be eligible for a guest student appointment.

# <u>U.S. Department of Energy</u> — Internships, Fellowships and Scholarships

#### Science Undergraduate Laboratory Internships (SULI)

Jan 9 The SULIs program encourages undergraduate students to pursue science, technology, engineering, and mathematics (STEM) careers by providing research experiences at the Department of Energy (DOE) laboratories. Selected students participate as interns appointed at one of 17 participating DOE laboratories/facilities. They perform research, under the guidance of laboratory staff scientists or engineers, on projects supporting the DOE mission.

#### <u>Krell Institute</u> — Fellowships

# <u>U.S.</u> Department of Energy National Nuclear Security Administration Stewardship Science Graduate Fellowships (SSGF)

Jan The Department of Energy National Nuclear Security Administration Stewardship Science Graduate Fellowship
 (SSGF) Program provides opportunities to students pursuing a Ph.D. in areas such as high-energy density physics, low-energy nuclear science, or properties of materials under extreme conditions.

#### U.S. Department of Energy Computational Science Graduate Fellowships (CSGF)

Jan The Department of Energy Computational Science Graduate Fellowship (DOE CSGF) program provides
 outstanding benefits and opportunities to students pursuing a PhD in scientific or engineering disciplines with an emphasis in high-performance computing.

# **Chemical Heritage Foundation** — Fellowships and Travel Grants

# Long-Term Dissertation and Postdoctoral Fellowships

Jan Applicants for dissertation fellowships must be graduate students whose Ph.D. dissertations have been accepted by

their respective university departments. Applicants for postdoctoral fellowships must have their Ph.D. in hand before the July prior to the start of the fellowship.

# <u>Smithsonian Institution</u> — Fellowship and Internship Opportunities

National Air and Space Museum Fellowships in Aerospace History and Earth & Planetary Sciences

Jan The National Air and Space Museum offers a variety of fellowships for predoctoral, postdoctoral, and non-academic researchers.

# Harvard-Smithsonian Center for Astrophysics Postdoctoral Fellowships

Oct Awarded to an outstanding researcher displaying significant promise in theory, observation, instrumentation, and/or laboratory experiments.

# <u>U.S. National Oceanic and Atmospheric Administration (NOAA)</u> — Student Internships and Scholarships Coastal Services Center Coastal Management Fellowships — \$34,000 per year

Jan Provide on-the-job education and training opportunities in coastal resource management and policy for postgraduate students.

#### National Research Council (NRC) — Research Associateship Programs

# Postdoctoral Research Associateship Programs for Scientists and Engineers

Nov Tenable at U.S. Laboratories and NASA Research Centers. The mission of the NRC Research Associateship Programs (RAP) is to promote excellence in scientific and technological research conducted by the U.S.

May government through the administration of programs offering graduate, postdoctoral, and senior level research opportunities at sponsoring federal laboratories and affiliated institutions.

Aug 1 Nov

#### **Space Telescope Science Institute (STScI)** — *Fellowships*

# Summer Student Program for Undergraduates

Jan Each summer, the STScI brings highly motivated college students to Baltimore, Maryland, for a Space Astronomy
 Summer Program.

# Hubble Postdoctoral Fellowships in Astronomy, Physics and Related Disciplines

Nov The fellowship supports outstanding postdoctoral scientists whose research is broadly related to NASA Cosmic

Origins scientific goals as addressed by any of the missions in that program: the Herschel Space Observatory, Hubble Space Telescope (HST), James Webb Space Telescope (JWST), Stratospheric Observatory for Infrared Astronomy (SOFIA), and the Spitzer Space Telescope.

#### Giacconi Postdoctoral Fellowships in Astronomy, Physics and Related Disciplines

Nov The Giacconi Fellowship provides up to three years of support for outstanding postdoctoral researchers.

#### **Washington Society of Certified Public Accountants**

#### Accounting Student Scholarships

The Washington CPA Foundation awards scholarships annually to qualified accounting majors attending an Feb accredited 4-year university in the state of Washington.

#### **Geological Society of America**

#### Undergraduate and Graduate Research Grants

Feb Grants to encourage and support studies by students either in their senior year of their undergraduate studies, or at the Masters or Ph.D. level.

# <u>American Meteorological Society</u> — Scholarships and Fellowships

# AMS Minority Scholarships — Up to \$3,000

Feb The scholarships help support the college educations of minority students traditionally underrepresented in the sciences, especially Hispanic, Native American, and Black/African American students, who intend to pursue careers in the atmospheric or related oceanic and hydrologic sciences. Minority students who will be entering their freshman year of college in the fall are eligible to apply.

# AMS Graduate Fellowships in the History of Science

Feb oceanic or hydrologic sciences. The Fellowship carries a stipend and will support one year of dissertation research.

#### AMS Freshman Undergraduate Scholarships

Feb The scholarship program is open to all high school students and designed to encourage study in the atmospheric and related sciences.

#### **AMS** Graduate Fellowships

Feb A stipend will be presented to each fellowship recipient for a nine-month period in the academic year. In addition, fellowship recipients will receive partial travel support to attend the AMS Annual Meeting.

#### AMS Undergraduate Named Scholarships

Applicants must be entering their final year of undergraduate study in the fall and provide evidence of acceptance as a full-time student at an accredited U.S. institution at the time of the award.

# Fermi National Accelerator Laboratory — Fellowships

#### Lee Teng Undergraduate Internship in Accelerator Science and Engineering for Undergraduate Students

Feb The Lee Teng Undergraduate Internship in Accelerator Science and Engineering has been established by the Illinois

8 Accelerator Institute to attract undergraduate students into the exciting and challenging world of particle accelerator physics and technology. A limited number of highly qualified students will be selected into this program. The program includes a generous stipend and all travel expenses.

## **Thesis Awards**

Mar To qualify the thesis must have been submitted as partial fulfillment of the Ph.D. requirements, be written in English, and must have been submitted in electronic form to the Fermilab Publications Office in accordance with Fermilab policy.

#### John Bardeen Engineering Fellowship for Master's and Doctoral Engineering Students

Provides full-time entry-level opportunities for outstanding engineering graduates who are interested in working in a cutting edge research environment. Fermilab provides opportunities in the fields of electrical, electronics, radio frequency systems, power distribution, magnets, RF cavities, mechanical, materials science and cryogenic engineering.

# Peoples Postdoctoral Fellowships in Accelerator Physicists and Accelerator-Related Technology Specialists

Nov Candidates must either have received within the prior three years a Ph.D. in accelerator physics or acceleratorrelated technology. Post-doctoral experience is not required or have received within the prior five years a Ph.D. in high energy physics or a related field. Candidates are normally expected to have at least three years of post-doctoral experience in high energy physics or a related field.

#### Robert R. Wilson Postdoctoral Fellowships in Particle Physics

Nov The successful candidate will be a Ph.D. physicists of exceptional talent with at least two years of post-doctoral experience. Provides unique opportunities for self-directed research in experimental physics through work on the Fermilab particle physics experiment of the candidate's choice. The Fermilab experimental program includes collider physics, studies of neutrino, muon, and astroparticle physics, as well as R&D and planning for experiments at future colliders and high intensity beams.

# Lederman Postdoctoral Fellowships in Experimental Physics

Dec In general, candidates should either have obtained a Ph.D. in an appropriate field within a year before the deadline for accepting applications or expect to obtain a Ph.D. in an appropriate field within approximately 6 months after the deadline for accepting applications. Postdoctoral candidates who have demonstrated outstanding ability in research and who in addition have a strong interest in education and outreach. Lederman Fellows have a choice in the broad progam of experimental work at Fermilab which includes research at the LHC, neutrino physics, astroparticle physics, and research at the Intensity Frontier.

# <u>U.S. National Institute of Standards and Technology (NIST)</u> <u>Educational Activities</u>

Summer Undergraduate Research Fellowships (SURF), Boulder, Colorado

Feb Students must be undergraduates at a U.S. university or college with a scientific major, have a G.P.A. of 3.0/4.0 or better (recommended), and are considering pursuing a graduate degree (M.S. or Ph.D.). Students with physics, material science, chemistry, applied mathematics, computer science, or engineering majors are always encouraged to apply.

# Summer Undergraduate Research Fellowships (SURF), Gaithersburg, Maryland

Feb You and your school are invited to participate in the Boulder, Colorado, Laboratories' NIST Summer Undergraduate
Research Fellowship (SURF) program for students majoring in science, mathematics, and engineering.
Opportunities are available in the fields of Chemical Science and Technology, Electronics and Electrical
Engineering, Information Technology, Materials Science & Engineering, and Physics.

# Southern California Earthquake Center

<u>University of New Hampshire</u>, <u>Marine Program</u>—*Fellowship & Scholarship Opportunities*Marine Sciences Fellowships

Mar These fellowships are offered through and coordinated by the Marine Program on behalf of the following UNH/NOAA Centers of Excellence and Cooperative Institutes.

#### **Harbor Branch Oceanographic Institution**

# Marine Science and Engineering Summer Internships

Mar Open to qualified undergraduate and graduate students, the 10-week program is designed to provide hands-on experience in a research environment in areas that include aquaculture, biomedical marine research, marine biology, marine mammal research, marine natural product chemistry, marine microbiology, ocean engineering, ocean technology, and oceanography.

#### American Institute of Certified Public Accountants — Legacy Scholars

AICPA/Accountemps Student Scholarships for Undergraduate or Graduate-Level Degree Accounting-Related Majors

Apr The AICPA/Accountemps Student Scholarship program provides financial assistance to outstanding accounting students who demonstrate potential to become leaders in the CPA profession.

# AICPA Scholarship for Minority Accounting Students

Apr Provides financial awards to outstanding minority students to encourage their pursuit of accounting as a major and their ultimate entry into the profession.

John L. Carey Scholarships for Liberal Arts Degree Holders Pursuing Graduate Studies in Accounting

Apr Provides financial assistance to liberal arts and non-business degree holders who are pursuing both graduate studies in accounting and the CPA licensure. These awards are intended to encourage students with little or no previous accounting education to consider professional accounting careers.

# **Scholarship Opportunities**

Search dozens of scholarship opportunities to find the hidden cash that's out there waiting for you.

#### Camille and Henry Dreyfus Foundation — Programs and Awards

# Postdoctoral Program in Environmental Chemistry

Aug Applications are accepted from principal investigators who have well-established research efforts in environmental science or engineering. These research activities need not be located in traditional departments in the chemical sciences, and collaboration across departments and institutions is encouraged. The postdoctoral fellow is usually not already identified nor in the principal investigator's lab at the time of application.

#### **IBM**

#### IBM Ph.D. Fellowship Awards

Oct The IBM Ph.D. Fellowship Awards Program honors exceptional Ph.D. students who have an interest in solving problems that are important to IBM and fundamental to innovation in many academic disciplines and areas of study. These include: computer science and engineering, electrical and mechanical engineering, physical sciences (including chemistry, material sciences, and physics), mathematical sciences (including optimization), business sciences (including financial services, communication, and learning/knowledge), and service science, management, and engineering (SSME). Students must be nominated by a doctoral faculty member and enrolled full-time in a college or university Ph.D. program.

#### Herman Goldstine Fellowship for Postdoctoral Research in Mathematical and Computer Sciences

The Business Analytics and Mathematical Sciences Department of the IBM Thomas J. Watson Research Center invites applications for its Herman Goldstine Memorial Postdoctoral Fellowship for research in the mathematical and computer sciences. The fellowship provides scientists of outstanding ability an opportunity to advance their scholarship as resident department members at the Research Center. The Research Center is located in Westchester County, less than an hour north of New York City.

# **The Hertz Foundation** — Graduate Fellowship Awards

#### Graduate Fellowships in Applied Physical, Biological and Engineering Sciences — Up to \$37,000

Oct Eligible applicants for Hertz Fellowships must be students of the applied physical, biological and engineering sciences who are citizens or permanent residents of the United States of America, and who are willing to morally commit to make their skills available to the United States in time of national emergency. College seniors wishing to pursue the Ph.D. degree in any of the fields of particular interest to the Foundation, as well as graduate students already in the process of doing so, may apply.

# **National Center for Atmospheric Research**

<u>American Mathematical Society</u> — Fellowships and Scholarships

#### Centennial Fellowships

Dec The primary selection criterion for the Centennial Fellowship is the excellence of the candidate's research. A recipient of the fellowship shall have held his or her doctoral degree for at least three years and not more than twelve years at the inception of the award.

#### Fellowships and Stipends

Resources for funding and fellowships, other sources of funding.

# **U.S. Geological Survey**

Mendenhall Postdoctoral Research Fellowships

Dec Program provides an opportunity for postdoctoral fellows to conduct concentrated research in association with selected members of the USGS professional staff, often as a final element to their formal career preparation. The Program is also intended to provide research experiences that enhance their personal scientific stature and credentials. Mendenhall Fellows are appointed to the USGS for two years and receive full salary and benefits at the GS-12 level.

# American Society for Photogrammetry and Remote Sensing (ASPRS) Foundation

#### Awards and Scholarships

The ASPRS Foundation funds the awards and scholarships given annually by ASPRS.

#### American Statistical Association — Awards & Recognition

Awards and Scholarships

Research Fellowships and Grants

#### Be an Actuary

# **Actuarial Scholarships**

There are a number of opportunities for financial assistance available for students pursuing actuarial science.

# **Carnegie Institution of Washington**

#### **Summer Internships**

For undergraduate students pursuing a degree in geosciences, physics, chemistry, materials science, biology, astronomy or a related field.

# <u>Joint Institute for Laboratory Astrophysics (JILA)</u> — <u>Undergraduates, Graduate Students & Postdocs</u> <u>Undergraduate Students</u>

During the academic year, individual JILA scientists may opt to participate in CU's campus-wide Undergraduate Research Opportunities Program, or UROP. Through UROP, individual faculty members can invite one or more talented and motivated undergraduate CU science majors to participate in their research laboratory for one or more semesters. The students not only get involved in ground-breaking research, but they also get paid for participating in the program.

# **Graduate Students**

Graduate education is an integral part of JILA. Students work in a stimulating, collaborative environment with researchers from JILA and visitors from around the world. Students work in world-class facilities and have the option to participate in training courses in electronics, electron microscopy, computing, machining, and scientific writing.

#### Postdoctoral Research Associates

JILA supports an active postdoctoral research associates program for young scientists desiring advanced research training soon after being awarded a Ph.D. Appointments to the program are offered for durations of one year or more. Young researchers often undertake postdoctoral research to gain experience in a new field or expand their experience in applied research, theoretical analysis, or experimental research.

#### **Social Science Scholarships**

#### American Psychological Association — Scholarships, Grants, and Awards

#### **Doctoral Dissertation Awards**

Sep Applicants must be graduate students of psychology in good standing with their university, at a regionally accredited university or college located in the United States or Canada. Applicants must be enrolled full-time or working on their dissertation research for an equivalent of full-time enrollment regardless of actual registration status.

# <u>National Institute of Justice</u> — Fellowship Programs

#### **Graduate Research Fellowships**

Dec Provides assistance to universities for dissertation research support to outstanding doctoral students undertaking independent research on issues related to crime and justice.

# W.E.B. du Bois Fellowships

Dec Places particular emphasis on crime, violence and the administration of justice in diverse cultural contexts within the United States.

# Visiting Fellowships

Offers criminal justice professionals and researchers a unique opportunity to participate in research addressing criminal justice issues relevant to the work of NIJ and public policy.

# Association of American Geographers — Grants and Awards Programs

#### **Dissertation Research Grants**

Dec You are eligible to apply if you have been an AAG member for at least one year at the time you submit your application, you do not have a doctorate at the time of the award, and you will have completed all Ph.D. requirements except the dissertation by the end of the semester or term following approval of your award.

# $\underline{\textbf{Collegeville Institute for Ecumenical and Cultural Research}} - \underline{\textbf{Available Fellowships}}$

#### Resident Scholars

Jan Each resident scholar engages in an independent rhythm of reflection and writing, discernment and conversation.

Bringing together diverse traditions, cultures, disciplines, and projects, the participants form a scholarly and prayerful community.

# Woodrow Wilson National Fellowship Foundation — Fellowships

#### Thomas R. Pickering Graduate Foreign Affairs Fellowships

Jan For master's students Interested In the Foreign Service. Selects individuals seeking admission to graduate school for the following year. Attracts outstanding students who enroll in two-year master's degree programs in public policy, international affairs, public administration, or academic fields such as business, economics, political science, sociology, or foreign languages.

# Thomas R. Pickering Undergraduate Foreign Affairs Fellowships

Jan For outstanding college students interested in the foreign service. Seeks to recruit talented undergraduate students in
 their junior year of college, into academic programs relevant to international affairs, political and economic analysis, administration, management, and science policy.

# <u>Stanford University</u>, <u>Center for International Security and Cooperation</u>—*Fellowships* Pre/Postdoctoral Fellowships Related to Peace and International Security

Jan Pre- and post-doctoral scholars, junior faculty, policy practitioners, and, in special cases, mid-career professionals in journalism, law, the military, government, or international organizations, either from the U.S. or abroad. Scholars in

the natural sciences and engineering, and related fields who are pursuing significant science-based research and are interested in using their technical knowledge to do policy-relevant research in international security.

#### Council of American Overseas Research Centers (CAORC) — Fellowships

# Multi-Country Research Fellowship

Jan Supports advanced regional or trans-regional research in the humanities, social sciences, or allied natural sciences for U.S. doctoral candidates and scholars who have already earned their Ph.D. Preference will be given to candidates

examining comparative and/or cross-regional research. Applicants are eligible to apply as individuals or in teams.

# Mediterranean Regional Research Fellowship

Jan Enables pre- and early post-doctoral scholars to carry out research in the humanities and related social sciences in countries bordering the Mediterranean and served by American overseas research centers.

#### Coro

#### The Coro Fellowship in Public Affairs

Jan Applicants may include individuals who have recently completed their undergraduate or graduate degrees, as well as
those with several years of work experience. Coro Fellows are diverse, talented individuals committed to positive
change in their communities throughout their lives and careers. They are emerging innovators in business, policy
and government who demonstrate exceptional leadership through their accomplishments, curiosity and civic
involvement. Fellows are brought together by a common interest in creative leadership and civic engagement, and
building strong connections that will support them as they drive impact in their cities and organizations.

# <u>George Mason University</u>, <u>Institute for Humane Studies</u> — <u>Scholarships and Fellowships</u> Undergraduate or Graduate Fellowships in Humane Studies

Jan Humane Studies Fellowships are awarded to graduate students and outstanding undergraduates embarking on liberty-advancing careers in ideas. The fellowships support study in a variety of fields, including economics, philosophy, law, political science, history, and sociology.

#### Summer Graduate Research Fellowships in Research and Writing

The Summer Graduate Research Fellowship is a non-residential research and writing program that provides an opportunity to refine and complete a publishable scholarly article or thesis chapter that engages ideas within the classical liberal tradition.

#### **Internships and Job Opportunities**

Participate in an intensive public policy internship at an organization focused on state, federal, or single-issue policies. The journalism program offers paid internships in print, broadcast, new media, and investigative journalism at daily newspapers, major media outlets, and state policy think tanks across the country.

#### National Research Council (NRC) — Research Associateship Programs

<u>Postdoctoral Research Associateship Programs for Scientists and Engineers Tenable at U.S. Laboratories and NASA</u> Research Centers

Nov The mission of the NRC Research Associateship Programs (RAP) is to promote excellence in scientific and technological research conducted by the U. S. government through the administration of programs offering graduate, postdoctoral, and senior level research opportunities at sponsoring federal laboratories and affiliated institutions.

# <u>Monterey Institute for International Studies, Center for Nonproliferation Studies — Nonproliferation Education</u> <u>Harry Frank Guggenheim Foundation</u>

<u>Dissertation Fellowships to Increase Understanding of the Causes, Manifestations, and Control of Violence, Aggression, and Dominance</u>

Feb These fellowships are designed to contribute to the support of the doctoral candidate to enable him or her to complete the thesis in a timely manner and are only appropriate for students approaching the final year of their Ph.D. work.

# The Carter Center — Get Involved

<u>Internships in International Relations for Undergraduate Juniors and Seniors, Graduate Students, and Recent</u> Graduates

1 Jun 15

Mar

Carter Center interns come from around the world and make vital contributions to the Center's work. In turn, the Center provides a substantive learning experience that serves as a basis for interns to explore their career options and to attain professional skills.

Oct 15

# Society for the Psychological Study of Social Issues — Fellowships

# The James Marshall Public Policy Postdoctoral Fellowship

Mar The Marshall Fellowship is open to post-doctoral scientists from any discipline relevant to the psychological study of social issues. Applicants must hold a PhD or PsyD before the start of the fellowship and be a member of SPSSI. Candidates must demonstrate interest or involvement in the application of social science to social issues and policies, have a sound scientific background, and demonstrate sensitivity toward policy issues. Candidates should be interested in and knowledgeable about at least one current social issue such as homelessness, violence, adolescent pregnancy, child abuse, etc.

# Dalmas A. Taylor Memorial Summer Minority Policy Fellowship

Mar Provides an opportunity for a graduate student of color to work on public policy issues in Washington, DC.

Applicants must be currently enrolled and in good standing in an accredited graduate program in psychology or a related field. In addition they must be members of an ethnic minority group (including, but not limited to, African American, Alaskan Native, American Indian, Asian American, Hispanic, and Pacific Islander) and/or have demonstrated a commitment to a career with a focus on ethnic minority issues. Applicants should not have completed their graduate program by the time they begin the fellowship.

#### Applied Social Issues Internship

Apr Undergraduate seniors (rising seniors included), graduate students, and first-year post doctorates in psychology,
25 applied social science, and related disciplines are eligible to apply. Applicant must be a SPSSI member. To
encourage research that is conducted in cooperation with a community or government organization, public interest
group or other not-for-profit entity that will benefit directly from the project.

# **Mathematica Policy Research**

# Summer Fellowships: Pursuing Self-Directed, Issues-Oriented Research

Mar The program supports independent, self-directed research on economic or social problems that affect minority groups and individuals with disabilities. Students enrolled in a master's or Ph.D. program in public policy or a social science. Minority students and students with disabilities are encouraged to apply.

# <u>Open Society Foundations</u> — Grants, Scholarships and Fellowships <u>Duke-UNC Rotary Center for International Studies</u>

#### Rotary World Peace Scholarships for Graduate Studies in World Peace and Resolution of Conflicts

A strong commitment to international understanding and peace demonstrated through professional and academic Jul 1 achievements and personal and community service activities is required.

# **Rotary Foundation** — Create a Scholarship

#### Peace Fellowships

Jul 1 Rotary Peace Fellows are leaders promoting national and international cooperation, peace, and the successful resolution of conflict throughout their lives, in their careers, and through service activities. Fellows can earn either a master's degree in international relations, public administration, sustainable development, peace studies, conflict resolution, or a related field, or a professional development certificate in peace and conflict resolution.

#### The Impact Fund

#### U.S. National Science Foundation (NSF) — Find Funding

#### Biological Anthropology: Doctoral Dissertation Research Improvement Grants

Jul The Biological Anthropology Program supports multifaceted research which advances scientific knowledge of human biology and ecology, including understanding of our evolutionary history and mechanisms which have shaped human and nonhuman primate biological diversity. Supported research focuses on living and fossil forms of both human and nonhuman primates, addressing time scales ranging from the short-term to evolutionary, encompassing multiple levels of organization and analysis (molecular and organismal, to the population and ecosystem scales), and conducted in field, laboratory, and captive research environments.

#### <u>Cultural Anthropology: Doctoral Dissertation Research Improvement Grants</u>

Aug The primary objective of the Cultural Anthropology Program is to support basic scientific research on the causes, consequences, and complexities of human social and cultural variability. Anthropological research spans a wide gamut, and contemporary cultural anthropology is an arena in which diverse research traditions and methodologies are valid.

# <u>National Academy of Social Insurance</u>—Student Opportunities

# **U.S.** Department of State

<u>Humphrey Fellowships for Mid-Level Professionals from Designated Countries in Africa, Asia, Latin America, the Caribbean, the Middle East, and Eurasia</u>

Oct A year of professional enrichment in the United States for experienced professionals from designated countries undergoing development or political transition.

#### **Council for a Livable World**

# Herbert Scoville Jr. Peace Fellowships

Oct A highly-competitive national fellowship program that provides college graduates with the opportunity to gain a Washington perspective on key issues of peace and security.

#### **School of Advanced Research**

#### Resident Scholars Fellowships

Nov Nine-month Resident Scholar Fellowships are awarded to scholars who have completed their research and analysis in the social sciences, humanities, and Native arts and who need time to reflect, debate, and write. Two-month Summer Scholar Fellowships are awarded to scholars in the social sciences, humanities, and Native arts to pursue research or writing projects.

# **Social Science Research Council**—Fellowships and Grants

# International Dissertation Field Research Fellowships (IDRF)

Nov The program is open to graduate students in the humanities and social sciences - regardless of citizenship - enrolled in doctoral programs in the United States and conducting dissertation research outside of the United States.

#### **Fellowships**

Current and upcoming opportunities to apply for SSRC fellowships and grants.

# **Eisenhower Exchange Fellowships** — USA and International Programs

# Women's Leadership Program (WLP)

Nov The Women's Leadership Program (WLP) will promote women in leadership roles across all industries and sectors by providing strong networking and professional development opportunities. WLP participants will make a commitment to mentor and empower women in their countries and regions to advance the next generation of emerging women leaders.

#### **USA Program**

Jun The USA program provides overseas exposure of 4-5 weeks designed to enhance Fellows' professional and personal
 growth, develop new contacts, and promote the exchange of ideas and international understanding. Fellows have
 meetings with leaders in their field, as well as cultural site visits and hospitality by local citizens.

#### **International Fellowships**

Multi Nation, Single Region, and Common Interest programs offer a unique opportunity for emerging leaders aged 32-45 with a record of achievement and high potential for further advancements to broaden their horizons through the exchange of perspectives with U.S. leaders.

#### **Leo Baeck Institute** — Fellowships

# **David Baumgardt Memorial Fellowship**

Nov The fellowship provides financial assistance to scholars whose research projects are connected with the writings of Professor David Baumgardt or his scholarly interests, including Ethics, Wissenschaft des Judentums and the Modern Intellectual History of German-speaking Jewry.

# **Population Council** — Fellowships

#### **Biomedical Fellowships**

The Population Council offers pre- and postdoctoral biomedical fellowships for advanced study in basic and translational reproductive sciences and HIV and AIDS. Fellows train in the laboratories of the Council's Center for Biomedical Research located on the campus of The Rockefeller University in New York City.

#### Wenner-Gren Foundation for Anthropological Research

Professional Development International Fellowships (Predoctoral, Postdoctoral and Library Residency)

The Foundation has a variety of grant programs for anthropological research and scholarship that are open to applicants irrespective of nationality or country of residence.

#### **Education Scholarships**

#### **Knowles Science Teaching Foundation (KSTF)**

Teaching Fellowships — Up to \$10,800

Oct The KSTF Teaching Fellowships, are in the areas of biological sciences, mathematics and physical sciences. The fellowship is designed to meet the needs of beginning teachers from the onset of the credentialing process through the early years of their careers.

# American Educational Research Association (AERA) — Fellowships and Grants

Minority Dissertation Fellowship Program in Education Research — \$12,000

Nov This program offers doctoral fellowships to enhance the competitiveness of outstanding minority scholars for academic appointments at major research universities. It supports fellows conducting education research and provides mentoring and guidance toward the completion of their doctoral studies.

### AERA Undergraduate Student Education Research Training Workshop

Dec This workshop is designed to build the talent pool of undergraduate students who plan to pursue doctorate degrees in education research or in disciplines and fields that examine education issues.

#### AERA-AIR Fellows Program — \$55,000 to 65,000

The Fellows Program aims to build the talent pool of high skilled education researchers experienced in large-scale studies in a major research organization. Fellows will receive mentoring from a diverse group of highly recognized researchers and practitioners in a variety of substantive areas in education.

# <u>U.S. Department of State</u> — Fulbright Fellowship Program Grants

The Distinguished Fulbright Fellowship Awards in Teaching Program

Nov Highly accomplished U.S. primary and secondary level teachers of all subjects, guidance counselors, curriculum specialists, curriculum heads, talented and gifted coordinators, special education coordinators and media specialists/librarians may apply for this professional development program to carry out a course of study for three to six months abroad.

# <u>U.S. Department of Energy — Internships, Fellowships and Scholarships</u>

<u>Albert Einstein Distinguished Educator Fellowships</u> \$6,000/mo. plus a \$1,000 housing allowance

Nov Program of distinguished educator fellowships for elementary and secondary school mathematics and science teachers. Selected teachers spend eleven months in a Congressional Office or a Federal agency.

### Summer Internships for Graduate Students — \$6,000 to \$9,000

Feb Interns in this eight-week program participate in research under the guidance of a senior ETS staff member in educational measurement and psychometrics, validity, natural language processing and speech technologies, cognitive psychology, learning theory, linguistics and computational linguistics, teaching and classroom research, statistics, and international large-scale assessments.

#### American Association of Physics Teachers — Grants & Scholarships

Barbara Lotze Scholarships for Future Teachers — Up to \$2,000

Dec Undergraduate students enrolled, or planning to enroll, in physics teacher preparation curricula and high school seniors entering such programs are eligible.

# <u>Susan Thompson Buffett Foundation</u> — College Scholarships and Outstanding Teacher Awards Alice Buffett Outstanding Teacher Award — \$12,000

Jan Omaha Public School Teachers (K-12) with a Minimum of Two Years of Teaching Experience.

15

# <u>Teach for America</u>—National Teacher Corps of Recent College Graduates

#### Teaching Jobs for Graduating College Seniors and Recent College Graduates

Sep Individuals from all backgrounds, majors, and professional experiences who have what it takes to excel as teachers and improve the quality of education for children growing up in low-income communities. Teach For America corps members commit to teach for two years in low-income communities, then go on as alumni to lead efforts to change the face of public education.

# <u> James Madison Memorial Fellowship Foundation — Graduate Fellowships</u>

<u>Junior and Senior Graduate Fellowships in the Study of the U.S. Constitution for Students and Teachers — Up to \$24.000</u>

Mar The James Madison Memorial Fellowship Foundation offers Junior and Senior Graduate Fellowships to individuals desiring to become outstanding teachers of the American Constitution at the secondary school level. Fellowship applicants compete only against other applicants from the states of their legal residence. Generally, one Fellowship per state is awarded each year.

#### U.S. National Science Foundation (NSF) — Find Funding

Robert Noyce College and Graduate Scholarships and Stipends — At least \$10,000 per year

Mar
17
Aug
5
The Robert Noyce Teacher Scholarship Program seeks to encourage talented science, technology, engineering, and mathematics majors and professionals to become K-12 mathematics and science teachers. The Noyce Scholarship Track provides funds to institutions of higher education to support scholarships, stipends, and academic programs for undergraduate STEM majors and post-baccalaureate students holding STEM degrees who earn a teaching credential and commit to teaching in high-need K-12 school districts.

# <u>Woodrow Wilson National Fellowship Foundation</u> — Teaching Fellowships in Science, Technology, Engineering, & Mathematics

New Jersey Teaching Fellowships — \$30,000

Mar 14 The Woodrow Wilson New Jersey Teaching Fellowship seeks to attract talented, committed individuals with backgrounds in the STEM fields-science, technology, engineering, and mathematics-into teaching in high-need New Jersey secondary schools.

Ohio Teaching Fellowships — \$30,000

Mar For committed individuals with backgrounds in the STEM fields-science, technology, engineering, and mathematics-for teaching in high-need Ohio secondary schools.

#### <u>Leonore Annenberg Teaching Fellowships</u> — \$30,000

Awards for recent college graduates and career-changers who agree to work in urban and rural secondary schools serving high proportions of disadvantaged students.

#### Massachusetts Historical Society (MHS) — Fellowships

<u>Teacher Fellowships</u> — \$4,000

Mar 15 Applications are welcome from any K-12 teacher who has a serious interest in using the collections at the MHS to prepare primary-source-based curricula, supported by documents and visual aids, in the fields of American history, world history, or English/language arts.

#### <u>American Federation of Teachers — Scholarships</u>

Robert G. Porter Scholars Program mdash; \$1,000 to \$8,000

Mar For accomplished high school students who show outstanding service to their community and an understanding of the role unions can play to create a more just society. Open to graduating high school seniors who have at least one parent or legal guardian who is an American Federation of Teachers member.

#### **The White House**

#### Presidential Awards for Excellence in Mathematics and Science Teaching (PAEMST)

Apr The Presidential Awards for Excellence in Mathematics and Science Teaching (PAEMST) are the nation's highest honors for teachers of mathematics and science (including computer science). Awardees serve as models for their colleagues, inspiration to their communities, and leaders in the improvement of mathematics and science education.

#### **Education Pioneers** — Become a Fellow

#### Analyst Fellowship — \$45,000

Apr The Education Pioneers Analyst Fellowship places talented data-savvy professionals in mission-critical roles in school districts, charter management organizations, nonprofits, and other leading education organizations. As an Analyst Fellow, you will consult for one-year on a mission-critical, data-driven project a leading education organization.

#### Graduate School Fellowship — \$50,000 to \$80,000

Dec The Education Pioneers Graduate School Fellowship provides talented business, law, policy, and education graduate

15 students with the opportunity to make an impact and launch into high-level education leadership careers. As a

Feb Graduate School Fellow, you will consult on a mission-critical project at a school district, charter school network,

2 nonprofit or other leading education organization.

# National Council of Teachers of Mathematics — Grants, Scholarships and Awards

Prospective Middle School Mathematics Teacher Course Work Scholarships — Up to \$3,000

May The purpose of this scholarship is to provide financial support to college or university students preparing for teaching middle school mathematics.

#### Prospective 7-12 Secondary Teacher Course Work Scholarships — Up to \$10,000

May The purpose of this scholarship is to provide financial support to college students preparing for teaching secondary school mathematics.

#### Mathematics Course Work Scholarships for Grades PreK-5 Teachers

Nov The purpose of this grant is to provide financial support for improving teachers' understanding of mathematics by completing course work in mathematics.

#### Mathematics Graduate Course Work Scholarships for Grades 6-8 Teachers

The purpose of this grant is to provide financial support for improving teachers' understanding of mathematics by completing graduate course work in mathematics.

# Mathematics Graduate Course Work Scholarships for Grades 9-12 Teachers

The purpose of this grant is to provide financial support for improving teachers' understanding of mathematics by completing graduate course work in mathematics.

# American Association of School Administrators — Awards and Scholarships

Educational Administration Scholarship Award — \$2,500

- Jul Provide incentive, honor and financial assistance to outstanding graduate students in school administration who
- 30 intend to make the school superintendency a career.

# <u>Gilder Lehrman Institute of American History — Fellowships and Prizes for Historians</u>

National History Teacher of the Year Award — \$1,000 to \$10,000

Feb The National History Teacher of the Year Award recognizes outstanding American history teachers from elementary school through high school, and the crucial importance of American history education.

#### Teacher Education Assistance for College and Higher Education (TEACH) Grants

Jun Provides grants of up to \$4,000 per year to students who intend to teach in a public or private elementary or secondary school that serves students from low-income families.

# **Teacher Ambassador Fellowships**

Jan The Teaching Ambassador Fellowship is designed to improve education for students by involving teachers in the development and implementation of national education policy. The Fellowship seeks to create a community of teacher leaders who share expertise and collaborate with policymakers and leaders in the federal government on national education issues.

# Graduate Assistance in Areas of National Need

This program provides fellowships, through academic departments and programs of IHEs, to assist graduate students with excellent records who demonstrate financial need and plan to pursue the highest degree available in their course study at the institution in a field designated as an area of national need.

#### Earthwatch Institute — Education

# Fellowships for Elementary, Middle, and High School Educators and Administrators

Get out of the classroom and head into the field to learn about cutting edge research and conservation efforts, to develop professional skills, and to make a difference for our shared environment.

# **Teach Plus** — Fellows

#### **Teaching Policy Fellowships**

Engage early-career teachers in work on issues related to the future of the teaching profession.

#### **Medical School And Heath Profession Scholarships**

# <u>U.S. National Institutes of Health (NIH) — Training Programs in the Biomedical Sciences</u>

Postbaccalaureate Intramural Research Training Award (IRTA)

Open The NIH Postbac IRTA program (CRTA, Cancer Research Training Award, in the National Cancer Institute) provides recent college graduates who are planning to apply to graduate or professional (medical/dental/pharmacy) school an opportunity to spend one or two years performing full-time research at the NIH.

# Technical Intramural Research Training Award (IRTA)

Open The NIH Technical IRTA Program (CRTA, Cancer Research Training Award in the National Cancer Institute) is designed to produce a cadre of highly trained research support personnel. College graduates and individuals who hold a master's degree spend two years (possibly three) mastering the latest and most advanced techniques for basic and/or applied research working in an environment devoted exclusively to biomedical research.

#### Clinical Electives Program for Third and Fourth-Year Medical and Dental Students

Open You must be enrolled in a medical or dental school and have your school's approval to participate. You must have completed all of your core courses prior to review of your application. Students participate in short-term clinical rotations and research electives designed to provide advanced training in translational and clinical research in over 30 specialties.

#### Graduate Partnerships Program (GPP)

Open The NIH Graduate Partnerships Program (GPP) allows participants to take advantage of the best of two worlds - the academic environment of a university and the breadth and depth of research at the NIH. The goal is to create a different kind of graduate experience, one that focuses on training the next generation of scientific leaders by emphasizing communication and collaboration skills, integration of information, and interdisciplinary investigation. At the NIH, graduate students work in a highly collaborative research environment with leading scientists and clinicians.

#### Medical Research Scholars Program

Jan The National Institutes of Health (NIH) Medical Research Scholars Program (MRSP) is a comprehensive, year-long research enrichment program designed to attract the most creative, research-oriented medical, dental, and veterinary students to the intramural campus of the NIH in Bethesda, MD. The MRSP is designed for U.S. citizens and permanent residents currently enrolled in an accredited program who have completed their core clinical rotations. This does not exclude students with strong research interests from applying prior to having completed their clinical rotations.

#### Biomedical Engineering Summer Internships (BESIP)

Feb 9 This internship program is for undergraduate biomedical engineering students who have completed their junior year of college. This ten-week program will allow rising senior biomedical engineering students to participate in cutting-edge biomedical research projects under the mentorship of world-class scientists in NIH laboratories.

#### Summer Internship Program in Biomedical Research (SIP)

Mar The Summer Internship Program is for students who will be sixteen years of age or older at the time they begin the program and who are currently enrolled at least half-time in high school or an accredited U.S. college or university as undergraduate, graduate, or professional students. Students who have been accepted into a college or university program may also apply.

#### National Institutes of Health (NIH) Undergraduate Scholarship Program (UGSP)

Mar UGSP offers competitive scholarships to students from disadvantaged backgrounds who are committed to careers in biomedical, behavioral, and social science health-related research. The program offers scholarship support, paid research training at the NIH during the summer and paid employment and training at the NIH after graduation.

#### NIH Loan Repayment Programs

All eligible researchers and scientists, including women, individuals from underrepresented groups, and persons with disabilities are encouraged to apply for loan repayment.

#### **NIH Academy**

The NIH Academy is a postbaccalaureate biomedical research program for recent college graduates with an interest in domestic health disparities, differences in the frequency or severity of diseases and other adverse health conditions among populations in the U.S.

# <u>U.S. Army</u> <u>Education Opportunities</u>

<u>F. Edward Hébert Armed Forces Health Professions Scholarship Program (HPSP) for Students Pursuing Advanced</u> Degrees in Medicine, Dentistry, Veterinary Science, Psychiatric Nursing, Optometry or Psychology

The U.S. Army can help with one of the most comprehensive scholarships available in the health care field. Qualifying students receive full tuition at any accredited medical, dental, veterinary, psychology or optometry program, plus a generous monthly stipend.

# <u>U.S. Public Health Service Commissioned Corps</u> — Student Opportunities and Training

Junior Commissioned Officer Student Training and Extern Program (JRCOSTEP)

Dec JRCOSTEP training and extern positions are available to students who have completed at least 1 year of study in a master's or doctoral program or at least 2 years of study in a professionally accredited baccalaureate program in specific health disciplines and meet other program requirements.

#### Senior Commissioned Officer Student Training and Extern Program (SRCOSTEP)

Dec SRCOSTEP training and extern positions are available to individuals who are enrolled as full-time students in certain health professions programs with at least 8 months of educational commitment remaining in the final year.

# <u>U.S. Centers for Disease Control and Prevention</u>—*Public Health Training Fellowships*

The CDC Experience Applied Epidemiology Fellowship

One-year training program in applied epidemiology for third or fourth year medical students.

# CDC-Hubert Global Health Fellowship

Six- to twelve-week introduction to preventive medicine, public health, and applied epidemiology in an international setting; apply in your second or third year of medical or veterinary school.

# Epidemiology Elective Program for Senior Medical and Veterinary Students

Six to eight-week introduction to applied epidemiology.

# Epidemic Intelligence Service (EIS)

Aug The Epidemic Intelligence Service (EIS) is a 2-year postgraduate program of service and training in applied epidemiology. EIS is a unique program of mentoring and on-the-job training for health professionals interested in applied epidemiology.

# <u>U.S. Health Resources and Services Administration (HRSA)</u> — <u>Loans & Scholarships</u> <u>National Health Service Corps (NHSC) Scholarships</u>

May The National Health Service Corps Scholarship (NHSC) Program accepts applications once a year from students who are enrolled or accepted for enrollment at an accredited health professions training program in an eligible primary care discipline: medicine (MD or DO), dentistry, family nurse practitioner, certified nurse midwife or physician assistant. You can apply before your first year or after you have finished one or more years of school.

#### National Health Service Corps (NHSC) Loan Repayment Program

Mar The National Health Service Corps recruits primary care medical, dental and behavioral and mental health clinicians who are dedicated to providing care to the Nation's underserved people. In return, they can reduce or eliminate their health professions student debt by providing care at a National Health Service Corps-approved site.

#### **Albert Schweitzer Fellowships**

# The Albert Schweitzer Fellowship - Lambaréné, Gabon

Third-year medical students spend three months working as Fellows at the Albert Schweitzer Hospital in Lambaréné, Gabon on clinical rotations. Medical Fellows work as junior physicians in pediatrics or medicine rotations, supervised by hospital medical staff. Public Health Fellows, students or recent graduates with significant public health training and/or experience, work with the Hospital's Community Health Outreach Program.

#### The U.S. Schweitzer Fellows Program

THe Schweitzer Fellows -- mostly university graduate students -- partner with community-based organizations to identify an unmet health need, design a yearlong service project with a demonstrable impact on that need, and bring that project from idea to implementation and impact -- all on top of their usual graduate school responsibilities.

#### **Health for America**

# Fellowship program to incubate, test, and launch applications to improve the health of communities across the nation

Apr This program grants a \$50,000 year-long fellowship to young leaders from diverse academic backgrounds, including computer science, design, entrepreneurship, and health. Over the course of the year, fellows will work together to gain practical immersive experience in health innovation, with help from physicians and community leaders and exposure to different areas of the country.

#### **Tylenol® Future Care Scholarships**

College and graduate scholarships for students who intend to major in public health/health education, medical school, nursing or pharmacy

Jun Students must have completed at least one year of undergraduate or graduate course of study at an accredited two or four year college, university or vocational-technical school.

# <u>Alberta Heritage Foundation for Medical Research</u>—*Training and Early Career Development*<u>Undergraduate Summer Studentships</u>

Alberta Innovates — Health Solutions Summer Studentships offer motivated students with exceptional academic records an opportunity to participate in medical or health research in Alberta during the summer months. The award is meant to encourage students to consider pursuing formal training and a career in health research. The award consists of a stipend only.

# **Graduate Studentship**

The Graduate Studentship provides opportunities for support for individuals undertaking health-related research areas in pursuit of a Master's or PhD at an Alberta university.

#### **Alpha One Foundation**

<u>Postdoctoral Fellowships for Studies in the Basic Science or Clinical Investigation of Alpha</u><sub>1</sub>-Antitrypsin (AAT) Deficiency

Intended to provide support for postdoctoral research fellows who intend to pursue a career in AAT research. Applications will be accepted from candidates holding an M.D., Ph.D. or equivalent degrees who are interested in conducting basic science, clinical research, or ethic, legal, social issues studies related to AAT Deficiency.

#### **American Academy of Family Physicians**

Awards for Medical Students, Residents, and Medical Education Faculty

These awards recognize medical students, residents and medical education faculty who are deemed to have made exceptional advances in furthering the strategic objectives of the Academy. This program assists AAFP members and staff, as well as constituent chapters, to identify, select and recommend appropriate forms of recognition for exceptional initiatives or efforts that benefit Family Medicine.

#### Medical Fellowships for Family Physicians

#### American Optometric Foundation — Awards, Scholarships and Grants

#### Scholarships for Optometry Students

These scholarships support students enrolled in a full-time program of study and training in optometry.

#### American Academy of Pediatric Dentistry — Awards and Fellowships

#### **Fellowships**

Pediatric dental residents and individuals in their first five years post-residency are eligible and encouraged to apply.

#### **American Association of Neurological Surgeons**

#### Medical Student Summer Research Fellowship

Fellowships will be awarded to medical students in the United States or Canada who have completed one or two years of medical school and wish to spend a summer working in a neurosurgical laboratory, mentored by a neurosurgical investigator who is a member of the AANS and will sponsor the student.

#### Grants and Fellowships

#### **American College of Surgeons**

#### Research Scholarships, Fellowships, and Awards

International Guest Scholarships, ACS Traveling Fellowships, ACS Scholarships.

#### American Dental Association Foundation — Education

# Scholarships for Dental and Allied Dental Health Students

Mar Predoctoral Dental Student and Allied Dental Student Scholarships. The ADA Foundation funds scholarships for dental student, underrepresented minority dental students and allied dental students including dental hygiene, dental assisting and dental laboratory technology.

# American Federation for Aging Research — Funding Opportunities

#### Medical Student Training in Aging Research (MSTAR) Program

The 2012 MSTAR Program provides medical students with an enriching experience in aging-related research and geriatrics, under the mentorship of top experts in the field. This program introduces students to research and academic experiences early in their training that they might not otherwise have during medical school.

#### Glenn/AFAR Postdoctoral Fellowship Program for Translational Research on Aging

Encourages and furthers the careers of postdoctoral fellows with outstanding promise in the basic biological and biomedical sciences relevant to understanding aging processes and age-related diseases and disabilities. The award is intended to provide significant support to permit these postdoctoral fellows to become established in the field of aging.

#### American Medical Association, Education and Research Foundation

#### Arthur N. Wilson, MD, Scholarships for Southeastern Alaskans

Provides a tuition assistance scholarship to a currently enrolled medical student who graduated from a high school in Southeast Alaska. This scholarship highlights the importance of supporting future physicians in rural communities.

#### Physicians of Tomorrow Scholarships

#### **American Parkinson's Disease Association**

#### Medical Students Summer Fellowships

The Summer Fellowships are designed to provide a stipend to enable medical students to perform supervised laboratory or clinical research designed to clarify our understanding of Parkinson's disease, its nature, manifestations, etiology or treatment. It is hoped this experience will stimulate a student's interest in future research in the field of Parkinson's disease and related disorders.

#### **American Pharmaceutical Association**

Awards and Scholarships

American Philosophical Society — Fellowships and Grants

**Daland Fellowships in Clinical Investigation** 

**American Psychiatric Association** 

Resident Fellowships

**American Veterinary Medical Foundation** 

Congressional Science Fellowships

Feb AVMA Fellows serve for one year in Washington D.C. as scientific advisors to members of Congress.

#### **Burroughs Wellcome Fund** — Grant Programs

#### Career Awards at the Scientific Interface

Career Awards at the Scientific Interface provide \$500,000 to bridge advanced postdoctoral training and the first three years of faculty service. These awards are intended to foster the early career development of researchers who have transitioned or are transitioning from undergraduate and/or graduate work in the physical/mathematical/computational sciences or engineering into postdoctoral work in the biological sciences, and who are dedicated to pursuing a career in academic research. These awards are open to U.S. and Canadian citizens or permanent residents as well as to U.S. temporary residents.

#### Career Awards for Medical Scientists

Five-year awards for physician-scientists to bridge advanced postdoctoral/fellowship training and the early years of faculty service. Proposals must be in the area of basic biomedical, disease-oriented, or translational research.

Career Development Awards are intended to encourage the development of individuals with research potential to help them prepare for a career of independent basic and/or clinical investigation in the area of Inflammatory Bowel Disease (IBD).

#### Research Fellowship Awards

Research Fellowship Awards are intended to encourage the development of individuals with research potential to help them prepare for a career of independent basic and/or clinical investigation in the area of Crohn's disease and ulcerative colitis.

#### Student Research Awards

This program offers financial support for students to spend time performing research on topics relevant to Inflammatory Bowel Disease (IBD) for a minimum of 10 weeks. CCFA hopes to stimulate research interest in the areas of Crohn's disease and ulcerative colitis.

#### **Cystic Fibrosis Foundation**

Clinical Fellowships (1st and 2nd Year)
Clinical Fellowships (3rd and 4th Year)

Postdoctoral Research Fellowships

#### **Dystonia Medical Research Foundation**

Clinical Fellowship Training Program

These fellowships are in preparation for a clinical career in movement disorders with a special competence in the evaluation and treatment of dystonia. The training program should focus on critical aspects of dystonia including: clinical diagnosis and evaluation, ongoing patient care and management, pharmacotherapy with a special emphasis on neurotoxin therapy, and neurosurgical interventions, such as deep brain stimulation.

# **Epilepsy Foundation** — Grant and Fellowship Opportunities

# Predoctoral Research Training Fellowships Related to Epilepsy

Graduate students must be matriculating in a full-time doctoral (Ph.D.) program with an academic career focus. Areas of interest considered include, but are not limited to neuroscience, physiology, pharmacology, psychology, biochemistry, genetics, nursing, or pharmacy may apply.

#### Postdoctoral Research Training Fellowships Related to Epilepsy

Areas of interest considered include, but are not limited to neuroscience, physiology, pharmacology, psychology, biochemistry, genetics, nursing, or pharmacy.

#### Foundation for Anesthesia Education and Research (FAER) — Programs

#### Medical Student Anesthesia Research Fellowship Program

The Medical Student Anesthesia Research Fellowship program encourages talented medical students to consider careers in academic anesthesiology. Medical students participate in research projects and clinical anesthesia in academic departments across the country through the eight-week summer program.

#### **Heart Rhythm Society**

#### Fellowship Opportunities in Cardiac Electrophysiology

Full-year Research Fellowships for individuals interested in clinical and basic research relating to the latest advances in electrophysiology. Must have an MD, PhD, DO, DVM, or equivalent degree by June in the year of award activation. May not be enrolled in a graduate or medical school by June in the year of award activation. May not have completed three cumulative years of postmedical school or graduate school research. Sponsor must be a member of the Heart Rhythm Society by activation of award.

#### Howard Hughes Medical Institute — Opportunities for Individuals

#### Medical Research Fellows - Year Long Program

As a medical, dental, or veterinary student, you are in a unique position to advance biomedical research and translate findings from the lab into the treatment of disease. HHMI's Medical Fellows Program gives you a chance to focus on a research project full-time and determine how you can incorporate research into your professional career.

# **International Student Research Fellowships**

Nov This fellowship program supports outstanding international predoctoral students studying in the United States who are ineligible for fellowships or training grants through U.S. federal agencies. Participation is by invitation only. Nominated students must be in their second or third year of study to apply for the fellowship. To activate the fellowship, students must be in the third or fourth year of a PhD program at one of the designated institutions. Students in the first, second, or fifth year of their PhD programs cannot activate the fellowship. In no case will support be provided past year five of a PhD program.

# **Human Frontier Science Program (HFSP)**

<u>Cross-Disciplinary and Long-Term Postdoctoral Fellowships in Brain Functions and Molecular Approaches to Biological Functions</u>

# **Huntington's Disease Society of America**

#### The Donald A. King Summer Research Fellowship

Application is open to matriculated undergraduate life sciences students, pre-medical students, and first-year medical students who are currently attending accredited institutions in the United States. The students will conduct full-time research, under the direction of a mentor, investigating a subject relevant to Huntington's disease.

Applications must be accompanied by a letter of support from the mentor who oversees the laboratory where the research will be performed. The duration of each project shall be at least 10 weeks.

#### **International Foundation for Ethical Research**

Graduate Fellowships in Animal Welfare

#### **LAM Foundation**

Postdoctoral Fellowships in Lymphangioleiomyomatosis

Mayo Clinic and Foundation for Medical Education and Research

Postdoctoral Fellowships

Medical Scholarships

Merle A. Sande/Pfizer Fellowship Award in International Infectious Diseases

Mar This award is intended to encourage young physicians interested in international medicine. The award will be given for important clinical research in infectious diseases and/or HIV/AIDS conducted in a resource-limited setting. The successful applicant will be expected to spend a significant amount of time during the year in country

# **National Hemophilia Foundation**

Postdoctoral Research Fellowships in Hemophilia

National Multiple Sclerosis Society — Training Grants and Fellowships

Postdoctoral Fellowships

Advanced Postdoctoral Fellowships

Physician Fellowships for Training in MS Clinical Trials

Junior Faculty Awards

Senior Faculty Awards

# National Research Council (NRC) — Research Associateship Programs

<u>Postdoctoral Research Associateship Programs for Scientists and Engineers Tenable at U.S. Laboratories and NASA Research Centers</u>

Nov The mission of the NRC Research Associateship Programs (RAP) is to promote excellence in scientific and technological research conducted by the U. S. government through the administration of programs offering graduate, postdoctoral, and senior level research opportunities at sponsoring federal laboratories and affiliated institutions.

#### **New Mexico Higher Education Department**

# New Mexico Medical Loans-for-Service

The purpose of the Medical Loan-For-Service is to increase the number of physicians in the state which have experienced shortages of health professional by making educational loans to students entering medical school. As a condition of each loan, the student shall declare his/her intent to practice as a health professional in a designated shortage area within the state of New Mexico. For every year of service provided in a designated shortage area within New Mexico, a portion of the loan will be forgiven. If the entire service agreement is fulfilled, 100% of the loan is eligible for forgiveness. Penalties will be assessed if the service agreement is not satisfied.

# Osteogenesis Imperfecta Foundation

Research Fellowships for Young Investigators

#### **Parkinson's Disease Foundation**

Postdoctoral Research Fellowships Including Neurologists

Summer Fellowships for Undergraduates and Medical Students

Pharmaceutical Research and Manufacturers of America (PhRMA) Foundation

Advanced Predoctoral Fellowships in Pharmacology or Toxicology

This program provides up to two years of stipend funding to support full-time advanced students who will have completed most of their pre-thesis requirements (at least two years of study) and be engaged in thesis research as Ph.D. candidates by the time the award is activated.

# Postdoctoral Fellowships

Post Doctoral Fellowships provide stipend support to well-trained graduates from Ph.D. programs who seek to further develop and refine their research skills through formal postdoctoral training. These fellowships are designed for individuals engaged in a multidisciplinary research training program that will create or extend their credentials.

# Sabbatical Fellowship in Pharmacology and Toxicology

Sabbatical Fellowships provide stipend support to individuals engaged in a multidisciplinary research training program that will create or extend their professional credentials.

# Radiological Society of North America (RSNA)

Research Grants and Fellowships

**Robert Wood Johnson Foundation** 

**Clinical Scholars** 

**Sarnoff Endowment for Cardiovascular Science** 

Medical Fellowships in the Cardiovascular Sciences

Sarnoff Scholars Program

Society of Nuclear Medicine - Education and Research Foundation

Grants, Awards and Scholarships

**U.S. Department of Veterans Affairs** 

Career Development Awards

Residencies & Fellowships

#### **Public Health Scholarships**

# <u>U.S. Centers for Disease Control and Prevention</u>—*Public Health Traineeships, Fellowships and Internships*Public Health Associate Program (PHAP)

Jan PHAP is a competitive, two-year, paid fellowship within the Centers for Disease Control and Prevention (CDC).

Public Health Associates are assigned to state, tribal, local and territorial public health agencies and hold positions that are functionally indistinguishable from their local colleagues.

#### Public Health Informatics Fellowships

Nov

The Public Health Informatics Fellowship (PHIFP) is a 2-year applied fellowship for professionals with a master's or higher degree. We train professionals to apply information science and technology to the practice of public health.

# ASA/NCHS Research Fellowships Program

Nov The American Statistical Association (ASA) and the National Center for Health Statistics (NCHS), ASA/NCHS

Research Fellowships bridge the gap between academic scholars and government health research programs. Fello

Research Fellowships bridge the gap between academic scholars and government health research programs. Fellows work to solve methodological problems and study analytic issues relevant to NCHS programs, data, and facilities.

#### CDC Steven M. Teutsch Prevention Effectiveness Fellowships

Jan

The Prevention Effectiveness Fellowship (PEF) is a 2-year, highly-selective research fellowship for recent doctoral graduates with a background in economics, policy analysis, operations research, decision sciences, other quantitative areas. The PEF allows applicants to apply their academic training in quantitative methods to the science of health

protection, health promotion, and disease prevention. Fellows have the opportunity to work with leading researchers on issues of critical importance.

#### Collegiate Leaders in Environmental Health (CLEH)

Jan Ten-week summer internship for students interested in a career in environmental health; open to rising juniors and rising seniors majoring in environmental fields, such as, chemistry, engineering, biology, or ecology, or other environmental studies.

#### Dental Public Health Residency

Feb Applicants must have completed a dental degree (DDS or DMD) from an accredited dental school. In addition, the applicant must have completed at least one academic year of advanced training in public health and obtained a graduate degree, a Master of Public Health (MPH) or comparable degree.

# Hubert Global Health Fellowships for Medical and Veterinary School Students

Feb This fellowship provides third- and fourth-year medical and veterinary students with valuable public health experience in an international setting. The main focus of the fellowship is a 6- to 12-week field assignment.

# CDC Summer Graduate Environmental Health Internship (GEH)

The Graduate Environmental Health program (GEH) is a paid ten week summer internship available for graduate students with majors or interests deemed to be in support of environmental health missions at NCEH/ATSDR.

Feb During the program interns will be assigned to projects that utilize the skills they've acquired through graduate studies and personal experiences. Interns will also be able to take advantage of lecture series and other opportunity

25 studies and personal experiences. Interns will also be able to take advantage of lecture series and other opportunities offered at the CDC.

#### CDC Disease Detective Camp for Upcoming High School Juniors and Seniors

CDC Disease Detective Camp is a week-long day camp for rising high school juniors and seniors that exposes students to epidemiology, the field of public health and the diverse career opportunities within the field of public health. Two separate, but identical iterations of the camp are held each summer.

### Epidemiology Elective Program for Senior Medical and Veterinary Students

Mar The Epidemiology Elective Program (Epi Elective) is a 6 to 8 week rotation for senior medical and veterinary students sponsored by the Centers of Disease Control and Prevention (CDC).

#### **Environmental Health Traineeships and Fellowships**

Aug The program offers specialized training in environmental health to public health laboratory scientists. EH

Traineeship: Short-term (2-6 week) specialized training in environmental health technology and testing methods for current laboratory staff (a "trainee"). EH Fellowship: Recruiting and hosting a one or two-year full-time "fellow" (not on current staff) who would be based in a laboratory and receive short-term (2-6 week) training opportunities from other state or federal laboratories, and/or other appropriate facilities.

#### Epidemic Intelligence Service (EIS)

Aug The Epidemic Intelligence Service (EIS) is a 2-year postgraduate program of service and training in applied epidemiology. EIS is a unique program of mentoring and on-the-job training for health professionals interested in applied epidemiology.

# Preventive Medicine Residency and Fellowship (PMR/F)

Aug The PMR/F programs seek qualified Epidemic Intelligence Service (EIS) officers or alumni with an interest in public health and preventive medicine, and a commitment to public service.

#### Emory/CDC Medical Toxicology Fellowships

Sep This two-year program offers fellows affiliations with Emory University Medical School, the Centers for Disease Control and Prevention (CDC), and more. Fellows also work with world-class Medical Toxicology experts at the Agency for Toxic Substances and Disease Registry (ATSDR), five Atlanta-area hospitals, and the Georgia Poison Center - one of the busiest poison call centers in the country. Open to all US citizens as well as foreign medical graduates who have or are able to obtain a medical license to practice in the US. An Educational Commission for Foreign Medical Graduates (ECFMG) certification is required for all non-citizens.

#### **Robert Wood Johnson Foundation**

# **Health Policy Fellowships**

Nov The Robert Wood Johnson Foundation Health Policy Fellows program provides the nation's most comprehensive fellowship experience at the nexus of health science, policy and politics in Washington, D.C. It is an outstanding opportunity for exceptional midcareer health professionals and behavioral and social scientists with an interest in health and health care policy promoting the health of the nation. Fellows participate in the policy process at the federal level and use that leadership experience to improve health, health care and health policy.

# University of California, San Francisco, Center for Aids Prevention Studies

# Traineeships in AIDS Prevention Studies (TAPS)

Two- and three-year postdoctoral fellowships in studies relating to the prevention of AIDS. Offered through the UCSF Department of Medicine, TAPS is located at the Center for AIDS Prevention Studies (CAPS), which is itself part of the Division of Prevention Science within the Department of Medicine. Candidates must hold a PhD, MD, or equivalent doctorate degree. The program is suitable for those who are currently completing their doctoral, residency, or clinical fellowship programs as well as for those who have recently completed their doctoral degrees and seek careers as independent researchers.

# <u>U.S. Public Health Service Commissioned Corps</u> <u>Student Opportunities and Training</u>

# Junior Commissioned Officer Student Training and Extern Program (JRCOSTEP)

Dec JRCOSTEP training and extern positions are available to students who have completed at least 1 year of study in a master's or doctoral program or at least 2 years of study in a professionally accredited baccalaureate program in specific health disciplines and meet other program requirements.

#### Senior Commissioned Officer Student Training and Extern Program (SRCOSTEP)

Dec SRCOSTEP training and extern positions are available to individuals who are enrolled as full-time students in certain health professions programs with at least 8 months of educational commitment remaining in the final year.

#### Association of Schools and Programs of Public Health (ASPPH)

# CSTE/CDC/ASPPH Applied Epidemiology Fellowships

Jan 9 The goal of the Fellowship is to provide a high quality training experience and to secure long-term career placement for Fellows at the state or local level. Participating fellows will receive two years of on-the-job training at a state or local health agency under the guidance of an experienced mentor.

#### ASPPH/CDC Allan Rosenfield Global Health Fellowships

Mar One- to two-year fellowships in global health training for master's and doctoral graduates from an ASPPH-member school. The purpose of the fellowship program is to enhance training of graduates of the schools and programs of public health with an interest in global health and HIV/AIDS. The training offered through this program will expand the global health prevention workforce and provide fellows an opportunity to gain practical, first-hand experience on the front lines of international public health. Fellows will benefit from an opportunity to apply and translate academic knowledge of public health to real world situations.

## ASPPH/CDC Public Health Fellowships

Sep Students must have received an MPH or Doctorate degree prior to the beginning of the fellowship. Early career professionals with MPH or Doctorate degrees (within 5 years of graduation) may also apply for the fellowship

program. Applicants must have received their degree(s) from an ASPPH-member, CEPH-accredited, graduate school or program of public health. Its goal is to address emerging needs of public health, and to provide leadership and professional opportunities at the Centers for Disease Control and Prevention (CDC) for students and graduate students of ASPPH member graduate schools and programs of public health.

# **Fellowships**

Future public health workforce global, national, and local fellowship practice experiences for students and graduates of ASPPH members.

#### Association for Prevention Teaching and Research (APTR) — Training Opportunities

Residency Rotations in Health Policy for Preventive Medicine Residents

Jan The APTR-ODPHP Health Policy Residency Rotation Program provides excellent learning opportunities in Federal health policy for preventive medicine and primary care residents. Residents witness federal health policy in the making and consider the significant role of physicians in the process.

Paul Ambrose Scholarships in Leadership Training and Education for Graduate Clinical Students Interested in Public Health, Prevention, Health Care Policy, and Medical and Health Sciences Education

Mar The Paul Ambrose Scholars Program prepares public health and health professions students to address population health challenges at the national and community level. Scholarships are awarded to student teams to conduct a community-based health education project at their institution.

#### Luther L. Terry Senior Fellowships in Preventive Medicine

This two-year Fellowship experience provides an unparalleled opportunity for professional growth and development as a national figure in both prevention policy and medical education. The fellowship has been an excellent opportunity for clinicians to gain substantial health policy experience through engagement in policy development and decision making at the highest levels within the Department of Health and Human Services. Fellows have frequent contact with the public health community and gains substantial insight into the operations and interactions of its constituent members.

APTR/CDC Preventive Medicine and Public Health Fellowships for Recent Graduate Students, Medical Residents and Early Career Professionals

Sep Fellows will gain leadership experience in public health practice and policy, access to state-of-the-art technology and national databases, and will train with leading experts in the field of preventive medicine and public health. Length of fellowship is typically a one-year term. Fellowship opportunities are located either at CDC headquarters in Atlanta, Georgia, or a CDC regional office.

#### American Society for Microbiology (ASM) — Student Fellowships

# ASM/CDC Postdoctoral Research Fellowship Program

Feb The goal of ASM/CDC Fellowship is to support the development of new approaches, methodologies and knowledge in infectious disease prevention and control in areas within the public health mission of the CDC. The fellowship allows one to perform research in residence headquartered at a Centers for Disease Control and Prevention (CDC) location. Eligible fields of study include: bacterial and mycotic diseases, viral and rickettsial infections. nosocomial infections, hiv/aids, vector-borne infectious diseases, and parasitic diseases.

# **Directors of Health Promotion and Education (DHPE)**

<u>Directors of Health Promotion and Education (DHPE) Internship Program for Students of Minority-Serving Institutions</u>

The program has been designed to provide students with practical experiences in public health related to the core competencies of health education and to introduce the students to the essentials of public health. Deadline: Mar 1, Jun 15, Oct 15.

#### **Association of Occupational and Environmental Clinics**

# Occupational Health Internship Program (OHIP)

Mar Summer internship program to help medical, nursing, public health, and other students learn more about the field of occupational safety and health from those with the most at stake: working people.

# National Foundation for Infectious Diseases — Awards & Grants

#### Merle A. Sande/Pfizer Fellowship Award in International Infectious Diseases

Mar This award is intended to encourage young physicians interested in international medicine. The award will be given for important clinical research in infectious diseases and/or HIV/AIDS conducted in a resource-limited setting. The successful applicant will be expected to spend a significant amount of time during the year in country

# U.S. Health Resources and Services Administration (HRSA) — Loans & Scholarships

### National Health Service Corps (NHSC) Loan Repayment Program

Mar The National Health Service Corps recruits primary care medical, dental and behavioral and mental health clinicians who are dedicated to providing care to the Nation's underserved people. In return, they can reduce or eliminate their health professions student debt by providing care at a National Health Service Corps-approved site.

#### National Health Service Corps (NHSC) Scholarships

May The National Health Service Corps Scholarship (NHSC) Program accepts applications once a year from students who are enrolled or accepted for enrollment at an accredited health professions training program in an eligible primary care discipline: medicine (MD or DO), dentistry, family nurse practitioner, certified nurse midwife or physician assistant. You can apply before your first year or after you have finished one or more years of school.

# Burroughs Wellcome Fund — Grant Programs

# Student Science Enrichment Program

Apr The Student Science Enrichment Program supports diverse programs with a common goal: to enable primary and secondary students to participate in hands-on scientific activities and pursue inquiry-based exploration in BWF's home state of North Carolina.

#### **Brown and Caldwell**

# College Scholarships for Students

Apr Civil, Chemical or Environmental Engineering or One of the Environmental Sciences (e.g., Geology, Hydrogeology, Biology, Ecology, Public Health, Industrial Hygiene or Toxicology).

#### New Mexico Higher Education Department — Students and Parents Overview

# New Mexico Health Professional Loan Repayment

May Provides repayment for outstanding student loans of practicing health professionals. As a condition of the program, a health professional must make a two year service commitment to practice full-time in a designated medical shortage area in New Mexico.

#### New Mexico Allied Health Professional Loans-for-Service

Jul 1 The purpose of the Allied Health Loan-For-Service is to increase the number of physician assistants in areas of the state which have experienced shortages of health practitioners, by making educational loans to students seeking certification/licensure in an eligible health field.

#### **Tylenol® Future Care Scholarships**

College and graduate scholarships for students who intend to major in public health/health education, medical school, nursing or pharmacy

Jun Students must have completed at least one year of undergraduate or graduate course of study at an accredited two or four year college, university or vocational-technical school.

# <u>Columbia University College of Physicians & Surgeons</u>—Programs for Future Physicians and Scientists Summer Public Health Scholars

The program is designed for undergraduates in their Sophomore or Junior year and recent baccalaureate degree students who are undecided about their career goals and who have a minimum GPA of 2.7. This is a rigorous program which includes Public Health course work at Columbia University; hands-on field experience and immersion in a diverse, economically disadvantaged urban environment; seminars and lectures with public health leaders; and mentoring by faculty members, ensuring students' exposure to the breadth and importance of public health as a career option.

#### University of Michigan, School of Public Health — Tuition and Financial Aid

#### Future Public Health Leaders Program

Jan The Future Public Health Leaders Program (FPHLP) is a 10-week residential program at the University of Michigan School of Public Health (UM-SPH) designed to encourage underrepresented college students to consider careers in public health. The program is intended for college students in their Sophomore, Junior or Senior year who are undecided about their career goals and are in good academic standing in their area of study. The program includes public health and career mentorship, hands-on and practical field experience, seminars, lectures and workshops with public health leaders.

#### **Kennedy Krieger Institute** — *RISE Programs*

# Maternal and Child Health Careers/Research Initiatives for Student Enhancement

Jan The Maternal and Child Health Careers/Research Initiatives for Student Enhancement (MCHC/RISE-UP) Program provides opportunities for enhanced public health and related training to eliminate health disparities and promote health equity. This program's ultimate goal is to promote a more diversified and equal health system by introducing highly qualified undergraduate students (juniors and, seniors with a GPA 2.5 or better on a 4.0 scale; and students who received their baccalaureate degree within 12 months of MCHC/RISE-UP program orientation) from underrepresented groups to the field of public health. All students interested in addressing health disparities are encouraged to apply.

#### Public Health Leadership and Learning Undergraduate Student Success (PLLUSS) Program

Jan The PLLUSS Program is a public health leadership and research program for undergraduate sophomore and junior scholars minoring or majoring in public health with at least a 3.0 GPA on a 4-point scale. The PLLUSS Program provides scholars with mentored public health research and community health activities, mentorship, and professional development, especially in the area of promotion of health equity and the elimination of health disparities research.

# James A. Ferguson Emerging Infectious Diseases Fellowship Program

Jan A nine week summer program providing educational and professional development opportunities for students from underrepresented populations and those interested in addressing health disparities related to infectious diseases. Students must be currently enrolled as a full-time student in a medical, dental, pharmacy, veterinary, or public health graduate program.

#### **National Hemophilia Foundation**

# Social Work Excellence Fellowships

The applicant must be an MSW from an accredited school of social work or be a student in a DSW program or have a master's degree in a social work related field, be licensed by the state to practice as a master's level clinical social worker and work in a bleeding disorders program. Professional experience in a hemophilia treatment center is desirable but not required. The proposed project, however, must have relevance to current practice in bleeding disorders care and may incorporate casework, group work, organizational and public health, education and research perspectives.

**Population Council** — Fellowships

**Biomedical Fellowships** 

The Population Council offers pre- and postdoctoral biomedical fellowships for advanced study in basic and translational reproductive sciences and HIV and AIDS. Fellows train in the laboratories of the Council's Center for Biomedical Research located on the campus of The Rockefeller University in New York City.

# **Society of Toxicology**

#### Awards & Fellowships

# Susan G. Komen Breast Cancer Foundation

Postdoctoral Fellowships in Basic, Clinical, Translational Research, Public Health or Epidemiology

U.S. Agency for Healthcare Research and Quality (AHRQ) — Research Training and Education

**Health Services Dissertation Awards** 

Postdoctoral Fellowships in Health Services Research

AHRQ provides an array of intramural and extramural predoctoral and postdoctoral educational, research infrastructure and career development grants and opportunities in health services research.

#### Association of Public Health Laboratories — Fellowships

#### Emerging Infectious Diseases (EID) Advanced Training Laboratory Fellowships

The Emerging Infectious Diseases (EID) Laboratory Fellowship, sponsored by APHL and CDC, trains and prepares scientists for careers in public health laboratories and supports public health initiatives related to infectious disease research.

# **Cancer Research And Education Scholarships**

### American Cancer Society — Mentored Training and Career Development Grants

#### Young Cancer Survivors' Scholarships

The American Cancer Society will transition out of the Young Cancer Survivor Scholarship Program by the end of 2013.

#### Graduate Scholarships in Cancer Nursing Practice

Feb This award supports graduate students pursuing a master's degree in cancer nursing or doctorate of nursing practice (DNP).

#### Doctoral Training Grants in Clinical Oncology Social Work

This grant is awarded to qualifying doctoral students at schools of social work that train individuals to conduct research relevant to oncology social work.

#### Physician Training Awards in Preventive Medicine

Awarded to institutions to support physician training in accredited preventive medicine residency programs that provide cancer prevention and control research and practice opportunities. Awards are made for four years.

#### Postdoctoral Fellowships

# <u>U.S. National Institutes of Health (NIH) — Training Programs in the Biomedical Sciences</u>

# Cancer Education and Career Development Program

The program provides support for innovative educational programs that translate knowledge gained from research into public health applications. support the development of curricula that bring recent advances in cancer research, treatment, diagnosis, or other cancer-focused knowledge to a broad audience. Short-term Educational Programs include workshops or courses that provide novel cancer-focused state-of-the-art research or methodological knowledge, or evidence-based cancer prevention and control interventions; Short-term Research Experience Programs: provide participants with a cancer-focused research training experience in a laboratory or field setting. Institutional

Curriculum Development Projects support the development of curricula that bring recent advances in cancer research, treatment, diagnosis, or other cancer-focused knowledge to a broad audience.

#### National Cancer Institute Fellowships and Internships

The cancer training and career development opportunities on NCI's campus cover a broad spectrum of disciplines for individuals at career stages ranging from high school students, graduate students, scientists, clinicians, and healthcare professionals.

#### **American Association for Cancer Research**

#### Awards and Activities for Undergraduates and High School Students

Science Education Awards for Undergraduate Students, Prizes for Cancer and Cancer-Related Biomedical Research, Undergraduate Student Caucus and Poster Competition, Meet the Mentor: Undergraduate Focus, Special Program for High School Students: The Conquest of Cancer and the Next Generation of Cancer Researchers.

<u>Current Funding Opportunities for Postdoctoral or Clinical Research Fellows in Basic, Clinical, Prevention, and Translational Research</u>

#### Cancer Survivors' Fund — Scholarship Program

# College Scholarships for Cancer Survivors

Scholarships are granted for college education of the cancer survivors. Recipients are selected by a committee based on applicants' personal hardship and financial need.

#### **Maryellen Locher Foundation**

# Scholarships for College Students Who Have Lost a Parent to Breast Cancer, or Are Children of Breast Cancer Survivors

MaryEllen Locher Foundation scholarships are given to the children of breast cancer patients, either survivors or deceased. Beginning with the 2014-15 academic year, scholarships are limited to students residing within a 50-mile radius of Chattanooga, Tennessee.

# <u>Oncology Nursing Society Foundation</u>—Academic Scholarships

#### Bachelor's in Nursing Degree Scholarships

Provides scholarships to individuals who are interested in and committed to oncology nursing and pursuing a baccalaureate degree in nursing.

#### Master's and Post-Master's Certificate Scholarships

Provides scholarships to registered nurses who are interested in and committed to oncology nursing to continue their education by pursuing a master's degree in nursing or are pursuing a post-masters CNS or NP certificate.

#### **Doctoral Scholarships**

Provides scholarships to registered nurses who are interested in and committed to oncology nursing to continue their education by pursuing a doctoral degree.

#### **Stephen T. Marchello Scholarship Foundation**

#### Scholarships for Survivors of Childhood Cancer

This scholarship is available for current year high school graduates who have had childhood cancer and are residents of Colorado and Montana.

### Susan G. Komen Breast Cancer Foundation — Research, Evaluation and Scientific Programs

Postdoctoral Fellowships in Basic, Clinical, Translational Research, Public Health or Epidemiology

Breast and Health Disparities Fellowship Programs.

# **Ulman Cancer Fund for Young Adults**

National College Scholarships for Young Adults whose Lives Have Been Impacted by Cancer

#### **Prevent Cancer Foundation**

<u>Postdoctoral Fellowships in Basic, Clinical, Translational and Applied Research, Early Detection, and Education</u> Programs in Cancer Prevention

The grants and fellowships selection process utilizes a research proposal review system similar to that of the National Institutes of Health. The Foundation supports research that demonstrates potential for impact on cancer prevention. The Foundation defines cancer prevention as the "reduction of cancer incidence through research, education and early detection".

### Cancer Research Institute — Grants & Fellowships

# **CRI Irvington Postdoctoral Fellowships**

Fellowships provide support to fund and train young immunologists and cancer immunologists at top universities and research centers around the world.

# **Children's Hospital Of Philadelphia**

# Pediatric Hematology/Oncology Fellowships

The Children's Hospital of Philadelphia offers fellowship opportunities in most medical and surgical subspecialties. Adolescent medicine allergy and immunology, cardiology/cardiothoracic surgery, child abuse and neglect, child and adolescent psychiatry, chop/sicot orthopedic, developmental and behavioral pediatrics, diagnostic pediatric radiology, epilepsy and clinical neurophysiology, general pediatrics, global health, hospice and palliative medicine, interventional radiology, leadership education in neurodevelopmental disabilities (lend), neonatal-perinatal medicine, pediatric anesthesiology, pediatric critical care medicine, pediatric dermatology, pediatric emergency medicine, pediatric endocrinology, pediatric gastroenterology, pediatric hospital and outcomes research training program (pheot), pediatric hematology/oncology, pediatric infectious diseases, pediatric multiple sclerosis, pediatric nephrology, pediatric neuro-oncology, pediatric neuroradiology, pediatric nutrition, pediatric oculoplastic surgery, pediatric ophthalmology, pediatric orthopedics, pediatric otolaryngology, pediatric pathology, pediatric pharmacoepidemiology training program (pptp), pediatric pulmonology, pediatric radiology, pediatric rheumatology, pediatric sleep research, pediatric surgery (general, thoracic and fetal), prenatal diagnosis and fetal therapy, physical therapy neonatology, psychology, sports medicine, urology

## **Damon Runyon Cancer Research Foundation**

#### Postdoctoral Research Fellowships for Basic and Physician Scientists

The Foundation encourages all theoretical and experimental research relevant to the study of cancer and the search for cancer causes, mechanisms, therapies and prevention.

# Scholar Awards to Support the Development of Outstanding Biomedical and Biochemical Scientists

Programs aimed at encouraging and advancing the work of early career cancer researchers with high promise. Each program is designed to address a need or fill a gap in cancer research funding.

#### Clinical Investigator Awards

The Damon Runyon Clinical Investigator Award supports independent young physician-scientists conducting disease-oriented research that demonstrates a high level of innovation and creativity. The goal is to support the best young physician-scientists doing work aimed at improving the practice of cancer medicine.

#### International Agency for Research on Cancer (IARC) — IARC Fellowships for Cancer Research

# Postdoctoral Fellowships for Training in Cancer Research

Applications are invited from junior scientists wishing to complete their training in those aspects of cancer research related to the Agency's mission: to coordinate and conduct both epidemiological and laboratory research into the causes and prevention of cancer. Disciplines covered are: epidemiology (including genetic and molecular),

biostatistics, bioinformatics, and areas related to mechanisms of carcinogenesis including molecular and cell biology, molecular genetics, epigenetics, and molecular pathology. There is an emphasis on interdisciplinary projects.

#### **Expertise Transfer Fellowships**

The major areas of activity are focused on understanding cancer etiology (including infections, nutrition, lifestyle, environment, radiation, genetics), developing strategies for cancer prevention (primary prevention, screening, implementation research) and elucidating the underlying mechanisms of carcinogenesis through studies of molecular and cell biology, molecular genetics, epigenetics and molecular pathology. The Agency also has strong programs dedicated to describing the global cancer burden and to the evaluation of carcinogenicity through its Monographs Program. There is an emphasis on interdisciplinary work in the Agency's research activities.

#### Visiting Scientist Award for Senior Scientists

This award is for a qualified and experienced senior investigator with recent publications in international peer-reviewed scientific journals who wishes to spend from six to twelve months at the IARC working on a collaborative project in a research area related to the Agency's programs. The major areas of activity are focused on understanding cancer etiology (including infections, nutrition, lifestyle, environment, radiation, genetics), developing strategies for cancer prevention (primary prevention, screening, implementation research) and elucidating the underlying mechanisms of carcinogenesis through studies of molecular and cell biology, molecular genetics, epigenetics and molecular pathology. The Agency also has strong programs dedicated to describing the global cancer burden and to the evaluation of carcinogenicity through its Monographs Program. There is an emphasis on interdisciplinary work in the Agency's research activities as well as a focus on biostatistics, bioinformatics and related methodological developments.

#### **International Union against Cancer**

<u>International Cancer Fellowships for Professionals Actively Engaged In Cancer Research, Clinical Oncology, Oncology Nursing, or Cancer Society Work</u>

The fellowships provide opportunities for professional development for cancer investigators, clinicians, nurses, and cancer society staff and volunteers.

#### Leukemia and Lymphoma Society

# Research Grants and Fellowships in Leukemia, Lymphoma, Hodgkin's Disease and Myeloma Research

The Leukemia & Lymphoma Society's (LLS's) academic grants support and encourage basic and translational leukemia, lymphoma and myeloma research. LLS investigators are outstanding scientists at the forefront of leukemia, lymphoma and myeloma research at centers throughout the world. We award academic grants for studies that range from basic blood cancer research to research that uses the latest tools of genomics.

#### **Leukemia Research Foundation**

#### Hollis Brownstein Research Grants Program

The Leukemia Research Foundation exclusively funds New Investigators - individuals beginning to establish their own laboratories that are no longer under the tutelage of a senior scientist mentor.

#### Lymphoma Research Foundation — Grants & Awards

## **Young Investigator Grants**

These programs attract postdoctoral fellows and young physicians to the field of lymphoma and support their training in lymphoma and clinical research.

# **Memorial Sloan-Kettering Cancer Center**

#### Clinical Fellowships

The fellowships prepare physicians for leadership roles in the care of people with cancer around the world. The training ground includes Memorial Hospital for Cancer and Allied Diseases. The proximity and affiliation with New York-Presbyterian Hospital/Weill Cornell Medical Center, Weill Cornell Graduate School of Medical Sciences, and The Rockefeller University also allows the trainees to become part of a world-class medical and scientific community.

#### NURSING SCHOLARSHIPS

## U.S. Health Resources and Services Administration (HRSA) — Loans & Scholarships

## National Health Service Corps (NHSC) Scholarships

May The National Health Service Corps Scholarship (NHSC) Program accepts applications once a year from students who are enrolled or accepted for enrollment at an accredited health professions training program in an eligible primary care discipline: medicine (MD or DO), dentistry, family nurse practitioner, certified nurse midwife or physician assistant. You can apply before your first year or after you have finished one or more years of school.

## **NURSE Corps Scholarships**

May NURSE Corps Scholarship Program enables students accepted or enrolled in a diploma, associate, baccalaureate or graduate nursing programs, including RN to BSN Bridge Program to receive funding for tuition, fees and other educational costs in exchange for working at an eligible Critical Shortage Facility upon graduation. Upon graduation, NURSE Corps Scholarship recipients work at these facilities for at least 2 years, earning the same competitive salary and benefits as any new hire.

#### Scholarships for Disadvantaged Students

The Scholarships for Disadvantaged Students program provides scholarships to full-time, financially needy students from disadvantaged backgrounds, enrolled in health professions and nursing programs. Participating schools are responsible for selecting scholarship recipients.

## Nurse Corps Loan Repayment Program

Feb To be eligible to apply, you must be a licensed registered nurse (nurse practitioners and other advanced practice nurses are encouraged to apply) or nurse faculty, have completed your training (diploma, associate, baccalaureate or graduate), and be employed full time (at least 32 hours per week) at an eligible critical shortage facility.

## National Health Service Corps (NHSC) Loan Repayment Program

Mar The National Health Service Corps recruits primary care medical, dental and behavioral and mental health clinicians who are dedicated to providing care to the Nation's underserved people. In return, they can reduce or eliminate their health professions student debt by providing care at a National Health Service Corps-approved site.

## **Nursing Student Loans**

The Nursing Student Loan program provides long-term, low-interest rate loans to full-time and half-time financially needy students pursuing a course of study leading to a diploma, associate, baccalaureate or graduate degree in nursing.

#### **Oncology Nursing Society Foundation**

#### Academic Scholarships

Feb Bachelor's Scholarships: To improve oncology nursing by assisting nurses in furthering their education at this level.

Master's Scholarships: To provide scholarships to registered nurses who are interested in and committed to oncology nursing to continue their education by pursuing a master's degree in nursing. Doctoral Scholarships: To provide scholarships to registered nurses who are interested in and committed to oncology nursing to continue their education by pursuing a research doctoral degree (PhD or DNSc) or clinical doctoral degree (DNP).

## <u>American Nurses Association</u> — Minority Fellowship Program

#### Minority Fellowship Program

Mar Supported by the Substance Abuse and Mental Health Services Administration (SAMHSA), this program provides 3-5 year fellowships to masters prepared nurses committed to pursuing doctoral study on minority psychiatric-mental health and substance abuse issues.

## **Epilepsy Foundation** — Grant and Fellowship Opportunities

#### Predocotral Research Training Fellowships Related to Epilepsy

Mar Graduate students must be matriculating in a full-time doctoral (Ph.D.) program with an academic career focus.

Areas of interest considered include, but are not limited to neuroscience, physiology, pharmacology, psychology, biochemistry, genetics, nursing, or pharmacy may apply.

#### Postdoctoral Research Training Fellowships Related to Epilepsy

Mar Areas of interest considered include, but are not limited to neuroscience, physiology, pharmacology, psychology,

20 biochemistry, genetics, nursing, or pharmacy.

#### **Tylenol® Future Care Scholarships**

College and graduate scholarships for students who intend to major in public health/health education, medical school, nursing or pharmacy

Jun Students must have completed at least one year of undergraduate or graduate course of study at an accredited two or

30 four year college, university or vocational-technical school.

### Emergency Nurses Association (ENA) Foundation — Research & Scholarships

#### **Nursing Scholarships**

Oct ENA Foundation academic scholarships offered are intended for licensed nurses (RN, LPN, LVN) pursuing their

31 undergraduate, graduate or doctoral degrees.

## <u>U.S. Public Health Service Commissioned Corps</u> — Student Opportunities and Training

Junior Commissioned Officer Student Training and Extern Program (JRCOSTEP)

Dec JRCOSTEP training and extern positions are available to students who have completed at least 1 year of study in a master's or doctoral program or at least 2 years of study in a professionally accredited baccalaureate program in specific health disciplines and meet other program requirements.

### Senior Commissioned Officer Student Training and Extern Program (SRCOSTEP)

Dec SRCOSTEP training and extern positions are available to individuals who are enrolled as full-time students in certain health professions programs with at least 8 months of educational commitment remaining in the final year.

### U.S. Air Force AFROTC — Scholarships

#### Four-Year Nursing College Scholarships for Graduating High School Seniors

The Nursing Scholarship program is operated on a noncompetitive basis - those who meet the qualifications are awarded the scholarship and do not meet a scholarship selection board.

## **U.S. Army ROTC Scholarships**

#### Four-Year Nursing College Scholarships for Graduating High School Seniors

Nursing students who are also Army ROTC Cadets benefit from extensive one-on-one mentoring and training.

## <u>U.S. Army Health Care</u> — Earn Money for College

Army Nurse Candidate Scholarships for Undergraduate Students Pursuing a Bachelor of Science in Nursing

This program is open to undergraduate students pursuing a Bachelor of Science in Nursing from an accredited nursing program.

<u>F. Edward Hébert Armed Forces Health Professions Scholarship Program (HPSP) for Students Pursuing Advanced Degrees in Medicine, Dentistry, Veterinary Science, Psychiatric Nursing, Optometry or Psychology</u>

The U.S. Army can help with one of the most comprehensive scholarships available in the health care field. Qualifying students receive full tuition at any accredited medical, dental, veterinary, psychology or optometry program, plus a generous monthly stipend.

## American Cancer Society — Mentored Training and Career Development Grants

Graduate Scholarships in Cancer Nursing Practice

This award supports graduate students pursuing a master's degree in cancer nursing or doctorate of nursing practice.

## **International Union against Cancer**

<u>International Cancer Fellowships for Professionals Actively Engaged In Cancer Research, Clinical Oncology, Oncology Nursing, or Cancer Society Work</u>

The fellowships provide opportunities for professional development for cancer investigators, clinicians, nurses, and cancer society staff and volunteers.

## National Hemophilia Foundation — Research Grants Program

## Nursing Excellence Fellowships

The purpose of the National Hemophilia Foundation Nursing Fellowship is to provide support for a registered nurse currently employed or interested in hemophilia care to conduct nursing research or clinical projects.

#### **Liberal Arts, Arts And Humanities Scholarships**

#### National Gallery of Art — Interns and Fellows

#### **Graduate Internships**

Jan Internships in the museum profession, graduate curatorial internships, summer internships, and unpaid internships and research assistantships.

#### Curatorial Fellowships

Jan A postgraduate fellowship provides curatorial training and supports scholarly research related to the collections of the National Gallery of Art. A second postgraduate fellowship encourages students to explore interpretive careers in art museums, whether as future museum educators or curators; to strengthen the profession of museum educator within the art museum community; to strengthen ties between museum educators and curators in the shared task of interpretive programming in art museums; and to expand the range of promising career options available to students of art history and related fields.

#### Predoctoral and Postdoctoral Conservation Fellowships

Fellowships to enable graduates of conservation programs to participate in the Gallery's mission to care for the collections. The program allows novice conservators to practice and refine their skills through the examination and treatment of works of art.

## <u>Smithsonian Institution</u> — Fellowship and Internship Opportunities

## Graduate, Predoctoral and Postdoctoral Fellowships

Jan A list of current fellowship opportunities at the Smithsonian, sorted by unit. Use this list to get a better sense about where you might like to pursue a fellowship at the Smithsonian.

#### Smithsonian American Art Museum Predoctoral and Postdoctoral Fellowships in American Art and Visual Culture

Jan The Smithsonian American Art Museum and its Renwick Gallery invite applications for research fellowships in art
 and visual culture of the United States. Fellowships are residential and support full-time independent and dissertation research.

#### American Antiquarian Society — Fellowships

## **Short-TermVisiting Academic Research Fellowships**

Jan Academic research fellowships tenable for one to three months each year. Available for scholars holding the Ph.D.
 and for doctoral candidates engaged in dissertation research. Candidates holding a recognized terminal degree appropriate to the area of proposed research, such as the master's degree in library science or M.F.A., are also eligible to apply.

#### Fellowships for Creative and Performing Artists and Writers

Oct Visiting fellowships for historical research by creative and performing artists, writers, film makers, journalists, and other persons whose goals are to produce imaginative, non-formulaic works dealing with pre-twentieth-century American history. Successful applicants are those whose work is for the general public rather than for academic or educational audiences.

## Mellon Post-Dissertation Fellowships

Oct The purpose of the fellowship is to provide the recipient with time and resources to extend research and/or to revise the dissertation for publication. Any topic relevant to the Society's library collections and programmatic scope--that is, American history and culture through 1876--is eligible. Scholars who are no more than three years beyond receipt of the doctorate are eligible to apply for the fellowship.

## <u>Council of American Overseas Research Centers (CAORC)</u> — Fellowships

Multi-Country Research Fellowship

Jan Supports advanced regional or trans-regional research in the humanities, social sciences, or allied natural sciences

for U.S. doctoral candidates and scholars who have already earned their Ph.D. Preference will be given to candidates examining comparative and/or cross-regional research. Applicants are eligible to apply as individuals or in teams.

## Mediterranean Regional Research Fellowship

Jan Enables pre- and early post-doctoral scholars to carry out research in the humanities and related social sciences in

31 countries bordering the Mediterranean and served by American overseas research centers.

#### **Folger Institute**

#### Research Fellowships

1

Mar 1 Nov The Folger Shakespeare Library offers residential research Fellowships to encourage use of its exceptional collections and to encourage ongoing cross-disciplinary dialogue among scholars of the early modern period. Each year scholars may compete for a limited number of Long-term and Short-term Fellowships.

## Athenaeum of Philadelphia

## Research Fellowships and Internships in Architecture and Building Technology

Mar Senior Fellows must be persons who hold a terminal degree and possess a distinguished record of accomplishment.

Internships for periods of up to four months are awarded to graduate students enrolled full time in an architecture or historic preservation program.

#### **Center for Architecture Foundation**—Fellowships and Grants

Eleanor Allwork Scholarship — Up to \$10,000

Mar Merit-based scholarships support architecture students with demonstrated financial need.

Center for Architecture Design Scholarship — Up to \$5,000

Mar Merit-based scholarships that support students studying architecture or a related discipline with demonstrated

15 financial need.

## Walter A. Hunt, Jr. Scholarship — \$7,500 per year for two years

May A two-year scholarship to supplement tuition and related costs only for New York public high school students

applying to NAAB-accredited schools of architecture in New York State.

#### Penn Faculty Research Fellowships

Mar The Penn Humanities Forum awards a small number of fellowships each year to Penn faculty in the humanities and

allied departments. The fellowships are for research that relates to the Forum's theme for the year in which the award is granted.

#### Regional Faculty and Professional Mellon Research Fellowships

Mar The Penn Humanities Forum each year offers a small number of \$5000 fellowships for standing faculty in the

15 humanities from Philadelphia-area colleges and universities and for directors and curators of Philadelphia-area cultural organizations.

#### Andrew W. Mellon Postdoctoral Fellowship in the Humanities

Oct The Penn Humanities Forum awards one-year Andrew W. Mellon Postdoctoral Fellowships each academic year to

15 junior scholars in the humanities who are not yet tenured (may not be tenured during the fellowship year).

#### American Planning Association — Scholarships and Fellowships

College Scholarships and Graduate Fellowships for Minorities and Women — \$2,000 to \$4,000

Apr The American Planning Association awards are made to students currently enrolled in degree programs in Planning or a closely related field.

#### Rice University, Humanities Research Center

## Andrew W. Mellon Postdoctoral Fellowships

Sep The HRC awards up to three postdoctoral fellowships for two-year appointments. The fellowships are designed to encourage interdisciplinary scholarship and teaching. Fellows teach two courses per academic year, and are expected to make significant progress in their research.

## <u>John Simon Guggenheim Memorial Foundation</u>—Fellowships to Assist Research and Artistic Creation <u>United States and Canadian Competition</u>

Sep Guggenheim Fellowships are intended for men and women who have already demonstrated exceptional capacity for productive scholarship or exceptional creative ability in the arts.

## **Latin American and Caribbean Competition**

Guggenheim Fellowships are intended for men and women who have already demonstrated exceptional capacity for productive scholarship or exceptional creative ability in the arts.

#### American Council of Learned Societies — Fellowships and Grants

## Frederick Burkhardt Residential Fellowships for Recently Tenured Scholars

These fellowships support long-term, unusually ambitious projects in the humanities and related social sciences. The ultimate goal of the project should be a major piece of scholarly work by the applicant. ACLS does not fund creative work (e.g., novels or films), textbooks, straightforward translation, or pedagogical projects.

## ACLS/SSRC/NEH International and Area Studies Fellowships and ACLS/New York Public Library Residential Fellowships

Sep The ACLS Fellowships are intended as salary replacement to help scholars devote six to twelve continuous months to full-time research and writing. ACLS Fellowships are portable and are tenable at the fellow's home institution, abroad, or at another appropriate site for research.

#### Early Career Postdoctoral Fellowships in East European Studies

Nov The American Council of Learned Societies offers support for postdoctoral research and writing in East European studies in all disciplines of the humanities and social sciences.

#### Henry Luce Foundation/ACLS Dissertation Fellowships in American Art

Oct The Fellowships in American Art are designated for graduate students in any stage of Ph.D. dissertation research or writing.

#### American Research in the Humanities in China Fellows

Oct The Committee on Scholarly Communications with China (CSCC) Program awards grants to U.S. scholars for research in China for periods of 4-12 months.

#### Dissertation Fellowships in East European Studies

Funding is offered for two types of support: Research Fellowships for use in Eastern Europe to conduct fieldwork or archival investigations. Writing Fellowships for use outside of Eastern Europe, after all research is complete, to write the dissertation.

## Notre Dame Institute for Advanced Study (NDIAS) — Fellowships

## **Graduate Student Fellowships**

- Oct The NDIAS offers fellowships to advanced graduate students for a full academic year (fall and spring semesters,
- 15 August through May). The Institute also encourages graduate students to address ultimate questions and questions of

value while a member of the Institute's academic community. Graduate fellowships range up to a maximum of \$25,000 (gross amount) and include a \$1,000 research account, office facilities in the Institute, a computer and printer, access to University libraries and other facilities, and weekly Institute seminars and events.

## Residential Fellowships

Oct
15 The NDIAS offers residential fellowships for periods ranging from three weeks to a full academic year (fall and spring semesters, August through May). Fellowships range up to a maximum of \$60,000 (gross amount) per academic year (up to a maximum of \$30,000 [gross amount] per semester) or pro-rated amounts for shorter periods. In addition, fellows who do not reside in the greater Michiana area are provided with subsidized visiting faculty housing located adjacent to the University during their fellowship.

## **Templeton Fellowships**

Oct Templeton Fellowships provide the opportunity and the environment for distinguished scholars to rethink basic
assumptions underlying their academic disciplines and to pursue advanced and creative research on one of the
following questions: What is human creativity and how does it manifest itself? What is the place of the human mind
in nature? How do the life sciences and the humanities contribute to an explanation of the unique features of
humans? How can the plurality of religious traditions be integrated with a philosophical monotheism?

#### Dumbarton Oaks Research Library and Collection — Fellowships

## Short-Term Pre-Doctoral Residencies

Dumbarton Oaks offers a limited number of Short-Term Pre-Doctoral Residencies for advanced graduate students who are preparing for their PhD general exams, writing their doctoral dissertations, or expecting relevant final degrees in the field of Byzantine, Pre-Columbian, or Garden and Landscape studies.

#### Fellowships, Junior Fellowships and Summer Fellowships

Nov Residential fellowships in three areas of study: Byzantine Studies (including related aspects of late Roman, early Christian, Western medieval, Slavic, and Near Eastern studies), Pre-Columbian Studies (of Mexico, Central America, and Andean South America), and Garden and Landscape Studies.

#### **International Study Abroad Scholarships**

#### **U.S. Department of Education**

## Fulbright-Hays Doctoral Dissertation Research Abroad Program in Modern Foreign Languages and Area Studies

Apr This program provides grants to colleges and universities to fund individual doctoral students who conduct research in other countries, in modern foreign languages and area studies for periods of six to 12 months. Graduate students in doctoral programs in the fields of foreign languages and area studies must apply through the institutions in which they are enrolled.

#### Foreign Language and Area Studies (FLAS) Graduate Fellowships

Jun The program provides allocations of academic year and summer fellowships to institutions of higher education or consortia of institutions of higher education to assist meritorious undergraduate students and graduate students undergoing training in modern foreign languages and related area or international studies. Eligible students apply for fellowships directly to an institution that has received an allocation of fellowships from the U.S. Department of Education.

## Organization of American States (OAS) — Scholarships for Academic Studies (Undergraduate, Masters, Doctorates) OAS Scholarships for Graduate Studies or Graduate Research

Apr OAS Academic Scholarships are awarded for full-time studies at a university or higher learning education institution in an OAS Member State with the exception of the applicant's sponsoring country. OAS Academic Scholarships are awarded to undertake graduate studies (Master's or Doctorate degree) and/or graduate research leading to a degree at a university or higher learning education institution (Not Post-Doctorate) in an OAS Member State. Studies may be carried out onsite or online, or under a combination of both. OAS Academic Scholarships are awarded for a maximum of two academic years.

#### OAS Scholarships for Undergraduate Academic Studies

OAS academic scholarships for undergraduate studies are offered to citizens of English and Dutch-Speaking Caribbean Member States for full time studies in any OAS Member State, with the exception of the candidate's sponsoring country. OAS undergraduate scholarships are awarded for the last two years of studies leading to an undergraduate degree (Bachelor's degree or its equivalent), in universities of the OAS Member States. The studies can be undertaken onsite, online or a combination of both. OAS Academic Scholarships are awarded for a maximum of two academic years. Selected candidates are required to graduate within that period.

## Educational Loans for Studies in the United States

The Rowe Fund, is an educational loan program of the Organization of American States (OAS). The Fund helps citizens from Latin America and the Caribbean OAS Member countries finance their studies or research in accredited universities across the United States by awarding interest-free loans.

## Professional Development Scholarships

The Department of Human Development, Education and Culture (DHDEC) of the General Secretariat of the Organization of American States (OAS) offer professional development scholarships to citizens of OAS Member States. Professional Development courses aim to expand or refresh participants' professional expertise in areas of specialization related to the priority development areas of the OAS. OAS Member States have approved the following priority areas for Partnership for Development: education, social development and creation of productive employment, economic diversification and integration, trade liberalization and market access, scientific development and exchange and transfer of technology, strengthening of democratic institutions, sustainable development of tourism, sustainable development and the environment, culture.

## <u>International Centre for Genetic Engineering and Biotechnology — Fellowships</u>

## The Arturo Falaschi ICGEB Programmes - Predoctoral, Postdoctoral and Flexible Fellowships

Apr The Arturo Falaschi ICGEB Fellowships programme offers long and short-term fellowships to assist in the training of scientists from Member States.

## Wildlife Conservation Society — Grants and Opportunities

## WCS Graduate Scholarships — \$30,000-\$36,000

Apr The Graduate Scholarship Program provides access to international standard graduate education opportunities (master's or doctoral programs) to exceptional conservationists from Asia/Pacific, Africa, Latin America, and North American indigenous groups with interests in terrestrial or marine conservation issues at the local, regional, or national level. Only applicants nominated by WCS country program directors will be considered. No unsolicited applications are reviewed or acknowledged.

#### Eisenhower Exchange Fellowships — USA and International Programs

#### **USA Fellowships**

Jun Eisenhower Fellows are selected from among outstanding leaders, in all fields, from throughout the United States.

13 They are U.S. citizens or legal permanent residents aged 32-45. Successful applicants demonstrate in their application that they have demonstrated significant accomplishments within their communities and their professions, and have high potential for further growth and broader impact; they propose a fellowship program that takes full advantage of this unique opportunity; they identify how they will undertake consequential activities that will better the world around them as a result of their fellowship; and they have committed to engage actively with the global Eisenhower Fellowship network throughout their lifetime.

## **International Fellowships**

International Eisenhower Fellowships are awarded for a specific seven-week period and cannot be postponed. The programs typically involve visits to 8-10 cities and 50-70 individual appointments. Fellows join together for seminars at the beginning and end of each program, laying the foundation for life-long international friendships.

#### Rotary Foundation — Create a Scholarship

### Peace Fellowships

Jul 1 Rotary Peace Fellows are leaders promoting national and international cooperation, peace, and the successful resolution of conflict throughout their lives, in their careers, and through service activities. Fellows can earn either a master's degree in international relations, public administration, sustainable development, peace studies, conflict resolution, or a related field, or a professional development certificate in peace and conflict resolution.

## <u>U.S. Department of State, Bureau of Educational and Cultural Affairs</u> — <u>Exchange Programs</u> Foreign Fulbright Fellowship Graduate Student Program

The Fulbright Foreign Student Program enables graduate students, young professionals and artists from abroad to study and conduct research in the United States. The Fulbright Foreign Student Program operates in more than 155 countries worldwide. Approximately 4,000 foreign students receive Fulbright scholarships each year. Program eligibility and selection procedures vary widely by country. Foreign Fulbrights apply to the program through the Fulbright Commission/Foundation or U.S. Embassy in their home countries.

#### Fulbright Foreign Language Teaching Assistant (FLTA)

The Fulbright FLTA Program is designed to develop Americans' knowledge of foreign cultures and languages by supporting teaching assistantships in over 30 languages at hundreds of U.S. institutions of higher education. The program offers educators from over 50 countries the opportunity to develop their professional skills and gain first-hand knowledge of the U.S., its culture and its people. Fulbright FLTAs apply to the program through the Fulbright Commission/Foundation or U.S. Embassy in their home countries.

## International Fulbright Science & Technology Award

The Fulbright S&T Award is designed to be the most prestigious international scholarship in science and technology and to demonstrate the United States' commitment to welcoming top-notch future researchers and leaders to pursue serious scientific study and research at U.S. institutions. It supports doctoral study at leading U.S. institutions in science, technology, engineering or related fields for outstanding foreign students.

## Fulbright Fellowship U.S. Scholar Program

Aug The programs offer U.S. faculty, administrators and professionals grants to lecture, conduct research in a wide variety of academic and professional fields, or to participate in seminars abroad.

## The Hubert H. Humphrey Fellowship Program

Oct A year of professional enrichment in the United States for experienced professionals from designated countries undergoing development or political transition. The Hubert H. Humphrey Fellowship Program provides ten months of non-degree academic study and related professional experiences in the United States. Humphrey Fellows are selected based on their potential for leadership and their commitment to public service in either the public or the private sector.

#### Gilman International Scholarships

Oct This scholarship provides awards for U.S. undergraduate students who are receiving Federal Pell Grant funding at a two-year or four-year college or university to participate in study abroad programs worldwide.

#### Fulbright Fellowship U.S. Student Program

Oct 13 The Fulbright Fellowship U.S. Student Program offers fellowships for U.S. graduating college seniors, graduate students, young professionals and artists to study, conduct research, and/or teach English abroad. In addition, Critical Language Enhancement Awards are available to grantees for study of critical need foreign languages before or during their grant period.

#### The Distinguished Fulbright Awards in Teaching Program

Nov Highly accomplished U.S. primary and secondary level teachers of all subjects, guidance counselors, curriculum specialists, curriculum heads, Talented and Gifted coordinators, Special Education coordinators and media specialists/librarians may apply for this professional development program to carry out a course of study for three to six months abroad.

# <u>U.S. National Institutes of Health (NIH)</u> — *Training Programs in the Biomedical Sciences* Fulbright-Fogarty Postdoctoral Research Grants in Public Health

Oct Fulbright-Fogarty U.S. scholar grants promote post-doctoral research in public health in resource-limited settings.

Scholars who received their Ph.D. or other appropriate terminal degree within the past five years are eligible to

apply.

#### Fulbright-Fogarty Fellowships in Public Health

Oct The program is designed for candidates who are currently enrolled in medical school or in a graduate-level program and who are interested in global health. The basic requirements and process for applying for the Fulbright-Fogarty Program are the same as for any Fulbright U.S. Student Study/Research Grant.

## U.S. Agency for International Development (USAID) — Egypt

## The LOTUS Scholarship Program

Aug Comprehensive scholarship packages for Egyptian undergraduate students to attend private universities in Egypt, pursue a semester study abroad opportunity in the United States, develop leadership potentials, and enhance employability and career options.

#### U.S. National Science Foundation (NSF) — Find Funding

International Research Experiences for Students (IRES)

Aug

The International Research Experiences for Students (IRES) program supports development of globally-engaged U.S. science and engineering students capable of performing in an international research environment at the forefront of science and engineering. The IRES program supports active research participation by students enrolled as undergraduates or graduate students in any of the areas of research funded by the National Science Foundation.

IRES projects involve students in meaningful ways in ongoing research programs or in research projects specifically designed for the IRES program.

#### East Asia and Pacific Summer Institutes for U.S. Graduate Students (EAPSI)

Nov The East Asia and Pacific Summer Institutes (EAPSI) provide U.S. graduate students in science and engineering: 1)
12 first-hand research experiences in Australia, China, Japan, Korea, New Zealand, Singapore or Taiwan; 2) an
introduction to the science, science policy, and scientific infrastructure of the respective location; and 3) an
orientation to the society, culture and language.

## **African Women in Agricultural Research and Development (AWARD)**

#### Fellowships for African Women in Agricultural Research

Aug African women working in agricultural research and development from Ethiopia, Ghana, Kenya, Liberia, Malawi,
 Mozambique, Nigeria, Rwanda, Tanzania, Uganda, and Zambia who have completed a bachelor's, master's or doctoral degree in selected disciplines are invited to apply. Applicants must be nationals of the above listed countries and be available in Africa throughout the fellowship period.

## <u>Alexander von Humboldt Foundation — Sponsorship</u>

## German Chancellor Scholarships

Sep Submit an application if you are a prospective leader from the USA, the Russian Federation or the People's Republic of China and, having completed your first degree (at least a Bachelor's or comparable degree), have subsequently gained work experience and have already shown outstanding leadership potential in your career.

## Post-Doctoral Fellowships Scientists and Scholars

Whether you are a young postdoctoral researcher at the beginning of your academic career, an experienced, established academic, or even a world authority in your discipline - the research fellowships and research awards offer you sponsorship tailored to you and to your career situation.

#### British Council - USA — Study in the United Kingdom

#### Undergraduate Study in the United Kingdom

Sep England, Scotland, Wales and Northern Ireland are home to some of the world's top universities. Many of them are less expensive than the average four-year private American university - and many accept US financial aid.

#### Graduate Study in the United Kingdom

Earn a master's degree in the UK in only one year and without taking the GRE exam. Climb to the next phase in your career and save money and time with a one-year graduate degree in the UK.

#### **Atsumi International Scholarship Foundation**

## Atsumi Ph.D. Graduate Scholarships

Sep Tenable at schools located in the Kanto Area in Japan.

## **Rhodes Scholarship Trust, Oxford University**

#### **Rhodes Scholarships**

30

Oct The Rhodes Scholarships bring outstanding students from many countries around the world to the University of Oxford. Rhodes Scholarships provide all expenses for two or three years of study at the University of Oxford in England, and may allow funding in some instances for four years.

## Foreign and Commonwealth Office, United Kingdom — Funding Programs

## Marshall Scholarships

Oct Marshall Scholarships finance young Americans of high ability to study for a graduate degree in the United

1 Kingdom. To be eligible for a Marshall Scholarship, candidates must be citizens of the United States of America and hold their first undergraduate degree from an accredited four-year college or university in the United States.

## British Chevening Scholarships for Overseas Students to Study in the United Kingdom

Nov Chevening Scholarships are for talented people who have been identified as potential future leaders across a wide

range of fields including politics, business, the media, civil society, religion and academia. Most scholars undertake a one year master's degree.

## National Academy of Engineering — NAE Grand Challenge Scholars

Charles M. Vest NAE Grand Challenges for Engineering — International Scholarships

Oct The Charles M. Vest NAE Grand Challenges for Engineering™ International Scholarship Program provides a new opportunity for graduate students at selected international universities to pursue research addressing a global Grand Challenge at a leading United States university - with all expenses paid for a year of travel and study.

#### <u>US-Ireland Alliance</u> — Scholarships

George J. Mitchell Scholarships for Graduate Study in Ireland and Northern Ireland

Oct Mitchell Scholars are chosen for one year of postgraduate study in any discipline offered by institutions of higher learning in Ireland and Northern Ireland. The Program provides tuition, accommodations, a living expenses stipend, and an international travel stipend.

## International WaterCentre (IWC) — Scholarships

#### **IWC Water Leader Scholarships**

Oct Every year, the International WaterCentre (IWC) offers scholarships to a small number of excellent candidates who are accepted into the IWC Master of Integrated Water Management (MIWM).

#### **Canadian Merit Scholarship Foundation**

Loran Awards for Graduating Canadian High School Students

Oct The Loran Award is open to every graduating high school or cegep student from coast-to-coast. Renewable for up to four years, it includes an annual tuition waiver and a stipend, access to funding and internships through our summer program, invitations to annual gatherings and forums, and mentorship opportunities.

#### \_\_\_\_

## Garfield Weston Merit Scholarship for Colleges

The program is designed to recognize outstanding college-bound students who show a strong commitment to their fields of study and are interested in making positive contributions to their communities.

#### **Henry Luce Foundation**

#### Henry Luce Scholars

Nov The program provides stipends, language training, and individualized professional placement in Asia for 15-18 Luce Scholars each year, and welcomes applications from college seniors, graduate students, and young professionals in a variety of fields who have had limited exposure to Asia. Luce Scholar candidates are nominated by participating colleges and universities.

## <u>Robert Bosch Foundation</u> — Scholarships

#### Graduate Fellowships for Study in Germany

The Robert Bosch Foundation Fellowship Program is a distinguished transatlantic initiative that each year offers

Nov twenty accomplished young Americans the opportunity to complete a high-level professional development program

in Germany; for students in business administration, journalism, law, public policy and closely related fields.

#### American Academy in Rome — Apply

#### Rome Prize

Nov 1 Nov 15 Pre- and postdoctoral fellowships for gifted American artists and scholars. Each year, the Rome Prize is awarded to thirty emerging artists and scholars in the early or middle stages of their careers who represent the highest standard of excellence in the arts and humanities.

## Affiliated Fellowships

The Academy is host to recipients of other fellowships and awards offered by educational and cultural organizations around the world. These Affiliated Fellows reside at the Academy for periods from four weeks to eleven months and add to the diversity of the Academy artistic and scholarly community.

#### **Thomas J. Watson Foundation**

### Thomas J. Watson Fellowships for Study Abroad by Graduating Seniors

Nov You are eligible to apply for the Watson if you are a graduating senior nominated by one of 40 partner colleges. All majors and fields of inquiry are eligible. Please contact your campus advisor for details. We do not accept at-large applications.

## **Winston Churchill Foundation**

#### Winston Churchill Scholarships

Nov A year of graduate study in engineering, mathematics, and science at Churchill College, Cambridge University.

# <u>Schlumberger Foundation</u> — Faculty for the Future Graduate and Postdoctoral Fellowships Faculty for the Future Fellowships for Women from Developing and Emerging Economies

Nov Faculty for the Future fellowships are awarded to women from developing and emerging economies who are preparing for PhD or post-doctoral study in the physical sciences, engineering, or related disciplines to pursue advanced graduate study at top universities in their disciplines abroad. Related disciplines may also be awarded. For example, awards in biological sciences are limited to interdisciplinary research between physical and biological sciences.

#### <u>Howard Hughes Medical Institute</u> — Opportunities for Individuals

## International Student Research Fellowships

Nov This fellowship program supports outstanding international predoctoral students studying in the United States who are ineligible for fellowships or training grants through U.S. federal agencies. Participation is by invitation only. Nominated students must be in their second or third year of study to apply for the fellowship. To activate the fellowship, students must be in the third or fourth year of a PhD program at one of the designated institutions. Students in the first, second, or fifth year of their PhD programs cannot activate the fellowship. In no case will support be provided past year five of a PhD program.

## Fellowships, Grants and Awards for Study for Scandinavians in America

The American-Scandinavian Foundation (ASF) offers funding to Scandinavians to undertake study or research programs (usually at the graduate level) in the United States for up to one year. Awards are made in all fields.

# <u>American Association of University Women (AAUW) Educational Foundation</u>—<u>Educational Funding and Awards</u> <u>International Fellowships for Women</u>

Dec International Fellowships are awarded for full-time study or research in the United States to women who are not United States citizens or permanent residents. Both graduate and postgraduate study at accredited institutions are supported. Several fellowships are available for study outside of the U.S.

## <u>U.S. National Institutes of Health (NIH) — Training Programs in the Biomedical Sciences, Graduate Partnerships Program (GPP)</u>

## National Institutes of Health-Oxford-Cambridge Scholars

Dec The National Institutes of Health Oxford-Cambridge Scholars Program is an accelerated, individualized doctoral training program for outstanding science students committed to biomedical research careers. The program is based on the British system in which students perform doctoral research without required formal courses other than those which students choose to take in relationship to their own interests.

#### Maureen and Mike Mansfield Foundation — Exchanges

#### Mike Mansfield Fellowships

Dec The two-year fellowships enable U.S. federal government employees to develop an in-depth understanding of Japan, learn how its government works, and establish relationships with their counterparts in the government of Japan as well as in the business, professional and academic communities.

#### Social Science Research Council — Fellowships and Grants

Next Generation Social Sciences in Africa Doctoral Dissertation Proposal Fellowships — Up to \$3,000

Dec Supports short-term research to develop a doctoral dissertation proposal. The fellowships support dissertations and research on peace, security, and development topics for sub-Saharan African citizens studying in Ghana, Nigeria, South Africa, Tanzania, and Uganda.

#### Next Generation Social Sciences in Africa Doctoral Dissertation Research Fellowships — Up to \$15,000

Dec Supports 9-12 months of dissertation research on a topic related to peace, security, and development. The fellowships support dissertations and research on peace, security, and development topics for sub-Saharan African citizens studying in Ghana, Nigeria, South Africa, Tanzania, and Uganda.

#### Next Generation Social Sciences in Africa Doctoral Dissertation Completion Fellowships — Up to \$15,000

Dec Supports a one-year leave from teaching responsibilities to permit the completion of a dissertation that advances research on peace, security, and development topics. The fellowships support dissertations and research on peace, security, and development topics for sub-Saharan African citizens studying in Ghana, Nigeria, South Africa, Tanzania, and Uganda.

## International Dissertation Field Research Fellowships (IDRF) — Average of \$20,000

Nov The Mellon International Dissertation Research Fellowship (IDRF) offers nine to twelve months of support to
4 graduate students in the humanities and humanistic social sciences who are enrolled in PhD programs in the United
States and conducting dissertation research on non-US topics. The program is open to graduate students in the
humanities and social sciences - regardless of citizenship - enrolled in doctoral programs in the United States and
conducting dissertation research outside of the United States.

## **Bill and Melinda Gates Foundation**

#### The Gates Cambridge Scholarships

Dec 2 Oct Gates Cambridge Scholarships are prestigious, highly competitive full-cost scholarships. They are awarded to outstanding applicants from countries outside the UK to pursue a full-time postgraduate degree in any subject available at the University of Cambridge.

#### 15

#### **Leifur Eiríksson Foundation**

#### **Graduate Scholarships**

Dec The Leifur Eirlksson Foundation funds scholars from U.S. universities for graduate research or study at universities in Iceland, and scholars from universities in Iceland to conduct research or study at universities in the United States.

## Kosciuszko Foundation — KF Scholarship Programs

## Tuition Scholarships — Up to \$7,000

Jan Tuition Scholarships support American students of Polish descent for graduate studies in any field at colleges and
 universities in the United States. The scholarship program also supports masters degree studies at the Jagiellonian
 University Center for European Studies and various English Schools of Medicine in Poland. United States citizens of
 non-Polish descent may apply for funding when their studies are primarily focused on Polish subjects.

#### **East-West Center** — Scholarships and Fellowships

#### Visiting Fellowships

Dec The East-West Center offers several opportunities for scholars to conduct research at the Center.

## College Scholarships and Graduate Fellowships for Study in the Asia Pacific Region

Dec The East-West Center offers a wide variety of both short- and long-term programs for individuals. Academic scholarships and fellowships as well as educational exchange and professional development programs are available.

## Journalism Fellowships and Exchanges

Journalism fellowships and exchanges for working American and Asia Pacific journalists promote understanding of the complexities of the Asia Pacific region through study tours. Intensive dialogue with colleagues, government officials, business executives and community leaders provides participants with a means to broaden their network of contacts.

#### <u>American School of Classical Studies at Athens</u>—Fellowships and Grants

#### **Graduate Fellowships**

Jan

20

Jan Scholars or advanced graduate students in classical and ancient Mediterranean studies or related fields who have a specific project that requires extended residence in Greece.

#### Grassroots Development Fellowship Program

Ph.D. candidates who are currently enrolled at a U.S. university and are citizens of the United States or of an independent country in Latin America or the Caribbean, except Cuba, may apply. Before beginning research funded under the IAF Fellowship, students must have advanced to candidacy for a Ph.D. in the social sciences, physical sciences, technical fields or other disciplines as related to grassroots development issues in Latin America or the Caribbean.

## Council of American Overseas Research Centers (CAORC) — Fellowships

#### Multi-Country Research Fellowship

Jan Supports advanced regional or trans-regional research in the humanities, social sciences, or allied natural sciences for U.S. doctoral candidates and scholars who have already earned their Ph.D. Preference will be given to candidates examining comparative and/or cross-regional research. Applicants are eligible to apply as individuals or in teams.

## Mediterranean Regional Research Fellowship

Jan Enables pre- and early post-doctoral scholars to carry out research in the humanities and related social sciences in countries bordering the Mediterranean and served by American overseas research centers.

## Whitaker International Fellows and Scholars Program — Fellowships and Scholarships

#### Predoctoral Fellowships and Postdoctoral Scholarships in Bioengineering & Biomedical Engineering

Jan The Whitaker International Fellows and Scholars Program sends emerging leaders in U.S. biomedical engineering (or bioengineering) to undertake a self-designed project that will enhance their own careers within the field in over 25 countries worldwide.

Summer Grants for Current Master's or Ph.D. Students at a U.S. Institution in Bioengineering or Biomedical Engineering

Feb The Summer Grants Program will provide U.S. bioengineers and biomedical engineers funding to pursue a summer (8 weeks) of high-quality research, internship in an industry setting or coursework relevant to their field of focus in biomedical engineering (BME), in an international setting.

## German Academic Exchange Service — Introduction to DAAD Scholarships

## College Scholarships for U.S. and Canadian Undergraduates

Jan Explore the fellowships for anything from a three-week summer course to the entire year after you graduate.

## Scholarships and Fellowships for International Students

If you have no current affiliation with Canada or the United States, there are other DAAD offices to assist you. The greater DAAD organization offers funding programs in all countries for those who wish to pursue study or research in Germany.

#### Ecole Polytechnique FédéRale de Lausanne (EPFL), Switzerland

#### Summer Research Fellowships in the School of Life Sciences

Jan The program will offer an intensive research training opportunity to undergraduate students interested in research careers in life sciences.

#### **Royal Bank Financial Group**

#### **Aboriginal Student Awards**

Feb College scholarships for native Canadian students in disciplines relevant to the banking industry (e.g., business, economics, computer science).

## York University, Canada — York Scholarships, Awards & Bursaries

## Elia Scholars - Doctoral Students in any Field of Graduate Studies

Mar The Elia Scholars Program is York University's most prestigious graduate award, enabling York to attract domestic and international doctoral students of the highest possible caliber, and ensuring that those students have the opportunity to participate in York's distinguished graduate programs.

#### Scholarships for International Students

There are a number of scholarships and bursaries available from York for international students.

#### Scholarships for Canadian High-School Students

Awarded automatically based on academic performance or awarded through an application process.

## Scholarships for Canadian Transfer and Mature Students

Awarded automatically based on academic performance or awarded through an application process.

## Global Sustainable Electricity Partnership — Education for Sustainable Energy Development

Education for Sustainable Energy Development Graduate Scholarships for Citizens of Developing Countries

Mar The purpose of the ESED scholarship is to support outstanding students pursuing advanced studies in sustainable energy development and to encourage meaningful contributions to the collective body of knowledge about this subject.

#### The Royal Society — Schemes

## Newton International Fellowships

#### Mar

Postdoctoral Fellowships in the Natural or Social Sciences, Engineering or Humanities for Study in the United Kingdom. This scheme is for non-UK scientists who are at an early stage of their research career and wish to conduct research in the UK. Sir Isaac Newton FRS (1642-1727) was President of the Royal Society from 1723 until

his death. The scheme provides the opportunity for the best early stage post-doctoral researchers from all over the world to work at UK research institutions for a period of two years.

#### Latin American School of Medicine, Havana, Cuba

## Full Scholarship to Study Medicine at the Latin American School of Medicine, Havana, Cuba

Mar A six-year program of study, which includes two years of basic sciences, three years of classwork and clinical rotations at accredited teaching hospitals, and a rotatory clinical internship in the sixth year.

## World Bank — Scholarship and Fellowship Programs

### Japan Indonesia Presidential Scholarship Program

Supports PhD studies in an academic field of study covered by ten Indonesian Centers of Excellence (CoE) participating in the program.

## Joint Japan World Bank Graduate (JJ/WBG) Scholarships for Developing Countries

Mar The program provides opportunities for graduate and postgraduate studies leading to masters' and doctoral degrees in development-related fields for mid-career professionals and researchers. Unlike most other well-known programs it does not focus on a specific region, group, hosting institution or country, or field of study. Except for a small funding window for Japanese citizens, the only major restrictions are: scholars from developing countries pursue abroad graduate studies in one of our partner or preferred university graduate programs, and upon graduation scholars return home to contribute to the development of their country.

## Robert S. McNamara Doctoral Thesis Fellowships

- Jul The awards provides support to young researchers working in academic and research institutions from eligible
- 31 countries preparing a doctoral thesis. Research grants cover residence costs for a 5 to 10 month period in a renowned university or research center.

#### U.S. Department of State — Bureau of Educational and Cultural Affairs (ECA)

<u>Undergraduate and Graduate Programs in Languages and Area Studies in the Newly Independent States (NIS) of the Former Soviet Union</u>

Feb Substantial financial aid is available through American Councils for graduate students, faculty, and advanced

undergraduates who wish to participate in this program; all financial aid applicants are considered for merit scholarships. Armenia, Azerbaijan, Belarus, Georgia, Kazakhstan, Kyrgyzstan, Moldova, Russia, Tajikistan, Turkmenistan, Ukraine, and Uzbekistan.

## The Critical Language Scholarship Program

Nov The Critical Language Scholarship (CLS) Program offers fully-funded summer language institutes for U.S.

university students. Azerbaijani, Bangla/Bengali, Hindi, Indonesian, Korean, Punjabi, Turkish, and Urdu: Beginning, advanced beginning, intermediate and advanced levels; Arabic and Persian: Advanced beginning, intermediate and advanced levels; Chinese, Japanese, and Russian: Intermediate and advanced levels.

## <u>American Museum of Natural History</u>—Fellowship and Grant Opportunities

#### **International Graduate Student Fellowships**

The Center for Biodiversity and Conservation (CBC) created the International Graduate Student Fellowship Program in 1994 to train scientists from regions of the world where biodiversity is richest and most threatened. The program focuses on training in ecology, evolutionary biology, and conservation biology in tandem with the CBC's Network of Conservation Educators and Practitioners (NCEP), and aims to equip students with the practical and theoretical training they will need to address environmental problems in their home countries.

#### **Australian Research Council**

### Fellowships or Awards

Future Fellowships, Discovery Early Career Researcher Award (DECRA), Australian Laureate Fellowships

## **Schwarzman Scholars**

## Master's Degree Scholarships at Tsinghua University in Beijing

Oct The 200 scholars chosen annually for this highly selective program will work towards a one-year Master's Degree at Tsinghua University in Beijing-one of China's most prestigious universities. Schwarzman Scholars will be selected based on their academic credentials, extracurricular interests and leadership potential. Each student will spend the year focusing on one of four academic disciplines: public policy, economics and business, international relations and, in the future, engineering.

#### **College And Graduate School Scholarships**

#### **Ewing Marion Kauffman Foundation** — *Entrepreneurship*

Kauffman Dissertation Fellowships — \$15,000

Aug Awards dissertation fellowship grants to Ph.D., D.B.A., or other doctoral students at accredited U.S. universities to support dissertations in the area of entrepreneurship. This program is intended for students who are in the process of formulating their dissertation proposal as well as doctoral candidates with recently approved dissertation proposals.

#### **Jack Kent Cooke Foundation** — Scholarships

<u>Undergraduate Transfer Scholarships for Students and Recent Alumni from Two-Year Institutions — Up to \$30,000</u>

Dec The Jack Kent Cooke Foundation's Undergraduate Transfer Scholarship honors excellence by supporting outstanding community college students with financial need to transfer to and complete their bachelor's degrees at the nation's top four-year colleges and universities.

#### U.S. Department of Defense (DoD),

National Defense Science and Engineering (NDSEG) Graduate Fellowships — \$30,000+

Dec The NDSEG Fellowship is a highly competitive, portable award for U.S. citizens and nationals in the beginning stages of their overall graduate study who intend to pursue a doctoral degree a science, technology, engineering, and mathematics disciplines. NDSEG confers high honors upon its recipients and allows them to attend any accredited U.S. institution. NDSEG Fellowships last for up to three years (36 consecutive months) and provides full tuition and mandatory fee coverage, a monthly stipend, and a \$1,000 per year medical health insurance allowance.

<u>Science, Mathematics & Research for Transformation (SMART) Undergraduate and Graduate Scholarships</u> — \$25,000 - \$38,000 per year

Dec An opportunity for students pursuing an undergraduate or graduate degree in Science, Technology, Engineering, and Mathematics (STEM) disciplines to receive a full scholarship and be gainfully employed upon degree completion. Students pursuing degrees related to the following are encouraged to apply: Aeronautical and Astronautical Engineering, Biosciences, Chemical Engineering, Chemistry, Civil Engineering, Cognitive, Neural, and Behavioral Sciences, Computer and Computational Sciences, Electrical Engineering, Geosciences, Industrial and Systems Engineering (technical tracks only), Information Sciences, Materials Science and Engineering, Mathematics, Mechanical Engineering, Naval Architecture and Ocean Engineering, Nuclear Engineering, Oceanography, Operations Research (technical tracks only), Physics.

## Mensa Education & Research Foundation — College Scholarship Program

U.S. Scholarships — \$600 to \$1,000

Jan The applicant must currently be a resident of a participating American Mensa Local Group's area; be enrolled in a degree program in an accredited U.S. institution of higher learning during the academic year following the application date; submit an application and essay explaining his or her career, academic and/or vocational goals.

<u>International Scholarships</u> — \$1,000

Jan The Mensa Foundation's international scholarship program is intended to provide scholarships for foreign students
 enrolled at colleges or universities in the United States. The program follows, in broad terms, the outline of the scholarship program already in place in the United States.

<u>College Scholarships in Math, Science and Engineering for Rising College Juniors and Seniors — Up to \$7,500 annually</u>

Jan The Goldwater Scholars are selected on the basis of academic merit from a field of mathematics, science, and engineering students who are nominated by the faculties of colleges and universities nationwide.

**Microsoft** — Scholarships

Minority Scholarships — Full Tuition

Jan College scholarships in computer science, computer engineering, or related technical disciplines, with a demonstrated interest in computer science.

#### Susan Thompson Buffett Foundation — Scholarships and Awards

<u>College Scholarships for Undergraduate Students Attending Nebraska Public Universities, Colleges, or Community Colleges — Up to \$4,000+</u>

Feb The Susan Thompson Buffett Foundation provides scholarships for tuition and fees and a textbook allowance for undergraduate students attending Nebraska public universities, colleges, or community colleges.

#### <u>Harry S. Truman Scholarship Foundation</u>—*Are You a Potential Truman Scholar?*

<u>College Scholarships in Government Careers for College Juniors</u> — \$30,000

Feb The Truman Scholarship provides up to \$30,000 in funding to students pursuing graduate degrees in public service fields. Students must be college juniors at the time of selection.

## <u>James Madison Memorial Fellowship Foundation</u> — Graduate Fellowships

<u>Junior and Senior Graduate Fellowships in the Study of the U.S. Constitution for Students and Teachers</u> *Up to* \$24,000

Mar The James Madison Memorial Fellowship Foundation offers Junior and Senior Graduate Fellowships to individuals desiring to become outstanding teachers of the American Constitution at the secondary school level. Fellowship applicants compete only against other applicants from the states of their legal residence. Generally, one Fellowship per state is awarded each year.

#### California Student Aid Commission (CSAC)

Cal Grants and Other Financial Aid Resources for California Students Up to \$12,000+

Mar Whether you're planning to go to college or get career training, there's money available to help you pay for it. Here you will learn about Cal Grants and other student aid programs, their requirements and how to apply for them. Sep

2

#### Federal Employee Education and Assistance Fund (FEEA)

College Scholarships — \$500 to \$5,500

Mar For current civilian federal and postal employees with at least three years of federal service, their children and spouses.

## **Orphan Foundation of America**

College Scholarships and Grants for Orphans and Youth in Foster Care — \$1,500 to \$6,000; up to \$10,000

Mar OFA provides scholarship and grant money to former foster students in colleges and specialized training programs across the country.

## National Federation of the Blind (NFB)

College Scholarships for Legally Blind Students — \$3,000 to \$12,000

Mar Scholarships to recognize achievement by blind scholars.

#### **Roy J. Carver Charitable Trust**

#### Carver Scholarships for State of Iowa College Juniors

The program centers on providing substantial scholarships to students who struggle to overcome significant social and economic obstacles in the pursuit of their education or who may be living in circumstances that may not normally be taken into account by other financial aid programs.

#### <u>U.S. Department of Energy — Internships, Fellowships and Scholarships</u>

#### DOE Office of Science Graduate Student Research (SCGSR) Program

Apr The goal of the Office of Science Graduate Student Research (SCGSR) program is to prepare graduate students for science, technology, engineering, or mathematics (STEM) careers critically important to the DOE Office of Science mission, by providing graduate thesis research opportunities at DOE laboratories. The SCGSR program provides supplemental awards to outstanding U.S. graduate students to pursue part of their graduate thesis research at a DOE laboratory in areas that address scientific challenges central to the Office of Science mission. The research opportunity is expected to advance the graduate students' overall doctoral thesis while providing access to the expertise, resources, and capabilities available at the DOE laboratories.

#### American Legion — Scholarships

American Legion Legacy Scholarships for Children of U.S. Servicemembers Who Died on or after Sept. 11, 2001 **--** \$2,275

Apr Through The American Legion Legacy Scholarship, the Legion works to ensure children of U.S. servicemembers who died on or after Sept. 11, 2001, receive equal opportunities in their pursuit of higher learning. 15

#### The American Legion Baseball Scholarship

The American Legion will award several scholarships this year depending on the number of applicants and interest earned from the trust fund.

#### Samsung American Legion Scholarship

Samsung scholarships are for undergraduate study only and may be used for tuition, books, fees, and room and board. Winners are selected according to academic record, involvement in school and community activities, community service and financial need. Applicants who are direct descendants of Korean War veterans will receive special consideration.

#### National Restaurant Association Educational Foundation — Scholarship Program

College Scholarships for Students in Restaurant/Foodservice-Related Programs — \$2,500 to \$3,500

Apr A variety of merit-based scholarships to students who want an education and a career in the foodservice industry as well as professional development scholarships for restaurant and foodservice educators.

#### **ThanksUSA**

College Scholarships for Dependent Children, Age 24 and Under and All Spouses of Active-Duty U.S. Military Service Personnel — \$3,000 to \$4,000

May College, technical and vocational school need-based scholarships for the children and spouses of active-duty US military personnel.

#### **American Foundation for the Blind**

AFB Scholarship Application — \$500 to \$2,500

- Jul Most of AFB's scholarships are designated for specific fields of study. You will only be considered for the
- scholarships that you select on the application.

Other Scholarships and Grants for Students who are Blind or Visually Impaired

Organizations offering scholarships.

#### U.S. Department of Education — Student Aid on the Web

Pell Grants — Up to \$5,730

Jun

30 A Federal Pell Grant, unlike a loan, does not have to be repaid. Undergraduate and vocational students enrolled or accepted for enrollment in participating schools may apply. Pell Grants are awarded usually only to students who have not earned a bachelor's or a professional degree. To be eligible for a Pell grant, you must also meet the general federal student aid eligibility requirements. To apply for a Pell grant, you must complete the <u>Free Application for</u> Federal Student Aid (FAFSA).

#### FAFSA - Free Application for Federal Student Aid

Submit electronically the Free Application for Federal Student Aid (FAFSA). All students interested in financial aid for college will need to complete this form.

## Federal Supplemental Educational Opportunity Grants (FSEOG) for Undergraduates with Exceptional Financial Need — *Up to \$4,000*

Pell Grant recipients with the lowest expected family contributions (EFCs) will be considered first for a FSEOG. Just like Pell Grants, the FSEOG does not have to be repaid.

#### Teacher Education Assistance for College and Higher Education (TEACH) Grants

The Teacher Education Assistance for College and Higher Education (TEACH) Grant Program provides grants of up to \$4,000 per year to students who intend to teach in a public or private elementary or secondary school that serves students from low-income families.

#### **Direct Student Loans**

Students and parents can explore the site for information about the Direct Loan Program, including helpful publications and tools to help manage their Direct Loans.

#### Graduate Assistance in Areas of National Need: IEGPS

This program provides fellowships, through academic departments and programs of IHEs, to assist graduate students with excellent records who demonstrate financial need and plan to pursue the highest degree available in their course study at the institution in a field designated as an area of national need.

#### <u>University of New Orleans</u>—Financing Your Education

#### **Graduate School Assistantships**

Students enrolled in a graduate degree program may be hired on a competitive basis to work either in academic departments or administrative units as Teaching, Research or Service assistants. Graduate assistants in good academic standing and meeting full-time enrollment requirements receive a stipend and a waiver of the non-resident fee.

#### **U.S. Office of Personnel Management**

#### Federal Student Loan Repayment Program for Prospective or Current Federal Employees

The Federal student loan repayment program permits agencies to repay Federally insured student loans as a recruitment or retention incentive for candidates or current employees of the agency.

#### **Ventures Scholars Program**

## Undergraduate Students Interested in Pursuing Math- and Science-Based Careers

The Ventures Scholars Program is a national membership program designed to help underrepresented and first-generation college-bound students interested in pursuing math- and science-based careers link to information, resources, and opportunities that will help them successfully pursue their career goals.

## New Mexico Scholarships, Grants and Workstudy

The State of New Mexico offers a variety of scholarship programs to targeted groups who do not typically qualify for the Lottery Success Scholarship.

## **University of New Mexico**

## **Graduate Financial Aid Info**

Graduate student support funds at UNM are provided in a variety of forms, including fellowships, grants, and assistantships.

## IGERT — National Recruitment Program

## Integrative Graduate Education and Research Traineeships (IGERT)

This site features over 215 interdisciplinary graduate education programs in science, technology, engineering, mathematics, and the social sciences funded by the National Science Foundation to proposing universities.

#### Library Studies, Museums And History Scholarships

#### Yale University, Lewis Walpole Library Fellowships and Grants

## Visiting Fellowships and Travel Grants

The Library offers short-term residential fellowships and travel grants to support research in the Library's rich Jan collections of eighteenth-century materials (mainly British), including important holdings of prints, drawings, 12 manuscripts, rare books, and paintings. Scholars pursuing postdoctoral or advanced research, as well as doctoral candidates at work on a dissertation, are encouraged to apply.

## <u>Smithsonian Institution</u> — Fellowship and Internship Opportunities

#### National Air and Space Museum Research Fellowships

Interns have a firsthand opportunity to learn about the historic artifacts and archival materials housed in the Jan Museum and to study the scientific and technological advances they represent. To be considered for a summer internship, you must be a high school graduate and be enrolled in a degree-granting undergraduate or graduate program at an accredited college or university.

## National Museum of American History, Lemelson Center Predoctoral and Postdoctoral Research Fellowships in Invention and Innovation in American Society

The Lemelson Center Fellowship Program supports projects that present creative approaches to the study of Jan invention and innovation in American society. These include, but are not limited to, historical research and documentation projects resulting in publications, exhibitions, educational initiatives, and multimedia products.

#### Smithsonian Institution Libraries Resident Scholar Doctoral and Postgraduate Fellowships

The Dibner Library Resident Scholar Program and Baird Society Resident Scholar Program provide support for Jan scholarly research in the Special Collections of the Smithsonian Libraries in Washington, DC and New York, NY, in an extensive range of subject areas. The newly established Margaret Henry Dabney Penick Resident Scholar Program supports longer-term research projects for scholars of early American history.

#### Postgraduate Fellowships in Conservation of Museum Collections — \$35,000

The Smithsonian's Office of Fellowships and Internships has announced one-year fellowships for recent graduates Jan of masters programs in art and archaeological conservation or the equivalent or for conservation scientists, 15 including those at the postdoctoral level, to conduct research and gain further training in Smithsonian conservation laboratories for conservation of objects in museum collections.

## Internships in Museum Practice

15

1

Open The Smithsonian Center for Learning and Digital Access (SCLDA) creates models and methods that make the Smithsonian a digital learning laboratory for everyone. SCLDA's primary audience is learners who connect with us through digital technologies for informal learning experiences, which are linked to formal education.

#### **Newberry Library**

## Long- and Short-Term Fellowships in the Humanities

Newberry fellowships provide support for researchers who wish to use our collection. We promise you intriguing Jan and often rare materials; a lively, interdisciplinary community of researchers; individual consultations on your research with staff curators, librarians, and other scholars; and an array of both scholarly and public programs. Sep

#### University of Minnesota, Charles Babbage Institute

#### Adelle and Erwin Tomash Graduate Fellowship

The fellowship will be awarded to a graduate student for doctoral dissertation research in the history of computing. Jan 15

#### **Chemical Heritage Foundation** — Fellowships and Travel Grants

## Long-Term Dissertation and Postdoctoral Fellowships

Jan Applicants for dissertation fellowships must be graduate students whose Ph.D. dissertations have been accepted by
 their respective university departments. Applicants for postdoctoral fellowships must have their Ph.D. in hand before the July prior to the start of the fellowship.

## **Princeton University**

#### Friends of the Princeton University Library Fellowships

Jan Each year, the Friends of the Princeton University Library offer short-term Library Research Grants to promote scholarly use of the research collections. The Program in Hellenic Studies with the support of the Stanley J. Seeger Fund also supports a limited number of library fellowships in Hellenic studies, and the Cotsen Children's Library supports research in its collection on aspects of children's books. The Maxwell Fund supports research on materials dealing with Portuguese-speaking cultures. In addition, awards will be made from the Sid Lapidus '59 Research Fund for Studies of the Age of Revolution and the Enlightenment in the Atlantic World.

## Massachusetts Historical Society (MHS) — Fellowships

### **Long-Term Research Fellowships**

Jan Applicants must have completed their professional training, ordinarily including an earned doctorate. NEH-sponsored fellowships are not available to graduate students.

## **Short-Term Research Fellowships**

Mar Short-term awards are open to independent scholars, advanced graduate students, and holders of the Ph.D. or the equivalent, with candidates who live fifty or more miles from Boston receiving preference. Applicants who do not reside in the U.S. must indicate their citizenship. Applicants must be U.S. citizens or already hold the J-1 visa or equivalent documents that will allow them to accept the stipend.

## New England Regional Fellowship Consortium

Feb A collaboration of 17 major cultural agencies, will offer awards that provide a stipend for a minimum of eight weeks of research at participating institutions. Awards are open to U.S. citizens and foreign nationals who hold the necessary U.S. government documents. Grants are designed to encourage projects that draw on the resources of several agencies.

#### Suzanne and Caleb Loring Research Fellowship on the Civil War, Its Origins, and Consequences

Feb The Massachusetts Historical Society and the Boston Athenaeum will award a Suzanne and Caleb Loring
 Fellowship on the Civil War, Its Origins, and Consequences. The recipient will conduct research for at least four weeks at each institution.

## **Teacher Fellowships**

Mar Applications are welcome from any K-12 teacher who has a serious interest in using the collections at the MHS to prepare primary-source-based curricula, supported by documents and visual aids, in the fields of American history, world history, or English/language arts.

## Winterthur Museum, Garden and Library

#### Research Fellowships

Jan Winterthur welcomes researchers. Academic, independent, and museum scholars, as well as advanced graduate
students are invited to apply for short and long-term residential research fellowships. Research fellows conduct
research in many areas of social and cultural history, including material culture, architecture, decorative arts, design,
consumer culture, garden and landscape studies, Shaker studies, travel and tourism, the Atlantic World, and objects
in literature.

## **New York Public Library**

## Fellowships in the Humanities, Including Creative Writing

Jan The New York Public Library is pleased to offer Short Term Research Fellowships to support scholars from outside the New York metropolitan area engaged in graduate-level, post-doctoral, and independent research. The Lapidus Center offers long-term and short-term fellowships. The RSA-Kress New York Public Library Grant supports a one-month residence in New York City by a member of the RSA for the purposes of Art History research in the Special Collections of The New York Public Library. The Schomburg Center Scholars-in-Residence Program assists those scholars and professionals whose research in the black experience can benefit from extended access to the Center's resources.

## Gilder Lehrman Institute of American History — Fellowships and Prizes for Historians

#### National History Teacher of the Year Award

The National History Teacher of the Year Award recognizes outstanding American history teachers from elementary school through high school, and the crucial importance of American history education.

#### Research Fellowships

The Gilder Lehrman Institute awards short-term research fellowships to scholars working in American history at every level from doctoral candidates to senior faculty, including independent scholars.

## **National Library of Medicine**

#### Associate Fellowships for Librarians

Feb The National Library of Medicine Associate Fellowship Program is a one-year postgraduate training fellowship at the NLM in Bethesda, Maryland, with an optional second year program component. The program is designed to provide a broad foundation in health sciences information services, and to prepare librarians for future leadership roles in health sciences libraries and in health services research.

#### University-Based Biomedical Informatics Research Training Programs

The National Library of Medicine supports research training in biomedical informatics at selected educational institutions in the United States. These programs offer graduate education and postdoctoral research experiences in a wide range of areas including: health care informatics, translational bioinformatics, clinical research informatics, and public health informatics. Many programs also offer additional tracks in areas such as imaging and dental informatics. The organizations funded to do this training are responsible for the selection of trainees; questions about eligibility, program specifics, and levels of support should be addressed to the programs themselves.

## American Meteorological Society — Scholarships and Fellowships

## AMS Graduate Fellowships in the History of Science

Feb To be awarded to a student in the process of completing a dissertation on the history of the atmospheric, or related oceanic or hydrologic sciences. The Fellowship carries a stipend and will support one year of dissertation research.

## **Historic Deerfield**

#### Summer Fellowship Program

Feb Historic Deerfield, Inc. invites college juniors and seniors to apply for its nine-week, fully-funded Summer

Fellowship Program in History and Material Culture. Located in the scenic Connecticut River Valley of western

Massachusetts, Historic Deerfield is the perfect place to explore New England and regional history, material culture
and museum studies.

## <u>American Library Association</u> — Spectrum Scholarship Program

#### Spectrum Scholarships

Mar The Spectrum Scholarship Program is ALA's national diversity and recruitment effort designed to address the specific issue of under-representation of critically needed ethnic librarians within the profession while serving as a model for ways to bring attention to larger diversity issues in the future.

# <u>American Library Association</u>, <u>Library & Information Technology Association</u> — <u>Scholarships and Awards</u> LITA/LSSI Minority Scholarship in Library and Information Technology

Mar The scholarship is designed to encourage the entry of qualified persons into the library and automation field who plan to follow a career in that field; who demonstrate potential in, and a strong commitment to the use of automated systems in libraries; and who are qualified members of a principal minority group (American Indian or Alaskan native, Asian or Pacific Islander, African-American, or Hispanic).

#### LITA/OCLC Minority Scholarship in Library and Information Technology

Mar The scholarship is designed to encourage the entry of qualified persons into the library and automation field who plan to follow a career in that field; who demonstrate potential in and have a strong commitment to the use of automated systems in libraries; and who are qualified members of a principal minority group (American Indian or Alaskan native, Asian or Pacific Islander, African-American, or Hispanic).

## LITA/Christian (Chris) Larew Memorial Scholarship in Library and Information Technology

Mar The scholarship is designed to encourage the entry of qualified persons into the library and information technology field, who plan to follow a career in that field, and who demonstrate academic excellence, leadership, and a vision in pursuit of library and information technology.

#### American Philosophical Society — Fellowships and Grants

#### Library Resident Research Fellowships

Mar The American Philosophical Society Library offers short-term residential fellowships for conducting research in its collections. Applicants may beh olders of the Ph.D. or its equivalent, Ph.D. candidates who have passed their preliminary examinations, or degreed independent scholars

## **<u>Hagley Museum and Library —</u>** Grants and Fellowships

#### Research grants in the history of business, technology and society

Mar Henry Belin du Pont research grants enable scholars to pursue advanced research and study in the library, archival, pictorial, and artifact collections of the Hagley Museum and Library.

Jun 30

Oct

31

#### Doctoral dissertation fellowships in the history of business, technology and society

Nov Henry Belin du Pont dissertation fellowships are designed for graduate students who have completed all course work for the doctoral degree and are conducting research on their dissertation.

#### American Historical Association — Prizes, Fellowships, and Awards

#### Fellowships in Aerospace History

The Fellowship in Aerospace History is offered annually by the National Aeronautics Space Administration (NASA) and the American Historical Association to support a significant scholarly research project in aerospace history. It will provide a fellow with an opportunity to engage in significant and sustained advanced research in all aspects of the history of aerospace from the earliest human interest in flight to the present, including cultural and intellectual history, economic history, history of law and public policy, and the history of science, engineering, and management. Applicants must possess a PhD in history or in a closely related field, or be enrolled as a student (having completed all coursework) in a doctoral degree-granting program.

<u>Library of Congress</u>, <u>John W. Kluge Center</u> — Oppotrnities for Fellows

The J. Franklin Jameson Fellowship Research in American History

Apr The Franklin Jameson Fellowship in American History is offered annually by the Library of Congress and the American Historical Association to support significant scholarly research for one semester in the collections of the Library of Congress by scholars at an early stage in their careers in history.

## David B. Larson Fellowship in Health and Spirituality

Apr The Library of Congress invites qualified scholars to apply for a post-doctoral fellowship in the field of health and spirituality. Made possible by a generous endowment from the International Center for the Integration of Health and Spirituality (ICIHS).

#### The Alan Lomax Fellowship in Folklife Studies

May The Library of Congress's Kluge Center invites qualified scholars to apply for a post-doctoral fellowship for advanced research based on the Alan Lomax Collection.

#### Kislak Short-Term Fellowship Opportunities in American Studies

May The Library of Congress offers short-term fellowships for independent scholars, undergraduate and college and university faculty to conduct research based on items from the Kislak Collection.

## Kluge Center Fellowships

Jul The Library of Congress invites qualified scholars to conduct research in the Congress collections and resources for
 a period of up to eleven months.

#### Kislak Fellowship in American Studies

Oct The Library of Congress' Kluge Center invites qualified scholars to apply for a post-doctoral fellowship for advanced research based on the Kislak Collection.

#### **Omohundro Institute of Early American History and Culture**

#### Omohundro Institute Postdoctoral Fellowship

Oct The Omohundro Institute of Early American History and Culture offers annually a two-year postdoctoral fellowship in any area of early American studies. A principal criterion for selection is that the candidate's dissertation or other manuscript have significant potential as a distinguished, book-length contribution to scholarship. Foreign nationals are eligible. Those who have earned the Ph.D. and begun careers are also encouraged to apply.

## **John F. Kennedy Library Foundation**

#### Research Grants and Graduate Fellowships for Doctoral Dissertation and Postdoctoral Research

Aug The John F. Kennedy Library Foundation invites scholars and students to apply for support of their research and use of the archival, manuscript, and audiovisual holdings of the Library under the following programs.

Nov

3

#### **Student Internships**

Oct The John F. Kennedy Library Foundation awards several paid archival internships each year to undergraduate and graduate students majoring in history, government, archival administration, library science, English, journalism, communications and other related disciplines.

#### Dumbarton Oaks Research Library and Collection — Research at Dumbarton Oaks

#### Fellowships, Junior Fellowships and Summer Fellowships

Nov Residential fellowships in three areas of study: Byzantine Studies (including related aspects of late Roman, early Christian, Western medieval, Slavic, and Near Eastern studies), Pre-Columbian Studies (of Mexico, Central America, and Andean South America), and Garden and Landscape Studies.

#### **Short-Term Pre-Doctoral Residencies**

Dumbarton Oaks offers a limited number of Short-Term Pre-Doctoral Residencies for advanced graduate students who are preparing for their PhD general exams, writing their doctoral dissertations, or expecting relevant final degrees in the field of Byzantine, Pre-Columbian, or Garden and Landscape studies.

## **Leo Baeck Institute** — Fellowships

#### David Baumgardt Memorial Fellowship

Nov The fellowship provides financial assistance to scholars whose research projects are connected with the writings of
 Professor David Baumgardt or his scholarly interests, including Ethics, Wissenschaft des Judentums and the Modern Intellectual History of German-speaking Jewry.

## The Huntington Library, Art Collections and Botanical Gardens

#### Senior and Postdoctoral Fellowships

Nov The Huntington will award to scholars fellowships. These fellowships derive from a variety of funding sources and have different terms. Recipients of all fellowships are expected to be in continuous residence at the Huntington and to participate in and make a contribution to its intellectual life.

#### **Brown University, John Carter Brown Library**

## Short- and Long-Term Fellowships

Dec Approximately thirty-five fellowships are awarded each year for periods of time usually ranging from two to ten months. Fellowships are available for any qualified researcher, the main criteria for appointment being the merit and significance of the candidate's proposal, the qualifications of the candidate, and the relevance of the project to the holdings of the Library.

#### **Media Communication Scholarships**

#### **Academy of Television Arts & Sciences Foundation**

Mister Rogers Memorial Scholarship in Early Childhood Education, Child Development/Child Psychology, Film/Television Production, Music, and Animation

Jan The Foundation's Mister Rogers Memorial Scholarship Program awards four \$10,000 scholarships to graduate

students ONLY to support and encourage them to pursue a career in children's media and further the values and principles of Fred Rogers' work. The scholarships are project-based and are not to be used for tuition.

## Summer Internships

Mar The TV Academy Foundation's summer Student Internship Program provides over 40 industry-wide internships to college students nationwide. The program gives both undergraduate and graduate students in-depth exposure to professional television production during an eight-week summer period in Los Angeles.

## American Association for the Advancement of Science (AAAS) — Fellowships

Mass Media Science and Engineering College and Graduate Fellowships

an The 10-week summer program places graduate and post-graduate level science, engineering and mathematics

15 students at media organizations nationwide. Fellows have worked as reporters, editors, researchers and production assistants.

#### **Media General**

## Minority Scholarship and Training Program in Journalism, Broadcast Journalism, Business, or Marketing

Jan Applicants must be a declared major in broadcast journalism, digital multimedia, mass/speech/digital

30 communication, television production, or marketing, at an accredited university or college within the United States.

## **The Fund for American Studies (TFAS)**

#### Robert Novak Journalism Fellowships

Feb Fellowships for print and online journalists who share the mission of advancing constitutional principles, a

9 democratic society and a vibrant free enterprise system.

#### **Gannett**

#### Pulliam Journalism Fellowships

Nov The Indianapolis Star and The Arizona Republic, Gannett Co. newspapers, are seeking college students and new graduates with a talent for reporting, news design and graphics, or photojournalism for an exciting and demanding journalism fellowship program.

## **Media Scholars Foundation**

#### Media Fellowships

Nov These grants support the academic development of undergraduates dedicated to pursuing a career related to the public policy advertising industry.

#### **East-West Center** — Seminars and Journalism Fellowships

## Journalism Fellowships and Exchanges in the Asia Pacific Region

Jan Journalism fellowships and exchanges for working American and Asia Pacific journalists promote understanding of the complexities of the Asia Pacific region through study tours. Intensive dialogue with colleagues, government officials, business executives and community leaders provides participants with a means to broaden their network of contacts.

#### Tuition Scholarships in Motion Picture Filmmaking

These highly competitive awards are given to students demonstrating superior professional filmmaking production skills and creativity along with academic success. Participating worldwide colleges and universities that offer a degree or diploma program in film, film production, or cinematography may nominate up to two students each year for consideration.

#### U.S. National Institutes of Health, National Cancer Institute

#### Health Communications Internship Program (HCIP)

The HCIP gives highly qualified graduate students and recent graduate degree recipients the opportunity to participate in vital health and science communications projects in one of the many offices that make up the NCI. Interns will select an area of emphasis: health communications or science writing.

# <u>Radio-Television News Directors Foundation (RTNDF)</u>—Scholarship & Fellowship Information Scholarships for Undergraduate and Graduate Students

All scholarships are open to enrolled students (freshmen excluded) who are pursuing careers in radio and television news. Winners are also invited to attend the Exellence in Journalism conference. Candidates must be a full-time college student whose career objective is electronic journalism and have at least one full year of college remaining. To receive an award, winners must be officially enrolled in college and be in good standing.

#### Scholarships for Graduate Students

Fellowships for journalists.

#### Berlin Capital Program

The program invites 15 young American journalists and students of journalism to Germany to participate in an intensive series of seminars, presentations, and visits to important German media and German political and cultural institutions. The one-week program is conducted in English. German language proficiency is not required. Through observation, discussion, and research, participants will experience first-hand the German capital city of Berlin, its vibrant and diverse culture, and its fascinating history.

## Washington State College of Communication — Scholarships and Awards

<u>Communication and Society Scholarships</u> <u>Journalism and Media Production Scholarships</u>

Strategic Communication Scholarships

#### <u>Henry J. Kaiser Family Foundation</u> — *Media Internships and Fellowships*

## The Kaiser Media Internships in Health Reporting

The Kaiser Media Internships in Health Reporting is for early career U.S. journalists interested in specializing in health reporting. The program provides an intensive introduction and practical experience reporting on health issues based at newsrooms across the U.S.

#### HIV/AIDS Resources for Journalists: The Kaiser Media Fellowship Program

Tools for Reporting on HIV/AIDS. These tools, including the Reporter's Manual on HIV/AIDS, The Kaiser AIDS Timeline, and pages with country-specific data among others, will help you navigate through the Kaiser Family Foundation's current work and resources on HIV/AIDS.

## **Miscellaneous Scholarships**

## <u>U.S. National Academies — Fellowship Programs</u>

## Christine Mirzayan Science and Technology Policy Graduate Fellowships

Sep Graduate and professional school students and those who have completed graduate studies (degree awarded) within the last five years may apply. Areas of study may include any social/behavioral science, medical/health discipline, physical or biological science, any field of engineering, law/business/public administration, or any relevant interdisciplinary fields.

# <u>Alfred P. Sloan Foundation</u>— Science, Technology, Engineering, Mathematics and Economic Performance Sloan Research Fellowships in Chemistry, Physics, Mathematics, Computer Science, Economics, or Neuroscience

Sep The Sloan Research Fellowships seek to stimulate fundamental research by early-career scientists and scholars of outstanding promise. These two-year fellowships are awarded yearly to researchers in recognition of distinguished performance and a unique potential to make substantial contributions to their field.

## <u>Schwarzman Scholars</u> — A Landmark Scholarship for the Defining Challenge of Our Time

## Master's Degree Scholarships at Tsinghua University in Beijing

Oct The 200 scholars chosen annually for this highly selective program will work towards a one-year Master's Degree at Tsinghua University in Beijing-one of China's most prestigious universities. Schwarzman Scholars will be selected based on their academic credentials, extracurricular interests and leadership potential. Each student will spend the year focusing on one of four academic disciplines: public policy, economics and business, international relations and, in the future, engineering.

## Rhodes Scholarship Trust, Oxford University — Oxford and the Rhodes Scholarships

#### **Rhodes Scholarships**

Oct The Rhodes Scholarships bring outstanding students from many countries around the world to the University of Oxford. Rhodes Scholarships provide all expenses for two or three years of study at the University of Oxford in England, and may allow funding in some instances for four years.

## British Council, USA — Study in the United Kingdom

#### Marshall Scholarships

Oct Marshall Scholarships finance young Americans of high ability to study for a graduate degree in the United

Kingdom. To be eligible for a Marshall Scholarship, candidates must be citizens of the United States of America
and hold their first undergraduate degree from an accredited four-year college or university in the United States.

#### National Academy of Engineering — NAE Grand Challenge Scholars

<u>Charles M. Vest NAE Grand Challenges for Engineering — International Scholarships</u>

Oct The Charles M. Vest NAE Grand Challenges for Engineering<sup>TM</sup> International Scholarship Program provides a new opportunity for graduate students at selected international universities to pursue research addressing a global Grand Challenge at a leading United States university - with all expenses paid for a year of travel and study.

## <u>US-Ireland Alliance</u> — Scholarships

#### George J. Mitchell Graduate Scholarships for Study in Ireland

Oct Scholars are chosen annually for one year of postgraduate study in any discipline offered by institutions of higher learning in Ireland and Northern Ireland.

#### U.S. National Science Foundation (NSF) — Find Funding

Research Experiences for Undergraduates (REU)

Search for an REU Site. The Research Experiences for Undergraduates (REU) program supports active research participation by undergraduate students in any of the areas of research funded by the National Science Foundation.

#### <u>Undergraduate Students</u>

Direct (from NSF) or indirect (from an awardee institution) funding for college students.

#### **Graduate Students**

Direct (from NSF) or indirect (from an awardee institution) funding for graduate students.

#### Postdoctoral Fellows

Direct (from NSF) or indirect (from an awardee institution) funding for postgraduate students.

## Federal Cyber Service: College Scholarships for Service (SFS)

The CyberCorps(R): Scholarship for Service (SFS) program seeks proposals that address cybersecurity education
 and workforce development. The Scholarship Track provides funding to award scholarships to students in
 cybersecurity. In return for their scholarships, recipients will work after graduation for a Federal, State, Local, or
 Tribal Government organization in a position related to cybersecurity for a period equal to the length of the
 scholarship. The Capacity Track seeks innovative proposals leading to an increase in the ability of the United States
 higher education enterprise to produce cybersecurity professionals.

## Robert Noyce College and Graduate Scholarships and Stipends — At least \$10,000 per year

Mar
The Robert Noyce Teacher Scholarship Program seeks to encourage talented science, technology, engineering, and mathematics majors and professionals to become K-12 mathematics and science teachers. The Noyce Scholarship Track provides funds to institutions of higher education to support scholarships, stipends, and academic programs for undergraduate STEM majors and post-baccalaureate students holding STEM degrees who earn a teaching credential and commit to teaching in high-need K-12 school districts.

#### Biological Anthropology: Doctoral Dissertation Research Improvement Grants

Jul The Biological Anthropology Program supports multifaceted research which advances scientific knowledge of human biology and ecology, including understanding of our evolutionary history and mechanisms which have shaped human and nonhuman primate biological diversity. Supported research focuses on living and fossil forms of both human and nonhuman primates, addressing time scales ranging from the short-term to evolutionary, encompassing multiple levels of organization and analysis (molecular and organismal, to the population and ecosystem scales), and conducted in field, laboratory, and captive research environments.

## NSF Scholarships in Science, Technology, Engineering, and Mathematics (S-STEM)

Aug This program makes grants to institutions of higher education to support scholarships for academically talented students demonstrating financial need, enabling them to enter the STEM workforce or STEM graduate school following completion of an associate, baccalaureate, or graduate-level degree in science, technology, engineering or mathematics disciplines. Grantee institutions are responsible for selecting scholarship recipients, reporting demographic information about student scholars, and managing the S-STEM project at the institution. The program does not make scholarship awards directly to students; students should contact their institution's Office of Financial Aid for this and other scholarship opportunities.

#### Cultural Anthropology: Doctoral Dissertation Research Improvement Grants

The primary objective of the Cultural Anthropology Program is to support basic scientific research on the causes, consequences, and complexities of human social and cultural variability. Anthropological research spans a wide gamut, and contemporary cultural anthropology is an arena in which diverse research traditions and methodologies are valid.

#### Doctoral Dissertation Improvement Grants in the Directorate for Biological Sciences

Oct These grants provide partial support of doctoral dissertation research to improve the overall quality of research.

Allowed are costs for doctoral candidates to participate in scientific meetings, to conduct research in specialized facilities or field settings, and to expand an existing body of dissertation research.

#### Postdoctoral Research Fellowships in Mathematics

Oct The purpose of the Mathematical Sciences Postdoctoral Research Fellowships (MSPRF) is to support future leaders in mathematics and statistics by facilitating their participation in postdoctoral research environments that will have maximal impact on their future scientific development. There are two options for awardees: Research Fellowship and Research Instructorship. Awards will support research in areas of mathematics and statistics, including applications to other disciplines.

## **Graduate Research Fellowships**

Nov The program recognizes and supports outstanding graduate students who are pursuing research-based master's and

doctoral degrees in fields within NSF's mission. The GRFP provides three years of support for the graduate

Nov education of individuals who have demonstrated their potential for significant achievements in science and

04 engineering research.

## East Asia and Pacific Summer Institutes for U.S. Graduate Students (EAPSI)

Nov The East Asia and Pacific Summer Institutes (EAPSI) provide U.S. graduate students in science and engineering: 1)

first-hand research experiences in Australia, China, Japan, Korea, New Zealand, Singapore or Taiwan; 2) an introduction to the science, science policy, and scientific infrastructure of the respective location; and 3) an orientation to the society, culture and language.

#### Postdoctoral Research Fellowships in Biology

Jan 8 The Directorate for Biological Sciences (BIO) awards Postdoctoral Research Fellowships in Biology to recent Nov recipients of the doctoral degree for research and training in selected areas supported by BIO and with special goals

for human resource development in biology. The fellowships encourage independence at an early stage of the research career to permit Fellows to pursue their research and training goals in the most appropriate research locations regardless of the availability of funding for the Fellows at that site. For FY 2015 and beyond, these BIO programs are (1) Broadening Participation of Groups Under-represented in Biology, (2) Research Using Biological Collections, and (3) National Plant Genome Initiative (NPGI) Postdoctoral Research Fellowships.

#### Atmospheric and Geospace Sciences Postdoctoral Research Fellowships (AGS-PRF)

Jan The Division of Atmospheric and Geospace Sciences (AGS) awards Postdoctoral Research Fellowships (PRF) to

highly qualified investigators within 3 years of obtaining their PhD to carry out an independent research program. The research plan of each Fellowship must address scientific questions within the scope of AGS disciplines. The program supports researchers for a period of up to 2 years with Fellowships that can be taken to the institution or national facility of their choice

#### Integrative Graduate Education and Research Traineeships (IGERT) for Science & Engineering Students

IGERT is the National Science Foundation's flagship interdisciplinary training program, educating U.S. Ph.D. scientists and engineers by building on the foundations of their disciplinary knowledge with interdisciplinary training.

#### Astronomy and Astrophysics Postdoctoral Fellowships (AAPF)

This program provides educational opportunities for graduate students and postdoctoral fellows.

## Faculty Early Career Development (CAREER) Program

The Faculty Early Career Development (CAREER) Program is a Foundation-wide activity that offers the National Science Foundation's most prestigious awards in support of the early career-development activities of those teacher-

scholars who most effectively integrate research and education within the context of the mission of their organization.

#### NSF/FDA Scholar-in-Residence at FDA

This program comprises an interagency partnership for the investigation of scientific and engineering issues concerning emerging trends in medical device technology.

#### The White House — About the White House

## Presidential Awards for Excellence in Science, Mathematics and Engineering Mentoring (PAESMEM)

Jun The PAESMEM Program seeks to identify outstanding mentoring efforts that enhance the participation of groups
 (i.e., women, minorities, and persons with disabilities) that are underrepresented in science, technology, engineering, and mathematics. The awardees serve as leaders in the national effort to develop fully the Nation's human resources in science, technology, engineering, and mathematics.

#### Presidential Awards for Excellence in Mathematics and Science Teaching (PAEMST)

Apr The Presidential Awards for Excellence in Mathematics and Science Teaching (PAEMST) are the nation's highest honors for teachers of mathematics and science (including computer science). Awardees serve as models for their colleagues, inspiration to their communities, and leaders in the improvement of mathematics and science education.

## The White House Internships — Unpaid

Apr 19 The White House Internship Program provides a unique opportunity to gain valuable professional experience and build leadership skills. This hands-on program is designed to mentor and cultivate today's young leaders, strengthen their understanding of the Executive Office and prepare them for future public service opportunities.

#### Presidential Management Fellows

Oct The Presidential Management Fellows (PMF) Program seeks eligible individuals for selection as Finalists to obtain appointments as PMFs in the Federal Government. Presidential Management Fellows are assigned to work in a broad range of areas including public policy and administration, domestic and international issues, information technology, acquisition, human resources, engineering, health and medical sciences, financial management, and many other fields in support of public service programs. This year, the PMF Program continues the STEM track pilot for those Finalists having specific advanced degrees in the areas of Science, Technology, Engineering, or Mathematics (STEM).

#### White House Fellows

Jan The White House Fellows program is one of America's most prestigious programs for leadership and public service.

White House Fellowships offer exceptional young men and women first-hand experience working at the highest levels of the federal government.

## President's National Medal of Science

Presidential award to be given to individuals deserving of special recognition by reason of their outstanding contributions to knowledge in the physical, biological, mathematical, engineering sciences, the social and behavioral sciences.

## President's National Medal of Technology and Innovation

The National Medal of Technology and Innovation is the highest honor for technological achievement bestowed by the President of the United States on America's leading innovators.

## National Endowment for the Humanities — Grants

Fellowships for Advanced Work in the Humanities

Apr Fellowships support individuals pursuing advanced research that is of value to humanities scholars, general audiences, or both.

#### Postdoctoral Fellowships at Independent Research Institutions

Aug Grants for Fellowship Programs at Independent Research Institutions (FPIRI) support fellowships at institutions devoted to advanced study and research in the humanities. NEH fellowships provide scholars with research time and access to resources that might not be available at their home institutions.

#### National Inventors Hall of Fame — Collegiate Inventors

## Collegiate Inventors Competition — Up to \$15,000

Jun The Competition promotes exploration in invention, science, engineering, technology, and other creative endeavors and provides a window on the technologies from which society will benefit in the future.

#### **Rotary Foundation** — Create a Scholarship

## Rotary World Peace Fellowships

Jul 1 Rotary Peace Fellows are leaders promoting national and international cooperation, peace, and the successful resolution of conflict throughout their lives, in their careers, and through service activities. Fellows can earn either a master's degree in international relations, public administration, sustainable development, peace studies, conflict resolution, or a related field, or a professional development certificate in peace and conflict resolution.

## <u>Library of Congress</u>, <u>John W. Kluge Center</u> <u>Opportunities for Fellows</u>

## Kluge Center Fellowships

Jul The Library of Congress invites qualified scholars to conduct research in the Congress collections and resources for a period of up to eleven months.

#### David B. Larson Fellowship in Health and Spirituality

Apr The Library of Congress invites qualified scholars to apply for a post-doctoral fellowship in the field of health and spirituality. Made possible by a generous endowment from the International Center for the Integration of Health and Spirituality (ICIHS).

#### Kislak Fellowship in American Studies

Oct The Library of Congress' Kluge Center invites qualified scholars to apply for a post-doctoral fellowship for advanced research based on the Kislak Collection.

## Kislak Short-Term Fellowship Opportunities in American Studies

May The Library of Congress offers short-term fellowships for independent scholars, undergraduate and college and university faculty to conduct research based on items from the Kislak Collection.

#### The J. Franklin Jameson Fellowship Research in American History

Apr The Franklin Jameson Fellowship in American History is offered annually by the Library of Congress and the
American Historical Association to support significant scholarly research for one semester in the collections of the
Library of Congress by scholars at an early stage in their careers in history.

## The Alan Lomax Fellowship in Folklife Studies

May The Library of Congress's Kluge Center invites qualified scholars to apply for a post-doctoral fellowship for advanced research based on the Alan Lomax Collection.

<u>John Simon Guggenheim Memorial Foundation</u>—Fellowships to Assist Research and Artistic Creation United States and Canadian Competition Sep Guggenheim Fellowships are intended for men and women who have already demonstrated exceptional capacity for productive scholarship or exceptional creative ability in the arts.

#### Latin American and Caribbean Competition

Guggenheim Fellowships are intended for men and women who have already demonstrated exceptional capacity for productive scholarship or exceptional creative ability in the arts.

#### **U.S. Department of Energy** — Workforce Development for Teachers and Scientists

### DOE Office of Science Graduate Student Research (SCGSR) Program

Apr The goal of the Office of Science Graduate Student Research (SCGSR) program is to prepare graduate students for science, technology, engineering, or mathematics (STEM) careers critically important to the DOE Office of Science mission, by providing graduate thesis research opportunities at DOE laboratories. The SCGSR program provides supplemental awards to outstanding U.S. graduate students to pursue part of their graduate thesis research at a DOE laboratory in areas that address scientific challenges central to the Office of Science mission. The research opportunity is expected to advance the graduate students' overall doctoral thesis while providing access to the expertise, resources, and capabilities available at the DOE laboratories.

### **Siemens Foundation**—**Programs**

<u>Siemens Math, Science and Technology Competition for High School Students - Up to \$100,000 College Scholarships</u>

Sep The Siemens Competition in Math, Science & Technology recognizes remarkable talent early on, fostering individual growth for high school students who are willing to challenge themselves through science research.

# <u>Woodrow Wilson International Center for Scholars</u> — Fellowships and Grants

Public Policy Scholars in the Social Sciences and the Humanities

Oct Topics and scholarship should relate to key public policy challenges or provide the historical and/or cultural framework to illuminate policy issues of contemporary importance.

# <u>U.S. Department of State</u> — Fulbright Fellowship Program

#### Fulbright Fellowship U.S. Student Program

Oct The Fulbright Fellowship U.S. Student Program offers fellowships for U.S. graduating college seniors, graduate students, young professionals and artists to study, conduct research, and/or teach English abroad. In addition, Critical Language Enhancement Awards are available to grantees for study of critical need foreign languages before or during their grant period.

# Foreign Fulbright Fellowship Graduate Student Program

The Fulbright Foreign Student Program enables graduate students, young professionals and artists from abroad to study and conduct research in the United States. The Fulbright Foreign Student Program operates in more than 155 countries worldwide. Approximately 4,000 foreign students receive Fulbright scholarships each year.

# Fulbright Fellowship U.S. Scholar Program

Aug The programs offer U.S. faculty, administrators and professionals grants to lecture, conduct research in a wide variety of academic and professional fields, or to participate in seminars abroad.

#### Fulbright Fellowship Visiting Scholar Program

The Fulbright Fellowship Visiting Scholar Program provides grants to foreign scholars from over 100 countries to conduct post-doctoral research at U.S. institutions from an academic semester to a full academic year.

#### National Research Council (NRC) — Research Associateship Programs

#### Postdoctoral Research Associateship Programs for Scientists and Engineers

Nov Tenable at U.S. Laboratories and NASA Research Centers. The mission of the NRC Research Associateship Programs (RAP) is to promote excellence in scientific and technological research conducted by the U.S.

May government through the administration of programs offering graduate, postdoctoral, and senior level research opportunities at sponsoring federal laboratories and affiliated institutions.

Aug 1

#### John F. Kennedy Library Foundation

#### Research Grants and Graduate Fellowships for Doctoral Dissertation and Postdoctoral Research

Aug The John F. Kennedy Library Foundation invites scholars and students to apply for support of their research and use of the archival, manuscript, and audiovisual holdings of the Library under the following programs.

Nov 3

#### **Student Internships**

The John F. Kennedy Library Foundation awards several paid archival internships each year to undergraduate and graduate students majoring in history, government, archival administration, library science, English, journalism, communications and other related disciplines.

# <u>Coca-Cola Scholars Foundation</u> — Scholarships

#### Four-Year College Scholarships for High School Seniors

Oct Seniors in high schools throughout the United States who meet the eligibility requirements may apply each year for achievement-based scholarships.

# <u>The Hertz Foundation</u> — Graduate Fellowship Awards

# Graduate Fellowships in Applied Physical, Biological and Engineering Sciences — Up to \$37,000

Oct Eligible applicants for Hertz Fellowships must be students of the applied physical, biological and engineering sciences who are citizens or permanent residents of the United States of America, and who are willing to morally commit to make their skills available to the United States in time of national emergency. College seniors wishing to pursue the Ph.D. degree in any of the fields of particular interest to the Foundation, as well as graduate students already in the process of doing so, may apply.

#### **Intel Education Initiative** — *Competitions*

# Intel Science Talent Search for High School Seniors - Up to \$100,000 College Scholarships

Nov Intel Science Talent Search is America's oldest and most prestigious pre-college science competition. Every year, high school seniors enter the Intel Science Talent Search with original science projects.

#### Intel International Science and Engineering Fair

The Intel International Science and Engineering Fair is the world's largest pre-college science fair competition. Each year, young scientists from around the world vie to attend.

#### Research Award Contest for Undergraduate Students

Throughout the world, Intel sponsors technical contests that stimulate interest in electric engineering, computer science, and software design, and help cultivate future innovators. Many of these competitions put higher education students in situations similar to those they will face in the real-world with time, budget, and/or product component restraints.

# National Defense Science and Engineering (NDSEG) Graduate Fellowships

Dec The NDSEG Fellowship is a highly competitive, portable award for U.S. citizens and nationals in the beginning stages of their overall graduate study who intend to pursue a doctoral degree a science, technology, engineering, and mathematics disciplines. NDSEG confers high honors upon its recipients and allows them to attend any accredited

U.S. institution. NDSEG Fellowships last for up to three years (36 consecutive months) and provides full tuition and mandatory fee coverage, a monthly stipend, and a \$1,000 per year medical health insurance allowance.

#### Science, Mathematics & Research for Transformation (SMART) Undergraduate and Graduate Scholarships

Dec An opportunity for students pursuing an undergraduate or graduate degree in Science, Technology, Engineering, and Mathematics (STEM) disciplines to receive a full scholarship and be gainfully employed upon degree completion. Students pursuing degrees related to the following are encouraged to apply: Aeronautical and Astronautical Engineering, Biosciences, Chemical Engineering, Chemistry, Civil Engineering, Cognitive, Neural, and Behavioral Sciences, Computer and Computational Sciences, Electrical Engineering, Geosciences, Industrial and Systems Engineering (technical tracks only), Information Sciences, Materials Science and Engineering, Mathematics, Mechanical Engineering, Naval Architecture and Ocean Engineering, Nuclear Engineering, Oceanography, Operations Research (technical tracks only), Physics.

# American Political Science Association (APSA) — Resources for Students

#### Congressional Fellowships

Dec Select political scientists, journalists, doctors, federal executives and international scholars gain hands on understanding of the legislative process by serving on congressional staffs.

# <u>U.S. Public Health Service Commissioned Corps</u> — <u>Student Opportunities and Training</u> Junior Commissioned Officer Student Training and Extern Program (JRCOSTEP)

Dec JRCOSTEP training and extern positions are available to students who have completed at least 1 year of study in a master's or doctoral program or at least 2 years of study in a professionally accredited baccalaureate program in specific health disciplines and meet other program requirements.

#### Senior Commissioned Officer Student Training and Extern Program (SRCOSTEP)

Dec certain health professions programs with at least 8 months of educational commitment remaining in the final year.

# **<u>Harvard University</u>** — *Financial Aid*

Harvard Financial Aid Initiative — Potentially worth over \$60,000/year.

Admission to Harvard is based on achievement and promise without regard to financial need; the financial Nov paperwork is handled separately, and applying for financial aid does not jeopardize a student's chances for admission. The application fee normally associated with admissions can also be waived. Harvard College does not Jan 1 award merit nor athletic scholarships. All scholarships are based on demonstrated financial need. Ninety percent of American families would pay the same or less to send their children to Harvard as they would a state school.

# <u>American Psychological Association (APA)</u> — <u>Scholarships, Grants, & Awards</u> Congressional Fellowships

Jan The APA Congressional Fellowship Program offers members the opportunity to spend one year as a special assistant with a member of Congress or congressional committee on Capitol Hill.

# <u>Thiel Foundation Fellowships</u> — A No-Strings-Attached Grant of \$100,000 to Skip College College Scholarships in Math, Science and Engineering for Rising College Juniors and Seniors — Up to \$7,500 annually

Jan The Goldwater Scholars are selected on the basis of academic merit from a field of mathematics, science, and engineering students who are nominated by the faculties of colleges and universities nationwide.

# <u>American Association for the Advancement of Science (AAAS)</u> — *Fellowships*<u>Mass Media Science and Engineering College and Graduate Fellowships</u> — *\$5,000 + travel*

Jan The 10-week summer program places graduate and post-graduate level science, engineering and mathematics

students at media organizations nationwide. Fellows have worked as reporters, editors, researchers and production assistants.

#### AAAS Science & Technology Policy Fellowships — \$75,000 to \$100,000

Nov The AAAS Science & Technology Policy Fellowships are one-year opportunities. Some of the fellowship

assignments in federal agencies may be renewable for a second year, at the mutual agreement of the hosting office, the Fellow, and AAAS. Congressional Fellowships are available for one year only.

# Carnegie Endowment for International Peace — Participating Universities

<u>Carnegie Junior Fellowships for Graduating College Seniors</u> — \$37,000 per year

Jan Applicants must be graduating seniors or students who have graduated during the last academic year. The Carnegie

15 Endowment accepts applications only through participating universities via designated nominating officials.

#### American Physical Society (APS) — Fellowships and Fellows

Congressional Science Fellowships

Jan Fellowships to provide a public service by making available individuals with scientific knowledge and skills to

15 Members of Congress.

# <u>Teach for America</u> — National Teacher Corps of Recent College Graduates

Teaching Jobs for Graduating College Seniors and Recent College Graduates

Sep Individuals from all backgrounds, majors, and professional experiences who have what it takes to excel as teachers and improve the quality of education for children growing up in low-income communities. Teach For America corps members commit to teach for two years in low-income communities, then go on as alumni to lead efforts to change the face of public education.

#### Harry S. Truman Scholarship Foundation — Are You a Potential Truman Scholar?

College Scholarships in Government Careers for College Juniors — \$30,000

Feb The Truman Scholarship provides up to \$30,000 in funding to students pursuing graduate degrees in public service fields. Students must be college juniors at the time of selection.

#### Beinecke Brothers Memorial Scholarship Program — Nominating Institutions

Graduate Scholarships in the Arts, Humanities and Social Sciences

Students enrolled at a participating institution who are interested in applying for a Beinecke Scholarship should contact their campus liaison for information regarding the procedure to be followed in selecting the school's nominee. Applicants must be college juniors pursuing a bachelor's degree and who plan to enter a master's or doctoral program in the arts, humanities or social sciences. Students in the social sciences who plan to pursue graduate study in neuroscience should not apply for a Beinecke Scholarship.

# James Madison Memorial Fellowship Foundation — Graduate Fellowships

<u>Junior and Senior Graduate Fellowships in the Study of the U.S. Constitution for Students and Teachers — Up to \$24,000</u>

Mar The James Madison Memorial Fellowship Foundation offers Junior and Senior Graduate Fellowships to individuals desiring to become outstanding teachers of the American Constitution at the secondary school level. Fellowship applicants compete only against other applicants from the states of their legal residence. Generally, one Fellowship per state is awarded each year.

### <u>Jack Kent Cooke Foundation</u> — Scholarships

Young Scholars (High-Achieving Youth with Financial Need)

Mar The Foundation's Young Scholars Program is designed to nurture exceptional students who have demonstrated,

through academic excellence and extracurricular activities, that they have the potential to excel. Students apply for the program in 7th grade, enter the program in 8th grade, and continue through high school.

# College Scholarships for High-Achieving High School Seniors with Financial Need — Up to \$40,000

Nov This scholarship rewards excellence by supporting high-achieving high school seniors with financial need who seek to attend the nation's best four-year colleges and universities. Each award is intended to cover a significant share of the student's educational expenses — including tuition, living expenses, books and required fees. Awards vary by individual, based on the cost of tuition as well as other grants or scholarships he or she may receive.

# <u>Undergraduate Transfer Scholarships for Students and Recent Alumni from Two-Year Institutions</u>

Dec The Jack Kent Cooke Foundation's Undergraduate Transfer Scholarship honors excellence by supporting outstanding community college students with financial need to transfer to and complete their bachelor's degrees at the nation's top four-year colleges and universities.

#### U.S. Department of Education — Student Aid on the Web

#### Presidential Scholars - The Most Distinguished High School Seniors

The U.S. Presidential Scholars Program recognizes and honors some of our nation's most distinguished graduating high school seniors, including students who demonstrate exceptional talent in the visual, creative and performing arts.

#### American Council on Education (ACE) — Leadership Programs

### ACE Postgraduate Fellowships in Higher Education Leadership Development

Vice presidents, deans, department chairs, faculty, and other emerging leaders have participated in the ACE Fellows Program, the nation's premier higher education leadership development program in preparing senior leaders to serve American colleges and universities.

#### U.S. Navy (USN), Office of Naval Research (ONR) — Education & Outreach

#### Young Investigator Program (YIP)

ONR's Young Investigator Program (YIP) seeks to identify and support academic scientists and engineers who have received Ph.D. or equivalent degrees within the last five years and who show exceptional promise for doing creative research.

#### **Summer Jobs, Research Internships And Training Programs For Students**

#### **Harvard Business School**

# Summer Venture in Management Program

May The Harvard Business School (HBS) Summer Venture in Management Program (SVMP) is a one week management training program for rising college seniors designed to increase diversity and opportunity in business education.

#### Harvard University, Graduate School of Arts and Sciences

# Summer Internships at Harvard for Science Undergraduates

Summer Honors, Summer Research, Health Policy, Molecules, Cells, and Organisms, Biological Sciences in Public Health, Systems Biology Research, Quantitative Sciences, Summer Research Training, Continuing Umbrella of Research Experiences, Stem Cells, Genomics, Immunology, Engineering and Applied Sciences, Biomedical Informatics, Humanities, Social Sciences, and Life/Physical Sciences, Clinical and Translational Research, Forest Ecology.

# Washington Internships for Students of Engineering (WISE)

# Summer Internships for Engineering and Computer Science Students

Dec Applicants must be juniors, seniors, or entering their final year of undergraduate studies in engineering (or computer science). WISE will also accept applications from engineering grads who are beginning Masters level study in a technology policy-related degree.

# <u>U.S. Department of Energy —</u> *Internships, Fellowships and Scholarships*

# Science Undergraduate Laboratory Internships (SULI)

Jan 9 The SULIs program encourages undergraduate students to pursue science, technology, engineering, and mathematics (STEM) careers by providing research experiences at the Department of Energy (DOE) laboratories. Selected students participate as interns appointed at one of 17 participating DOE laboratories/facilities. They perform research, under the guidance of laboratory staff scientists or engineers, on projects supporting the DOE mission.

#### **DOE Scholars Program**

Jan The DOE Scholars Program introduces students or recent college graduates to DOE's mission and operations. As a
 participant in the DOE Scholars Program, you will earn a competitive edge by familiarizing yourself with DOE functions while showcasing your education, talent and skills.

# U.S. Department of Transportation, Federal Highway Administration

#### **Summer Transportation Internships**

Jan The Summer Transportation Internship Program for Diverse Groups (STIPDG) provides a unique opportunity to
16 gain valuable professional experience and skills that will compliment your academic pursuits. This hands-on
program is designed to mentor and cultivate tomorrow's leaders, strengthen their understanding of the transportation
industry and prepare them for future public service opportunities.

# <u>Columbia University College of Physicians & Surgeons</u> — <u>Programs for Future Physicians and Scientists</u> Summer Public Health Scholars

Jan The program is designed for undergraduates in their Sophomore or Junior year and recent baccalaureate degree students who are undecided about their career goals and who have a minimum GPA of 2.7. This is a rigorous program which includes Public Health course work at Columbia University; hands-on field experience and immersion in a diverse, economically disadvantaged urban environment; seminars and lectures with public health leaders; and mentoring by faculty members, ensuring students' exposure to the breadth and importance of public health as a career option.

University of Michigan, School of Public Health — Tuition and Financial Aid

Future Public Health Leaders Program

Jan The Future Public Health Leaders Program (FPHLP) is a 10-week residential program at the University of

Michigan School of Public Health (UM-SPH) designed to encourage underrepresented college students to consider careers in public health. The program is intended for college students in their Sophomore, Junior or Senior year who are undecided about their career goals and are in good academic standing in their area of study. The program includes public health and career mentorship, hands-on and practical field experience, seminars, lectures and workshops with public health leaders.

# <u>Kennedy Krieger Institute</u> — RISE Programs

#### Maternal and Child Health Careers/Research Initiatives for Student Enhancement

Jan 31 The Maternal and Child Health Careers/Research Initiatives for Student Enhancement (MCHC/RISE-UP) Program provides opportunities for enhanced public health and related training to eliminate health disparities and promote health equity. This program's ultimate goal is to promote a more diversified and equal health system by introducing highly qualified undergraduate students (juniors and, seniors with a GPA 2.5 or better on a 4.0 scale; and students who received their baccalaureate degree within 12 months of MCHC/RISE-UP program orientation) from underrepresented groups to the field of public health. All students interested in addressing health disparities are encouraged to apply.

#### Public Health Leadership and Learning Undergraduate Student Success (PLLUSS) Program

Jan The PLLUSS Program is a public health leadership and research program for undergraduate sophomore and junior scholars minoring or majoring in public health with at least a 3.0 GPA on a 4-point scale. The PLLUSS Program provides scholars with mentored public health research and community health activities, mentorship, and professional development, especially in the area of promotion of health equity and the elimination of health disparities research.

#### James A. Ferguson Emerging Infectious Diseases Fellowship Program

Jan A nine week summer program providing educational and professional development opportunities for students from underrepresented populations and those interested in addressing health disparities related to infectious diseases. Students must be currently enrolled as a full-time student in a medical, dental, pharmacy, veterinary, or public health graduate program.

# <u>Hispanic-Serving Health Professions Schools (HSHPS)</u> and <u>U.S. Centers for Disease Control and Prevention (CDC)</u> — *Public Health Training Fellowships*

# Hispanic-Serving Health Professions Schools (HSHPS) Fellowships and Summer Internships

Feb The HSHPS Graduate Fellowship Training Program provides paid and unpaid training opportunities for graduate and doctoral students and recent graduates interested in working on Hispanic health research. Fellows are placed

Dec 1 throughout the United States and Latin America within government agencies and academic institutions. All HSHPS fellows work along side a mentor, an experienced researcher or senior staff member; assist with a research project as it relates to minority health issues; and participate in a series of professional development seminars.

#### Smithsonian Institution — Fellowship and Internship Opportunities

#### **Minority Internships**

Feb 1 Internships and Visiting Student appointments are full-time (40 hours per week), for ten weeks during the summer, Oct 1 fall, or spring.

#### Native American Internships

Feb 6 Internships in residence at the Smithsonian are awarded to undergraduate and graduate Native American students
Jul who are formally or informally related to a Native American community, to participate in research or museum
activities related to Native American studies for periods of 10 weeks.

Nov

20

#### Internships

All SI facilities.

#### Presidential Management Fellows

Oct The purpose of the Program is to attract to the Federal service outstanding men and women from a variety of academic disciplines and career paths who have a clear interest in, and commitment to, excellence in the leadership and management of public policies and programs. If you have completed an advanced degree (masters, doctorate, or professional) from a qualifying college or university during the previous two years from the opening date of the PMF Program's application announcement, you are eligible to apply.

# <u>U.S. Centers for Disease Control and Prevention</u> — Public Health Training Fellowships

Public Health Associate Program (PHAP)

Jan PHAP is a competitive, two-year, paid fellowship within the Centers for Disease Control and Prevention (CDC).

Public Health Associates are assigned to state, tribal, local and territorial public health agencies and hold positions

that are functionally indistinguishable from their local colleagues.

# Public Health Informatics Fellowship Program

Nov Two-year training program in the application of computer science, information science, and technology related to public health.

### Steven M. Teutsch Post-Doctoral Fellowships in Prevention Effectiveness

Jan The fellowship is a 2-year, highly-selective research fellowship for recent doctoral graduates with a background in economics, policy analysis, operations research, decision sciences, and other quantitative areas.

#### Collegiate Leaders in Environmental Health

Jan Ten-week summer internship for students interested in a career in environmental health; open to rising juniors and rising seniors majoring in environmental fields, such as, chemistry, engineering, biology, or ecology, or other environmental studies.

#### CDC-Hubert Global Health Fellowship

Feb Six- to twelve-week introduction to preventive medicine, public health, and applied epidemiology in an international setting; apply in your second or third year of medical or veterinary school.

#### Epidemiology Elective Program for Senior Medical and Veterinary Students

Six to eight-week introduction to applied epidemiology.

ASPPH fellowships provide recent graduates of ASPPH member schools with public health training experiences based at federal agencies, state/local health departments, and on Capitol Hill. The duration of the fellowships ranges from 12-24 months depending on the program.

# APTR/CDC Preventive Medicine & Public Health Fellowships

Sep Fellowship opportunities in public health and preventive medicine interest areas are available with the Centers for Disease Control and Prevention (CDC) through the APTR Preventive Medicine and Public Health Fellowship Program. Fellows will gain leadership experience in public health practice and policy, access to state-of-the-art technology and national databases, and will train with leading experts in the field of preventive medicine and public health.

Sustainable Management Development Program for Public Health Professionals from Developing Countries

CDC's approach to sustainable management capacity building is founded on partnership and includes the use of mentoring, management expertise, and science-based best practices tailored to a country's culture and conditions.

#### ASM/CDC Postdoctoral Research Fellowship Program

Feb Two-year fellowship to conduct research in infectious disease or public health microbiology at one of the CDC national laboratories; must have earned the doctoral degree within 3 years of start date.

#### APHL/CDC Emerging Infectious Diseases Fellowship Program

Postdoctoral Laboratory Research Fellowship: This is a two-year fellowship program designed for doctoral level (PhD, MD, DVM) scientists. The program emphasizes research and professional development in infectious diseases. Fellows conduct applied research in areas relevant to public health laboratory practice.

### **Environmental Health Traineeships and Fellowships**

The program offers specialized training in environmental health to public health laboratory scientists.

#### Epidemic Intelligence Service (EIS)

Aug The Epidemic Intelligence Service (EIS) is a 2-year postgraduate program of service and training in applied epidemiology. EIS is a unique program of mentoring and on-the-job training for health professionals interested in applied epidemiology.

# <u>U.S. National Institute of Environmental Health Sciences (NIEHS) — Research Training</u>

#### NIH Summer Internship Program

The Summer Internship Program provides internships to outstanding high school, undergraduate, and graduate students interested in pursuing careers in the biomedical/biological sciences to work on a research project that entails exposure to the latest biochemical, molecular, and analytical techniques in a given field.

#### **U.S. Department of Agriculture**

#### **Internships and Special Programs**

USDA invites currently enrolled students to apply for the Student Internship Program (SIP) providing students with employment opportunities year-round.

# **U.S. Environmental Protection Agency (EPA)**

### Opportunities for College and Grad School Graduates

Internships, fellowships and other opportunities are available in Washington, D.C., laboratories, and at regional EPA locations nationwide.

#### U.S. National Institute of Standards and Technology (NIST)

# Summer Undergraduate Research Fellowships (SURF)

Feb Students must be undergraduates at a U.S. university or college with a scientific major, have a G.P.A. of 3.0/4.0 or better (recommended), and are considering pursuing a graduate degree (M.S. or Ph.D.). Students with physics, material science, chemistry, applied mathematics, computer science, or engineering majors are always encouraged to apply. There may be research opportunities for students with other majors.

# U.S. National Science Foundation (NSF) — Find Funding

# Research Experiences for Undergraduates (REU)

The Research Experiences for Undergraduates (REU) program supports active research participation by undergraduate students in any of the areas of research funded by the National Science Foundation.

#### **U.S. Office of Personnel Management**

# Federal Student Internship and Job Opportunities

The Federal government is comprised of over 300 agencies with jobs for nearly every interest. While not all available student positions are included on the site, the search engine below will help you navigate the positions agencies have posted.

#### Presidential Management Fellows

The Presidential Management Fellows (PMF) Program seeks eligible individuals for selection as Finalists to obtain appointments as PMFs in the Federal Government. Presidential Management Fellows are assigned to work in a broad range of areas including public policy and administration, domestic and international issues, information technology, acquisition, human resources, engineering, health and medical sciences, financial management, and many other fields in support of public service programs. This year, the PMF Program continues the STEM track pilot for those Finalists having specific advanced degrees in the areas of Science, Technology, Engineering, or Mathematics (STEM).

#### American Nuclear Society (ANS) — Honors and Awards

#### **Engineering Internships**

Oct

15

ANS is a full participant in the Washington Internships for Students of Engineering (WISE) Program, with guaranteed support for two students. ANS-sponsored students must be student members of the Society.

#### **American Red Cross**

#### Internships for Undergraduate and Graduate Students

There are internships throughout the year in different departments and ongoing volunteer opportunities, too.

# <u>U.S. National Institutes of Health (NIH)</u> — *Training Programs in the Biomedical Sciences* Summer Internship Program (SIP) in Biomedical Research

Mar SIP is for students who are at least sixteen years of age or older at the time they begin the program. To be eligible, candidates must be U.S. citizens or permanent residents. U.S. citizens are eligible to apply if they are enrolled at least half-time in high school or an accredited college or university as undergraduate, graduate, or professional students. Students who have been accepted into an accredited college or university program may also apply.

#### Undergraduate Scholarship Program (UGSP)

Mar UGSP offers competitive scholarships to students from disadvantaged backgrounds who are committed to careers in biomedical, behavioral, and social science health-related research. The program offers scholarship support, paid research training at the NIH during the summer and paid employment and training at the NIH after graduation.

#### Biomedical Engineering Summer Internships (BESIP)

Feb 9 This internship program is for undergraduate biomedical engineering students who have completed their junior year of college. This ten-week program will allow rising senior biomedical engineering students to participate in cutting-edge biomedical research projects under the mentorship of world-class scientists in NIH laboratories.

# Postbaccalaureate Intramural Research Training Award (IRTA)

None The NIH Postbac IRTA program (CRTA, Cancer Research Training Award, in the National Cancer Institute) provides recent college graduates who are planning to apply to graduate or professional (medical/dental/pharmacy) school an opportunity to spend one or two years performing full-time research at the NIH.

# **NIH Academy**

None The NIH Academy is a postbaccalaureate biomedical research program for recent college graduates with an interest in domestic health disparities, differences in the frequency or severity of diseases and other adverse health conditions among populations in the U.S.

#### Technical Intramural Research Training Award (IRTA)

#### None

The NIH Technical IRTA Program (CRTA, Cancer Research Training Award in the National Cancer Institute) is designed to produce a cadre of highly trained research support personnel. College graduates and individuals who hold a master's degree spend two years (possibly three) mastering the latest and most advanced techniques for basic and/or applied research working in an environment devoted exclusively to biomedical research.

#### **Graduate Partnerships Program (GPP)**

The NIH Graduate Partnerships Program (GPP) allows participants to take advantage of the best of two worlds - the academic environment of a university and the breadth and depth of research at the NIH. The goal is to create a different kind of graduate experience, one that focuses on training the next generation of scientific leaders by emphasizing communication and collaboration skills, integration of information, and interdisciplinary investigation. At the NIH, graduate students work in a highly collaborative research environment with leading scientists and clinicians.

#### Clinical Research Training Program for Medical and Dental School Students

The Clinical Research Training Program (CRTP) for Medical and Dental Students is a 12-month program designed to attract the most creative, research-oriented medical and dental students to the intramural campus of the National Institutes of Health (NIH) in Bethesda, Maryland. Participants, known as Fellows, spend a year engaged in a mentored clinical or translational research project in an area that matches their personal interests and goals.

# Clinical Electives Program for Third and Fourth-Year Medical and Dental Students

You must be enrolled in a medical or dental school and have your school's approval to participate. You must have completed all of your core courses prior to review of your application. Students participate in short-term clinical rotations and research electives designed to provide advanced training in translational and clinical research in over 30 specialties.

### **Summer Medical and Dental Education Program (SMDEP)**

Free (full tuition, housing, and meals) six-week medical and dental school summer academic enrichment program for freshman and sophomore college students

Mar Factors considered in the admissions process include whether an applicant identifies with a group that is racially/ethnically underrepresented in medicine and/or dentistry (as defined independently by each program site); comes from an economically or educationally disadvantaged background; has demonstrated interest in issues affecting underserved populations; and submits a compelling personal statement and strong letters of recommendation.

#### **Directors of Health Promotion and Education (DHPE)**

Directors of Health Promotion and Education (DHPE) Internship Program for Students of Minority-Serving Institutions

Mar The program has been designed to provide students with practical experiences in public health related to the core competencies of health education and to introduce the students to the essentials of public health.

Jun 15

Oct 15

# Athenaeum of Philadelphia

# Charles E. Peterson Internships in Architecture and Building Technology

Mar Internships for periods of up to four months are awarded to graduate students enrolled full time in an architecture or historic preservation program.

#### Blinks Summer Internships in Marine Research

Mar This program welcomes students who bring diversity to the FHL student body in any phase of their undergraduate career.

#### **Nuclear Age Peace Foundation** — *Internships*

Paid Internships — \$3,200

Mar These positions are for qualified university students at either the graduate or undergraduate level seeking experience in the peace and disarmament field. Candidates from anywhere in the world are encouraged to apply, provided that they are students currently enrolled in an accredited college or university in the United States.

#### **Association of Occupational and Environmental Clinics**

Occupational Health Internship Program (OHIP)

Mar Summer internship program to help medical, nursing, public health, and other students learn more about the field of occupational safety and health from those with the most at stake: working people.

### National Hispana Leadership Institute

Latinas Learning to Lead Summer Youth Institute

Mar The program promotes and fosters the development of young college-age Latina leaders through training, mentoring opportunities, access to national networks and tools to create a community impact through their leadership projects.

### **Carnegie Institution of Washington**

Summer Internships in Geochemistry and Cosmochemistry

<u>Charles Drew University of Medicine and Science, Division of Cancer Research and Training</u> Undergraduate Cancer Research Training Program (UCRTP)

The UCRTP is a 12-week summer research program designed for outstanding minority and underrepresented undergraduate students who are contemplating a career in biomedical-related sciences.

#### **Committee on Institutional Cooperation** — Student Opportunities

Summer Research Opportunities Program (SROP)

Feb The Summer Research Opportunities Program (SROP) is a gateway to graduate education at CIC universities. The goal of the program is to increase the number of underrepresented students who pursue graduate study and research careers. SROP helps prepare undergraduates for graduate study through intensive research experiences with faculty mentors and enrichment activities.

#### Google — Scholarships

Internships in Computer Science (or Closely Related Areas), Advertising, Business Development, Sales, Marketing, and Product Management

Google now offers internship opportunities throughout the year.

#### Fermi National Accelerator Laboratory

Summer Internships in Science and Technology

The program focuses on giving opportunities in science and technology to undergraduate college students currently enrolled in four-year colleges and universities in the United States. Internships are offered to students majoring in physics, electrical engineering, mechanical engineering and computer science.

#### **Harbor Branch Oceanographic Institution**

Marine Science and Engineering Summer Internships

Open to qualified undergraduate and graduate students, the 10-week program is designed to provide hands-on experience in a research environment in areas that include aquaculture, biomedical marine research, marine biology, marine mammal research, marine natural product chemistry, marine microbiology, ocean engineering, ocean technology, and oceanography.

# **Harvard Medical School**

#### Summer Honors Undergraduate Research Program

The Program is offered for currently-enrolled undergraduates who are considering careers in biological or biomedical research sciences, who have already had at least one summer (or equivalent term-time) of experience in a research laboratory, and who have taken at least one upper-level biology course that includes molecular biology.

#### **Harvard School of Public Health**

### Summer Program in Quantitative Sciences (Biostatistics, Epidemiology, and Health and Social Behavior)

Feb 1 The Summer Program is a relatively intensive 4-week program, during which qualified participants receive an interesting and enjoyable introduction to biostatistics, epidemiology and public health research. This program is designed to expose undergraduates to the use of quantitative methods for biological, environmental and medical research.

#### Henry J. Kaiser Family Foundation

# The Kaiser Media Internships in Health Reporting

An internship program for young minority journalists interested in specializing in urban public health reporting.

#### **Henry Luce Foundation**

#### Henry Luce Scholars

The program provides stipends, language training, and individualized professional placement in Asia for 15-18 Luce Scholars each year, and welcomes applications from college seniors, graduate students, and young professionals in a variety of fields who have had limited exposure to Asia. Luce Scholar candidates are nominated by participating colleges and universities.

#### **Hispanic Association of Colleges and Universities (HACU)**

# Hispanic Association of Colleges and Universities (HACU) National Internship Program (HNIP)

The HACU National Internship Program is open to all students, regardless of their ethnicity, gender, age, faith, etc. To be eligible for HNIP, applicants must (1) have a minimum 3.0 GPA (on a 4.0 scale); (2) be enrolled in a degree-seeking program at an accredited institution. (Students pursuing only a credential or certificate will be considered ineligible.) The only session for which you may apply if you have already graduated is the summer session immediately following your final spring semester; (3) have completed the freshman year of college before the internship begins; and (4) be authorized or eligible to work in the United States by law.

# <u>Howard Hughes Medical Institute</u> — Opportunities for Individuals Inroads

#### **Internships in Industry and Business**

A paid multi-year internship with a top company.

# <u>Institute for Diversity in Health Management — Education Programs</u>

#### Summer Internships in Health Management

The Summer Enrichment Program (SEP) is an enhanced internship program which gives real-world work experience to graduate students in health administration with a 10-12 week, paid internship in a hospital or health care facility.

<u>George Mason University</u>, <u>Institute for Humane Studies</u> — <u>Scholarships and Fellowships Internships and Job Opportunities</u>

Participate in an intensive public policy internship at an organization focused on state, federal, or single-issue policies. The journalism program offers paid internships in print, broadcast, new media, and investigative journalism at daily newspapers, major media outlets, and state policy think tanks across the country.

# **Institute for Women's Policy Research (IWPR)**

#### **Summer Internships**

IWPR's internship program is designed to provide participants with challenging work experiences under the guidance and supervision of researchers with extensive knowledge of women's policy issues and social science research.

#### **International Crane Foundation** — Get Involved

#### Crane Conservation Internships

Internships are usually six months in length and are open on a competitive basis.

# John F. Kennedy Library Foundation

#### **Student Internships**

The John F. Kennedy Library Foundation awards several paid archival internships each year to undergraduate and graduate students majoring in history, government, archival administration, library science, English, journalism, communications and other related disciplines.

#### Maryland Sea Grant College

### Research Experiences for Undergraduates (REU)

The program is especially designed for students majoring in such fields as biology, chemistry, ecology, environmental science, engineering, physics, marine science and mathematics.

#### <u>Microsoft</u> — *Internships*

#### Technical, MBA, and Business Internships

You don't want to waste your summer making a widget that will never see the light of day. At Microsoft your projects matter and your team will be counting on your skills and insights.

#### **Mote Marine Laboratory**

#### Internship Opportunities for College Students

Mote offers a variety of internship opportunities for undergraduate/graduate students and recent college graduates interested in a career in the ocean sciences.

### Research Experiences for Undergraduates (REU)

Feb The awards offer paid research training experiences in estuarine science to undergraduate students during a 10week summer period.

# <u>U.S. National Institutes of Health (NIH)</u>, <u>National Cancer Institute</u>— <u>Training Programs in the Biomedical Sciences</u> Health Communications Internship Program (HCIP)

The HCIP gives highly qualified graduate students and recent graduate degree recipients the opportunity to participate in vital health and science communications projects in one of the many offices that make up the NCI. Interns will select an area of emphasis: health communications or science writing.

#### National Air and Space Museum — Research

# National Air and Space Museum Summer Internship Program

Feb

Interns have a firsthand opportunity to learn about the historic artifacts and archival materials housed in the Museum and to study the scientific and technological advances they represent. To be considered for a summer

internship, you must be a high school graduate and be enrolled in a degree-granting undergraduate or graduate program at an accredited college or university.

#### **Parkinson's Disease Foundation**

#### Summer Fellowships for Undergraduates and Medical Students

PDF's Summer Fellowship Program is used to support students - from advanced undergraduates to graduate and medical students - in their pursuit of Parkinson's-related summer research projects.

# Space Telescope Science Institute (STScI) — Fellowships and Student Programs

#### Summer Student Program for Undergraduates

Jan Each summer, the STScI brings highly motivated college students to Baltimore, Maryland, for a Space Astronomy
 Summer Program. STScI is the scientific operations center for the Hubble Space Telescope and the future James
 Webb Space Telescope. The SAS Program runs from mid-June to mid-August, and is designed for upper division undergraduates with a strong interest in space astronomy.

#### **Student Conservation Association (SCA)**

#### **Conservation Internships**

Expense-paid internships, living stipend, housing, round trip travel, 18 and older, 3-12 months, all 50 states.

# **University of Wisconsin, Madison**

Integrated Biological Sciences Summer Research Program

Feb Computational Biology & Biostatistics, Neuroscience, Cellular and Molecular Biology, Plant Biology, and Environmental Biology.

#### **Wildlife Conservation Society**

#### **International Conservation Programs Internships**

All WCS interns and volunteers based in New York City work within one of the four zoos or aquarium. With a strong focus on community education and a broad spectrum of functional areas, WCS is a prime institution for meaningful internships and volunteer experiences.

# **Woods Hole Oceanographic Institution (WHOI)**

#### Summer Student Fellowship Program

Feb A research project is at the heart of the Summer Student and Minority Fellowship programs. All fellows are expected to work on a project selected in collaboration with their sponsor(s) that will provide meaningful results in one summer's work. Research topics span a broad spectrum of topics throughout WHOI's science departments, and the Woods Hole Field Station of the United States Geological Survey (USGS).

# Geophysical Fluid Dynamics Fellowships

Feb Graduate students and researchers from a variety of fields who share a common interest in the nonlinear dynamics of rotating, stratified fluids share an intense ten-week research experience, and vigorous discussions of concepts that span different disciplines.

# **Woods Hole Diversity Advisory Committee**

#### **Summer Science Internships**

Feb The Woods Hole Partnership Educational Program (PEP) is designed primarily for college juniors and seniors who want to spend a summer gaining practical experience in marine and environmental science. The program consists of a four-week course and a six-to-ten week research project - all in the sea-side village of Woods Hole.

#### **U.S. National Academies**

# Christine Mirzayan Science and Technology Policy Graduate Fellowships

Sep 9 Graduate and professional school students and those who have completed graduate studies (degree awarded) within the last five years may apply. Areas of study may include any social/behavioral science, medical/health discipline, physical or biological science, any field of engineering, law/business/public administration, or any relevant interdisciplinary fields.

#### Princeton University, Woodrow Wilson School of Public And International Affairs

Public Policy and International Affairs (PPIA) Junior Summer Institute (JSI)

Nov The PPIA Junior Summer Institute is a seven-week program structured to introduce or strengthen skills in economics, statistics, policy analysis, writing, public speaking and organization/time management.

#### **CHCI Congressional Internship**

Nov Provides college students with a paid Congressional work placement on Capitol Hill for a period of twelve weeks (Spring/Fall) or eight weeks (Summer).

#### **American College of Healthcare Executives**

#### Minority Internships in Healthcare and Professional Society Management

Dec 1 The three-month internship program will provide an opportunity for the intern to rotate through all major ACHE divisions, including Communications and Marketing, Education, Executive Office, Finance and Administration, Health Administration Press, Management Information Systems, Membership, Regional Services, and Research.

### American Society for Engineering Education — Fellowship Programs

Naval Research Enterprise Internship Program (NREIP)

Dec NREIP provides competitive research internships to undergraduate sophomores, juniors & seniors, and graduate students. Participating students typically spend ten weeks during the summer doing research at DoN laboratories. To participate, a student must be enrolled at an accredited 4 year US college or university and have completed their freshman year before beginning the internship.

# **Department of Homeland Security** — Education Programs

#### **DHS HS-STEM Summer Internships**

Dec The U.S. Department of Homeland Security (DHS) Science and Technology Directorate sponsors a 10-week summer internship program for students majoring in homeland security related science, technology, engineering and mathematics (HS-STEM) Disciplines. The program provides students with quality research experiences at federal research facilities located across the country and allows students the opportunity to establish connections with DHS professionals. It is open to undergraduate and graduate students in a broad spectrum of HS-STEM Disciplines and DHS mission-relevant Research Areas.

# **Biomedical Summer Internships**

#### Massachusetts Institute of Technology — Undergraduate Outreach

# Biology/BCS Summer Research Program (MSRP)

The Department of Biology and the Department of Brain & Cognitive Sciences at MIT offer a joint 10-week research-intensive summer training program in the biological sciences, neurosciences or biomedical-related fields to advanced sophomore and junior science majors from other colleges and universities. Only current undergraduate students studying full time in the U.S. are eligible for this summer program.

#### MIT Undergraduate Summer Research Internships

Jan This program seeks to identify talented sophomores, juniors, and non-graduating seniors who might benefit from spending a summer on MIT's campus, working in a research laboratory under the guidance of experienced scientists and engineers who are MIT faculty members, postdoctoral fellows, and advanced graduate students. Students who participate in this program will be better prepared and motivated to pursue advanced degrees, thereby helping to sustain a rich talent pool in critical areas of research and innovation.

# <u>Harvard University, Harvard-MIT Program in Health Sciences and Technology (HST)</u> — <u>HST Summer Institute</u> HST Summer Institute in Biomedical Informatics

Jan Undergraduate students interested in pursuing a career in bioinformatics are eligible to apply to this nine week
31 program. From a base on the Cambridge, Massachusetts MIT campus, students attend lectures and perform research at HST and Harvard-affiliated institutions. The program combines didactic lectures in informatics and genomics, clinical case studies and a mentored research project to expose students fully to the exciting world of genomic research.

#### **HST Summer Institute in Biomedical Optics**

Jan The HST-Wellman Summer Institute for Biomedical Optics provides undergraduate student participants with
16 research experience in the field of biomedical optics. The program objective is to inspire talented students to pursue
advanced research, education, and careers in science and engineering. Research experience in this program is focused
on engineering--from discovery of new transformative approaches to development of cutting-edge technologies.
Innovation in biomedical optics requires understanding of physical and engineering principles, as well as biological
and medical insights, to define important challenges and to understand how new technologies must perform.

# <u>Case Western Reserve University, Department Of Pharmacology</u> <u>Educational Training Programs</u> <u>Summer Undergraduate Research in Pharmacology</u>

Jan The Summer Undergraduate Research Program provides "hands on" research experience for sophomores and juniors in the area of molecular pharmacology. Although the projects will vary, each is related to a common theme - elucidation of the molecular mechanisms underlying the interaction of chemical agents such as drugs, hormones and neurotransmitters with biological systems.

#### **Amgen-UROP Scholars Program**

Feb The Amgen-UROP Scholars Program invites undergraduates to participate in faculty-mentored summer research at MIT in the science and biotechnology areas for sophomore status (with 4 quarters or 3 semesters of college experience), juniors, and non-graduating seniors who plan to continue undergraduate studies. Participants become fully integrated in MIT's summer research community, interacting with faculty mentors and fellow undergraduates while participating in research seminars and other networking events.

# <u>Medical University of South Carolina</u> — <u>Summer Research Program</u>

Summer Undergraduate Research Program (SURP)

Jan SURP offers undergraduates with a very strong interest in biosciences and biomedical research the opportunity to work closely with faculty members on cutting edge biomedical research projects. During the 10-week program, participants will be taught important research skills and techniques. In addition, there is a mandatory seminar series component to the program with tracks in Cardiovascular Biology, Cancer Biology, Neuroscience and Oceans and Human Health.

# Summer Health Professionals Research Program

Feb The goal of the program is to introduce students in the health professions to biomedical research by allowing them to work during the summer in a research environment under the guidance of an experienced investigator. Students in MUSC's Colleges of Medicine, Nursing, Dental Medicine, Pharmacy, Health Professions and other Medical Schools throughout the United States, who are enrolled in a professional graduate program (e.g., MD, PharmD, DMD) are eligible to apply.

# Johns Hopkins Medicine — Diversity Programs

#### Summer Internship Program (SIP)

Feb The Summer Internship Program (SIP) provides experience in research laboratories to students of diverse backgrounds, including underrepresented minority students, students from economically disadvantaged and underserved backgrounds and students with disabilities that have completed one - two or more years of college. The purpose of this exposure to biomedical and/or public health research is to encourage students to consider careers in science, medicine and public health.

# <u>Yale University Graduate School of Arts and Sciences, Office for Diversity and Equal Opportunity</u> Summer Undergraduate Research Fellowship Program (SURF)

Feb The SURF Program is intended for students with a strong desire to pursue research careers at the Ph.D. level. The program is particularly interested in identifying and providing research experience to talented underrepresented minority students. Preference is given to students completing their sophomore or junior years.

#### Albert Einstein College of Medicine — Financial Aid

# Summer Undergraduate Research Program (SURP)

Feb The program is designed for undergraduates with a strong background in science who are considering a research career. SURP students arrive at Einstein in mid-June for a nine-week research laboratory work experience. Students are matched to a laboratory in the area of interest they indicate on their application. At the end of the program, students present their research in a poster session. In addition to research, SURP students participate in a variety of complementary scientific activities.

# Weill Cornell Graduate School of Medical Sciences (WCGS) — Financial Support

# Access Summer Research Program

Feb Access is a summer internship program that trains underserved college students in the biomedical sciences. Interns gain hands-on experience in a biomedical research laboratory and are encouraged to apply to PhD programs.

Selected students are placed in laboratories at the Weill Cornell Medical College under the mentorship of experienced faculty members.

#### **Gerstner Sloan-Kettering Graduate School of Biomedical Sciences**

# Summer Undergraduate Research Program (SURP)

Feb A ten-week research program for outstanding undergraduate students who are interested in pursuing a career in the biomedical sciences. Participants have the opportunity to perform hands-on research in cutting-edge biomedical research laboratories. Designed for approximately 20 outstanding undergraduate freshmen, sophomores, and juniors.

#### **Hunter College, Center for Translational and Basic Research (CTBR)**

#### Summer Program for Undergraduate Research (SPUR)

Feb SPUR is an 8-week program that gives undergraduates hands-on experience in one of 53 research laboratories at

Hunter College, CUNY in NYC. The goal is to train and encourage undergraduate students to pursue graduate study in biomedical research, and in drug abuse/addiction and neuroscience. Students must major in biology, chemistry, biopsychology, biophysics or biotechnology, or another biomedical research area.

#### <u>Mayo Clinic Graduate School</u> — Research and Training Programs

# Summer Undergraduate Research Fellowships (SURF)

Feb A career in biomedical research is not for everyone, but if you love science, always want to know WHY, not just what, enjoy tough problems that just don't seem to want to be solved, want to contribute to new medical breakthroughs, and get a thrill out of discovery, then a career as a Ph.D. or M.D.-Ph.D. scientist might be for you. You won't be certain, though, until you immerse yourself in a research lab, and Mayo Clinic is one of the best places for you to do just that.

# Icahn School of Medicine at Mount Sinai — Degrees and Programs

# Summer Undergraduate Research Program

Feb Summer research internships for outstanding undergraduate students who are planning to pursue an MD/PhD or a PhD and who are interested in doing research at a leading biomedical institution. Applications are invited from undergraduate students who are currently in their sophomore, or junior year, have a GPA of 3.5 or higher, and have a minimum of three months of research experience. Students who have a GPA of less than 3.5 but have extensive research experience are also encouraged to apply.

#### Northwestern University, the Graduate School — Diversity

#### Summer Research Opportunity Program (SROP)

Feb SROP is an eight-week competitive research experience at Northwestern University for sophomores and juniors from colleges and universities across the United States. All fields of research at Northwestern are open to SROP participants including the social sciences and humanities, physical sciences, chemical and biological sciences, technology, math and engineering fields. The program encourages students from underrepresented minority and other disadvantaged groups to apply.

# <u>Stanford University School of Medicine</u>—Students and Trainees

## Stanford Summer Research Program (SSRP)/Amgen Scholars

Feb The Stanford Summer Research Program/Amgen Scholars Program is a fully funded, nine-week, residential research program. It offers undergraduates who want to prepare for and enter Ph.D. programs in the sciences a unique opportunity for advanced research experience within a world class university.

#### Columbia University, Biological Sciences

#### Amgen Scholars Summer Research Program

A summer research program for a select group of motivated undergraduate students who will benefit from the opportunity of hands-on biology related laboratory research. The Amgen Scholars Program is competitive, with awards based on grades, recommendations and career plans. You may apply if you are a US citizen or permanent resident and currently a sophomore, junior, or non-graduating senior at a four-year college or university in the United States, Puerto Rico or other US territory.

#### New York University (NYU) School of Medicine, Sackler Institute

#### Summer Undergraduate Research Program (SURP)

Feb SURP is for qualified sophomores and juniors who are interested in pursuing M.D., M.D./Ph.D. or Ph.D. degrees and a career in research. Students may work with faculty in the disciplines of Biochemistry, Biomedical Imaging, Cellular and Molecular Biology, Developmental Genetics, Immunology, Microbiology, Molecular Oncology, Molecular Pharmacology, Neuroscience and Physiology, Parasitology, Structural Biology, Forensic Pathology, Computational Biology and Virology.

# <u>Harvard University</u>, <u>Harvard Stem Cell Institute</u> (HSCI) — <u>Research</u>

# HSCI Internship Program (HIP)

Feb This is an undergraduate internship program open to rising sophomores, juniors, and seniors who express a strong interest in stem cell biology. Applicants may be from Harvard or any college or university across the United States and internationally. It provides undergraduate students with a focused and challenging summer research experience in a cutting-edge stem cell science laboratory. Interns are exposed to different professional options within the scientific arena through a stem cell seminar series, a career pathways presentation, and a weekly stem cell companion course.

#### **Case Western Reserve University, Center for AIDS Research**

### Minority HIV Research Training Program (MHRTP)

The MHRTP focuses on recruiting and training underrepresented minority research trainees to expand the pool of researchers in the HIV/AIDS field. The program offers research-training opportunities to qualified minority undergraduate students or recent graduates who are members of an underrepresented groups in biomedical and

behavioral research careers. Participants in the MHRTP benefit from early exposure to HIV science, continuous research training and faculty mentoring.

#### **Harvard University** — Diversity

### Summer Honors Undergraduate Research Program (SHURP)

Feb SHURP is a ten-week summer research program primarily for college students belonging to groups that are underrepresented in the sciences. To be eligible for SHURP, applicants must be currently-enrolled undergraduates who will not have completed their BA/BS degree by June 2014, are considering careers in biological or biomedical research sciences, and have already had at least one summer (or equivalent term-time) of experience in a research laboratory.

### Penn State College of Medicine — Summer Undergraduate Research

# Summer Undergraduate Research Internship Program (SURIP)

Feb SURIP is designed for College students who are interested in pursuing a career in the biological sciences. The typical intern will be between their Sophomore and Junior year or between their Junior and Senior year of undergraduate studies. Students who will have a BA or BS prior to the start of the internship should not apply. SURIP 2014 would be most appropriate for students considering application to PhD programs in the Biomedical Sciences and is not intended for students who will apply to Medical School.

# <u>Rutgers Institute for Health, Health Care Policy and Aging Research —</u> <u>Undergraduate Research Training</u> <u>Project L/EARN</u>

Feb The goal of Project L/EARN is to increase the number of students from underrepresented groups in the fields of health, mental health, and health policy research, thereby expanding the breadth of health research to include a broader range of ethnic, cultural, and socioeconomic issues, concerns and perspectives. For students who have have at least one full academic year left to complete their undergraduate degree. Project L/EARN identifies students from economically disadvantaged backgrounds, first generation college attenders, and those from racial/ethnic minority groups who have an interest in health-related social science fields, and provides them with training, experience and mentoring to make them stronger candidates for admission to graduate programs. Past interns have come from a variety of majors, including psychology, sociology, economics, political science, nursing, public health, pharmacy, biology, statistics, urban studies, and public policy. Project L/EARN is open to students from any U.S. college or university.

#### Marquette University, Biomedical Sciences

### Biomedical Sciences Summer Research Program

Feb A competitive summer program for rising sophomore, junior, and senior undergraduate students with interests in biomedical research. Successful applicants to the program receive a summer research stipend for participation in the 10-week, 40-hr per week program. As part of the program, students conduct biomedical research in the laboratories of participating faculty mentors and present their findings and a symposium upon completion.

# <u>Boston University</u> — Undergraduate Research Opportunities

# Summer Undergraduate Research Fellowship (SURF) Program

The SURF Program is designed to promote access to graduate education for talented undergraduate students,
 especially those from minority groups traditionally underrepresented in the sciences: African-American, Hispanic,
 Native American/Native Alaskan, and Pacific Islander/Native Hawaiian/Polynesian. It is open to non-BU students who are rising juniors or rising seniors, and wish to conduct research in the sciences, technology, or engineering. The program consists of ten weeks of full-time research in a Boston University lab, mentored by a BU faculty member.
 Most SURF research projects are in areas related to Biology and Neuroscience.

#### Harvard University, School of Public Health

# Summer Program in Quantitative Sciences

The Summer Program is a relatively intensive 4-week program, during which qualified participants receive an interesting and enjoyable introduction to biostatistics, epidemiology, and health and social behavior. This program is

designed to expose undergraduates to the use of quantitative methods for biological, environmental, medical and public health research.

#### Case Western Reserve University — ACES Program

# ACES+ Summer Research Program for Science and Engineering (S&E)

Feb This program seeks to attract students to pursue research in science or engineering as a career. It is organized in cooperation with the Support of Undergraduate Research and Creative Endeavors (SOURCE) and the Summer Program in Undergraduate Research (SPUR) at Case Western Reserve University. Each student will be assigned to a faculty mentor with related research interests.

#### Medical College of Wisconsin, Medical School — Diversity Programs

#### Diversity Summer Health-Related Research Education Program (DSHREP)

Feb 10-week summer fellowship open to resident and non-resident undergraduate and graduate students from diverse backgrounds. Sponsored by the National Heart, Lung, Blood Institute (NHLBI). Monthly salary, housing and travel expenses available.

# <u>Cincinnati Children's Hospital Medical Center</u> Research Education and Training

Summer Undergraduate Research Fellowships (SURF)

Feb The SURF Program offers undergraduates the chance to explore clinical and basic science research in laboratories in the Department of Pediatrics, University of Cincinnati College of Medicine. The primary goal is to provide students with a foundation for making career choices in the biomedical sciences.

#### Kansas State University, Center for Sustainable Energy — Education

# REU Summer Academy in Sustainable Bioenergy

Feb Students will be accepted from all science, socioeconomic, agricultural, and engineering majors. Applicants must be
American citizens or permanent residents. Preference is given to students who have completed their sophomore or
junior year. Outstanding first-year students may be considered. Graduating seniors are not eligible. Research
activities in this program under the guidance of faculty mentors, will advance students' state of knowledge in
sustainable energy. Students will participate in "hands-on" experiences with processing agricultural biomass,
experiencing the physical environment of industrial-scale biomass processing with all its limitations and
opportunities. Students will also meet people who actually perform the work to produce renewable energy for the
communities where they live.

#### Case Western Reserve University, School of Medicine

# Heart, Lung and Blood (HLB) Summer Research Program

Feb The Heart, Lung and Blood Summer Research Program is designed to engage 12 diverse undergraduates and 8
medical students in state-of-the art biomedical research in cardiovascular, pulmonary, hematological and sleep
Mar disorders research. Students who belong to groups underrepresented in biomedical sciences are eligible to apply. In
general, this includes students who are African American, Latino, Puerto Rican, Pacific Islanders, students from lowincome families, or those with disabilities. Please note that you must be a US citizen or Permanent resident to
participate.

### SUNY Upstate Medical University, College of Graduate Studies — Programs

# Summer Undergraduate Research Fellowship Program

Feb Applicants to the program should be undergraduate students in good academic standing, who will be between their junior and senior years during the summer of 2014, and are majors in chemistry, biology, or a related field. Applicants must have a strong interest in pursuing a Ph.D. degree in biomedical research.

#### Harvard University, Harvard Medical School and Brigham and Women's Hospital (BWH)

# Four Directions Summer Research Program (FDSRP)

Feb FDSRP is a summer research opportunity at Harvard Medical School and Brigham and Women's Hospital (BWH)
for undergraduate students with a commitment to the health of Native American communities. Students engage for 8

weeks in basic science or translational research projects under the supervision of Harvard Medical School faculty advisors. At the end of the 8 weeks students share their research findings during a final research presentation day. Students also receive career development training, meet faculty from across the hospital and medical school, and participate in a variety of social networking events.

#### Georgia Regents University — Graduate Studies

#### Student Training and Research Program (STAR)

Feb STAR is designed to provide biomedical research experience for undergraduate students with a sincere desire to pursue a graduate education in biomedical sciences. During the course of the nine-week program, STARs actively participate in a biomedical research project under the guidance of an GRU faculty member. STAR participants attend workshops, discussion groups and laboratory demonstrations that expose them to a broad range of biomedical research techniques, approaches and laboratory experiences. It provides excellent preparation and relevant experience for students planning to pursue a PhD or MD/PhD in the biomedical sciences.

# <u>National Institute of Diabetes and Digestive and Kidney Diseases (NIDDK) — STEP-UP</u> STEP-UP

Feb The High School STEP-UP provides hands-on summer research experience for high school students interested in exploring research careers in the biomedical, behavioral, clinical and social sciences. The program provides exposure to the core NIDDK mission areas of diabetes, endocrinology and metabolic diseases; digestive diseases and nutrition; kidney, urologic and hematologic diseases.

### High School and Undergraduate STEP-UP

Feb Applicants must be 16 years of age or older and either be enrolled in high school or an accredited U.S. college or university, or plan to be enrolled in the fall. The STEP-UP provides hands-on summer research experience for undergraduate students interested in exploring research careers in the biomedical, behavioral, clinical and social sciences. The program provides exposure to the core NIDDK mission areas of diabetes, endocrinology and metabolic diseases; digestive diseases and nutrition; kidney, urologic and hematologic diseases.

#### <u>Indiana University, Simon Cancer Center — Training Programs</u>

#### Summer Research Program

Feb The IU Simon Cancer Center Summer Research Program (SRP) aims to increase the number of high school and undergraduate students from underrepresented populations pursuing biomedical and behavioral science careers by providing positive and meaningful firsthand exposure to these fields. SRP participants are full-time high school or undergraduate students from populations underrepresented in biomedical or behavioral sciences. All students from metropolitan Indianapolis, from surrounding county high schools or from colleges and universities who meet the program criteria are encouraged to apply.

#### Des Moines University — Financial Aid

#### Health Professions Advanced Summer Scholars

Mar Provides participants with well-rounded perspectives on what it's like to be a medical school student in osteopathic medicine, podiatric medicine and surgery, physical therapy and physician assistant studies.

#### <u>Loma Linda University</u> — Center for Health Disparities

# <u>Undergraduate Training Program (UTP)</u>

Mar The UTP includes scientific mentoring, participation in scientific seminars and lectures, educational enrichment activities, participation in our Health Disparities Research Symposium, and opportunities to attend national meetings to make scientific presentations. Participating students will be compensated competitively on an hourly basis.

#### The Ohio State University, College of Pharmacy — Research

Summer Undergraduate Research Fellowships in the Pharmaceutical Sciences

Mar Fellowships are available for undergraduate sophomore and junior students who would like to do research work in any of the pharmaceutical sciences during the summer. This fellowship is for those students who would like to know more about the discovery, use, or mechanisms of drugs, who like working in a lab, or who would just like to find out if they like working in the lab. Students conduct research in the areas of Pharmacology, Pharmaceutics, Pharmacy Practice, or Medicinal Chemistry and Pharmacognosy.

# Ohio University, Heritage College of Osteopathic Medicine

#### **Summer Scholars**

Mar While the program is designed to benefit rising college seniors, college juniors and college graduates may also be considered. Programs is for disadvantaged students (economic or educational). Students will be considered educationally disadvantaged if neither parent has completed a bachelors degree or higher. Applicants also belong to racial or ethnic populations who are underrepresented in the designated health profession discipline relative to the number of individuals who are members of the population involved. This definition would include Black or African American, American Indian or Alaskan Native, Native Hawaiian or Other Pacific Islander, Hispanic or Latino, and any Asian American other than Chinese, Filipino, Japanese, Korean, Asian Indian or Thai.

# <u>National Institutes of Health (NIH) — Training Programs in the Biomedical Sciences</u>

Summer Internship Program (SIP) in Biomedical Research

Mar SIP is for students who are at least sixteen years of age or older at the time they begin the program. To be eligible, candidates must be U.S. citizens or permanent residents. U.S. citizens are eligible to apply if they are enrolled at least half-time in high school or an accredited college or university as undergraduate, graduate, or professional students. Students who have been accepted into an accredited college or university program may also apply.

### Summer Medical and Dental Education Program — Sites

Summer Medical and Dental Education Program

Mar The SMDEP program offers students a variety of academic and career experiences that will support their dental and medical school career preparation. All the housing costs and most meals are covered by the program.

# <u>Loyola University Health Sciences, Department of Molecular Pharmacology and Experimental Therapeutics</u> <u>Discover Pharmacology Program</u>

Mar Applications for the fellowship award are open to undergraduate students who intend to pursue a career in research.

It seeks motivated students who have finished their sophomore or junior year in college, or those who have recently graduated from college and are exploring research as a career choice. Minority students are especially encouraged to apply.

# New York University (NYU), Center for Neural Science

Summer Undergraduate Research Program (SURP)

Apr The Center for Neural Science hosts a summer research experience program for undergraduates with an interest in neuroscience. This program is designed to foster entry into a neuroscience research-centered career. Applicants must be undergraduates completing their sophomore or junior year and with at least one course completed in the field of neuroscience. Priority will be given to students with minority cultural, racial or ethnic background or with demonstrable financial need or of the first generation to attend college.

# <u>The University of Texas, MD Anderson Cancer Center</u> — *CPRIT Training Program* MD Anderson Cancer Center & University of Puerto Rico Summer Research Program

Jan The Partnership Summer Research Program offers college and medical trainees from the University of Puerto Rico
 System an opportunity to explore biomedical research as it relates to cancer, to gain firsthand experiences and mentorship in basic, clinical or translational research alongside world-renowned faculty, as well as to attend targeted institutional lectures and seminars. Trainees actively participate in the technical aspects of their projects, interpret experimental data, as well as present findings. Return visits are offered to trainees demonstrating a sincere interest in biomedical research and outstanding research ability during their visit.

#### **CPRIT Summer Undergraduate Program**

Jan The Cancer Prevention & Research Institute of Texas (CPRIT) Summer Undergraduate Research program is a tenweek research program designed for outstanding undergraduate students who are interested in pursuing a career in cancer research. Students will be given hands-on research training in cutting-edge labs, interact with faculty, postdoctoral fellows and graduate students, attend weekly events, lectures and seminars and the opportunity to present their work at a poster session at the end of the ten-week program.

#### MD Anderson Summer Experience

Jan The MD Anderson Summer Experience is offered for high school seniors, college, graduate and medical students
 who are interested in exploring a career in cancer research. Ten paid weeks of research in a broad range of areas of cancer biology, medicine, and prevention.

### <u>California Institute of Technology — Student/Faculty Programs</u>

#### **WAVE Fellows**

WAVE Fellows must be current sophomores, juniors, or non-graduating seniors. Caltech's WAVE Fellows program aims to foster diversity by increasing the participation of underrepresented students in science and engineering Ph.D. Jan programs and making Caltech's programs more visible and accessible to students not traditionally exposed to Caltech. The program is extended, but not limited, to underrepresented minorities, women, first-generation college students, geographically underrepresented students, and educationally and financially disadvantaged students.

#### **Baylor College of Medicine** — Financial Aid

#### Summer Medical and Research Training Program (SMART)

Jan The Summer Medical and Research Training Program is for undergraduate students who are interested in exploring a career in scientific research. We encourage Ph.D.-oriented candidates to apply. Students are recruited for the SMART Program from across the nation. The program offers nine paid weeks of biomedically related research in a broad range of areas.

# **Cold Spring Harbor Laboratory** — **Education**

# Undergraduate Research Program (URP)

URP provides one of the few places where young people are instructed in the techniques of modern biology while becoming integrated members of a vibrant scientific community. Each year, approximately 25 students from around the world are accepted to the fully subsidized, 10-week summer program to work with senior Laboratory staff members on independent research projects in cancer biology, neuroscience, plant biology, cellular and molecular biology, genetics, and bioinformatics and genomics.

# <u>Howard Hughes Medical Institute (HHMI), Janelia Farm Research Campus</u> <u>Student Programs</u> Janelia Undergraduate Summer Scholars

Jan Janelia Undergraduate Scholars are among the very best future scientists, engineers, and mathematicians who are interested in exploring basic neuroscience, imaging technology, and related fields of research at Janelia. Any student who is enrolled in an undergraduate program may apply. Seniors are eligible to apply only if they are not committed to or planning to enroll in a graduate program in the upcoming academic year.

# Fred Hutchinson Cancer Research Center — Education & Training

# Summer Undergraduate Research Program (SURP)

Jan SURP is an intensive, nine-week internship designed to provide research experience and mentorship for undergraduate students who are interested in biomedical research. Under the guidance of a faculty mentor, students will complete an independent research project and present their findings at a competitive poster session. Students will be paired with a faculty mentor after selecting one of the following areas of interest. Basic Science: Conducts structural, genetic, molecular, cellular, developmental and evolutionary biology; Human Biology: Interdisciplinary research; conducts lab-based and computational research at the interface of basic, clinical and population sciences; Public Health: Uses large populations as a "laboratory" to look for links between cancer and its possible triggers, from diet and lifestyle to environmental and genetic factors. Conducts statistical, epidemiological and prevention studies around the world; Clinical Research: Works to develop and analyze new treatments for cancers and other

Diseases; and Vaccine and Infectious Disease: Integrates computational, laboratory and clinical research method to advance the understanding of microbial pathogenesis and infectious disease processes.

### Summer Undergraduate Research Fellowship (SURF)

Jan College sophomores and juniors are eligible to spend 10 weeks during the summer in a Rockefeller University

laboratory. SURF students work with leading scientists in a broad range of areas including biochemistry; structural biology and chemistry; molecular, cell and developmental biology; immunology; virology and microbiology; neuroscience; physics; and mathematical biology.

# **Athletic Scholarships**

http://www.playcollegesports.com (A group which helps high school athletes be proactive in prompting colleges to recruit them for athletic scholarships)

http://www.varsityedge.com (Information about the recruiting process and resources on how to make a recruiting video)

NCSA sports recruiting website (enter to win a \$2,500)

# **Websites For Scholarships And Grants For International Students**

www.edupass.org/finaid

www.iefa.org

www.internationalstudent.com/study\_usa/financing

www.foreignborn.com/study\_in\_us/8-paying4school.htm

www.finaid.org/otheraid/international.phtml

# **Websites For Student Loans**

http://www.ed.gov/programs/fpl (Federal Perkins Loans. Low-interest loans)

http://www.parentplusloan.com (Parent PLUS loans are loans borrowed by parents or guardians to help fund their children's college education)

http://www.staffordloan.com (Fixed rate federal student loans for undergrad or grad students)

#### **Miscellaneous Scholarships**

# The Gloria Barron Prize for Young Heroes

Each year, the Barron Prize honors twenty-five outstanding young leaders ages 8 to 18 who have made a significant positive difference to people and our environment. The top ten winners each receive a \$5,000 cash award to support their service work or higher education. The primary goal of the Prize is to shine the spotlight on these amazing young people so that their stories will inspire others. Winners of the Barron Prize receive: \$5,000 to be applied to their higher education or to their service project; a recognition plaque; a certificate of recognition; a signed copy of *The Hero's Trail*, by Barron Prize founder T.A. Barron; copy of *Dream Big*, our documentary film featuring several Barron Prize winners; a heroes study guide, curriculum, and bibliography; the opportunity to be paired with an adult mentor who is passionate about and working in the winner's area of interest; the opportunity to connect with other Barron Prize winners through the Young Heroes Listserv; numerous media opportunities – print, television, and radio.

http://barronprize.org/

# **Military Scholarships**

# **Fisher House Scholarships for Military Children**

Open to sons/daughters of active duty OR retired military commissary customers. Minimum 3.0 GPA. Award will be in the amount of \$2,000. <a href="https://www.militaryscholar.org">www.militaryscholar.org</a>

#### Wells Fargo CollegeSTEPS Sweepstakes (drawing)

HS and college students may win \$1000. Go to <a href="https://www.wellsfargo.com/collegesteps">www.wellsfargo.com/collegesteps</a>

## 2015 Joye Law Firm Scholarship

For the last 8 years, Joye Law Firm has given a total of over \$100,000 to the students of South Carolina. This scholarship is open to all seniors in South Carolina that will be attending a 4 year university. Details of the scholarship contest can be seen at

http://www.joyelawfirm.com/scholarship/ There, the students will be able to download the application packet, get the instructions and the address they'll be sending it out to. Nik Donovic, on behalf of Joye Law Firm (480) 818-5606.

# **College Funding By State**

Tip: Don't just look exclusively at your state. There may be websites in other states that may have good tips on how to search for scholarships.

#### Alaska

https://akadvantage.alaska.gov/Grants\_and\_Scholarships.aspx http://www.alaska.edu/scholars

#### Arizona

http://www.ade.state.az.us/asd/tuitionwaiver http://wiche.edu/sep/psep

#### Arkansas

http://www.fundmyfuture.info http://www.adhe.edu

#### California

http://www.csac.ca.gov/doc.asp?id=33

http://www.calgrants.org

Colorado

http://www.cesda.org

Connecticut

http://www.ctdhe.org

http://www.conntacinc.org

Florida

http://www.floridastudentfinancialaid.org

Georgia

http://www.gfsc.org

http://www.gacollege411.org

Hawaii

http://gearup.hawaii.edu

http://www.hawaii.edu/admissions/aid.html

Idaho

http://www.boardofed.idaho.gov/scholarship/scholarship\_jump.asp

Illinois

http://www.collegezone.com

Indiana

http://www.in.gov/ssaci

Iowa

http://www.rdblue.org

Kansas

http://www.kansasregents.org

Kentucky

http://www.kheaa.com

Maine

http://www.famemaine.com/education

Massachusetts

http://www.osfa.mass.edu

Michigan

http://www.michigan.gov/mistudentaid

Minnesota

http://www.ohe.state.mn.us

Mississippi

http://www.mississippi.edu/riseupms/financialaid-state.php

#### Montana

http://www.safmt.org

### Nevada

http://system.nevada.edu

### New Hampshire

http://www.nhheaf.org

http://www.nh.gov/postsecondary

### New Jersey

http://www.hesaa.org

### New York

http://www.tapweb.org/totw

### North Carolina

http://www.ncseaa.edu http://www.cfnc.org

# North Dakota

http://www.ndus.edu

#### Ohio

http://regents.ohio.gov/sgs/index.php

### Oklahoma

http://www.okhighered.org

### Oregon

http://www.getcollege funds.org

http://www.osac.state.or.us

# Pennsylvania

http://www.pheaa.org

# Rhode Island

http://www.cpcri.org

http://www.rischolarships.com

http://www.riheaa.org/sng

### South Carolina

http://www.che.sc.gov

http://www.sctuitiongrants.com

#### Texas

http://www.collegeforalltexans.com

http://www.tgslc.org

#### Utah

http://www.uheaa.org

http://www.utahmentor.org

# http://www.utahsbr.edu

Vermont

http://www.vermont.gov/portal/education

Virginia

http://www.schev.edu http://www.virginiamentor.org

Wisconsin

http://heab.state.wi.us

Wyoming

http://www.communitycolleges.wy.edu

# Federal Grants, Student Loans, And Other Sources Of Student Aid

- Pell Grant (Eligibility: Financial Need; Maximum amount for 2017-2018 school year: \$5,902/year)
- Federal Supplemental Educational Opportunity Grant (FSEOG) Eligibility: Financial Need; \$100-\$500/year) http://www2.ed.gov/programs/fseog/index.html
- Academic Competitiveness Grant (ACG) (Eligibility: Financial Need; Amount varies)
- Teacher Education Assistance for College and Higher Education (TEACH) Grant The Teacher Education Assistance for College and Higher Education (TEACH) Grant Program provides you with up to \$4,000 a year in grant assistance if you are completing or plan to complete course work needed to begin a career in teaching.

As a condition for receiving a TEACH Grant, you must sign an **Agreement to Serve** promising to teach full-time in a high-need field at a low-income school or educational service agency, or teach at certain low-income schools and within certain high-need fields for at least four complete academic years within eight years after completing (or ceasing enrollment in) the course of study for which you received the grant.

If you do not complete your teaching service obligation, the amounts of the TEACH Grants you received will be converted to a Direct Unsubsidized Loan that you must repay with interest charged from the date of each TEACH Grant disbursement.

• Iraq and Afghanistan Service Grant

If you are not eligible for a Pell Grant but your parent or guardian was a member of the U.S. armed forces and died as a result of service performed in Iraq or Afghanistan after Sept. 11, 2001, you may be eligible for this grant. To receive the grant, you must be under 24 years old or enrolled in college, at least part-time, at the time of your parent's or guardian's death. The amount of the grant will be equal to the maximum Pell Grant for the award year, although the amount will not exceed the cost of attendance for that award year.

# Student Loans

• Federal Stafford Loans

Subsidized: The government pays the interest while the student is in school.

Unsubsidized: The student pays the interest while in school.

Limits:

First year in school (\$3,500 subsidized/\$2,000 unsubsidized)

Second year (\$4,500 subsidized/\$2,000 unsubsidized)

Third year and following (\$5,500 subsidized/\$2,000 unsubsidized)

• Parent Plus Loans

Federal loans available to parents of dependent, undergraduate students to fund a child's college education. Eligibility is based on credit history, not financial need, and parents may borrow as much as needed.

# Other Sources of Financial Aid

- Tuition Tax Credits—a dollar-for-dollar reduction of federal income taxes to help toward the cost of higher education
- Hope Tax Credits—for first and second year students enrolled at least half-time; up to \$2,500 per student
- Lifetime Learning Tax Credit—equal to 20% of a family's tuition expenses, with a maximum of \$2,000 in tax credits on the first \$10,000 of college tuition expenses for virtually any postsecondary education and training (even less than half-time study)
- Student Loan Interest Deduction—a long-term savings account parents can take out for a child's college education; this money is not taxed

When federal loans are not enough to finance your education, choose a responsible private loan.

# The Smart Option Student Loan:

- Defer your payments until after school or pay as much as you want while in school<sup>1</sup>
- Get competitive variable interest rates that range from 3.17% APR-9.37% APR<sup>1</sup>
- Pay no origination fees
- Prepay your loan at any time with no penalty
- Borrow up to 100% of your school-certified cost of attendance<sup>2</sup>

#### **Bob Jones University Grants And Scholarships**

ACADEMIC EXCELLENCE SCHOLARSHIP

ACT 31+: \$10,000 ACT 27+: \$5,500 ACT 24+: \$4,500

• MINISTRY SCHOLARSHIP

\$2,000 (at least one parent in full-time ministry)

• LEGACY SCHOLARSHIP \$500 per alumni parent

• FOUNDER'S GRANT AND FINANCIAL ASSISTANCE SCHOLARSHIP Amounts vary based on financial need (requires a FAFSA)

# SCHOLARSHIPS BY MAJORS

All students in these majors are automatically considered for the following scholarships. No scholarship application is necessary.

#### **BUSINESS**

• Business Scholarship

Student must be enrolled in a major in the School of Business, demonstrate academic achievement and spiritual leadership, must be a work student, and demonstrate financial need. Amount of scholarship -3-5 scholarships at \$1,000-\$1,500

• Jim Martin Scholarship Fund

Accounting major with potential in the ministry of business Student must demonstrate financial need

Amount of scholarship – 1 scholarship at \$1,000-\$2,000

# FINE ARTS

• Marguerite Nagle Berry Scholarship

Student must be a music major and demonstrate financial need Amount of scholarship – 2-5 scholarships at \$1,000-\$3,500

• William McEver Scholarship

Student must be a string major and demonstrate financial need

Amount of scholarship – 1-5 scholarships at \$500-\$600

• Donald E. Meagley Scholarship

Student must be a piano or organ major and demonstrate financial need Amount of scholarship – 10 scholarship at \$300-\$1,500

• Robert & Laura Pratt Scholarship

Student must be a Radio and Television Broadcasting major and demonstrate financial need Amount of scholarship -1 scholarship at \$1,500

#### NURSING

• Stephanie Martin Memorial Scholarship Student must be a Nursing major and demonstrate financial need Amount of scholarship – 1-2 scholarships at \$800-\$1,000

#### **RELIGION**

 School of Religion Scholarship FAFSA required Up to \$10,000 for residence hall students

Up to \$5,000 for day students

• Amy Lynn Emr Scholarship

Student must be a child of a missionary and planning to be a missionary

Amount of scholarship – 1 scholarship at \$600-\$900

• Betty Goode Memorial Scholarship

Student must be going into full-time Christian work. Preference is given to those students from the Piedmont area of Virginia

Amount of scholarship – 1-2 scholarships at \$600-\$1,500

• Helen Johnson Scholarship Fund

Student must be enrolled in a Ministerial major and demonstrate financial need

Amount of scholarship – 10-20 scholarships at \$750-\$1,000

• Robert Toepfer Scholarship

Student must be enrolled in a Ministerial major and demonstrate financial need

Amount of scholarship – 1 scholarship at \$700

• Sarah Ann Lyon Allen Memorial Scholarship

Student must be enrolled in a Ministerial major

Amount of scholarship – 1 scholarship at \$500

# HISTORY, POLITICAL SCIENCE, HUMANITIES

• Baron Avro Manhattan Trust Fund

Student must be enrolled in a History, Political Science, or Humanities major, must be a work student, and demonstrate financial need

Amount of scholarship – 4 at \$2,500

### OTHER BJU SCHOLARSHIPS

• Alumni Children Tuition Assistance Grants

Students must be children of Alumni Association members and rising Junior or Senior.

Amount of scholarships – 10-12 grants at \$400-\$800

• Ann Pulcher Memorial Fund

Student must be a work student and demonstrate financial need

Amount of scholarship – 1 scholarship at \$800-\$1,000

• Helen McLario Memorial Fund

Student must be a work student and demonstrate financial need

Amount of scholarship – 1-5 scholarships at \$500-\$2,500

• Helping Hands Ministry Scholarship

Student must demonstrate financial need

Amount of scholarship – varies

• Roland and Anna Reed Scholarship Fund

Student must be a work student and demonstrate financial need

Amount of scholarship – 1-4 scholarships at \$700-\$1,000

• Byrd W. Bohannon Memorial Scholarship

Student must be a work student and demonstrate financial need. Priority given to those students from Ontario, Canada

Amount of scholarship – 1 scholarship at \$900

#### GRANTS AND SCHOLARSHIPS FOR SC RESIDENTS

South Carolina LIFE Scholarship (Eligibility: Academic Merit; Amount up to \$7,500 available for math and science majors-sophomore and above) http://www.sc.edu/financialaid/life.html

- South Carolina HOPE Scholarship (Eligibility: Academic Merit and freshmen students only; Amount up to \$2,800) http://www.sc.edu/financialaid/hope.html
- Palmetto Fellows Scholarship Program (Eligibility: Academic Merit; Amount: \$6,700/freshmen, \$7,500/sophomores and above, \$10,000/math and science majors-sophomore and above)
- South Carolina Tuition Grant (Eligibility: based primarily on financial need; Amount up to \$3,200/year)

For more info on the HOPE and Lifetime Learning tax credits, and other tax benefits for postsecondary students, go to www.irs.gov, IRS publication 970, *Tax Benefits for Higher Education*, which explains these credits.

## General College Information

College Planning Profile

Education Now, P.O. Box 2832, Springfield, VA 22152

Preparing Your Child for College (free)

U.S. Dept. of Education, Consumer Information Center, Pueblo, CO 81009

Getting Ready for College Early (free)

U. S. Dept. of Education, Consumer Information Center, Pueblo, CO 81009

Guide for Parents (free; also available in Spanish)

National Association for College Admission Counseling, 1050 North Highland Street Ste. 400, Alexandria, VA 22201

A Guide to the College Admission Process (for students)

National Association for College Admission Counseling, 1050 North Highland Street Ste. 400, Alexandria, VA 22201

Parents' Guide to the College Admission Process

National Association for College Admission Counseling, 1631 Prince Street, Alexandria, VA 22314-2818

Facts About American Colleges

National Association for College Admission Counseling, 1631 Prince Street, Alexandria, VA 22314-2818

Do It Write: How to Prepare a Great College Application Octameron Associates, PO Box 2748, Alexandria, VA 22301

College Match: A Blueprint for Choosing the Best School for You Octameron Associates, PO Box 2748, Alexandria, VA 22301

Campus Daze: Easing the Transition from High School to College Octameron Associates, PO Box 2748. Alexandria, VA 22301

The College Guide for Parents

College Board Publications, PO Box 886, New York, NY 10101-0886

Peterson's Guide to Four-Year Colleges

The College Handbook

College Board Publications, PO Box 886, New York, NY 10101-0886

*Index of Majors and Graduate Degrees*College Board Publications, PO Box 886, New York, NY 10101-0886

The College Blue Book, Narrative Descriptions McMillan Publishing Co.

Comparative Guide to American Colleges Harper & Row Publishers

The Right College
Arco Publishing, A Division of Simon and Schuster, Inc.
Lovejoy's College Guide
Prentice Hall

Barron's Profiles of American Colleges

### **Surviving Those Financial Aid Forms**

To apply for federal student aid, all post-secondary schools and colleges will require you to fill out the U. S. Department of Education's Free Application for Federal Student Aid (FAFSA). In addition, some institutions will require you to complete the College Scholarship Service's PROFILE form, for which there is a fee. These forms are available through college financial offices or from your high school guidance counselor's office.

To apply for a Stafford Loan, you may need to complete yet another form that you can get from a bank or savings-and-loan institution after the student has been accepted at a school.

Before you do battle with these forms, pay attention to these helpful hints:

- 1. Apply early. Aid is often distributed on a first-come, first-served basis.
- 2. Follow directions exactly. If you don't, your form will be returned to you for clarification.
- 3. You should have on hand tax and financial information for the year preceding the one in which the student will start college. In other words, if the student will be a college freshman next fall, you'll need copies of your family's federal, state and local income tax returns for the current year. That means you should try to do your income taxes earlier than usual—January is best.
- 4. For income reporting, take the adjusted gross income from your family's federal tax return. The FAFSA will tell you which tax year information to report.
- 5. Round off numbers to the nearest dollar.
- 6. Complete the entire financial aid form. Computers will reject incomplete forms, delaying your request for aid.
- 7. There is no fee for applying for federal aid. Remember to enclose the processing fee if the institution requires one and if you are using the CSS PROFILE form
- 8. Remember to sign the application! oth student and parent(s) should sign.

Source: Money For College, How to Meet the Rising Cost of Higher Education, Target Marketing, Inc.

### **Scholarship Scams**

It's no wonder that students and parents are so eager to find these sources of funding that they don't have to pay back, but this makes them easy targets for financial aid con artists. Scholarship scams have been around for years. Hundreds of thousands of people are cheated by scholarship scams each year, losing tens of millions of dollars. According to the Federal Trade Commission, if you hear these lines from a scholarship service, you may be getting duped:

"The scholarship is guaranteed or your money back."

No one can guarantee that they'll get you a grant or a scholarship. Refund guarantees often have conditions or strings attached. Get refund policies in writing and read the fine print before you go any further.

"You can't get this information anywhere else."

You can tell from the preceding information that there are thousands of scholarships that you can research through free means. It's highly doubtful that a company would have an exclusive list of scholarships that you can't find through another source.

"I just need your credit card or bank account number to hold this scholarship."

Don't give your credit card or bank account number without getting information in writing first. Be very cautious about any company that would ask for it. It may be the setup for an unauthorized withdrawal from your account.

"We'll do all the work."

Don't be fooled. There's no way around it. You must apply for scholarships or grants yourself.

"The scholarship will cost money."

Don't pay anyone who claims to be "holding" a scholarship or grant for you.

"You've been selected" by a "national foundation" to receive a scholarship or "you're a finalist" in a contest you never entered.

Before you reply to a scholarship offer you didn't initiate, check it out. Make sure the foundation or program is legitimate.

### What to Do if You Suspect an Offer Is a Scam

Start with your school counselor. He or she may have information about well-known scams. Also, the following organizations can help you decide if an offer is legitimate. They will tell you whether they have received any complaints about the company, or whether the company is currently under investigation. Look for these organizations online or call for more information.

- Better Business Bureau (BBB) in the city where the scholarship service is located
- Federal Trade Commission 877 FTC-HELP www.ftc.gov/scholarshipscams
- State Bureau of Consumer Protection
- State Attorney General's Office
- National Fraud Information Center (NFIC) www.fraud.org

For more information about scholarship scams, visit www.finaid.org.

For more information about college costs and financial aid, visit the https://bigfuture.collegeboard.org/pay-for-college/loans.

### **Know How To Spot Scholarship Scams**

The vast majority of private scholarships offered to high school students are legitimate, but every year, experts say, a few scams sneak into the pack

Tips for spotting scam scholarships are offered on the website of the National Association of Student Financial Aid Administrators (www.finaid.org), operated by Mark Kantrowitz of Carnegie Mellon University.

Here, from Kantrowitz's list, are some likely signals you're looking at a scam:

- Guaranteed winnings. No legitimate scholarship will tell you in advance that you have won.
- Everybody is eligible. "Scholarship sponsors do not hand out awards to students simply for breathing," says Kantrowitz.
- **No phone number.** Most legitimate scholarship programs will give you a phone number on their forms. If there is no phone number, be wary.

- **Requests for personal information.** If an application asks for your bank account number, credit card number, or Social Security number, run away from it fast.
- **Phone notification.** If you are told by phone you have won a scholarship, and the caller doesn't offer to confirm in writing, be careful. If the caller asks for money, hang up.

Kantrowitz's website also has links to scholarship search services that cost nothing. One of the free search services, www.fastweb.com, is updated with new scholarships, sometimes daily.

# Financial Aid Crash Course: The Types of Federal Aid

If you're beginning the task of applying for financial aid, or are still puzzling over your FAFSA form, you may be confused as to what kind of loans and grants are available from Uncle Sam (as in the federal government, not your wacky relative). Consider this quick reference page a crash course in Federal Government Financial Aid 101.

#### **Stafford Loans**

Many students receive Stafford loans, which can be from the U.S. Government (called a "Federal Direct Student Loan") or from a private lender (called a "Federal Family Education Loan"). Whether your loan is directly from the government or from a government-backed bank depends on the school you attend. In either case, the eligibility requirements and loan limits are the same: If you're a dependent undergraduate student, you can borrow \$5,500 your freshman year, \$6,500 your sophomore year, and \$7,500 for each remaining (full) year of your program. Graduate students can borrow even more—up to \$20,500 per year.

Additionally, Stafford loans come in two distinct flavors: *Subsidized* or *unsubsidized*. Students with financial need may qualify for subsidized Stafford loans, which do not charge interest while you are in school or during deferment (such as if you later enroll in graduate school). Students who don't qualify for a subsidized Stafford loan can still get the unsubsidized version, but interest will continue to accumulate while they are in school, in their grace period, or in deferment.

# Parent Loans for Undergraduate Students (PLUS Loans)

Unlike Stafford loans—in which students themselves assume the loan—PLUS loans allow parents with acceptable credit histories to borrow educational funds on behalf of their children (if their children are enrolled at least half-time). PLUS loans are available both through the U.S. Government and through private lenders, and the eligibility requirements and loan limits are about the same. To be eligible, parents must be U.S, citizens, pass a credit check (although one that is generally much less stringent than required for a home mortgage), and not currently be in default of any of their existing loans. PLUS loans can cover up to the amount of your tuition bill that is left after any other financial aid has been subtracted from your total cost of attendance. (For example, if your college costs total \$10,000 and you receive \$6,000 in financial aid, you could assume a PLUS loan of \$4,000.) PLUS loan payments are sent directly to your college, and unlike other federal loans, your parents must begin paying both the interest and the principal amount of the loan while you're still in school.

### **Federal Pell Grants**

Unlike a loan, Federal Pell Grants do not have to be repaid (woo-hoo!). Students with a very high level of financial need qualify for this type of aid, which is awarded only to undergraduate students. Pell Grant award amounts can vary depending on the availability of funds and also your tuition costs, with a maximum award of \$5,550 per year. To qualify for a Pell Grant, it makes no difference if you're enrolled full-time or half-time...you're still eligible. You can thank Senator Claiborne Pell for this one.

#### **Federal Perkins Loans**

Perkins Loans are low-interest loans awarded through your university with government funds. Because funds for this program are partially derived from prior loan repayments, schools with low student default rates usually have the most Perkins loans available. Undergraduate and graduate students with financial need are eligible for the loans, which award varying amounts to students based on their individual need. Undergraduates can borrow up to \$4,000 per year while graduate students can borrow up to \$6,000. The payments will be made to you directly, or as a credit to your account. The interest rate on Federal Perkins loans is fixed at 5 percent, and interest doesn't accrue while you are in school.

# Making the Most Out of Your Database Search

In order to get the best results possible when using online scholarship search databases, you need to follow a systematic strategy. Here are some important techniques to remember when conducting your own Internet database search.

### Explore As Many Databases As You Can

Scholarship databases are a lot like Lay's potato chips—betcha can't search just one! Quite simply, there are too many scholarships out there for any one database to be considered comprehensive. Since each database may use different methods for gathering their scholarship information, each database in turn has access to a different portion of the scholarship landscape—a fact you can definitely use to your advantage.

## **Be Overly Precise**

Remember, you are much smarter than the computer database. For this reason, if you indicate on your database questionnaire that you are a skilled trumpet player, your search results may include only those scholarships directly related to the trumpet. This is because database-matching systems are not smart enough to realize that playing the trumpet is a subcategory of both band class and music. To combat this problem, check the band and music boxes in addition to the trumpet box.

## **Use the Same Questionnaire Several Times**

Some databases will not allow you to select as many items as you'd like in a given category (sometimes as few as two or three). To work around this problem, conduct several searches in the same database and vary the information you include each time around. If the database doesn't allow you to vary your personal information, you can even register under a new name with new information.

## Ask to Include Every Scholarship

Some databases will ask you if you'd like to eliminate from your search the scholarships whose dates have already passed. Although it may seem more convenient, it is generally not a good idea to do this because application deadlines often change, listings can be outdated, or the database may have the wrong deadline altogether. And even if the deadline has passed, you'll still want to know what future awards you can begin preparing for.

### Take Your Time, But Not Too Much Time

Most database questionnaires need to be completed in one sitting. If you allow too much time to pass between entries (such as leaving your computer to answer the phone), you may lose valuable information you've already entered.

### **Perform Generic Searches In Addition to Specific Ones**

While specifying a lot of very specific information can often point you to scholarships designed for a specialized area of interest, doing so can also cause some databases to omit widely accessible scholarship programs—the ones for which the majority of students are eligible to apply. So don't forget to perform fairly generic database searches as well (in which you specify minimal information about yourself).

# **Maximizing Your Summer For Scholarship Success**

The wonderful months of summer can provide a much needed break from the hustle and bustle of the school year, and from your scholarship search. But while you might go to Hawaii or Disneyland, summer is no time for a scholarship vacation! On the contrary, the summer is a terrific time to hone your scholarship appeal without having to worry much about the pressures of deadlines and applications. How do you fine tune your record? By starting with your strengths, of course.

The term "content" refers to the raw ingredients of a scholarship application: all of the activities, awards, achievements, experiences, and credentials that are detailed in the application itself. Content strategies, therefore, encompass the tactical techniques we use to improve our records in key areas, thereby enhancing how our overall scholarship resumes are perceived. And with summer finally here, it's the perfect time to get going on these content strategies right away.

## Content Strategy #1: Expand upon your strong points

At first glance, adding content in areas you're already good at may seem counterintuitive. If you already excel at something, why do you need to add to your record in that area? Well, the answer is that we want to take your strongest skills, and transform them into truly standout talents that get you noticed by scholarship judges. In this way, expanding your strong points adds depth to your application self-portrait. (See Chapter 7 of my book, *How To Go To College Almost For Free*, for more on how content strategies mesh with your overall application theme.)

What are some ways to employ this strategy during summer break?

- Use jobs as learning experiences. Try contacting some organizations, professors, or professionals in an area that you're good at or interested in and inquire about any job or internship possibilities. What if they don't have such a program? Well, suggest they create a position just for you. Many such individuals would love to serve as mentors. The best jobs and internships I've ever had were the ones I effectively created for myself.
- Devise your own project. Summer is a great time to pursue an independent project that extends your
  skills. One science-minded scholarship winner from Alaska I interviewed for my book used the summer
  to pursue his own science project on the Exxon Valdez oil spill. Another artistic scholarship winner
  painted murals on old buildings to spruce up the community.
- Leverage your other summer activities. For those students traveling over the summer, turn your trip into scholarship gold. One scholarship winner I interviewed transformed a summer trip to Europe into a scholarship-enhancing endeavor simply by keeping a journal of the trip and turning it into an independent study paper on cultural differences.

In general, the summer is a great time to sharpen your scholarship image; when else will you have three months out of the year to focus entirely on yourself? So get out your pencil and paper, grab a nice spot in the shade, and start thinking about your strong points...and how you can make them even stronger. And hey, don't forget your shades.

# Start Your Scholarship Search Today!

It's never too late to start searching for scholarships. It's also never to early! While a surprising number of scholarships are targeted at high school students, there is a sizable array of scholarships that students as young as sixth grade (and sometimes even younger) can apply for today.

Starting early allows students to prepare and better position themselves for scholarship success in later years. For example, if you've been thinking about joining a club or trying a new extracurricular activity, there's no time like the present. And remember, your scholarship search need not stop when you graduate from high school—there are hundreds (if not thousands!) of scholarship programs aimed at students already enrolled in college.

As you build up your list of scholarship opportunities, plan to apply early for as many of these opportunities as possible. Contest judging is far from an exact science, and you can enhance chances to win by submitting numerous applications.

Don't neglect the small, local scholarships either--the money could help cover the cost of textbooks for a term, and it's not unheard of to find local scholarships in which you're the only applicant!

You should also start requesting scholarship applications for programs you hope to apply for in later years. Pay special attention to the kinds of questions that will be asked of you down the road. Bottom line—if you work hard enough and start early enough, nothing can stand in the way of your eventual scholarship success.

If the Coach himself had it to do all over, he would have started applying as early as seventh or eighth grade! Many scholarships for middle-school students are project-oriented, rather than achievement-oriented, meaning that they reward students for things they've made and created, rather than what they've done. A few good examples of these are:

- The Craftsman/NSTA Young Inventors Awards Competition: Students in grades 2-8 submit inventor's logs and pictures of an invention or modification of a tool.
- Toshiba/NSTA Exploravision: Students in grades K-12 submit futuristic ideas for scientific advancement.
- Optimist International Oratorical Contest: Students under age 16 write and memorize speeches on specified topics.

By starting the search for scholarship early on, students can better position themselves for scholarship success, and ultimately afford the college of their choice.

# The Art of Scholarship Recycling

In the wonderful world of scholarships, there are two kinds of scholarship seekers. The run-of-the-mill scholarship seeker uses each essay response only one time, and wastes valuable hours coming up with new ones for each scholarship application. These types of seekers don't spend much time thinking ahead about what could be on future applications, and instead spend too much time racking their brains for answers and inspiration just minutes before deadline time. The worst trait of such students is that they never keep any of their application materials.

Then there is another breed of scholarship seeker—someone who is savvy beyond compare: This type of scholarship hopeful knows the value of creating a suite of generic reusable materials that can later save massive amounts of time and energy. The good news is, whether you're already a savvy seeker, or may have already committed one of the ill-advised acts we just mentioned, there is a lot you can do to decrease your workload while increasing your potential for winning college cash.

When applying for large numbers of scholarships, creating a suite of generic reusable materials saves a great deal of time and energy. By having this suite to draw from, you will be able to focus less on just completing application requirements, and more time on customizing and fine-tuning the material you've already prepared.

More than just a reduction in your workload, reusing and rethinking old materials can mean vast improvements as you repeatedly refine and edit the same work. By employing this strategy, you gain the opportunity to fine-tune your materials with every submission. And take it from me—your tenth draft will be far better than your first.

### Creating your own scholarship "suite"

To create this suite of generic materials, first seek to develop standard essay responses to perennial scholarship application themes—such old favorites as college plans, career goals, and future contributions to society. Survey the scholarship's landscape and isolate common themes and requirements (whether it is a similar essay question or a comparable extracurricular activity worksheet). Attempt to bridge multiple applications with every sentence you write or form you prepare.

In addition, go back into your archive of old scholarship applications (you'll develop one quickly) and try to recycle essays and other past materials. Don't just recopy such passages verbatim; instead, try to rethink, improve, and hone everything to fit the criteria of each new contest.

# **Unlocking the Secret World of Online Search Databases**

In order to begin successfully using Internet scholarship databases, it is important to know how to maximize their strengths and minimize their weaknesses. Let's start with the basics, shall we?

Scholarship databases are basically collections of college cash awards organized in a way that allows you to easily search and find them. These databases are designed to streamline your search by centralizing information about thousands of scholarships all in one place.

These databases are commonly misused, however, simply because most people don't fully understand how they function. To complicate the issue even further, more and more of these databases have sprung up all over the Internet, each one claiming to have "the most scholarships" or the "highest dollar value of awards." It's no wonder, then, that using these databases can be frustrating, to say the least.

But it doesn't have to be this way. Think of each scholarship database as being divided into two basic parts. One part is the information itself, which includes the name of the scholarship award and hopefully a general description of the judging criteria, a list of contact information, and a summary of who can win the award. The second part is the search mechanism—the system that uses the information you provide to help you find scholarship listings pertinent to your interests. Let's take a look at these search mechanisms in greater depth.

Internet scholarship databases, by and large, use one or two different search mechanisms to find scholarships that fit your interests: *matching systems* and *browsing systems*. A matching system provides you with a questionnaire that asks you to supply information relevant to your scholarship eligibility (like age, gender, and GPA), while a browsing system requires you to sift through categories of scholarships that might interest you.

Each system has obvious advantages and disadvantages. On the plus side, a **matching system** saves you time by showing you only the scholarship listings pertinent to the information you entered. On the other hand, because you only see the scholarship listings the systems says fit your profile, you do not know what scholarships could be missing.

The strength of a **browsing system** is that by sorting through several scholarship categories yourself, you are able to get a good feel for the scholarships in the database. On the flip side, however, browsing systems can suck up a lot of valuable time, energy, and concentration, since it's easy to be overwhelmed and confused by the sheer number of awards.

# Using the Summer to Iron Out Scholarship Wrinkles

In Part I of our strategy building series, we examined how you can use the summer months to further develop your strong points. However, while the summer is a perfect opportunity to focus on the positive, it's also a time to begin developing areas that aren't quite so strong. When applying for scholarships, it's important to come across as well-rounded. Although your application spotlight should be shining on your strongest areas, you will also want to include activities, achievements, and other credentials that demonstrate a wide range of exploration.

To implement this strategy, try to participate in activities that fill in any glaring gaps in your record, and that help you become more well-rounded. For example, in my high school record, a high percentage of my most compelling achievements had clearly involved fields related to the arts and humanities. To emphasize that I wasn't just a one-dimensional student, I joined my high school's science club and competed on the Science Olympics and math teams. This participation demonstrated my quantitative skills--a range of abilities that I didn't often have the opportunity to exhibit in other extracurriculars. Not only did this benefit my scholarship applications (and college applications, too), but it also improved my math and science skills on the side. What are some great summer activities to shore up common weak spots?

- **Serve your community.** Many students have told me that they just don't have enough time to do community service work. Well, why not devote some extra summer hours to a worthy cause? Pick a cause you're interested in, and join an existing program or create your own. If you're someone who can't get enough of the summer sun, find a community service endeavor that gets you outdoors.
- Take a summer course. School in the summer may sound like a major drag, but taking one course at a local community college isn't a big deal. Pick a subject that you've struggled with in school, and use the summer course as an opportunity to demonstrate your competence.
- Explore old subjects in new settings. Sometimes subject areas that seem dull or difficult in the school environment aren't so bad once you get out of the classroom. Look to participate in programs, camps, clubs, activities, workshops, and conferences that enhance your exploration of subjects you've shied away from in the past. In general, look for activities in which you get to explore something you're curious about, try something you're unfamiliar with, and meet new and interesting people.

All of these experiences can also provide you with great raw material for those upcoming scholarship essays. These strategies I've briefly outlined, of course, are not only useful during the summer months, but also during the regular school year. However, if you utilize just a small portion of those lazy, hazy, crazy days of summer to pursuing these worthwhile goals, you'll be way ahead when the back-to-school regimen starts up once again.

# Great Resources about Aid and Student Loan Debt

http://www.usatoday.com/money/perfi/college/2006-06-11-debt-cover-usat\_x.htm

http://www.collegescholarships.org/loans/average-debt.htm

http://articles.moneycentral.msn.com/CollegeAndFamily/CutCollegeCosts/HowMuchCollegeDebtIsTooMuch.aspx

http://online.wsj.com/article/SB10001424052970204731804574388682129316614.html

http://www.studentdoc.com/student-loan-debt.html

http://projectonstudentdebt.org/files/File/Debt\_Facts\_and\_Sources.pdf

https://www.salliemae.com

http://www.campusgrotto.com/student-debt-in-america.html

http://www.ehow.com/about\_6780448\_average-undergraduate-student-loan-debt.html

http://www.nytimes.com/2011/04/12/education/12college.html

For more resources just use your search engine and search "college financial aid"

# Twenty Things You Need to Know About Financing College

It's important to make an informed decision about an institution of higher education. We recommend using the following three phases together, as a whole, to arrive at the best possible decision.

### Phase 1: Applying to College

Once the student's academic and social interests and objectives have been matched with appropriate institutions, the student might need to consider financial assistance. College admission and financial aid advisers should be prepared to provide the following information:

- 1. What are the average costs for tuition and fees, books and supplies, room and board, transportation, and other personal expenses for the first year? What are the ranges of room (single, double) costs, board costs (21 meals?), and special tuition rates (flat rate for 15-18 credits, etc.)? By how much will total costs increase each year? (A three- to five-year printed history of tuition and fee increases as well as room and board increases should be available.)
- 2. Does financial need have an impact on admission decisions?
- 3. Does the decision to apply for early admission affect financial aid?
- 4. Does the institution offer financial aid programs as well as merit or other scholarships that do not include consideration of financial need? How and when should applications for need-based and merit aid be completed?
- 5. What non-institutional sources of aid and information are available? (Check with the financial aid office regarding fee-based sources.)
- 6. What application forms are required to complete the financial aid process? What is the priority deadline for applying for financial aid? When will the student be notified about financial aid decisions?

### Phase 2: Choosing a College

During this phase, the student chooses the college with the best academic, social, and financial fit. To make this decision, college financial aid offices should supply the following information:

- 7. How much financial aid will the student receive? Will he or she be billed for his or her share of the costs? Are there any other costs not accounted for in the aid offer that the student should plan for, such as expenses for books, room and board, transportation, or personal needs?
- 8. If the student and/or the student's family cannot meet the financial responsibilities from current income or assets, what financing options are available to help them pay their share?
- 9. Will the financial aid office provide each student with an explanation of how his or her expected family contribution, financial need, and award package was determined?
- 10. If the financial aid award package is insufficient to make it possible for the student to attend this institution, under what conditions, if any, will the aid office reconsider its offer?
- 11. What are the terms and conditions of the aid programs included in the student's award package (e.g., treatment of outside scholarships, loan repayment policies, renewal criteria, etc.)? Regarding renewal, what are the academic requirements or other conditions for the renewal of financial aid, including scholarships?
- 12. How will the student's aid package change from year to year? Will loan amounts increase? What impact will cost increases have on the aid package? What will happen if the student's financial situation changes? What will happen if the student's or another family member's enrollment status changes?

13. What amount of student loan debt does your typical student borrower have once he or she finishes college?

# **Phase 3: Before Leaving Home**

By the end of this phase, the student should be clear about his or her financial obligations to the college of his or her choice and how to meet those obligations. The financial aid and/or business office of the student's chosen college should be helpful in answering the following questions:

- 14. When can the student/family expect to receive bills from the college? How many times a year will they be billed? If the bill is not paid by the deadline, will there be penalties? Does the college accept payment by credit card? Is there an option to pay monthly?
- 15. Is all financial aid credited to the student's account, or will the student receive checks for some or all of the financial aid awarded? What about student employment earnings? If aid exceeds billed charges, how does the student receive the funds?
- 16. How much money will the student need during the first week of school for things such as books, a parking permit, etc.? Can the student use financial aid to pay for books and supplies? Can books and supplies be charged to the student's account? What typical out-of-pocket expenses do most students have during the year?
- 17. Is information provided to students regarding budgeting resources, money management, and credit card usage?
- 18. Are there banking services with fee-free ATMs and/or check cashing on or near campus? Does the campus have a debit card?
- 19. Will the college be responsive to midyear changes in family financial situations?
- 20. Regarding student employment, including federal work-study: How are jobs assigned? How many hours per week will a student be expected to or allowed to work? How often and in what manner will the student receive earnings payments? Will earnings be automatically credited to the student's account?

This information was developed by a College Board work group sponsored by the College Scholarship Service® (CSS®) Council. Comments and questions about these guidelines may be directed to dsexton@collegeboard.org. 200279

### The Six Most Common Blunders of College Applicants

Advice from Jeremy Spencer, Former Director of Admissions at Alfred University

# By Allen Grove

I met with Jeremy Spencer, former Director of Admissions at Alfred University and asked him what he sees as the most common blunders made by college applicants. Below are six mistakes he encounters frequently.

# 1. Missing Deadlines

The college admissions process is filled with deadlines, and missing a deadline can mean a rejection letter or lost financial aid. A typical college applicant has dozens of dates to remember:

- Application deadlines which vary from school to school
- Early action and early decision deadlines, if applicable
- Institutional financial aid deadlines
- Federal financial aid deadlines
- State financial aid deadlines
- Scholarship deadlines

Realize that some colleges will accept applications after the deadline if they have not yet filled their new class. However, financial aid may be much harder to obtain late in the application process. (Learn more about <u>senior year deadlines</u>.)

# 2. Applying for Early Decision When It's Not the Right Choice

Students who apply to a college through Early Decision typically must sign a contract stating that they are applying to just the one college early. Early Decision is a restricted admissions process, so it is not a good choice for students who aren't really sure that the Early Decision school is their first choice. Some students apply through Early Decision because they think it will improve their chance of admission, but in the process they end up restricting their options. Also, if students violate their contract and apply to more than one college through Early Decision, they run the risk of being removed from the applicant pool for misleading the institution. While this is not the policy at Alfred University, some colleges share their Early Decision applicant lists to make sure students haven't applied to multiple schools through Early Decision. (Learn about the difference between early decision and early action.)

# 3. Using the Wrong College Name in an Application Essay

Understandably, many college applicants write a single admissions essay and then change the name of the college for different applications. Applicants need to make sure the college name is correct everywhere it appears. The admissions officers will not be impressed if an applicant begins by discussing how much she really wants to go to Alfred University, but the last sentence says, "R.I.T. is the best choice for me." Mail merge and global replace can't be relied on 100% — applicants need to reread each application carefully, and they should have someone else proofread as well. (Learn more tips for the application essay.)

# 4. Applying to a College Online Without Telling School Counselors

The Common Application and other online options make it easier than ever to apply to colleges. Many students, however, make the mistake of submitting applications online without notifying their high school guidance counselors. Counselors play an important role in the application process, so leaving them out of the loop can lead to several problems:

- High school transcripts are delayed or never get mailed
- Letters of recommendation from teachers are delayed or never get sent
- The college admissions decision process becomes inefficient and delayed
- Applications end up being incomplete because the counselor can't follow up with the colleges

# 5. Waiting too Long to Ask for Letters of Recommendation

Applicants who wait until the last minute to ask for letters of recommendation run the risk that the letters will be late, or they will not be thorough and thoughtful. To get good letters of recommendation, applicants should identify teachers early, talk with them, and give them as much information as possible about each program to which they are applying. This allows teachers to craft letters that match an applicant's particular strengths with specific college programs. Letters written at the last minute rarely contain this type of useful specificity. (Learn more about getting good letters of recommendation.)

# 6. Failing to Limit Parents' Involvement

Students need to self-advocate during the admissions process. The college is admitting the student, not the student's mom or dad. It's the student who needs to build a relationship with the college, not the parents. Helicopter parents--those who constantly hover--end up doing a disservice to their children. Students need to manage their own affairs once they get to college, so the admissions staff wants to see evidence of this self-sufficiency during the application process. While parents should certainly be involved in the college admissions process, the student needs to make the connections with the school and complete the application.

Jeremy Spencer's Bio: Jeremy Spencer served as the Director of Admissions at Alfred University from 2005 to 2010. Prior to AU, Jeremy served as the Director of Admissions at Saint Joseph's College (IN) and various admissions level positions at Lycoming College (PA) and Miami University (OH). At Alfred, Jeremy was responsible for both the undergraduate and graduate admissions process and supervised 14 professional admissions staff. Jeremy earned his BA degree (Biology and Psychology) at Lycoming College and his MS degree (College Student Personnel) at Miami University.

### 010 College Interview Mistakes

Make Sure the Impression You Make is a Good One

# By Allen Grove

Before you set foot in the interview room, make sure you have answers for these <u>12 common interview questions</u>. Keep in mind that the college interview probably isn't the most important part of your application, but it can help you if you make a good impression. A bad impression can hurt your chances of getting accepted.

## During the interview, **DO NOT...**

#### 1. Be Late

Your interviewers are busy people. Alumni interviewers are probably taking time out of their full-time jobs to meet with you, and campus admissions folks often have back-to-back appointments scheduled. Lateness disrupts schedules and shows irresponsibility on your part.

#### 2. Underdress

Business casual is your safest bet, but the main thing is to look neat and put-together. You'll look like you don't care if you show up wearing ripped jeans or saran wrap. These clothing tips for men and women can help.

#### 3. Talk Too Little

Your interviewer wants to get to know you. If you answer every question with a "yes," "no," or a grunt, you're not impressing anyone, and you're not demonstrating that you can contribute to the intellectual life of the campus.

#### 4. Make a Prepared Speech

You want to sound like yourself during your interview. If you have prepared answers to questions, you might come off sounding artificial and insincere.

#### 5. Chew Gum

It's distracting and annoying.

#### 6. Bring Your Parents

Your interviewer wants to get to know you, not your parents. Also, it's hard to look like you're mature enough for college if Dad is asking all the questions for you.

#### 7. Show Disinterest

This should be a no-brainer, but you'd be surprised what some students will say. A comment like "you're my back-up school" or "I'm here because my parents told me to apply" is an easy way to lose points during the interview.

### 8. Fail to Research the College

If you ask questions that could easily be answered by the college's website, you'll send the message that you don't care enough about the school to do a little research. Ask questions that show you know the place: "I'm interested in your Honors Program; could you tell me more about it?"

#### 9. Lie

This should be obvious, but some students do get themselves in trouble by fabricating half truths or exaggerating during the interview.

#### 10. Be Rude

Good manners go a long way. Shake hands. Address your interviewer by name. Say "thank you." Introduce your parents if they are in the waiting area. Say "thank you" again. Send a thank you note.

## **Application Essays**

Tips for Writing Your Way Into Your Top Choice School

# By Allen Grove

Nearly all colleges rate application essays as either important or very important in their admissions process. A poorly executed essay can cause a stellar student to get rejected. On the flip side, exceptional application essays can help students with marginal scores get into the schools of their dreams. The tips below will help you win big with your essay. Also be sure to check out these <u>tips for the five personal essay options</u> on the Common Application, these <u>nine tips for improving your essay's style</u>, and the <u>sample essays</u>.

## **Avoid the List**

Many college applicants make the mistake of trying to include all of their accomplishments and activities in their application essays. Such essays read like what they are: tedious lists. Other parts of the application provide plenty of space for you to list extracurricular activities, so save your lists for the places where they belong.

The most engaging and compelling essays tell a story and have a clear focus. Through carefully chosen detail, your writing should reveal your passions and expose your personality. A thoughtful and detailed narration of a difficult time in your life tells far more about you than a list of competitions won and honors achieved. Your grades and scores show that you're smart. Use your essay to show that you're thoughtful and mature, that your personality has depth.

## A Touch of Humor (but just a touch)

While it's important to be thoughtful and mature, you don't want your college application essay to be too heavy. Try to lighten up the essay with a clever metaphor, a well-placed witticism, or a little self-deprecating humor. But don't overdo it. The essay that is filled with bad puns or off-color jokes will often end up in the rejection pile. Also, humor isn't a substitute for substance. Your primary task is to answer the essay prompt thoughtfully; the smile you bring to your reader's lips is just a bonus (and a tear can sometimes be effective too). Many students have been rejected for failing to take the prompt seriously and writing essays that end up being more foolish than clever.

### Tone, Tone, Tone

Not just humor, but the overall tone of your application essay is remarkably important. It's also difficult to get right. When you are asked to write about your accomplishments, those 750 words on how great you are can make you sound like a braggart. Be careful to balance your pride in your achievements with humility and generosity towards others. You also want to avoid sounding like a whiner -- use your essay to show off your skills, not to explain the injustices that lead to your low math score or failure to graduate #1 in your class.

### **Reveal Your Character**

Along with the essay, most colleges rate "character and personal qualities" as extremely important in their admissions decisions. Your character shows up in three places on the application: the interview (if you have one), your involvement in extracurricular activities, and your essay. Of the three, the essay is the most immediate and illuminating to the admissions folks as they read through thousands of applications. Remember, colleges aren't looking solely for straight "A"s and high SAT scores. They are looking for good citizens for their campus communities.

# **Mechanics Matter**

Grammatical problems, punctuation errors, and spelling mistakes can hurt your chance of being accepted. When excessive, these errors are distracting and make your application essay difficult to understand. Even a few errors, however, can be a strike against you. They show a lack of care and quality control in your written work, and your success in college partly depends upon strong writing skills.

If English isn't your greatest strength, seek help. Ask a favorite teacher to go over the essay with you, or find a friend with strong editorial skills. If you can't find expert help, there are many on-line essay services that can provide a careful critique of your writing.

# What Is a Good SAT Score? A Bad SAT Score? An Excellent SAT Score?



Posted by Dr. Fred Zhang | Jan 30, 2016 11:00:00 AM

**SAT/ACT Score Target** 

What is a good SAT score? You took the SAT, got your scores back, and now you want to know how you did. Or maybe you just want to know what score to aim for next time. Here we answer that question for you quickly, and then dive in carefully to explain the answer.Importantly, we also give you a step-by-step guide to figuring out what SAT score YOU need, depending on the colleges you want to apply to.

Gain 160+ Points in a Week:

# Read our Free eBook Now!

**Note:** the Old SAT was scored on the 2400 scale, but the New SAT is scored on the 1600 scale. Because most colleges will <u>accept scores from both SATs for the Class of 2017</u>, we'll cover both tests here.

# What's a Good <u>SAT Score</u>, <u>Compared to the Entire Country?</u>

The short answer: for the New SAT (out of 1600), 1000 is considered an <u>average score</u>. Roughly half the students score higher than this threshold and the other half score below it.

For the Old SAT (out of 2400), 1500 is the national average score.

The top 25% of SAT takers score about 1200 or more (or 1800 on the Old SAT); if your New SAT score **is above 1200, then that's quite good.** Whether this is good enough to get into the colleges you care about is what we'll cover next.

**The bottom 25% of SAT takers score 840** (or 1260 on the Old SAT); if you're scoring in that range, be careful! It may be hard for you to get into the college you want to attend.

### Again, to reiterate:

## New SAT (of 1600) Old SAT (of 2400)

Excellent (top 25%)	1200	1800
Good (Average)	1000	1500
Poor (lowest 25%)	840	1260

Here is the precise chart of percentiles, provided by the College Board.

The round number 1000 is not a coincidence. The SAT makers actually design the test so the overall average score is 1000, and the average score per section is 500.

Remember, the lowest you can score on the SAT is 400, and the highest you can score is 1600.

But wait - this is just the national average. Is the entire US population the exact right basis for finding what a good SAT score is? What if you're not an average American, but a football star, or an international student? **Don't you want to define what a good SAT score is based on your personal potential?** 

If you agree, then you should read our guide to <u>Defining what a Good SAT Score</u>. We cover four different ways of defining what a good SAT score is.

One popular defintiion of a good SAT score must depend on what college you're aiming for. What you really care about is how good your **SAT score is compared to the average score of students at schools that you're planning to apply to**. If you don't get a score above your target score, you may find it hard to get into the colleges you're looking for.

Keep reading for our step-by-step guide to figuring out what a good SAT score for YOU is, in just 10 minutes.

Gain 160+ Points in a Week: Read our Free eBook Now!

Want to improve your SAT score by 160 points? We've written a guide about the top 5 strategies you must be using to have a shot at improving your score. Download it for free now:

Get eBook: 5 Tips for 160+ Points

# What's a Good SAT Score for YOU Specifically?

By now, you already know that your SAT score is vital for getting into college. This leads most people to this important question: how high does YOUR SAT score need to be to get into YOUR favorite colleges?

Having a concrete target SAT score is really important. It gives us a goal to aim for and helps us track our progress during our study time.

Your score target needs to be different from everyone else's, because you have different goals from theirs. You need your own score target to aim for, based on data about colleges.

You are NOT aiming for what your parents think you should get. You are NOT aiming for what your friends think you should get.

There is a mathematical way to determine the target score you should be aiming for.

Step 1: Download This Worksheet

To follow the next steps, we'll be filling out a worksheet for all the top schools you're interested in. Click here to download it, or click the image below.



I recommend you print it out so that you can write it on paper and keep it next to your desk.

Step 2: Fill in the Schools You Want to Get Into on the Left

These might be schools that you already know you want to apply to. Include your dream schools, but don't include your <u>safety schools</u>, i.e. schools that you're 90% sure you'll get into.

If you don't know what schools you want to apply to yet, feel free to use ones that you've heard of, or schools that your friends are interested in. I recommend that you research schools first, though, so that you get a sense of what score you'll need to get into the schools you're interested in and can set a realistic target score.

Step 3: For Each School, Google "[Name of School] Prepscholar SAT"

For example, if I'm interested in University of Alabama, I'll do the following search:

Most schools will have a PrepScholar.com link, as shown here. If you don't find one, try searching "[name of school] average sat score" to see if the scores are listed on their official website. You cal also use this method to double check your numbers.

Our PrepScholar.com page lists the **25th/75th percentile scores** for current University of Alabama students. We currently have data for the Old 2400 SAT only - when the schools release their student data for the New 1600 SAT, we'll update these pages.

A refresher on what percentile scores mean: 25th percentile means that 25 percent of the students attending have a score at or below that number (this is below average). The 75th percentile means that 75 percent of students have a score at or below that number (this is above average). In essence, this covers the middle 50% of all students admitted to U Alabama.

If you score at the 75th percentile for this school, you have a great shot at getting in. If you're at the 25th percentile, you'll have to wow them some other way.

Sum up the scores across all 3 sections and enter them in the worksheet. For this U Alabama example, the 25th percentile is 1490, and the 75th percentile is 1870.

Now do the same for the rest of your schools on the list.

Gain 160+ Points in a Week: Read our Free eBook Now! Step 4: Calculate the New SAT Score Out of 1600

Because you're taking the new SAT out of 1600, you need to convert the 2400 score to the 1600 scale in the right-most column.

Use our <u>converter tool</u>, which is based on official concordance tables from the College Board.

For U Alabama, this tool gives a new SAT goal score of 1320.

Step 5: Calculate Your Final SAT Target Score

Finally, take the average of all columns - 25th percentile and 75th percentile.

I highly recommend that your **personal target score be the average 75th percentile score** for all your schools that you just calculated. If you achieve this score, **you'll have a very strong shot at getting into all the schools you listed**.

For you, this is what a "good SAT score" is. **This is your special number** - not your friends', and not your parents'. If you get this number, you will almost certainly get into at least one of the colleges on your list.

Finally, you should have a target for what your score for each section should be. My suggestion would be to just divide your target score by 2. If you're applying to engineering schools, try to aim for your Math score to be 50 points higher than the others. If you're applying for a humanities program, your Math score can be a little bit lower than your Reading and Writing score.

Here's an example sheet I filled out:



# repScholar,com | SAT/ACT Online Prep

# SAT Score Target Worksheet

School Name	25th Percentile (of 2400)	75 <sup>th</sup> Percentile (of 2400)	75 <sup>th</sup> Percentile (of 1600)
U of Alabama	1490	1870	1250
Georgia Southern	1510	1740	1160
Samford University	1540	1880	1250
UC Santa Barbara	1640	1990	1330
			7722000
Average	1540	1870	1250

# My SAT Score Target

Total Score: 1250

(we recommend you use the average 75% percentile score out of 1600 calculated above)

Math: 630 Reading/Writing: 620

# Step 6: Make Your Goal Known

Once you've finished your worksheet, I recommend you do two things:

- 1. **Share it with your parents.** This will get everyone on the same page on what SAT score you're aiming for and what kinds of colleges you're looking at. Plus, they'll be impressed that you're taking the initiative to set your own goals.
- 2. **Tape it to your wall.** I want you to think about your score target every time you study. This is your goal, and you're going to meet it.

Don't get stressed out by this score target. **You can reach it**. Every single student I've worked with has met his or her score target if she put in serious effort to study.

### What's Next?

If you got a lower score, we have a <u>low score guide</u> that can help. Alternatively, here's a guide to <u>scores for the Ivy League</u> schools and other top schools.

Click here if you're considering whether or not you should retake the SAT.

**Disappointed with your scores? Want to improve your SAT score by 160 points?** We've written a guide about the top 5 strategies you must be using to have a shot at improving your score. Download it for free now:

Get eBook: 5 Tips for 160+ Points

Have friends who also need help with test prep? Share this article!

• inShare2



**Dr. Fred Zhang** *About the Author* 

Fred is co-founder of PrepScholar. He scored a perfect score on the SAT and is passionate about sharing information with aspiring students. Fred graduated from Harvard University with a Bachelor's in Mathematics and a PhD in Economics.

# Ways to Score Scholarship Money

April 20, 2012

By Brandon Ballenger - @btballenger

Photo (cc) by joncandy

Read more at <a href="http://www.moneytalksnews.com/2012/04/20/5-ways-to-win-more-scholarship-money/#Uy34x5eTq26ZTItP.99">http://www.moneytalksnews.com/2012/04/20/5-ways-to-win-more-scholarship-money/#Uy34x5eTq26ZTItP.99</a>.

A college degree can open doors, but finding the money to get one can mean knocking on a bunch first.

The average annual cost to attend a four-year public college is \$8,244, says <u>College Board</u>. For out-of-state students, that number more than doubles (\$20,770) – and for private schools, it triples (\$28,500). And that's just tuition. Those numbers don't include housing, living expenses, or textbooks.

With student loan debt <u>topping \$1 billion</u>, the Consumer Financial Protection Bureau says, "Student loans have eclipsed credit cards as the leading source of U.S. household debt outside of mortgages." But there may be more available scholarship money than debt. <u>College Board's scholarship search</u> alone claims to check "scholarships, other financial aid and internships from more than 2,200 programs, totaling nearly \$6 billion."

While many believe college will pay for itself later through higher salaries, there's no reason to take on loans (and years of debt) before searching out as much free money as possible. In the video below, Money Talks News founder Stacy Johnson interviews Harvard grad Ben Kaplan, who won two dozen scholarships worth \$90,000. Find out how he did it, and then read on to learn how you can too....

Read more at <a href="http://www.moneytalksnews.com/2012/04/20/5-ways-to-win-more-scholarship-money/#Uy34x5eTq26ZTItP.99">http://www.moneytalksnews.com/2012/04/20/5-ways-to-win-more-scholarship-money/#Uy34x5eTq26ZTItP.99</a>.

This is the kind of advice I could've used heading into college. I had a state scholarship that covered 75 percent of my tuition for four years. But it wasn't until senior year I realized I could've had a full ride and saved myself thousands more. I just assumed I wasn't eligible, but you know what they say about assumptions. Don't make the same mistake. Follow these tips...

## 1. Check non-academic scholarships

As we already mentioned, there are literally billions of dollars in scholarships out there every year. As we covered in <u>25 Bizarre Scholarships</u>, many don't require great grades, test scores, or any kind of performance at all – there are scholarships based on everything from your <u>height</u> to a passion for the science behind wine.

Some of them have such weirdly specific criteria that you might win just by being the only person crazy enough to apply. For instance, there's a scholarship for <u>Catholics named Zolp</u>. (Name changes won't work.) So don't sell yourself short when searching.

# 2. Use scholarship databases

There are many places to hunt for scholarships online. Try some of these:

- Scholarships.com
- CollegeBoard.org
- College-Scholarships.com
- College Answer
- QuestBridge
- Scholarship America
- FastWeb.com

Also check with the financial aid department of any school you might apply to. Several, <u>like Harvard</u>, have dedicated Web pages for scholarships available only to their students.

Wherever you look for scholarship money online, remember you shouldn't have to *pay* anything. Don't fall for scholarship application fees, matching services, or other fee-based services. Not all places that charge are rip-offs, but many are, and there's no need to take risks with so many free resources at your fingertips.

## 3. Check locally and offline

Online searches are a great tool, but your odds of winning nationally competitive scholarships might be lower than less-advertised local ones. Check with local businesses and community-oriented organizations in your area: Rotary clubs, YMCA, Kiwanis, and even churches. High-school and library bulletin boards and well-connected guidance counselors might also be able to clue you in.

### 4. Reuse vour work

Apply for a few scholarships, and you'll start to see a pattern. Many want the same information, and essay scholarships may touch on the same themes (especially "tell us who you are and why you want our money").

While plagiarism is a no-no in college, you can't plagiarize yourself. Save time by keeping documents you can copy and paste from, and use your Web browser's autocomplete feature so you don't have to type in your contact info a billion times. Just make sure to double-check everything.

### 5. Be persistent

While there's a mind-boggling amount of free money out there, don't expect it to fall into your lap. Do the legwork and keep checking every semester. Some scholarships aren't available to freshmen or undecided majors, and new opportunities pop up all the time.

Fill out the <u>Free Application for Federal Student Aid</u> at the start of every year so your school knows you're still interested in grants and other financial aid. Do it early in the spring semester – need-based aid such as federal Pell grants is often first-come, first-served.

## What To Do If You Can't Get Enough Financial Aid

Consider <u>starting at a community college</u>, which charges significantly less than a four-year university and lets you finish core courses before transferring to the school you really want. Just make sure your credits will carry over – ask the transfer schools for an <u>articulation agreement</u>.

You could also try applying to <u>some of the cheapest schools</u> in the country, or the tuition-free schools named in <u>this BusinessWeek article</u>. The Consumer Financial Protection Bureau's new <u>comparison</u> shopping tool might also help.

If you need more money, you'll probably have to turn to student loans. While their interest rates are relatively low compared to most other types (3.4 percent for subsidized undergraduate loans), it's still easy to rack up a mountain of debt. Check out <u>Are Student Loans the Next Debt Crisis? 6 Ways to Stay Out of Trouble</u> to learn how to minimize interest and seek loan forgiveness.

Read more at <a href="http://www.moneytalksnews.com/2012/04/20/5-ways-to-win-more-scholarship-money/#Uy34x5eTq26ZTItP.99">http://www.moneytalksnews.com/2012/04/20/5-ways-to-win-more-scholarship-money/#Uy34x5eTq26ZTItP.99</a>

# Clean Up Your Social Media

http://www.hercampus.com/high-school/applying-college/how-clean-your-social-media-college-applications

## **Scholarship Details:**

Name of award: Howell & Jane Teasley Scholarship

Application deadline: June 30 Type of Award: Scholarship Award is school specific: No

Dollar amount awarded per individual per year for most recent year: \$1,000.00

Unlimited number of awards available: No

Award must be repaid: No Award is renewable: No

Award is granted every year: Yes Number of awards granted per year: 1

# **Scholarship Requirements:**

Applicant must be a U.S. citizen enrolled full-time in a recognized college or university. Selection based upon academic excellence, school/community leadership, extra-curricular involvement/service, and a commitment to impacting the culture through Christian ministry OR public service. Financial need is considered. Minimum 2.75 GPA, 1000 (MAX) word essay, official transcript, two letters of recommendation, and proof of U.S. citizenship required.

Essay: Explain what it means to have a Christian Worldview and why that is important. Also, briefly explain how you intend to use your college education to impact the culture through Christian ministry OR public service.

# **Submit Documentation by June 30 to Sponsor Organization:**

Citizen Impact

Teasley Scholarship Box 2947 Loganville, GA 30052

Phone: (770) 466-8156

Web site: http://www.CitizenImpactUSA.org

## Measuring a College Grad's Salary Prospects

Jul 6, 2016 Lynn O'Shaughnessy | Wealth Management Magazine



This is the question that parents are increasingly asking schools as they contemplate bankrolling their children's college years: Will my child get a good-paying job after graduating from your school?

Pose this question to a college admissions representative, and you are likely to hear that nearly all the institution's recent graduates are employed.

But institutional evidence is flimsy at best. Schools typically base their employment statistics on surveys that they send out to new graduates. The percentage of graduates who fill out these surveys, however, is usually low.

And the alumni with jobs are more likely to complete these surveys, while those who moved back in with their parents and have no employment prospects are more likely to ignore them.

These surveys are also not likely to differentiate between those who have jobs that actually require a college degree and those that don't. Nor would it be in a school's interest to make a distinction between students who have a full-time job versus a part-time one.

With this focus on job prospects, there has been a growing interest within the U.S. Department of Education and outside groups to generate and share salary and job statistics for individual schools.

PayScale, the online salary information company, has been sharing salary data linked to individual schools through its annual <a href="PayScale College Salary Report">PayScale relies on individuals voluntarily sharing their wages if they want to use its salary comparison site, and the site uses this information when ranking schools by salary potential.</a>

In addition, the federal government started releasing aggregate salary data for graduates at individual schools last year via its <u>College Scorecard</u> website. On the site, you can discover the median salaries of alumni 10 years after leaving their schools.

On this federal website, for instance, it says graduates at the University of Maryland earned a median salary of \$59,100, while graduates from the University of Virginia earned \$58,600. Grads at Johns Hopkins University earned a median salary of \$69,200.

While the federal government could access actual salary figures for graduates, it has been hamstrung in what it can share. With intense lobbying primarily from private colleges and universities, Congress has repeatedly voted against making salary data available to consumers.

What the Department of Education was able to do on its own, however, was to release salary figures from graduates who either obtained federal grants, which are earmarked chiefly for lower-income students, and/or who borrowed through federal loans. The available data fails to cover the salaries of about half the graduates.

But a California-based nonprofit has recently stepped in to offer greater graduate salary information than any other source.

<u>Educate to Career</u> provides a more precise picture of the salaries that graduates at a particular school are earning. The site drills down and shares not only the salaries per academic major of last year's graduates, but also by occupations within those majors.

For example, recent economic majors at the University of Chicago made an average salary of \$67,600. Of the jobs surveyed, alumni who became marketing and sales managers (\$87,600) and financial managers (\$84,500) earned the highest beginning salaries. Their earnings far outpaced the econ grads who became accountants or auditors (\$63,400) and personal financial advisors (\$65,500).

To find the academic major/occupation figures of a school, click on the <u>Career Counselors</u> link on the home page of Educate to Career, then click on the <u>College and Major Outcomes</u> link.

Educate to Career also created a <u>college ranking system</u> that measures the return on investment that attending a particular school provides its graduates. The site compares the cost of the school with the improvement in earnings and employment prospects that its graduates enjoy.

The site, which ranks 1,182 public and private schools, looks at such metrics as the percentage of grads employed in occupations that utilize their field of study, the average salary earned by recent grads and the typical number of years to graduate.

The schools that rose to the top of the ETC rankings include the University of North Carolina, University of California-Irvine, University of Virginia, College of William and Mary, The Citadel, University of Michigan and University of Florida. The private schools near the top include Bob Jones University (12), Berea College (14), St. John's University in Minnesota (18), Brigham Young University (21), College of St. Benedict (24) and St. Vincent College in Pennsylvania (25).

The data powerhouse behind ETC's figures is <u>Job Search Intelligence</u>, which is a leading provider of educational attainment and career outcomes. Among the California firm's clients are more than 5,000 employers and more than half of Fortune 500 companies. The firm uses dozens of data points in generating its salary figures from such sources as the U.S. Census Bureau, Bureau of Labor Statistics and National Center for Education Statistics

Lynn O'Shaughnessy is a nationally recognized higher-ed speaker, journalist and author of The College Solution. She writes about college for CBS MoneyWatch and her own blog, <u>TheCollegeSolution.com</u>.

I update the Scholarship File every few months. If you would like an updated file at any time, just send me an email. My contact information is below.

Mr. Chuck Kittrell University Representative Bob Jones University Greenville, SC 29614 Cellular: 706-825-6534 Email: ckittrel@bju.edu